VILLAGE OF

Est. 1873

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Tuesday, July 11, 2017
7:30 P.M.
MEMORIAL HALL — MEMORIAL BUILDING
(Tentative & Subject to Change)

. CALL TO ORDER

. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a) Meeting of June 13, 2017

. CITIZENS’ PETITIONS (Pertaining to items appearing on this agenda)*

. VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT

. SWEARING IN AND RECOGNITION OF POLICE DEPARTMENT PERSONNEL

. FIRST READINGS - INTRODUCTION

Items included for First Reading - Introduction may be disposed of in any one of the following ways:
(1) moved to Consent Agenda for the subsequent meeting of the Board of Trustees; (2) moved to
Second Reading/Non-Consent Agenda for consideration at a future meeting of the Board of
Trustees; or (3) referred to Committee of the Whole or appropriate Board or Commission. (Note
that zoning matters will not be included on any Consent Agenda; all zoning matters will be afforded
a First and a Second Reading. Zoning matters indicated below by **.)

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes)
a) Approve an Ordinance Authorizing Transfers of Appropriations within Departments and
Agencies of the Village for the Fiscal Year May 1, 2016 to April 30, 2017

Environment & Public Services (Chair Byrnes)
b) Award Bid #1632 Various Roof Replacements and Improvements to Olsson Roofing in
an amount not to exceed $318,416.36

Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear)

c) Approve an Ordinance Approving an Amendment to a Special Use Permit to Change
Hours of Operation at a Physical Fitness Facility in the B-3 General Business Zoning
District at 230 E. Ogden Avenue**

d) Approve an Ordinance Approving a Site Plan and Exterior Appearance Plan for a New
Animal Hospital at 722-724 N. York Road, Hinsdale, Illinois — Hinsdale Animal Hospital
— Case Number A-40-2016**




8. CONSENT AGENDA
All items listed below have previously had a First Reading of the Board or are considered Routine***
and will be moved forward by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless
a member of the Village Board or citizen so request, in which event the item will be removed from the
Consent Agenda.

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes)

a) Approval and payment of the accounts payable for the period of June 14, 2017 through
July 11, 2017, in the aggregate amount of $1,639,448.58 as set forth on the list provided
by the Village Treasurer, of which a permanent copy is on file with the Village Clerk***

b) Amendment of an Application Service Agreement between the Village of Hinsdale and
Aptean, Inc. (First Reading — June 13, 2017)

c) Approve an Ordinance Amending Subsection 3-3-13A of the Village Code of Hinsdale
Related to the Number of Liquor Licenses (Discussion Item — June 13, 2017)

9. SECOND READINGS / NON-CONSENT AGENDA - ADOPTION
These items require action of the Board. Typically, items appearing for Second Reading have been
referred for further discussion/clarification or are zoning cases that require two readings. In limited
instances, items may be included on the Non-Consent Agenda that have not had the benefit of a First
Reading due to emergency hature or time sensitivity.****

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes)

a) Annual Appropriations Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2017-18 (First Reading — June 13,
2017)

b) Approve an Ordinance authorizing and providing for the issue of approximately
$9,900,000 General Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series
2017A, for the purpose of providing for certain public infrastructure projects, the pledge
of certain sales tax revenues and the imposition of taxes to pay said bonds, and the
sale of said bonds to the purchaser thereof (Public Hearing — June 13, 2017)

c) Waive the First Reading and Approve a Resolution Designating Hinsdale Bank and
Trust as a Public Depository and Authorizing Withdrawal of Municipal Public Moneys****

Environment & Public Services (Chair Byrnes)
d) Approve a resolution approving and accepting a plat of subdivision to consolidate the
properties commonly known as 540 Dalewood Lane in the Village of Hinsdale, County
of Cook, lllinois (First Reading — June 13, 2017)
e) Approve a Resolution Approving the 2017 Resurfacing Construction Contract Change
Order Number 1 in the Amount not to Exceed $42,000 to ALamp Concrete
Contractors****

Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear)

f) Approve an Ordinance Amending Section 6-12-3 of the Village Code of Hinsdale to
allow for the installation of stop signs for north and southbound traffic on Garfield Street
at Walnut (First Reading — June 13, 2017)

g) Approve an Ordinance Amending Section 9-104 (“Off Street Parking”) of the Hinsdale
Zoning Code as it Relates to Regulation of the Location of Secondary Access Drives to
Commercial Properties (First Reading — June 13, 2017)

h) Approve an Ordinance Amending Section 5-105 (“Special Uses”) of the Hinsdale Zoning
Code to Allow Educational Services as Special Uses in the B-2 and b-3 Business
Zoning Districts (First Reading — June 13, 2017)
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10.

11.

)

K)

Approve an Ordinance Approving Variations Relative to Construction of a New
Commercial Building for Use as an Animal Hospital at 724 N. York Road, Hinsdale,
lllinois — Anthony Kremer, D/B/A Hinsdale Animal Hospital — Case Number V-02-17
(First Reading — June 13, 2017)

Approve an Ordinance Approving Variations Relative to Construction of a New Shared
Parking Deck at Hinsdale Middle School at 100 S. Garfield Street, Hinsdale, lllinois —
Community Consolidated School District #181/ Village of Hinsdale — Case Number V-
03-17 (First Reading — June 13, 2017)

Approve an Ordinance Approving a Major Adjustment to a Site Plan and Exterior
Appearance Plan to Add a Parking Deck for a New Middle School at 100 S. Garfield
Street, Hinsdale, lllinois — Community Consolidated School District #181/ Village of
Hinsdale (First Reading — June 13, 2017)

Approval of the Village’s commitment to reimburse School District 181 for the Village’s
cost share associated with construction of the new shared parking deck at Hinsdale
Middle School located at 100 S. Garfield Street, Hinsdale****

DISCUSSION ITEMS

a)
b)
c)
d)

Temporary Use — Café la Fortuna

Refuse Contract

Downtown Construction update

Update on proposed 1-294 Tollway expansion

DEPARTMENT AND STAFF REPORTS

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
9)

Police

Fire

Parks & Recreation
Economic Development
Community Development
Public Services
Engineering

12. REPORTS FROM ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

13.0THER BUSINESS

14.NEW BUSINESS

15. CITIZENS’ PETITIONS (Pertaining to any Village issue)*

16. TRUSTEE COMMENTS

17.CLOSED SESSION-5 ILCS 120/2(c) (1)/(2)/(3)/(5)/(8)/(11)/(21)

18. ADJOURNMENT

*The opportunity to speak to the Village Board pursuant to the Citizens’ Petitions portions of a
Village Board meeting agenda is provided for those who wish to comment on an agenda item or
Village of Hinsdale issue. The Village Board appreciates hearing from our residents and your
thoughts and questions are valued. The Village Board strives to make the best decisions for the
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Village and public input is very helpful. Please use the podium as the proceedings are
videotaped. Please announce your name and address before commenting.

***Routine items appearing on the Consent Agenda may include those items that have
previously had a First Reading, the Accounts Payable and previously-budgeted items that
fall within budgetary limitations and have a total dollar amount of less than $500,000.

****|tems included on the Non-Consent Agenda due to “emergency nature or time
sensitivity” are intended to be critical business items rather than policy or procedural
changes. Examples might include a bid that must be awarded prior to a significant price
increase or documentation required by another government agency to complete essential
infrastructure work.

The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990. Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain
accommaodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have
guestions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to promptly
contact Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator, at 630-789-7014 or by TDD at 630-789-7022 to allow
the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.

Website http://villageofhinsdale.org
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES OF THE MEETING
June 13, 2017

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Hinsdale Village Board of Trustees was called to order by
Village President Tom Cauley in Memorial Hall of the Memorial Building on Tuesday, June 13,
2017 at 7:31 p.m., roll call was taken.

Present: President Tom Cauley and Trustees Christopher Elder, Michael Ripani, Luke Stifflear,
Matt Posthuma and Neale Byrnes

Absent: Trustee Gerald J. Hughes

Also Present: Village Manager Kathleen A. Gargano, Assistant Village Manager/Finance Director
Darrell Langlois, Assistant Village Manager/Director of Public Safety Brad Bloom, Police Chief
Kevin Simpson, Fire Chief John Giannelli, Director of Community Development/Building
Commissioner Robb McGinnis, Director of Public Services George Peluso, Village Engineer Dan
Deeter, Village Planner Chan Yu, Superintendent of Parks & Recreation Heather Bereckis,
Administration Manager Emily Wagner, Management Analyst Jean Bueche and Village Clerk
Christine Bruton

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

President Cauley led those in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

There being no changes or corrections to the draft minutes, Trustee Elder moved to approve the
minutes of the regular meeting of May 16, 2017, as presented. Trustee Ripani seconded the
motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.
CITIZENS’ PETITIONS

Item taken out of order - Class C — Personal Services, new requests for liquor license

1) Nourished Table & Home, 111 S. Vine
Ms. Megan Roche, representing Nourished Table and owner Kathleen Napleton, addressed
the Board. She explained the business currently does not sell liquor, but that many customers
have asked for wine service with their cooking class. She said they would likely not serve
beer, but wine only. She described the number of classes they offer and that the safety of



Village Board of Trustees
Meeting of June 13, 2017
Page 2 of 14

their patrons is paramount. Wine service would be limited to no more than three glasses per
class, there would be no BYOB, and bottles of wine would not be sold. They have acquired
the required insurance, and have completed Bassett training for staff. She reiterated the food
is the focus of the business.
2) Elysian Nail Spa, 24 W. Chicago Avenue
Ms. Teana Tran, representing Elysian Nail Spa, addressed the Board and noted they
anticipate opening late this summer. Their intent is to elevate the nail experience by offering
wine and beer for sale by the glass. She explained that salon services provided last between
30 and 90 minutes. She said she comes from a franchise that serves alcohol, and all staff will
be Bassett trained.
President Cauley noted the existing Class C licenses, and commented these new businesses are
in line with those. The Board had no objections to either request. President Cauley said these
items will be on the agenda in July. Village Clerk Christine Bruton explained that the approval
required by the Board is housekeeping matter that will increase the number of Class C licenses
allowed.

APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
President Cauley recommended the following individuals for appointment as noted:

Board of Fire & Police Commissioners
Ms. Margaret Arens re-appointed to a 3-year term as Chair through April 30, 2020
Ms. Donna Flynn re-appointed to a 3-year term through April 30, 2020
Ms. Mary Herrmann re-appointed to a 3-year term through April 30, 2020

Trustee Elder moved to approve the appointments to boards and commissions, as
recommended by the Village President. Trustee Byrnes seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.
VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT

a) Committee Appointments
President Cauley announced his Committee appointments for the new Board as follows:
Administration & Community Affairs (ACA)
Jerry Hughes, Chair, members Chris Elder, Matt Posthuma and Michael Ripani
Environment & Public Services (EPS)
Neale Byrnes, Chair, members Michael Ripani, Luke Stifflear and Jerry Hughes
Zoning & Public Safety (ZPS)
Luke Stifflear, Chair, members Chris Elder, Neale Byrnes and Matt Posthuma
Tree Board
Luke Stifflear, Chair, members Chris Elder, Neale Byrnes and Matt Posthuma
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b) Police Chief Appointment

President Cauley announced the hiring of Brian King as the new Chief of Police. He said the
Village is sorry to lose Chief Kevin Simpson who is retiring after 28 years with the Hinsdale
Police Department. President Cauley described the hiring process, stating both internal and
external candidates were considered. Mr. King comes from the Village of Wilmette, where he
had 30 years of experience, most recently eight years as their Chief. He has an excellent
resume, and has received numerous awards and recognitions. President Cauley believes he
will be a good fit in Hinsdale, and is excited to have him aboard.

Trustee Byrnes moved to approve the appointment of Brian King as Chief of Police.
Trustee Elder seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

President Cauley reported the homicide of Andrea Urban has been solved, and thanked the
Police Department for their diligent work. He gave special thanks to Detective Tom Kretft,
Detective Kevin Lacey, and Deputy Chief Eric Bernholdt. He also noted the many hours put in
by Officer Frank Homolka. He said Channel 9 reported the successful arrest in this case is
due to ‘meticulous police work’. President Cauley thanked the Police Department for their
work on this case.

PUBLIC HEARINGS
Public Hearing concerning the intent of the Board to issue not to exceed $10,000,000
General Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) for the purpose of
paying the costs of certain public infrastructure projects in and for the Village
President Cauley opened the public hearing regarding the Village’s intent to sell bonds to fund
infrastructure improvements. The bonds will be sold on July 11" an ordinance on this matter
is on the agenda for approval this evening. President Cauley asked for comments from the
public. There being none, and no written comments had been received, he asked for a
motion to close the hearing.
Trustee Elder moved to close the Public Hearing concerning the intent of the Board to
issue not to exceed $10,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate
Revenue Source) for the purpose of paying the costs of certain public infrastructure
projects in and for the Village. Trustee Byrnes seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.
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Mr. Adam Waldo, Chair of the Finance Commission, addressed the Board. He commented on
the history of the Master Infrastructure Plan (MIP) and asked for Board approval for the Finance
Commission to study the funding mechanisms for Village infrastructure improvements. He
believes the accelerated program will have an economic cost. President Cauley said he is
happy to send this to the Finance Commission for review; however, the residents of Hinsdale
have been clear that they feel the road work is moving along too slowly.  There is a short
construction season, and this Board has agreed to pave as much as possible this year.

b) Public Hearing concerning the Annual Appropriations Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2017-
18
President Cauley opened the public hearing and explained this item is a matter of law. The
amount appropriated is mostly consistent with the original budget. Additionally, there is a
contingency line item in each department budget to insure legal spending authority in the
event of unforeseen situations or emergencies. He noted library appropriations are also
included.
President Cauley asked for comments from the public. There being none, and no written
comments had been received, he asked for a motion to close the hearing.
Trustee Elder moved to close the Public Hearing concerning the Annual Appropriations
Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2017-18. Trustee Ripani seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

FIRST READINGS - INTRODUCTION

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes)

a) Annual Appropriations Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2017-18
President Cauley introduced the item and explained this relates to the public hearing held
this evening. The Board had no additional questions or comments.
The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting.

b) Amendment of an Application Service Agreement between the Village of Hinsdale
and Aptean, Inc.
President Cauley introduced the item and explained that Aptean, Inc. provides software
services for Village accounting and financial functions. The Village is moving away from
this service, but must continue to use it until the Village has migrated to the new service
provider. This amendment allows for two one-year contracts.
Discussion followed regarding early termination and the length of time required to run two
parallel systems. Village Manager Gargano stated staff will review the contract and be
mindful of termination and renewal provisions.
The Board agreed to move this to the consent agenda of their next meeting.
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c)

d)

f)

Environment & Public Services (Chair Byrnes)
Approve a resolution approving and accepting a plat of subdivision to consolidate
the properties commonly known as 540 Dalewood Lane in the Village of Hinsdale,
County of Cook, lllinois
Trustee Byrnes introduced the item and explained the property owner owns two parcels,
their home is on one of the lots, the other is vacant. They would like to add on to the
existing residence, but have to consolidate the properties for sufficient square footage to
meet zoning requirements. They will have a legal conforming lot as a result.
Director of Community Development Robb McGinnis added that there has been no
neighbor objection. President Cauley asked him to talk to the contiguous neighbors by the
next meeting.
The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting.

Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear)
Approve an Ordinance Amending Section 6-12-3 of the Village Code of Hinsdale to
allow for the installation of stop signs for north and southbound traffic on Garfield
Street at Walnut
Trustee Stifflear introduced the item which is a request for a four-way stop sign at Garfield
Street and Walnut. This intersection is currently controlled by a two-way stop sign. The
intersection has been identified by a material increase in crashes; there have been 15
crashes in the past five years; and a 50% increase in the last twelve months. Discussion
followed regarding possible causes for the increase in accidents. Police Chief Kevin
Simpson added this is a safety issue, and the intersection meets the requirements of the
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). He recommended a healthy balance
between efficient movement of traffic and safety issues. The sign installation will include
flashing beacons for 90 days to draw attention to the new sign.
The Board agreed to move this item to the consent agenda of their next meeting.
Ms. Gargano confirmed the Board’s permission to begin installation before the next
meeting because of the safety issues.
The Board agreed to move this to the consent agenda of their next meeting.

Approve an Ordinance Amending Section 9-104 (“Off Street Parking”) of the
Hinsdale Zoning Code as it Relates to Regulation of the Location of Secondary
Access Drives to Commercial Properties

Trustee Stifflear introduced the item and provided background on the matter. In July 2016
the owners of 120 E. Ogden requested an access drive onto Fuller Road, which met with
strong resistance from area residents. This ordinance will prohibit any such access drive in
the future. The Plan Commission unanimously approved the item, but suggested
clarification to the language of the ordinance with respect to single family dwellings.

The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting.

Text Amendment to Section 5-105 to permit "Educational Services" as a Special Use
in the B-2 and B-3 Districts

Trustee Stifflear introduced the item and explained that the only allowable education
service in these districts is musical tutoring. This text amendment will capture other types
of businesses; however, a public hearing will still be required to evaluate intensity of use.
The Plan Commission unanimously recommended approval of this item.
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9)

h)

The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting.

Approve an Ordinance Approving Variations Relative to Construction of a New
Commercial Building for Use as an Animal Hospital at 724 N. York Road, Hinsdale,
Illinois — Anthony Kremer, D/B/A Hinsdale Animal Hospital — Case Number V-02-17
Trustee Stifflear introduced the item and reminded the Board of the process required for a
new commercial building. The Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) unanimously approved a
recommendation for Village Board approval with respect to the applicants request for floor
area ratio (FAR) relief from 40% to 35% and to waive the 10’ foot landscape buffer. The
applicant will still require exterior appearance review. He noted that the footprint of the
proposed building is smaller than the existing building, and had the previous owners not
changed the zoning designation from O2 to Bl several years ago, the requested FAR
would be compliant. He explained that eliminating the landscape buffer will allow for code
compliant parking and two-way access to the lot.

Mr. Mike Mathys, architect on the project, addressed the Board regarding the issues
discussed by the ZBA. Trustee Stifflear reminded the Board that they had directed the
applicant to build a new building, and referenced the standards required for ZBA approval,
and stated the unusual shape of the lot is the primary driver of this approval.

The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting.

Approve an Ordinance Approving Variations Relative to Construction of a New
Shared Parking Deck at Hinsdale Middle School at 100 S. Garfield Street, Hinsdale,
lllinois — Community Consolidated School District #181/ Village of Hinsdale — Case
Number V-03-17

For discussion purposes, Trustee Stifflear addressed this item and the following together.
He explained the Village is a co-applicant with District 181 on these matters, and reminded
the Board of the history and the process to date. The ZBA unanimously approved a
recommendation to the Village Board to approve a request to increase FAR from 50% to
74% and a reduced landscape buffer from 10’ feet to 5’ feet. He noted that if the athletic
field owned by school was not separated from the building by a street, the FAR variance
would not be required.

With respect to the major adjustment to the site plan and exterior appearance plan for the
parking deck, the Plan Commission reviewed these matters in May and recommended
changes relating to landscaping, brickwork on the stairs, planter boxes, and relocation of
ADA compliant parking spaces. Otherwise, they approved the item 6-0, with one
abstention.

Mr. Brian Kronewitter, architect, and Mr. Paul Weise, civil engineer, addressed the Board
regarding the variances recommended by the ZBA. It was reiterated that if the athletic field
was contiguous property, the FAR relief would not be required. Mr. Weise explained the
landscape buffer, planter boxes and plant material that would be used. They showed the
Board revised renderings for the stairwell, and noted these changes increased the cost by
approximately $25,000. The changes for handicapped parking to an area of easier access
were confirmed.

Assistant Village Manager Brad Bloom confirmed that the Intergovernmental Agreement
(IGA) will be solidified that will memorialize that the parking distribution has not changed,
and that the school parking will be on the top level of the parking deck, and the Village on
the bottom.
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The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting.

Approve an Ordinance Approving a Major Adjustment to a Site Plan and Exterior
Appearance Plan to Add a Parking Deck for a New Middle School at 100 S. Garfield
Street, Hinsdale, lllinois — Community Consolidated School District #181/ Village of
Hinsdale

Discussion included in previous item.

The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting.

CONSENT AGENDA

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes)

Trustee Elder noted the revision to the warrant from Mr. Langlois and moved Approval and
payment of the accounts payable for the period of May 17, 2017 through June 13, 2017,
in the aggregate amount of $2,588,285.89 as set forth on the list provided by the Village
Treasurer, of which a permanent copy is on file with the Village Clerk. Trustee Byrnes
seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

The following items were approved by omnibus vote:

b)

f)

Approve the Donation of a Memorial Bench and Tree to be installed at Melin Park
(First Reading — May 16, 2017)

Environment & Public Services (Chair Byrnes)
Adopt an Ordinance Establishing Prevailing Wages for Public Works in the Village of
Hinsdale, Cook and DuPage Counties, lllinois (First Reading — May 16, 2017)
To waive bids and award purchase of a replacement combination/backhoe to
McCann utilizing Joint Purchasing Agreement pricing in an amount not to exceed
$84,995***

Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear)

Approve a Resolution terminating the intergovernmental agreement between the
Villages of Hinsdale, Clarendon Hills, Downers Grove, Westmont, and Willow Springs,
the Tri State Fire Protection District, and DuPage Public Safety Communications
(DUCOMM) for the Southeast DuPage County Communications and Radio Networks
(First Reading — May 16, 2017)

Approve an Ordinance Authorizing the Sale by Auction or Disposal of Personal
Property Owned by the Village of Hinsdale
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9)

b)

Approve an Ordinance approving a Text Amendment to Title 7, Chapter 1, Article G,
Section 5(D)(2) and (3) to process Distributed Antenna Systems (DAS) consistently
(First Reading — May 16, 2017)

Trustee Stifflear moved to approve the Consent Agenda, as presented. Trustee Elder
seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

SECOND READINGS / NON-CONSENT AGENDA - ADOPTION

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes)
Waive the First Reading and Approve a Resolution Expressing the Intent of the
Village to Reimburse Capital Expenditures from Proceeds of an Obligation
President Cauley introduced the item which relates to monies spent on infrastructure
improvements to be reimbursed by the sale of bonds.
Trustee Elder moved to Waive the First Reading and Approve a Resolution Expressing
the Intent of the Village to Reimburse Capital Expenditures from Proceeds of an
Obligation. Trustee Ripani seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

Approve a Recreational License Agreement — Third Term Extension and Amendment
with Hinsdale Paddle Tennis Association (HPTA) (First Reading — May 16, 2017)
President Cauley introduced the item stating this matter would have been on the Consent
Agenda, but for changes in dates and contact information. Assistant Village
Manager/Finance Director Darrell Langlois confirmed that the changes had been made as
directed. Trustee Elder moved to Approve a Recreational License Agreement — Third
Term Extension and Amendment with Hinsdale Paddle Tennis Association (HPTA).
Trustee Stifflear seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes
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d)

Motion carried.

Approve an Ordinance Opting out of the Cook County Minimum Wage Ordinance
President Cauley introduced the item and explained that the Cook County Board of
Commissioners passed tow ordinances affecting employers and employees throughout the
County regarding paid sick leave and minimum hourly wages. The minimum wage item is
a concern for the Village of Hinsdale, because it puts the local businesses in Cook County
at a competitive disadvantage with those in DuPage County. The first reading is being
waived because the Cook County ordinance goes into effect this month.

Trustee Elder moved to Approve an Ordinance Amending Title 3 of the Village Code of
the Village of Hinsdale to Create a New Chapter Relative to Conflicts with Certain
Home Rule County Ordinances (Cook County Minimum Wage and Paid Sick Leave
Ordinances). Trustee Ripani seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

Environment & Public Services (Chair Byrnes)
Approve a Resolution Authorizing Waiver of Construction Noise Hours Limitations
Pursuant to Section 9-12-2 of the Village Code of the Village of Hinsdale — Central
Business District Pavement Removal and Replacement
Trustee Byrnes introduced the item which is a request from ALamp for overnight removal of
the asphalt pavements in the Central Business District (CBD) on July 5", July 8" and July
10" and also August 16™ to August 19™ Director of Public Services George Peluso said
neighbors will be notified of these hours following this meeting. Evening work will help to
alleviate delays in commuter time and the shutting of downtown businesses. President
Cauley noted most of this work is in non-residential areas and will not interrupt peoples
sleep, but it will be monitored.
Trustee Elder moved to Approve a Resolution Authorizing Waiver of Construction
Noise Hours Limitations Pursuant to Section 9-12-2 of the Village Code of the Village
of Hinsdale — Central Business District Pavement Removal and Replacement.
Trustee Posthuma seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

Waive the first reading and waive competitive bidding to award the contract for
construction of the 2017 Resurfacing (Phase 2) Project to ALamp Concrete
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f)

g)

Contractors, Inc. in the amount not to exceed $5,504,275 (Discussion Item — May 2,
2017)

Trustee Byrnes introduced the item which relates to the accelerated road program, and
noted this amount is slightly below the engineers estimate. President Cauley added the
Village is confident this is a good price; it was noted that other bidders could not beat the
price. Mr. Peluso noted that construction maps will on the Village website, and residents
will be notified by mail and email.

Trustee Elder moved to Waive the first reading and waive competitive bidding to
award the contract for construction of the 2017 Resurfacing (Phase 2) Project to
ALamp Concrete Contractors, Inc. in the amount not to exceed $5,504,275. Trustee
Ripani seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

Approve a Resolution approving the 2018 Reconstruction/Resurfacing (North)
engineering design contract change order number 1 in the amount not to exceed
$143,360 to GSG Consultants, Inc. (Discussion Item — May 2, 2017)

Trustee Byrnes explained that the contract was in place for the 2018 engineering work, but
a change order is needed to accommodate the additional accelerated road work. The
project has been divided into two projects containing both reconstruction and resurfacing
operations grouped primarily by geography. The intent is to improve project management
and lower contract costs. Trustee Elder moved to Approve a Resolution approving the
2018 Reconstruction/Resurfacing (North) engineering design contract change order
number 1 in the amount not to exceed $143,360 to GSG Consultants, Inc. Trustee
Ripani seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

Approve a Resolution approving the 2018 Reconstruction/Resurfacing (South)
engineering design contract change order number 1 in the amount not to exceed
$217,600 to GSG Consultants, Inc. (Discussion Item — May 2, 2017)

Trustee Byrnes explained this is the same as the item previously discussed, but the
southern portion of the project.

Trustee Elder moved to Approve a Resolution approving the 2018
Reconstruction/Resurfacing (South) engineering design contract change order
number 1 in the amount not to exceed $217,600 to GSG Consultants, Inc. Trustee
Ripani seconded the motion.
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AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

Approve an Addendum to the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the
Village of Hinsdale and the Graue Mill Homeowners Association, Inc. for the Graue
Mill Hazard Mitigation Project from $104,000 to $237,000 (Discussion Item — May 16,
2017)

Trustee Byrnes introduced the item explaining this is an additional $133,000 paid to Graue
Mill for flood mitigation costs. The agreement has been executed by Graue Mill, with their
promise they will not come back to the Village Board with a request for more funding
assistance.

Trustee Elder moved to Approve an Addendum to the Intergovernmental Agreement
(IGA) between the Village of Hinsdale and the Graue Mill Homeowners Association,
Inc. for the Graue Mill Hazard Mitigation Project from $104,000 to $237,000. Trustee
Ripani seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear)

Approve a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that modifies the
Intergovernmental Agreement with Community Consolidated School District #181 for
Temporary parking conditions during Construction of the Hinsdale Middle School
Trustee Stifflear introduced the item which is a modification to the Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) with District 181 for temporary parking during construction of the new
middle school. He explained that a shuttle service will be provided by the school, because
although there will still be 129 spaces allocated to the Village, they are not contiguous.
Ms. Gargano added there was a meeting this morning with the business community to
review the plan, and although it is not ideal, there was no negative feedback. President
Cauley is most concerned about the first two weeks and the possible effect on business in
town. He pointed out that this Board wants to be good partners with District 181, but our
constituency is different, and asked why the school can’t move the mobile classrooms more
quickly. Mr. Kerry Leonard, representing District 181, described the nine week process, but
added that every effort will be made to get it done as quickly as possible.

It was noted that construction workers will park offsite and be shuttled, but the details are
not yet finalized.
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Trustee Stifflear wondered about allowing shoppers to park in residential areas; President
Cauley added he is not convinced the shuttle will be effective. Discussion followed
regarding the effectiveness of the shuttle. Trustee Byrnes suggested notice in the
newspapers, the Village website and school media. Information could be in stores for
patrons, as well.

Trustee Elder moved to Waive the First Reading and Approve a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) that modifies the Intergovernmental Agreement with
Community Consolidated School District #181 for Temporary parking conditions
during Construction of the Hinsdale Middle School. Trustee Ripani seconded the
motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

Approve an Agreement with Doherty & Associates to provide Owners Representative
Services for project assistance for the construction of a parking deck at a cost not to
exceed $21,900

Trustee Stifflear introduced the item which is the approval to hire an owners representative for
assistance regarding the parking deck construction. Mr. Bloom described the request for
gualifications (RFQ) process, and added that staff does not have the expertise to adequately
oversee the project and represent the Village interests. Mr. John Doherty was interviewed
and his references were contacted. He has a background in construction management. Mr.
Doherty would not have authority to approve any material design or cost changes. He will put
together the IGA, provide detailed design review, and review the bidding process. He will help
insure the proper allocation of costs. Mr. Doherty’s fee is $150.00/ per hour not to exceed
$21,000.

Ms. Gargano said the Board can treat this as a first read, but she would like Mr. Doherty to
start to expedite the final IGA with the school, and put to rest any concerns about changes to
the deck.

Trustee Elder moved to Waive the First Reading and Approve an Agreement with
Doherty & Associates to provide Owners Representative Services for project
assistance for the construction of a parking deck at a cost not to exceed $21,900.
Trustee Ripani seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.
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a)
b)
c)
d)

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Update on proposed I-294 Tollway expansion
President Cauley said he has no update at this time.

Construction update

Ms. Gargano stated she will provide the Board the power point presentation on this topic. She
stated staff has established a Hinsdale outreach on the website that will be checked daily
throughout the duration of the project. She described the extensive means by which the
community will be informed and updated.

Class C — Personal Services, new requests for license
Item taken out of order during Citizens Requests

DEPARTMENT AND STAFF REPORTS
Treasurer's Report
Economic Development
Community Development
Parks & Recreation

The report(s) listed above were provided to the Board. There were no additional questions
regarding the contents of the department and staff reports.

Ms. Gargano thanked Mr. Juan Marin from the Public Services department for the fine job he did
setting the recognition plaque in a large stone boulder in the new Pocket Park.

REPORTS FROM ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

None.
OTHER BUSINESS
None.
NEW BUSINESS
None.
CITIZENS’ PETITIONS
None.

TRUSTEE COMMENTS

None.
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ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business before the Board, President Cauley asked for a motion to
adjourn. Trustee Elder moved to adjourn the regularly scheduled meeting of the Hinsdale
Village Board of Trustees of June 13, 2017. Trustee Ripani seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Elder, Ripani, Stifflear, Posthuma and Byrnes
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Trustee Hughes

Motion carried.

Meeting adjourned at 9:23 p.m.

ATTEST:
Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk




AGENDA ITEM # 70\5

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

VILLAGE OF

Est. 1873 Finance
AGENDA SECTION: First Reading — ACA
SUBJECT: Appropriations Transfer Ordinance
MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017
FROM: Darrell Langlois, Assistant Village Manager/Finance Director }Zl/

Recommended Motion

Move to Approve the attached Ordinance Authorizing Transfers of Appropriations Within Departments
and Agencies of the Village.

Background :
The Village of Hinsdale adopted the FY 2016-17 Appropriations Ordinance in July, 2016. The

Appropriations Ordinance was based on the Village's FY 2016-17 Annual Performance Budget. State
statutes require the Village to amend its Appropriation Ordinance to transfer funds between line item
accounts in departments that have exceeded the original appropriation.

Discussion & Recommendation

The original appropriation ordinance contains hundreds. of individual line item accounts. During the
course of the year, some of the actual spending on particular line items may exceed that individual
line item’s original appropriation. The attached Ordinance simply reallocates funds within line items in
each department in order to balance the line item appropriations. It should be noted that no
department exceeded its appropriation in total, no individual funds exceeded its appropriation in total,
and the actual end of year expenses are consistent with those projections made in conjunction with
the preparation of the FY 2017-18 Budget.

Budget Impact
There is no impact to the Village’s budget. The original Appropriations Ordinance set the legal

spending limit for the Village; this ordinance adjusts the line appropriations to the actual spending for
those accounts that exceeded its original appropriation.

Village Board and/or Committee Action
N/A

Documents Attached
1. Ordinance Authorizing Transfers of Appropriations Within Departments and Agencies of the
Village

Page 1 of 1



VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING TRANSFERS OF APPROPRIATIONS
WITHIN DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES OF THE VILLAGE

WHEREAS, Section 8-2-9 of the Illinois Municipal Code authorizes transfers,
within any department or agency of the Village, of sums of money previously
appropriated for one corporate object or purpose to another corporate object or
purpose at any time by a two-thirds vote of the corporate authorities, provided that no
such transfer reduces an appropriation below an amount sufficient to cover all
obligations incurred or to be incurred against that appropriation; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale
have reviewed the appropriations of the prior fiscal year and have determined that it
is necessary, appropriate, and in the best interests of the Village to transfer certain
funds from appropriations for certain corporate objects and purposes to other
corporate objects and purposes within the same departments and agencies; and

WHEREAS, the transfer of funds authorized by this Ordinance shall not
reduce an appropriation for any corporate object or purpose below an amount
sufficient to cover all obligations incurred or to be incurred against that
appropriation;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of
Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of Illinois,
as follows:

Section 1.  Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as
findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

Section 2. Transfer of Funds. The appropriations listed on the attached
schedule, made for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2016 and ending April 30, 2017,
shall be and are hereby increased or decreased by the amounts indicated, and the
funds appropriated for the corporate objects and purposes of said appropriation that
are decreased shall be, and they are hereby, transferred within the same department
or agency to those corporate objects and purposes that are increased, as indicated on
the attached schedule.




FY 2016-17 Appropriation Ordinance

Corporate Fund - 10000
General Government Department - 1000

7001
7002
7003
7005
7099
7101
7102
7105
7111
7112
7113
7201
7204
7299
7309
7316
7399
7401
7402
7403
7414
7415
7419
7499
7501
7503
7508
7520
7539
7599
7602
7606
7701
7702
7703
7706
7707
7709
7710
7711
7725
7729
7735
7736
7737
7749
7795
7797

Salaries & Wages

Overtime

Temporary Help

Longevity Pay

Water Fund Cost Allocation
Social Security

IMRF

Medicare

Employee Insurance
Unemployment Compensation
IPBC surplus

Legal Services

Auditing

Misc. Professional Services

Data Processing

IT Service Contract

Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Utilities

Telephone

Legal Publications

Employment Advertising

Printing & Publications

Misc. Services

Office Supplies

Gasoline & Oil

Licenses

Computer Equipment Supplies
Software Purchases

Misc. Supplies

Office Equipment

Computer Equipment
Conferences & Staff Development
Memberships & Subscriptions
Employee Relations

Plan Commission

Historic Preservation Commission
Board of Fire & Police Commissioners
Economic Development Commission
Zoning Board of Appeals
Ceremonial Occasions

Principal Expense

Educational Training

Personnel

Mileage Reimbursement

Interest Expense

Bank & Bond Fees

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses

Appropriation
878,778

10,000
133,669
2,000

(766,322)

52,545
130,350
14,855
127,778
0

0
250,000
29,500
37,000
113,610
185,000
42,150
17,500
3,000
13,000
8,000
3,500
10,850
4,850
15,150
500
2,400
20,200
21,250
850
10,000
1,000
19,000
23,431
14,900
500
10,000
43,500
90,000
500
1,500
206,024
800
750
200
10,399
52,800
300,000

Increase/ Revised

(Decrease) Appropriation
22,923 901,701
2,655 12,655
3,713 137,382
2,000

(766,322)
2,624 55,169
130,350
14,855
5,260 133,038
1,993 1,993
0
250,000
2,384 31,884
7,029 44,029
4,879 118,489
185,000
3,546 45,696
17,500
3,000
414 13,414
8,000
3,880 7,380
10,850
539 5,389
15,150
500
190 2,590
8,278 28,478
21,250
1,322 2,172
4,591 14,591
1,000
4,017 23,017
23,431
14,900
500
10,000
14,390 57,890
90,000
500
1,500
206,024
800
113 863
61 261
10,399
11,380 64,180
300,000

Actual
Expenses
901,701
12,655
137,382
1,200
(766,322)
55,169
125,251
14,548
133,038
1,993
(10,327)
248,477
31,884
44,029
118,489
167,146
45,696
14,263
2,294
13,414
3,271
7,380
6,937
5,389
14,617
0
2,590
28,478
1,962
2,172
14,591
761
23,017
20,042
13,492
0
5,263
57,890
84,796
0
0
206,024
570
863
261
10,398
64,180
0

Difference

300,000
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Corporate Fund - 10000
General Government Department - 1000 (cont)

7810
7812
7899
7909
7919
7990

IRMA Premiums

Self-Insured Deductible

Other Insurance

Buildings

Computer Equipment

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total General Government Department

Corporate Fund - 10000
Police Department - 1200

7001
7002
7003
7005
7008
7009
7099
7101
7102
7105
7106
7111
7113
7299
7306
7307
7308
7309
7399
7401
7402
7403
7419
7501
7503
7504
7507
7508
7509
7514
7515
7520
7525
7530
7539
7599
7601
7602
7603
7604
7611
7618
7701
7702
7719
7735
7736

Salaries & Wages
Overtime

Temporary Help
Longevity Pay
Reimbursable Overtime
Extra Detail-Grant

Water Fund Cost Allocation
Social Security

IMRF

Medicare

Police Pension

Employee Insurance

IPBC surplus

Misc. Professional Services
Building & Grounds
Custodial

Dispatch Service

Data Processing

Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Utilities

Telephone

Printing & Publications

‘Office Supplies

Gasoline & Oil

Uniforms

Building Supplies
Licenses

Janitor Supplies

Range Supplies

Camera Supplies
Computer Equip Supplies
Emergency Management
Medical Supplies
Software Purchases

Misc. Supplies

Buildings

Office Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Radios

Parking Meters

General Equipment
Conferences & Staff Development
Memberships & Subscriptions
HSD Sewer Use Charge
Educational Training
Personnel

Increase/ Revised Actual
Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
26,915 26,915 11,779 15,136
25,000 25,000 7,026 17,974
400 400 0 400
157,000 (47,079) 109,921 109,921 0
76,500 (59,102) 17,398 5,997 11,401
243,308 243,308 0 243,308
2,676,390 0 2,676,390 2,001,647 674,743
Increase/ Revised Actual
Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
2,476,157 (45,704) 2,430,453 2,430,453 0
145,000 73,020 218,020 218,020 0
172,928 4,097 177,025 177,025 0
12,700 12,700 12,200 500
50,000 (21,382) 28,618 28,618 0
0 14,703 - 14,703 14,703 0
(18,451) (18,451) (18,451) 0
20,156 523 20,679 20,679 0
33,365 33,365 30,026 3,339
41,235 41,235 39,990 1,245
736,199 4,591 740,790 740,790 0
432,923 (44,058) 388,865 388,859 6
0 0 (34,990) 34,990
7,065 496 7,561 7,561 0
750 428 1,178 1,178 0
20,600 20,600 18,895 1,705
260,180 260,180 260,180 0
22,592 22,592 20,480 2,112
62,556 62,556 48,109 14,447
1,400 1,400 1,189 211
8,500 8,500 6,970 1,530
27,000 6,937 33,937 33,937 0
9,250 9,250 9,179 71
7,700 552 8,252 8,252 0
45,000 45,000 33,304 11,696
40,650 40,650 37,514 3,136
150 150 143 7
1,000 657 1,657 1,657 0
2,500 2,500 2,496 4
10,300 10,300 8,927 1,373
500 500 248 252
5,000 5,000 2,931 2,069
1,250 1,250 0 1,250
350 32 382 382 0
2,500 2,500 1,752 748
12,500 1,235 13,735 13,735 0
19,500 3,436 22,936 22,936 0
6,100 10,079 16,179 16,179 0
24,000 3,169 27,169 27,169 0
2,000 2,000 408 1,592
1,500 1,500 1,146 354
2,000 2,000 1,320 680
7,550 2,756 10,306 10,306 0
7,000 683 7,683 7,683 0
300 300 0 300
29,500 29,500 23,229 6,271
1,000 3,849 4,849 4,849 0




Corporate Fund - 10000
Police Department - 1200 (cont)

7737
7810
7812
7902
7909
7918
7990

Mileage Reimbursement
IRMA Premiums
Self-Insured Deductible
Motor Vehicles
Buildings

General Equipment

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses

Total Police Department

Corporate Fund - 10000
Fire Department - 1500

7001
7002
7003
7005
7099
7101
7102
7105
7107
7111
7113
7306
7307
7308
7399
7401
7402
7403
7419
7501
7503
7504
7506
7507
7508
7510
7515
7520
7525
7530
7531
7532
7533
7534
7535
7536
7537
7539
7601
7602
7603
7604
7606
7618
7701
7702

Salaries & Wages
Overtime

Temporary Help
Longevity Pay

Water Fund Cost Allocation
Social Security

IMRF

Medicare

Firefighters Pension
Employee Insurance

IPBC Surplus

Building & Grounds
Custodial

Dispatch Services

Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Utilities

Telephone

Printing & Publications
Office Supplies

Gasoline & Oil

Uniforms

Motor Vehicle Supplies
Building Supplies
Licenses

Tools

Camera Supplies
Computer Equipment Supplies
Emergency Management
Medical Supplies

Fire Prevention Supplies
Oxygen & Air Supplies
Hazmat Supplies

Fire Suppression Supplies
Fire Inspection Supplies
Infection Control Supplies
Safety Supplies

Software Purchases
Buildings

Office Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Radios

Computer Equipment
General Equipment
Conferences & Staff Development
Memberships & Subscriptions

Increase/ Revised Actual

Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
1,500 1,500 1,062 438
63,499 (36,560) 26,939 26,939 0
20,000 47,794 67,794 67,794 0
86,000 61,167 147,167 147,167 0
32,500 (32,500) 0 0 0
60,000 (60,000) 0 0 0
250,773 250,773 0 250,773
5,266,227 0 5,266,227 4,925,128 341,099

Increase/ Revised Actual

Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
2,294,054 35,617 2,329,671 2,329,671 0
215,000 91,548 306,548 306,548 0
47,556 7,354 54,910 54,910 0
11,200 11,200 11,000 200
(18,451) (18,451) (18,451) 0
14,067 14,067 13,331 736
21,446 21,446 20,494 952
35,592 35,592 35,361 231
802,366 9,774 812,140 812,140 0
425,815 (31,780) 394,035 394,035 0
0 : 0 (34,415) 34,415
600 600 475 125
3,000 897 3,897 3,897 0
195,264 735 195,999 195,999 0
10,820 119 10,939 10,939 0
750 21 771 771 0
7,000 536 7,536 7,536 0
14,500 140 14,640 14,640 0
750 750 728 22
4,000 1,950 5,950 5,950 0
15,400 (7,213) 8,187 8,187 0
13,000 3,764 16,764 16,764 0
250 250 188 62
5,800 5,800 5,506 294
350 350 91 259
5,000 5,000 4,780 220
200 200 47 153
5,850 5,850 5,403 447
4,500 4,500 3,475 1,025
7,550 2,260 9,810 9,810 0
2,000 813 2,813 2,813 0
875 875 874 1
4,350 314 4,664 4,664 0
4,150 94 4,244 4,244 0
225 225 109 116
1,500 1,500 650 850
500 185 685 685 0
6,500 6,500 5,920 580
14,000 10,385 24,385 24,385 0
1,350 1,350 1,020 330
47,000 15,849 62,849 62,849 0
16,750 (13,012) 3,738 3,738 0
1,600 1,600 895 705
10,350 740 11,090 11,090 0
4,100 2,131 6,231 6,231 0
8,910 8,910 7,520 1,390



Corporate Fund - 10000
Fire Department - 1500 (cont)

7719
7729
7735
7736
7749
7810
7812
7909
7918
7990

HSD Sewer Use Charge
Bond Principal Repayment
Educational Training
Personnel

Interest Expense-Loan
IRMA Premiums
Self-Insured Deductible
Buildings

General Equipment
Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total Fire Department

Corporate Fund - 10000
Public Services Department - 2200

7001
7002
7003
7005
7099
7101
7102
7105
7111
7113
7202
7299
7301
7303
7304
7306
7307
7310
7312
7313
7319
7320
7399
7401
7402
7403
7405
7409
7411
7419
7501
7503
7504
7505
7506
7507
7508
7509
7510
7518
7519
7530
7539
7599
7601

Salaries & Wages
Overtime

Temporary Help
Longevity Pay

Water Fund Cost Allocation
Social Security

IMRF

Medicare

Employee Insurance
IPBC Surplus
Engineering

Other Professional Services
Street Sweeping
Mosquito Abatement

D E D Removals
Building & Grounds
Custodial

Traffic Signals
Landscaping

Third Party Review
Tree Trimming

Elm Tree Fungicide Program
Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Utilities

Telephone

Dumping

Equipment Rental
Holiday Decorating
Printing & Publishing
Office Supplies
Gasoline & Oil
Uniforms

Chemicals

Motor Vehicle Supplies
Building Supplies
Licenses

Janitor Supplies

Tools

Laboratory Supplies
Trees

Medical Supplies
Software Purchases
Misc. Supplies
Buildings

Increase/ Revised
Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
250 250 0 250
101,838 101,838 101,838 0
23,590 (5,531) 18,059 18,059 0
700 20 720 720 0
9,763 5 9,768 9,768 0
54,343 (31,284) 23,059 23,059 0
15,000 15,000 13,919 1,081
27,500 (27,500) 0 0 0
10,000 17,145 27,145 27,145 0
225,519 (86,076) 139,443 0 139,443
4,735,892 0 4,735,892 4,552,005 183,887
Increase/ Revised Actual
Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
1,237,696 14,986 1,252,682 1,252,682 0
65,000 8,967 73,967 73,967 0
117,296 (61,356) 55,940 55,940 0
2,300 600 2,900 2,900 0
(127,914) (127,914) (127,914) 0
86,932 86,932 80,419 6,513
174,953 174,953 166,797 8,156
20,623 20,623 19,099 1,524
200,674 200,674 181,873 18,801
0 0 (16,219) 16,219
1,000 1,000 690 310
11,000 2,406 13,406 13,406 0
39,264 1,566 40,830 40,830 0
55,496 55,496 55,496 0
114,957 114,957 109,969 4,988
11,500 11,500 10,379 1,121
48,640 334 48,974 48,974 0
1,646 857 2,503 2,503 0
65,000 65,000 61,380 3,620
55,000 55,000 44,600 10,400
65,740 117 65,857 65,857 0
163,445 163,445 146,717 16,728
37,775 37,775 29,218 8,557
1,200 1,200 844 356
148,000 148,000 145,202 2,798
10,350 10,350 9,081 1,269
19,800 19,800 15,445 4,355
1,300 1,300 1,007 293
10,060 125 10,185 10,185 0
1,400 645 2,045 2,045 0
5,750 5,750 3,945 1,805
17,500 17,500 13,470 4,030
12,748 34 12,782 12,782 0
94,830 (38,348) 56,482 51,364 5,118
2,500 2,500 2,255 245
4,000 1,578 5,578 5,578 0
122 126 248 248 0
3,800 3,800 3,675 125
8,865 2,048 10,913 10,913 0
150 258 408 408 0
83,430 5,600 89,030 89,030 0
1,000 1,000 829 171
2,750 2,750 2,470 280
7,000 841 7,841 7,841 0
30,490 23,861 54,351 54,351 0



Corporate Fund - 10000

Public Services Department - 2200 (cont)
‘Office Equipment

7602
7603
7604
7605
7615
7618
7619
7622
7699
7701
7702
7719
7735
7736
7810
7812
7902
7909
7918
7990

Motor Vehicles

Radios

Grounds

Streets & Alleys

General Equipment
Traffic & Street Lights
Traffic & Street Signs
Misc. Repairs
Conferences & Staff Development
Dues & Subscriptions
HSD Sewer Use Charge
Educational Training
Personnel

IRMA Premium

Self Insurance Deductible
Motor Vehicles
Buildings

General Equipment

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses

Total Public Services Department

Corporate Fund - 10000
Community Deyv. Department - 2400

7001
7002
7003
7005
7099
7101
7102
7105
7111
7113
7299
7309
7311
7313
7401
7403
7419
7499
7501
7502
7503
7504
7510
7599
7602
7603
7701
7702
7735

Salaries & Wages
Overtime

Temporary Help

Longevity Pay

Water Fund Cost Allocation
Social Security

IMRF

Medicare

Employee Insurance

[PBC Surplus

Misc. Professional Services
Data Processing

Inspectors

Commercial Review
Postage

Telephone

Printing & Publishing
Misc. Services

Office Supplies
Publications

Gasoline & Oil

Uniforms

Tools

Misc. Supplies

Office Equipment

Motor Vehicles
Conferences & Staff Development
Dues & Subscriptions
Educational Training

Increase/ Revised Actual

Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
1,300 661 1,961 1,961 0
41,910 5,206 47,116 47,116 0
3,665 3,665 420 3,245
8,331 710 9,041 9,041 0
50,240 50,240 43,804 6,436
1,250 1,250 608 642
7,000 775 7,775 7,775 0
13,800 13,800 13,672 128
550 550 240 310
1,520 1,520 1,224 296
3,800 3,800 3,162 638
1,500 423 1,923 1,923 0
7,200 7,200 3,507 3,693
2,550 2,550 1,708 842
47,000 47,000 19,939 27,061
20,000 26,980 46,980 46,980 0
240,000 240,000 219,199 20,801
240,000 240,000 165,786 74,214
37,100 37,100 33,998 3,102
182,189 182,189 0 182,189
3,825,973 0 3,825,973 3,384,594 441,379

Increase/ Revised Actual

Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
529,123 529,123 526,062 3,061
5,000 5,000 537 4,463
82,312 82,312 75,554 6,758
700 1,200 1,900 1,900 0
(146,187) (146,187) (146,187) 0
36,898 36,898 35,081 1,817
80,049 80,049 74,628 5,421
8,948 8,948 8,466 482
69,365 1,662 71,027 71,027 0
0 0 (5,606) 5,606
0 2,500 2,500 2,500 0
9,250 50 9,300 9,300 0
38,000 38,000 33,530 4,470
20,000 (9,883) 10,117 585 9,532
4,000 4,000 3,120 880
8,000 8,000 5,981 2,019
1,250 1,250 463 787
7,500 1,848 9,348 9,348 0
6,000 103 6,103 6,103 0
1,200 1,200 440 760
500 240 740 740 0
850 850 488 362
750 750 58 692
100 100 0 100
4,000 4,000 3,183 817
1,000 1,000 457 543
750 750 570 180
2,250 1,484 3,734 3,734 0
2,500 782 3,282 3,282 0



Corporate Fund - 10000

Community Dev. Department - 2400 (cont)

7736
7737
7810
7812
7990

Personnel

Mileage Reimbursement
IRMA Premiums
Self-Insured Deductible

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total Community Development Departme

Corporate Fund - 10000

Parks & Recreation Department - 3000

7001
7002
7003
7005
7099
7101
7102
7105
7111
7113
7306
7307
7309
7312
7314
7399
7401
7402
7403
7406
7409
7415
7419
7501
7503
7504
7505
7507
7508
7509
7510
7511
7517
7520
7530
7537
7599
7601
7602
7603
7604
7605
7617
7618
7699
7701
7702
7703
7708
7719

Salaries & Wages
Overtime

Temporary Help
Longevity Pay

Water Fund Cost Allocation
Social Security

IMRF

Medicare

Employee Insurance
IPBC Surplus
Buildings & Grounds
Custodial

Data Processing
Landscaping
Recreation Programs
Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Utilities

Telephone

Citizen Information
Equipment Rental
Employment Advertisements
Printing & Publications
Office Supplies
Gasoline & Oil
Uniforms

Chemicals

Building Supplies
Licenses

Janitorial Supplies
Tools

KLM Event Supplies
Recreation Supplies
Computer Equipment
Medical Supplies
Safety Supplies

Misc. Supplies
Buildings

Office Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Radios

Grounds

Recreation Equipment
General Equipment
Misc. Repairs

Conferences & Staff Development

Memberships & Subscriptions
Employee Relations

Park & Recreation Commission

Flagg Creek Sewer Charge

Increase/ Revised Actual
Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
200 14 214 214 0
100 100 0 100
9,078 9,078 3,851 5,227
2,500 2,500 0 2,500
39,299 39,299 0 39,299
825,285 0 825,285 729,409 95,876
Revised Actual Actual

Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
363,061 (26,300) 336,761 276,019 60,742
10,200 5,571 15,771 15,771 0
288,879 288,879 253,017 35,862
1,300 100 1,400 1,400 0
(18,451) (18,451) (18,451) 0
41,133 41,133 33,199 7,934
54,333 54,333 41,122 13,211
9,620 9,620 7,759 1,861
82,458 82,458 70,035 12,423
0 0 (6,664) 6,664
54,200 54,200 28,732 25,468
36,150 36,150 30,716 5,434
20,905 327 21,232 21,232 0
108,250 108,250 106,003 2,247
237,950 237,950 197,930 40,020
27,818 3,082 30,900 30,900 0
3,300 3,300 2,512 788
85,000 85,000 83,497 1,503
10,000 10,000 8,262 1,738
22,500 22,500 21,137 1,363
4,255 3,260 7,515 7,515 0
0 330 330 330 0
17,200 220 17,420 17,420 0
6,650 6,650 4,926 1,724
8,750 8,750 5,151 3,599
7,545 7,545 6,291 1,254
12,450 6,012 18,462 18,462 0
5,000 5,000 3,918 1,082
3,125 293 3,418 3,418 0
5,500 50 5,550 5,550 0
2,250 2,250 1,150 1,100
2,500 2,500 995 1,505
47,400 47,400 32,112 15,288
1,000 1,000 0 1,000
380 70 450 450 0
850 850 770 80

50 50 8 42
41,500 41,500 30,670 10,830
4,100 4,100 3,112 988
2,410 3,916 6,326 6,326 0
660 660 0 660
16,700 16,700 10,168 6,532
1,250 1,250 152 1,098
24,940 24,940 12,623 12,317
150 36 186 186 0
2,700 2,700 1,918 782
2,178 2,178 1,993 185

0 16 ) 16 16 0

50 - 50 0 50
3,500 3,500 0 3,500



Corporate Fund - 10000 Revised Actual Actual
Parks & Recreation Department - 3000 (cont) Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7735 Educational Training 2,495 2,495 242 2,253
7736 Personnel 120 385 505 505 0
7737 Mileage Reimbursement 150 439 589 589 0
7795 Bank & Bond Fees 10,200 2,193 12,393 12,393 0
7810 IRMA Premiums 26,098 26,098 11,072 15,026
7812 Self-Insured Deductible 2,500 2,500 0 2,500
7902 Motor Vehicles 46,000 46,000 29,528 16,472
7908 Land & Grounds 197,500 197,500 125,104 72,396
7909 Buildings 199,500 199,500 115,553 83,947
7918 General Equipment 65,000 65,000 63,316 1,684
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 110,661 110,661 0 110,661
Total Parks & Recreation Department 2,323,873 0 2,323,873 1,738,060 585,813
Motor Fuel Tax Fund - 23000 Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7904 Sidewalks 0 0 0 0
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0
Increase/ Revised Actual
Foreign Fire Insurance Fund - 25000 Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7501 Office Supplies 0 2,548 2,548 2,548 0
7504 Uniforms 2,000 2,000 737 1,263
7539 Software Purchases 0 637 637 637 0
7735 Educational Training 10,000 (5,565) 4,435 3,145 1,290
7795 Bank & Bond Fees 0 198 198 198 0
7802 Officials Bonds 500 500 449 51
7918 General Equipment 29,000 2,182 31,182 31,182 0
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 4,150 4,150 0 4,150
Total 45,650 0 45,650 38,896 6,754
Increase/ Revised Actual
Debt Service Funds - 32000 Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7729 Bond Principal Payment 725,000 : 725,000 725,000 0
7749 Interest Expense 346,603 346,603 346,602 1
7795 Bank & Bond Fees 1,700 125 1,825 1,825 0
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 53,665 (125) 53,540 0 53,540
Total 1,126,968 0 1,126,968 1,073,427 53,541
Increase/ Revised Actual
MIP Infrastructure Projects Fund-45300 Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7202 Engineering 499,500 16,419 515,919 515,919 0
7419 Printing and Publications 94 94 94 0
7904 Sidewalks 85,000 37,164 122,164 122,164 0
7906 Street Improvements 12,304,300 (53,677) 12,250,623 2,326,403 9,924,220
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 644,440 644,440 0 644,440
Total 13,533,240 0 13,533,240 2,964,580 10,568,660
Annual Infrastructure Projects Fund-45400 Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7925 Infrastructure Improvements 1,841,230 1,841,230 14,490 1,826,740
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 92,062 92,062 0 92,062
Total 1,933,292 0 1,933,292 14,490 1,918,802




Water & Sewer Oper. Fund - 61061

7001
7002
7703
7005
7099
7101
7102
7105
7111
7201
7202
7299
7306
7307
7309
7330
7399
7401
7402
7403
7405
7406
7419
7499
7501
7503
7504
7505
7507
7509
7510
7518
7520
7530
7599
7601
7602
7603
7604
7608
7609
7614
7615
7618
7699
7701
7702
7713
7719
7735
7736
7748
7749
7810
7812
7902
7909

Salaries & Wages
Overtime

Temporary

Longevity Pay

Water Fund Cost Allocation
Social Security

IMRF

Medicare

Employee Insurance
Legal Services
Engineering

Misc. Professional Services
Buildings & Grounds
Custodial Services
Data Processing

DWC Costs

Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Utilities

Telephone

Dumping

Citizens Information
Printing & Publishing
Misc. Services

Office Supplies
Gasoline & Oil
Uniforms

Chemicals

Building Supplies
Janitor Supplies

Tools

Laboratory Supplies
Computer Equipment Supplies
Medical Supplies
Misc. Supplies
Buildings

Office Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Radios

Sewers

Water Mains

Catch basins

Streets & Alleys
General Equipment
Miscellaneous Repairs

Conferences & Staff Development

Memberships & Subscriptions
Utility Tax

HSD Sewer Use Charge
Educational Training
Personnel

Loan Principal

Interest Expense

IRMA Premiums
Self-Insured Deductibles
Motor Vehicles
Buildings

Increase/ Revised
Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation
552,893 552,893
80,000 80,000
10,000 10,000
600 1,900 2,500
1,095,776 1,095,776
39,897 39,897
82,734 82,734
9,331 9,331
87,296 87,296
2,500 2,500
11,500 11,500
9,508 9,508
1,500 1,500
8,200 8,200
11,100 11,100
4,320,000 4,320,000
110,000 110,000
15,000 15,000
68,000 68,000
30,000 412 30,412
19,000 19,000
2,200 60 2,260
800 800
18,559 18,559
550 510 1,060
9,000 9,000
5,500 5,500
8,500 575 9,075
0 95 95
675 33 708
19,010 19,010
400 400
675 675
450 450
750 750
35,780 1,267 37,047
750 7 757
7,157 11,119 18,276
550 550
10,634 10,634
85,969 85,969
7,822 7,822
0 506 506
9,347 9,347
4,000 4,000
1,700 1,700
7,900 12 7,912
389,000 389,000
400 400
675 675
250 250
177,816 177,816
40,785 40,785
113,506 (37,158) 76,348
2,500 2,500
105,000 105,000
0 0

Actual
Expenses

543,113
75,781
0
2,500
1,095,776
37,398
78,198
8,746
79,101
0
3,367
7,765
485
7,317
11,075
4,059,691
87,239
14,363
59,166
30,412
9,575
2,260
391
14,016
1,060
7,451
4,754
9,075
95
708
18,252
352
0
449
523
37,041
757
18,276
0
3,602
75,939
6,574
506
8,493
3,474
1,290
7,912
372,008
40
572
131
177,816
40,785
50,198
0
94,679
0

Difference

9,780
4,219
10,000
0

0
2,499
4,536
585
8,195
2,500
8,133
1,743
1,015
883
25
260,309
22,761
637
8,834
0
9,425
0

409
4,543
0
1,549
746

0

0

0

758
48
675

1

227

6

0

0

550
7,032
10,030
1,248

854
526
410

16,992
360
103
119

26,150
2,500
10,321



Increase/ Revised Actual
Water & Sewer Oper. Fund - 61061 (cont) Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7910 Water Meters 150,000 150,000 89,109 60,891
7912 Fire Hydrants 25,000 25,000 24,455 545
7918 General Equipment 43,000 20,662 63,662 63,662 0
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 392,572 392,572 0 392,572
Total 8,244,017 0 8,244,017 7,347,773 896,244
Water & Sewer Capital Fund - 61062 Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7905 Sewers 1,197,000 5,177 1,202,177 1,202,177 0
7907 Water Mains 1,895,000 (5,177) 1,889,823 1,749,320 140,503
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 309,200 309,200 0 309,200
Total 3,401,200 0 3,401,200 2,951,497 449,703
Actual
Water & Sewer Debt Service Fund - 61064 & 61 Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7729 Bond Principal Payment 535,000 535,000 535,000 0
7749 Interest Expense 122,438 122,438 122,438 0
7795 Bank & Bond Fees 400 400 400 0
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 32,892 32,892 0 32,892
Total 690,730 0 690,730 657,838 32,892
Increase/ Revised Actual
Police Pension Fund - 71100 Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7011 Pension Payments ' 1,481,193 14,549 1,495,742 1,495,742 0
7012 Disability Payments 120,209 202 120,411 120,411 0
7013 Pension Refunds 0 7,333 7,333 7,333 0
7201 Legal Expenses 10,000 4,772) 5,228 5,228 0
7299 Misc. Professional Services 125,725 67,152 192,877 192,877 0
7702 Memberships & Subscriptions 795 795 795 0
7735 Educational Training 3,500 252 3,752 3,752 0
7795 Bank & Bond Fees 1,000 (1,000) 0 0 0
7799 Miscellaneous Expenses 5,000 (4,680) 320 320 0
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 174,742 (79,036) 95,706 0 95,706
Total 1,922,164 0 1,922,164 1,826,458 95,706
Increase/ Revised Actual
Firefighters' Pension Fund - 71200 Appropriation. (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7011 Pension Payments 1,184,000 (834) 1,183,166 1,155,958 27,208
7012 Disability Payments 256,500 834 257,334 257,334 0
7201 Legal Expenses 10,000 10,000 7,469 2,531
7299 Misc. Professional Services 70,000 70,000 61,386 8,614
7702 Memberships & Subscriptions 795 795 795 0
7735 Educational Training 2,500 2,500 2,159 341
7795 Bank & Bond Fees 1,000 1,000 0 1,000
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 152,480 152,480 0 152,480
Total 1,677,275 0 1,677,275 1,485,101 192,174
Increase/ Revised Actual
Library Capital Projects Fund - 95000 Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
7729 Bond Principal Payment 0 0 0
7748 Loan Principal 50,000 50,000 50,000 0
7749 Interest Expense 4,925 4,925 4,892 33
7909 Buildings 68,455 68,455 36,386 32,069
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses 100,000 100,000 0 100,000
Total 223,380 0 223,380 91,278 132,102




Library Operations Fund - 99000

7001
7003
7101
7102
7105
7111
7114
7115
7121
7125
7126
7127
7128
7130
7134

7135
7144
7146
7161
7163
7165
7167
7169
7181
7182
7183
7184
7185
7186
7187
7188
7189
7191
7192
7193
7195
7197
7198
7199
7297
7298
7729
7749
7795
7803
7810
7812
7909
9032
9095
7900

Salaries & Wages

Temporary Help

Social Security Expense

IMRF

Medicare Expense

Employee Insurance

Conferences & Staff Development
Staff Recognition

Citizen Information/ Marketing
Library Programs - Youth

Library Programs - Adult

Books - Youth & YA

Adult Materials - Books/Audio/Video
Periodicals

E-Books

Technical Services - Cards/Bindery
Software Purchases

Computer Support - Maintenance
Custodial

Utilities

Janitorial - Maintenance Supplies
Maintenance Contracts

Misc. Repairs - Improvements
Legal Expenses

Planning Services

Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Telephone

Accounting

Misc. Services

Office Supplies

Copier Supplies

Office Equip Maintenance
Memberships & Subscriptions
Special - Ceremonial Events
Helen O'Neill Scholarship
Friends Pledges Exp

Grant Expenses

Sales Tax-Used Books
Donations Expenses

Foundation Expenses

Principal

Interest Expense

Credit Card/Bank Fees

Liability Insurance

IRMA Premiums

IRMA Deductible

Buildings

Transfer-Debt Service
Transfer-Capital Reserve
Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

Increase/ Revised Actual

Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
1,317,500 1,317,500 1,300,227 17,273
4,000 4,000 0 4,000
82,344 82,344 78,558 3,786
138,000 138,000 131,956 6,044
19,104 19,104 18,373 731
140,000 140,000 121,651 18,349
24,000 24,000 15,612 8,388
3,000 3,000 2,484 516
36,000 36,000 26,834 9,166
24,000 24,000 22,496 1,504
9,000 9,000 8,197 803
65,000 65,000 61,311 3,689
189,000 189,000 178,464 10,536
19,000 19,000 17,815 1,185
36,000 10,029 46,029 46,029 0
20,000 20,000 16,139 3,861
40,000 40,000 26,792 13,208
66,500 66,500 56,948 9,552
44,000 44,000 38,370 5,630
12,000 12,000 12,000 0
7,000 7,000 6,134 866
9,000 9,000 7,274 1,726
33,000 33,000 30,492 2,508
5,000 5,000 4,937 63
35,000 4,139 39,139 39,139 0
11,000 11,000 10,697 303
750 23 773 773 0
6,000 6,000 5,806 194
61,880 (22,196) 39,684 31,880 7,804
1,500 1,500 1,338 162
15,000 15,000 12,474 2,526
3,000 3,000 2,746 254
3,750 3,750 2,994 756
3,000 3,000 1,791 1,209
7,500 7,500 5,464 2,036
500 500 500
50,000 50,000 3,874 46,126
50,000 50,000 50,000
1,000 1,000 585 415
0 1,543 1,543 1,543 0
50,000 50,000 0 50,000
53,976 53,976 53,976 0
2,725 2,725 2,724 1
1,500 1,500 529 97
300 300 0 300
35,500 35,500 15,107 20,394
10,000 10,000 0 10,000
20,000 6,462 26,462 26,462 0
216,612 216,612 216,612 0
123,380 123,380 0 123,380
310,632 310,632 0 310,632
3,416,953 0 3,416,953 2,665,604 751,349




All Funds Summary
Corporate Fund - 10000

Departments - 1000 thru 4000

Motor Fuel Tax Fund - 23000

Foreign Fire Insurance Fund - 25000

Debt Service Funds - 37000

MIP Infrastructure Project Fund - 45300
Annual Infrastructure Project Fund - 45400
Water & Sewer Operations Fund - 61061
Water & Sewer Capital Fund - 61062
Water & Sewer Debt Service Fund - 61063
Police Pension Fund - 71100

Firefighters' Pension Fund - 71200
Library Funds - 95000 & 99000

Total All Funds

Increase/ Revised Actual

Appropriation (Decrease) Appropriation Expenses Difference
19,653,640 0 19,653,640 17,330,843 2,322,797
0 0 0 0 0
45,650 0 45,650 38,896 6,754
1,126,968 0 1,126,968 1,073,427 53,541
13,533,240 0 13,533,240 2,964,580 10,568,660
1,933,292 0 1,933,292 14,490 0
8,244,017 0 8,244,017 7,347,773 896,244
3,401,200 0 3,401,200 2,951,497 449,703
690,730 0 690,730 657,838 32,892
1,922,164 0 1,922,164 1,826,458 95,706
1,677,275 0 1,677,275 1,485,101 192,174
3,640,333 0 3,640,333 2,756,882 883,451
55,868,509 0 55,868,509 38,447,785 15,501,922




Section 3.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effective
from and after its passage and approval of two-thirds of the corporate authorities, and
ten days after its publication in pamphlet form in the manner provided by law.

PASSED this 15th day of August, 2017
AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 15th day of August, 2017.

Village President

ATTEST:

Village Clerk













































Section 1: Incorporation. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this
Section 1 by reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees;

Section 2: Adoption of Findings and Recommendation. The President and
Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale approve and adopt the findings and
recommendation of the Plan Commission, a copy of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit B and made a part hereof, and incorporate such findings and recommendation
herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

Section 3: Approval of Amendment to Special Use for a Physical Fitness
Facility. The President and Board of Trustees, acting pursuant to the authority vested in
it by the laws of the State of lllinois and the Zoning Code, hereby approves the
requested amendment to the previously approved special use permit for a Physical
Fitness Facility in the B-3 Central Business Zoning District on the Subject Property
located at 230 E. Ogden Avenue, Hinsdale, lllinois, legally described in Exhibit A, in
order to allow an earlier class start time of 5:00 a.m. rather than the previously approved
6:00 a.m. Condition Number One (1) of the Original Ordinance is amended to read: “No
classes shall take place prior to 5:00 a.m. on any day.”

Section 4: Violation of Condition or Code. Any violation of any term or condition
stated in this Ordinance or the Original Ordinance or of any applicable code, ordinance,
or regulation of the Village shall be grounds for the immediate rescission by the Board
of Trustees of the approvals made in this Ordinance and the Original Ordinance.

Section 5: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. Each section,
paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is separable, and if any section,
paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid
for any reason, the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or
provision shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other
than that part affected by such decision. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts
thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict
hereby repealed.

Section 6: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from
and after its passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law.
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EXHIBIT B

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION
(ATTACHED)

3816451






II. SITE INFORMATION

Address of subject property: 230 East Ogden Avenue, First Floor, Hinsdale, IL. 60521

Property identification number (P.LN. or tax number): 08 .01 .20 - 9033

Brief description of proposed project: Applicant was previously approved for a Special Use Permit to operate a physical fitness

facility in the B-3 General Business Zoning District at 230 E. Ogden Ave., Hinsdale, IL 60521 (Ordinance No. 02014-31). Applicant is now seeking

a variation to the Village Ordinance to permit classes to take place starting at 5:00 am each day rather than 6:00 am.

General description or characteristics of the site: Present bullding is a conforming B-3 property and Applicant presently

operates a physical fitness studio

Existing zoning and land use: B-3

Surrounding zoning and existing land uses:

North; 0-3 South: R-4andB-1

East: B-3 West: B-3

Proposed Zoning and land use: B -3 with a special use of a physical fitness facility

Please mark the approval(s) you are seeking and attach all applicable applications and
standards for each approval requested:

Q Site Plan Approval 11-604 O Map and Text Amendments 11-601E
Amendment Requested:

Q Design Review Permit 11-605E

Q Exterior Appearance 11-606E
Q Planned Development 11-603E
& Special Use Permit 11-602E
Special Use Requested: O Development in the B-2 Central Business
Physical Finess Facility (7991) District Questionnaire

Attachment 1
















09-01-210-037

09-01-210-039

09-01-210-003

09-01-210-004

09-01-210-005

09-01-210-013

300 E. Ogden Avenue
Hinsdale, IL 60521

733 N. Elm Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

811 N. Elm Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

805 N. EIm Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

801 N. Elm Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

705 N. Elm Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

KO B Inc.
602 Burr Ridge Club
Burr Ridge, IL 60527

Samit Khedekar & Mayura Gandbhi
733 N. Eim St.
Hinsdale, {L 60521

Hickory Holdings, LLC
123 W. Hickory
Hinsdale, IL 60521

Joshua and Carol Frank
805 N. Elm Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

Fang Yi and Cheng Ouyang
801 N. Elm Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

Huseyin A. & Yuqi Gulcu
705 N. Elm Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521
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STATE OF [1.LINOIS. COUNTY OF Dv Pasv 8.
7

I. the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, CERTIFY THAT Saato Albanese,
personally known to me 1o be the same persan(s) whose name(s) are subscribed (o the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this
day in person, and acknowledped that they signed, sealed and delivered the said instrument as their free and voluntary act, for the uses
and purposes therein set forth, including the release and waiver of the right of homestead.

Given under my hand and official seal, this ,’244 day of N M .20 "7
Wmv . .
{ OFFICALSE- M %y/
AR \
NonaEYT:ELSJ JS' “\é’aF — _ (Notary Public)
MY COMMISSION EXPIREGI A0S / U
Prepured by:

Frnest ). Maurizi, Jr.

Law Ottice of Ernest J. Maurizi
1025 Oyden Ave Suite 205

| Liste. (L 60565

Muail to:

| ,
e s Bluel foad | Suife 12
Hivedale T (0521

Name and Address of Taxpayer:
230 1:. Ogden. LLC

Me S, Vine
fingdade, TL 052

Warranty Decd - Individual FASTDo¢ 09/200§

FRED BUCHOLZ R2007-215579 DUPAGE COUNTY RECORDER

Ordars Noan-Ordar Qaarch Nars NEHDR:2ANT 718670 Dana ? Af 2 Crastad Qus Arbahan  Deinkads 21N 4 7.ANDY AN AT
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. No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be
constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to

interfere with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the
applicable district regulations

As stated previously, the work out studio is sound proof so as not to disturb the other tenants in
the building located above, below and to the south of Shred415 Hinsdale's space. It will not
interfere in any way with the use and development of the neighboring property. There have been
no complaints from the neighboring properties.

. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served adequately by
essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities, drainage structures,
police and fire protection, refuse disposal, parks, libraries, and schools, or the applicant will
provide adequately for such services.

No changes to any public facilities are necessary. The use of the property as a fitness studio
has had and will continue to have no negative impact on any public services.

. No Traffic.Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets.

This has not been an issue nor will the request create an issue.

. No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in
the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
importance.

There will be no impact or destruction of significant features, as no additional work will be
performed on the property.

. Compliance with Standards. The proposed use and development complies with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Code authorizing such use.

Applicant is seeking a variation to only one condition of the Village ordinance previously
approved on September 16, 2014 granting a Special Use with four (4) conditions (see attached
as Exhibit "A"). The sole request with this application is to permit classes to start at 5:00 am
each day rather than 6:00 am. All the rest of the conditions shall stay in place.

. Special standards for specified special uses. When the district regulations authorizing any
special use in a particular district impose special standards to be met by such use in such
district.

Al of the conditions of the approved special use are being met and both neighbors Nancy Fong
and Dave Breyer and Carol and Josh Frank have approved the request to permit classes to start
at 5:00 am each day rather than 6:00 am. E-mails are attached as Exhibit "B".
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
ORDINANGE NO. 02014-31

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO OPERATE A
PHYSICAL FITNESS FACILITY IN THE B-3 GENERAL BUSINESS ZONING
DISTRICT AT 230 E. OGDEN AVENUE

WHEREAS, an application seeking a special use permit to operate a physical
fitness facility at 230 E. Ogden Avenue, Hinsdale, llinois (the "Subject Property"), in the
B-3 General Business Zoning District, was filed by Petitioner Shred415 Hinsdale, LLC
(the "Applicant”) with the Village of Hinsdale; and

e WHERFAS, physical fitness facilities are permitted as special uses inthe B3
General Business. Zonhing Di§trict pursuant to Section 5-105(c)(11) of the Hinsdale
Zoning Code (“Zoning Code”); and

WHEREAS the Subject Property is Iegal!y described in Exhibit A attached
hereto and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the application has been referred fo the Plan Commission of the
Village and has been processed in accordance with the Zoning Code, as amended; and

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2014, the Plan Commission held a public hearing on the
application pursuant to notice thereof properly published in The Hinsdalean on
June 19, 2014, in accordance with lilinois law, and, after considering all of the testimony
and evidence presented at the public hearing, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of the Application by a vote of four (4) in favor, one (1) against and two (2)
absent, subject to certain conditions, all as set forth in the Plan Commission's Findings
and Recommendation for Plan Commission Case No.A-13-2014 (“Findings and
Recommendation”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part
hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning and Public Safety Committee of the Board of Trustees of
the Village, at a public meeting on July 28, 2014, considered the application and the
Findings and Recommendation.of the Plan Commission and made its recommendation
to the Board of Trustees. The Zoning and Public Safety Committee also confirmed that
the Applicant had contacted the two adjacent single-family residences to confirm that
they were aware of the request for the special use and the proposed hours of operation,
as directed by the Plan Commission. The Zoning and Public Safety Committee also
received and reviewed a parking exhibit submitted by the Applicant prior to the July 28
meeting, again as directed by the Plan Commission, identifying the specific parking

332108_1
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for any reason, the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or
provision shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other
than that part affected by such decision. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts
thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict
hereby repealed.

Section 5: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from
and after its passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law.

PASSED this _16th day of September 2014,

AYES: Trustees Eldér, Angelo, Haarlow, Hughes, Saigh

" NAYS: _ None

ABSENT: Trustee DaPlaca

APPROVEDthis _16th day of _ge 2014

Col.

Thomag'K/ Cauley, Jr., Villaué President

Chnstlne M Bruton, Village Clerk
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT BY THE APPLICANT TO THE

CONDITIONS ?HS ORDINANCE:

its: c:g—%“ﬁéd’(-' 4/( WV%

Date: 7(/ [2. , 2014

332108_.( 3
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EXHIBIT C

PARKING EXHIBIT
(ATTACHED)

332108 1
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10
1 here (indicating). 1 residential.
2 MR. COULES: That's Ogden up there 2 MR. COULES: Correct.
3 (indicating). 3 MS. CRNOVICH: And if you look at the
4 MS. MCMAHON: It would have been nice 4 definition of the purpose of special use
5 to have that. It was really hard to figure out. 5 permits: Special uses are those uses having
6 MR. COULES: Sorry about that. 6 some special impact or uniqueness that requires
7 MS. MCMAHON: So that's Ogden. So 7 a careful review of their location, design,
8 you're coming in here (indicating)? 8 configuration and special impact.
9 MR. COULES: Correct. Go to the back 9 And I take that to mean like on the
maeem 10 to park, then you come right in this walkway asww 10 neighboring properties. I don't have a problem
11 here (indicating). 11 with the use, but I do have a problem with the
12 CHAIRMAN BYRNES: So is this the extent 12 parking lot, people using the parking lot at
13 of the Shred415? 13 4:30in the morning.
14 MR. COULES: And the front. 14 MR. STIFFLEAR: If you look at the
15 CHAIRMAN BYRNES: So you can come in 15 specific standards for approval and special use
16 the front? 16 permit, it's no undue adverse impact on the
17 MR. COULES: That's more of a fire 17 proposed use and will not have a substantial or
18 exit. They don't want people to be utilizing 18 undue adverse effect upon the adjacent property.
19 Ogden for safety reasons because no one parks 19 MR. COULES: And the character of the
wwoen 20 really up there. You don't want people to be assem 20 @rea. Which this is zoned B-3, which is a
21 running in the front door off of Ogden Avenue. 21 higher use,
22 MS. CRNOVICH: Well, there's no 22 MR. STIFFLEAR: For example, the other
11 13
1 parking. 1 uses that you outlined here, which are permitted
2 MR. COULES: Well, they can drop people 2 uses, have general times which operate from
3 off. We don't want anyone to do that. That's 3 8:00 in the morning until 8:00 or 9:00 at night.
4 more of a fire door. 4 If we're talking about starting at 4:45, if we
5 CHAIRMAN BYRNES: Is the fire door 5 had asite plan with parking, I mean there are
6 alarmed or something? 6 literally parking spaces which are three feet
7 MR. COULES: It's there now. It's not 7 away from bedrooms. And I think at least I am
8 alarmed, but it's not going to be utilized. 8 going to take that into consideration.
9 UNIDENTIFIED AUDIENCE MEMBER: It's an 9 And I'd like to know how do we
Pa— .10 existing door, but it's not going to be wwew 10 Mitigate that impact on the neighbors when
11 utilized. 11 you've got people arriving at 4:45 in the
12 MS. CRNOVICH: So you will have -- 12 morning with car doors slamming, people setting
13 There's times you could have 30 to 32 people in 13 their electronic alarms and the honking go off?
14 the building? 14 I specifically would like to see, if possible,
15 MR. COULES: At the maximum, yes. That 16 some type of during the hours of 5:00 to 8:00 in
16 is a correct statement. 16 the morning parking limited to a space further
17 MS. CRNOVICH: So if classes are 17 away from the residential area.
18 starting at 5:00, employees are arriving at 18 MR. COULES: That's fine. They're
‘ 19 4:30? 19 amenable to that.
oraaien 20 UNIDENTIFIED AUDIENCE MEMBER: 4:45. | ouaw 20 CHAIRMAN BYRNES: Where would that
21 MS. CRNOVICH: My concern is the 21 space be then?
22 parking lot is adjacent to single-family 22 MR. COULES: That's further away from
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22 24
1 MS. CRNOVICH: I've been in favor of 1 MR. STIFFLEAR: To give an example to
2 all other special use permits for physical 2 the group, I mean, we had this, what, two to
3 fitness facilities, but those have been in 3 three years ago at Fox's where they were looking
4 business commercial districts and not adjacent 4 to have, you know, traffic flow go behind these
5 to residential. And this is just too close, 5 exact same homes. And we were, in my
6 especially without a buffer. 6 estimation, probably 50 to 100 feet away, and it
7 MR. CASHMAN: We haven't received any 7 ultimately got turned down.
8 feedback from anyone that's been notified? 8 Here we're talking about business
9 MR. COULES: No. No one has contacted 9 hours which are not late at night but earlier in
aszn 10 me. I don't know if anyone contacted the assm 10 the morning, which in my opinion is probably
11 Village. 11 more disturbing, which would vary by user, but
12 MS. CRNOVICH: Did you hear from 12 you're five feet away.
13 anybody, Sean? 13 MS. CRNOVICH: And I think once the
14 MR. GASCOIGNE: No, we have not. 14 neighbors find out the hours -- I've walked the
15 MR. COULES: There's been no 15 property dozens of times seeing if there was
16 opposition. 16 enough parking away from the fence. I don't
17 MR. STIFFLEAR: Until the doors start 17 think there is.
18 slamming. 18 MR. STIFFLEAR: That parking lot in the
19 MR. CASHMAN: Well, Koshgarian's right 19 front of the building, is that available?
asew 20 there. That's a busy early morning operation. assaom 20 MR. COULES: Pardon me?
21 MR. STIFFLEAR: I hear what you're 21 MR. STIFFLEAR: The parking in the
22 saying about that, and that's why I think we 22 front of the building, is that part of it?
23 25
1 have a special use as opposed to a permitted use 1 MR. CASHMAN: That's the adjacent
2 so we can evaluate those. For example, I would 2 structure.
3 have no issue with this at all if parking just 3 MR. COULES: Right. That's next door.
4 were not close. I actually think it's a great 4 MR. STIFFLEAR: We just don't have the
§ business. § information. As I'm looking at the parallel,
6 MS. CRNOVICH: Yeah. Ithinkit's 6 the parking in back behind that same structure
7 fantastic. 7 s part of your building.
8 MR. STIFFLEAR: And it will be well 8 MR. COULES: Correct.
9 served here in Hinsdale. 9 MR. STIFFLEAR: But the parking in
arsaasm 10 MS. CRNOVICH: And I think maybe one assaew 10 front is not.
11 reason you have not heard from any of the 1 MR. COULES: Correct. In fact, at one
12 neighbors, they probably did not know the hours 12 point when this was being built, you saw all the
13 of operation. That might have made a 13 Range Rovers and all that parked, actually, on
14 difference. 14 this property. That's this property.
15 MR. STIFFLEAR: People just don't pay 15 MS. CRNOVICH: It's a funny lot.
16 attention all the time. 16 MR. COULES: Yes.
17 MS. CRNOVICH: They don't pay 17 MS. CRNOVICH: I do see -- I did notice
18 attention. 18 a lot of signs over there, too, saying parking
. 19 CHAIRMAN BYRNES: It's summertime, too. 19 only for 230 East Ogden, so [ imagine parking
arseromn 20 MS. CRNOVICH: It's summer, right. asoen 20 has been a problem over there.
21 CHAIRMAN BYRNES: Without a site plan, 21 MR. STIFFLEAR: I think all the dealers
22 1 can't see exactly where we are. 22 go there --
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46
1 further to back what Sean had stated. We also 1 too many questions --
2 are amenable to providing the Exhibit that staff 2 CHAIRMAN BYRNES: (Inaudible.)
3 approves of that comes back to you guys to make 3 MR. COULES: Yes, you can. If the
4 sure it meets what you're stating so the Exhibit 4 landlord says no, we don't sign a lease. We
5 is part of it. Because if the Exhibit is part 5 don't move in.
6 of the ordinance, there's going to be actual Xed 6 MR. STIFFLEAR: Do we rope anything
7 out spots from 6:00 to 8:00 a.m. on that 7 else off in Village like that on a daily basis?
8 Exhibit. 8 MR. CASHMAN: It's not really roping as
9 MS. MCMAHON: Can I just clarify are we 9 you've put it.
«ne 10 talking about the whole south side of the ossesem 10 MR. COULES: Cones.
11 parking lot or the southeast side? 11 MR. CASHMAN: Cone in each spot, so
12 CHAIRMAN BYRNES: The whole south side, 12 what valets do to block off spots.
13 I think. 13 MR. STIFFLEAR: Or you put a sign up
14 MS. MCMAHON: All the way across? 14 that says, no parking.
15 MR. COULES: Yes. 15 MR. CASHMAN: Then you can quickly pick
16 MR. CASHMAN: If you pull in nose 16 themup.
17 first -- 17 MR. STIFFLEAR: That would be a way for
18 MR. COULES: Nose first you'd be facing 18 no parking before 8:00 a.m.
19 the houses. 19 MR. COULES: They want to be good
oaosen 20 MR. CASHMAN: -- you'd be facing the s 20 Neighbors. That's not an issue.
21 houses? 21 MS. CRNOVICH: And I understand that.
22 MR. COULES: Correct. 22 I understand what you're trying to do now. But
47 49
1 MR. CASHMAN: Basically then you have 1 I am not comfortable unless I see the plan,
2 that aisle open with parking facing north closer 2 unless I see it in writing what's going to be
3 to the building? 3 done. But I'm sure you can do that as it moves
4 MR. COULES: And that would be from 4 forward.
5 6:00to 8:00a.m. 5 MR. STIFFLEAR: Also, if we have no
6 MR. STIFFLEAR: Is that for the whole 6 parking signs, we wouldn't have any issues with
7 building or just for the residents of -- or for 7 fire.
8 the -- just for the -- 8 MR. COULES: Correct.
9 MR. COULES: I don't know what anyone 9 MR. STIFFLEAR: And also if you look at
10 else -- there's only one other user in the asaw 10 this, these spots along here may be closer to
11 building presently. I have no idea what their 11 the residence than these spots (indicating). I
12 hours are. It's the imaging center. 12 mean, these spots that we were talking about
13 MR. CASHMAN: So it would be for the 13 potentially having before may be another ten
14 whole building or just this use? 14 feet away from the home.
15 MR. STIFFLEAR: How do you enforce that 15 MR. CASHMAN: That's why I think
16 if there's five cars parked in there? 16 meeting with them -- if they start with the
17 MR. COULES: It's going to be‘roped 17 proposal that they're going to block out, in
18 off. 18 simplistic terms, just the south spaces, if they
. 19 CHAIRMAN BYRNES: They're going to rope 19 meet with the neighbor -- especially that
wwan 20 it Off. amew 20 Neighbor that's right on the fence line, maybe
21 MR. COULES: It's real simple. 21 their preference is they put cones on the east
22 MS. CRNOVICH: I'm sorry. I still have 22 section spaces and leave all the north and south
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SITE PLAN AND EXTERIOR APPEARANCE PLAN
FOR A NEW ANIMAL HOSPITAL AT 722-724 N. YORK ROAD, HINSDALE, ILLINOIS
— HINSDALE ANIMAL HOSPITAL - CASE NUMBER A-40-2016

WHEREAS, the Village of Hinsdale received an application (the “Application”)
from Hinsdale Animal Hospital (the “Applicant”) for site plan and exterior appearance
plan approval relative to the proposed construction of a new animal hospital, boarding
kennel and grooming service use on property located in the B-1 Community Business
Zoning District at 722-724 N. York Road (the “Subject Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is legally described in Exhibit A attached
hereto and made a part hereof. The site plan and depictions of the exterior of the
proposed animal hospital building are attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part
hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Application has been referred to the Plan Commission of the
Village and has been processed in accordance with the Hinsdale Zoning Code (“Zoning
Code”), as amended; and

WHEREAS, on June 14, 2017, the Plan Commission of the Village of Hinsdale
reviewed the Application at a public meeting pursuant to notice given in accordance with
the Zoning Code; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission, after considering all of the testimony and
evidence presented at the public meeting, recommended approval of the proposed
exterior appearance plan and proposed site plan on a vote of six (6) ayes, zero (0)
nays, and three (3) absent, all as set forth in the Plan Commission’s Findings and
Recommendation in this case (“Findings and Recommendation”), a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit C and made a part hereof. The Plan Commission has filed
its report of Findings and Recommendation regarding the approvals sought in the
Application with the President and Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees have duly considered the
Findings and Recommendation of the Plan Commission, and all of the materials, facts
and circumstances affecting the Application, and find that the Application satisfies the
standards established in subsection 11-604F of the Zoning Code governing site plan
approval, and 11-606E of the Zoning Code governing exterior appearance review,
subject to the conditions stated in this Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of lllinois, as follows:
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SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

SECTION 2: Adoption of Findings and Recommendation. The President and
Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale approve and adopt the findings and
recommendation of the Plan Commission, a copy of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit C and made a part hereof, and incorporate such findings and recommendation
herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

SECTION 3: Approval of Site Plan and Exterior Appearance Plan. The
President and Board of Trustees, acting pursuant to the authority vested in it by the
laws of the State of lllinois and Sections 11-604 and 11-606 of the Hinsdale Zoning
Code, approves the Site Plan and Exterior Appearance Plan attached to, and by this
reference, incorporated into this Ordinance as Exhibit B (the “Approved Plans”),
relative to the proposed new animal hospital, subject to the conditions set forth in
Section 4 of this Ordinance.

SECTION 4: Conditions on Approvals. The approvals granted in Section 3 of
this Ordinance are expressly subject to all of the following conditions:

A. Compliance with Plans. All work on the exterior of the Subject Property
shall be undertaken only in strict compliance with the Approved Plans
attached as Exhibit B.

B. Compliance with Codes, Ordinances, and Regulations. Except as
specifically set forth in this Ordinance, or as otherwise approved by the
Board through other Ordinances, Resolutions or other official action, the
provisions of the Hinsdale Municipal Code and the Hinsdale Zoning Code
shall apply and govern all development on, and improvement of, the
Subject Property. All such development and improvement shall comply
with all Village codes, ordinances, and regulations at all times.

C. Building Permits. The Applicant shall submit all required building permit
applications and other materials in a timely manner to the appropriate
parties, which materials shall be prepared in compliance with all applicable
Village codes and ordinances.

SECTION 5: Violation of Condition or Code. Any violation of any term or
condition stated in this Ordinance, or of any applicable code, ordinance, or regulation of
the Village, shall be grounds for rescission by the Board of Trustees of the approvals set
forth in this Ordinance.

SECTION 6: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. Each section,
paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is separable, and if any section,
paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid
for any reason, the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or
provision shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other
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than that part affected by such decision. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts
thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict
hereby repealed.

SECTION 7: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from
and after its passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law.

ADOPTED this day of , 2017, pursuant to a
roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED by me this day of , 2017, and
attested to by the Village Clerk this same day.

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President

ATTEST:

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT BY THE APPLICANT TO THE
CONDITIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE:

By:

Its:

Date: , 2017

381641 1 3
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EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PARCEL 1: LOT 1 IN CHARLES SHULZE RESUBDIVISION OF PARTS OF
LOT 7 AND 8 IN BLOCK 3 OF THE PLAT OF FULLERSBURGH, IN
SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED AUGUST 13, 1956 AS DO UNEDNGT 811735, IN DU PAGE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2: LOT 2 IN BROCKMAN’S RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 5 IN
RUCHTY’S RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 2 AND 3 IN BLOCK 3 OF THE PLAT
OF FULLERSBURGH AND PART OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN THE PLAT OF
FULLERSBURGH, IN SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING THE PLAT OF
BROCKMAN’S RESUBDIVISION RECORDED DECEMBER 18, 1957 AS
DOCUMENT 866181, IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

PARCEL 3: THE NORTHERLY 60 FEET (AS MEASURED ALONG THE
EAST LINE AND THE WEST LINES THEREOF) OF THAT PART OF LOTS 7
AND 8 IN BLOCK 3 IN FULLERSBURGH, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT AN IRON STAKE ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 8,
68.5 FEET EASTERLY FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF,;
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE 229.7 FEET TO AN
IRON STAKE ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 7, 65.5 FEET EAST OF
THE NORTHWEST CORNER

COMMONLY KNOWN AS 722 - 724 N. YORK ROAD, HINSDALE, ILLINOIS
PINS: 09-01-202-017-0000, 09-01-202-018 AND 09-01-202-022



EXHIBIT B

APPROVED SITE PLAN AND EXTERIOR APPEARANCE PLAN
(ATTACHED)
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EXHIBIT C

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION
(ATTACHED)
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II. SITE INFORMATION

Address of subject property: 724 N. York Road

Property identification number (P.I.N. or tax number); 09 -0t . 202 - o7

Brief description of proposed project: Approximately 12,000 s.f. 2-story Animal Hospital and Animal Boarding Facility

General description or characteristics of the site: Existing mixed use building with residential on the second floor and retail

on first floor. Approximate area is 13,000s.f. Building sits within the front yard set back approximately 15' from the front property line. There is

currently street parking located in front of the building in the parkway. The site has 2 access points onto N. York Road

Existing zoning and land use: B-1

Surrounding zoning and existing land uses:

North: 0-2 South; 0-2

East; 02 West; 02

Proposed zoning and land use: B-1

Please mark the approval(s) you are seeking and attach all applicable applications and
standards for each approval requested:

Site Plan Approval 11-604 Map and Text Amendments 11-601E
Amendment Requested: _Spedial use for
Design Review Permit 11-605E Animal Hospital and Commercial Kennel

Exterior Appearance 11-606E
: ‘ Q Planned Development 11-603E
Special Use Permit 11-602E
Special Use Requested: Animal Hospital U Development in the B-2 Central Business
Animal Boarding / Commercial Kennel District Questionnaire
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TABLE OF COMPLIANCE

Address of subject property: 724 Nort vork Ave

The following table is based on the &

Zoning District.

Minimum Code
Requirements

Proposed/Existing
Development

Minimum Lot Area (s.f.) 30,144 s.f. 30,144 s.f,

Minimum Lot Depth

Minimum Lot Width

Building Height 30" Max 30Y35' (Tower)
Number of Stories 2 2

Front Yard Setback 25' 15'

Corner Side Yard Setback N/A N/A

Interior Side Yard Setback 10" 10'

Rear Yard Setback 20" 20'

AR oor Area Ratio 0.35 0.4 (0.46 Existing)

Maximum Total Buildin

Coverage* ’ N/A N/A

Maximum Total Lot Coverage*

90%

80% (+/-24,000 s.f.)

Parking Requirements

44 spaces required

45 spaces provided

Parking front yard setback 25' 20'
Parking corner side yard

setback N/A N/A
Parking interior side yard ' '
setback 10 0
Parking rear yard setback 20 0
Loading Requirements 1 space 1 space

Accessory Structure
Information

*Must provide actual square footage humber and percentage.

Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and explain the Village's authority, if any, to approve the

application despite such lack of compliance:
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

DEPARTMENT
EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND

VILLAGE -
OF HINSDALE roeen ., ~ SIEPLANREVIEW CRITERIA

Address of proposed request: 14411 1L-59

REVIEW CRITERIA

Section 11-606 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Exterior appearance review. The exterior appearance
review process is intended to protect, preserve, and enhance the character and architectural heritage and
quality of the Village, to protect, preserve, and enhance property values, and to promote the health, safety, and
welfare of the Village and its residents. Please note that Subsection Standards for building permits refers to
Subsection 11-605E Standards and considerations for design permit review.

***PLEASE NOTE*** If this is a non-residential property within 250 feet of a single-family
residential district, additional notification requirements are necessary. Please contact the Village
Planner for a description of the additional requirements.

FEES for Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Review:
Standard Application: $600.00

Within 250 feet of a Single-Family Residential District: $800

Below are the criteria_that will be used by the Plan Commission, Zoning and Public Safety
Committee and Board of Trustees in reviewing Exterior Appearance Review requests. Please
respond to each criterion as it relates to the application. Please use an additional sheet of paper
to respond to guestions if needed.

1. Open spaces. The quality of the open space between buildings and in setback spaces
between street and facades.

Site landscaping will be improved to meet code requirements.

2. Materials. The quality of materials and their relationship to those in existing adjacent
structures.

The building will be constructed of high quality materials including Masonry, Stone,
and Glass. Stone detailing will include stone arches. Facade will include dec. lighting.

3. General design. The quality of the design in general and its relationship to the overall
character of neighborhood.

The building is designed is influenced by traditional architecture with brick and stone
detailing consistent with the overlay district. The entrance is accented with a tower
element that adds architectural character.

-1-
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12.Roof shapes. The roof shape of a building shall be visually compatible with the buildings to
which it is visually related.

The building is being proposed with a flat roof. There are buildings in the vicinity that have
flat roofs.

13.Walls of continuity. Building facades and appurtenances such as walls, fences, and landscape
masses shall, when it is a characteristic of the area, form cohesive walls of enclosure along a
street to ensure visual compatibility with the buildings, public ways, and places to which such
elements are visually related.

N.A.

14. Scale of building. The size and mass of buildings and structures in relation to open spaces,
windows, door openings, porches, and balconies shall be visually compatible with the
buildings, public ways, and places to which they are visually related.

See submitted elevations.

15. Directional expression of front elevation. The buildings shall be visually compatible with the
buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related in its directional character,
whether this be vertical character, horizontal character, or nondirectional character.

The front elevation relates to N. York Road.

16. Special consideration for existing buildings. For existing buildings, the Plan Commission and
the Board of Trustees shall consider the availability of materials, technology, and
craftsmanship to duplicate existing styles, patterns, textures, and overall detailing.

N.A.

REVIEW CRITERIA -~ Site Plan Review
Below are the criteria that will be used by the Plan Commission and Board of Trustees in

determining is the application does not meet the requirements for Site Plan Approval. Briefly
describe how this application will not do the below criteria. Please respond to each criterion as it
relates to the application. Please use an additional sheet of paper to respond to questions if

needed.

Section 11-604 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Site Plan Review. The site plan review
process recognizes that even those uses and developments that have been determined to be
generally suitable for location in a particular district are capable of adversely affecting the
purposes for which this code was enacted unless careful consideration is given to critical design

elements. :
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10.The proposed site plan places unwarranted or unreasonable burdens on specified utility
systems serving the site or area or fails to fully and satisfactorily integrate the site’s utilities into
the overall existing and planned utility system serving the Village.

Available site utilities have been assumed to be adequate to service the proposed building. If
this is not the case applicant will provide adequately for such services.

11.The proposed site plan does not provide for required public uses designated on the Official
Map.

N.A.

12.The proposed site plan otherwise adversely affects the public health, safety, or general
welfare.

There is no reason to argue that the proposed site plan adversely affects the public health,
safety, or general welfare. Hinsdale Animal Hospital has operated on Ogden Avenue in
Hinsdale since 1950. It has a long history of providing a high quality of animal care to the
residents of Hinsdale with public convenience that contributes to the general welfare of the
neighborhood and community.
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EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN REVIEW CRITERIA

1. Open spaces. The quality of the open space between buildings and in setback spaces between
street and facades.

Site landscaping will be improved to meet code requirements.

2. Materials. The quality of materials and their relationship to those in existing adjacent
structures.

The building will be constructed of high quality materials including Masonry, Stone, and Glass.
Stone detailing will include stone arches. Facade will include decorative lighting.

3. General design. The quality of the design in general and its relationship to the overall
character of neighborhood.

The building is designed is influenced by traditional architecture with brick and stone detailing
consistent with the overlay district. The entrance is accented with a tower element that adds
architectural character.

4. General site development. The quality of the site development in terms of landscaping,
recreation, pedestrian access, auto access, parking, servicing of the property and impact on
vehicular traffic patterns and conditions on-site and in the vicinity of the site, and the retention
of trees and shrubs to the maximum extent possible.

The site development will be maximized in order to meet parking requirements. Existing
street parking will be removed and replaced with parkway material per the zoning code.
Additional landscape improvements will enhance the front yard.

5. Height. The height of the proposed buildings and structures shall be visually compatible with
adjacent buildings.

The proposed 2 story building will replace an existing 2 story building. The proposed height

will be 30’ except at the entrance feature where the height is proposed at 35' high. The
surrounding O-2 District allows for buildings up to 3 stories and 40’ tall.

6. Proportion of front facade. The relationship of the width to the height of the front elevation
shall be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related.

The 2 story front facade of the proposed building is visually compatible with its surroundings.

7. Proportion of openings. The relationship of the width to the height of windows shall be
visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which the building is visually
related.

Window width and height are compatible with buildings in the area.
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8. Rhythm of solids to voids in front facades. The relationship of solids to voids in the front
fagade of a building shall be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which
it is visually related.

The building has a rhythm of punched openings in brick which is consistent with surrounding
buildings and consistent with the desired overlay district style guidelines.

9. Rhythm of spacing and buildings on streets. The relationship of a building or structure to the
open space between it and adjoining buildings or structures shall be visually compatible with the
buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related.

The building is proposed in the same location as the existing building and will not alter the
existing building spacing significantly.

10. Rhythm of entrance porch and other projections. The relationship of entrances and other
projections to sidewalks shall be visually compatible with the buildings, public ways, and places
to which it is visually related.

The entrance is pronounced with a higher architectural element that is oriented toward the
entrance drive. This creates a desirable rhythm along the public way, providing open space
adjacent to the entrance feature.

11. Relationship of materials and texture. The relationship of the materials and texture of the
facade shall be visually compatible with the predominant materials to be used in the buildings
and structures to which it is visually related.

The building materials are predominantly brick and stone that include brick details such as
soldier coursing, rowlock coursing, and various stone accents including stone arches. These
materials create a texture that is visually compatible with buildings in the vicinity and in
Hinsdale Mill overlay district.

12. Roof shapes. The roof shape of a building shall be visually compatible with the buildings to
which it is visually related.

The building is being proposed with a flat roof. There are buildings in the vicinity that have
flat roofs.

13. Walls of continuity. Building facades and appurtenances such as walls, fences, and landscape
masses shall, when it is a characteristic of the area, form cohesive walls of enclosure along a
street to ensure visual compatibility with the buildings, public ways, and places to which such
elements are visually related.

N.A.
14. Scale of building. The size and mass of buildings and structures in relation to open spaces,

windows, door openings, porches, and balconies shall be visually compatible with the buildings,
public ways, and places to which they are visually related.
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HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION

RE: Case A-40-2016 — Applicant: Dr. Kremer, Hinsdale Animal Hospital — 722-724 N. York Road

Request: Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review for a New Building for a pet hospital with boarding kennels

and grooming services

DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW: June 14, 2017

DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1°" READING: July 11, 2017

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION

I. FINDINGS

The PC heard testimony from the applicant (Dr. Kremer and project architect Michael Matthys) for the proposed
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan to construct a new animal hospital at 722-724 N. York Road. Mr. Matthys
reviewed the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) process and where the approved variations are illustrated on the
exhibits. A few examples include the 17-foot front yard setback of the building, smaller building footprint and
maximum 35-foot building height (for the tower element of the building). The elimination of the outdoor dog walk
area was also reviewed.

Mr. Matthys reviewed the exterior features of the new building, including the tower which marks the entrance. The
entire building is masonry (“reddish” tone brick) with the exception of some metal accents. There is also stone
banding to add character to the building as well as establishing a rhythm on the south wall with windows. Mr.
Matthys also mentioned that the landscape architect is also present to answer any questions the Plan Commission
(PC) may have (there were none).

The PC Chair asked if a separate sign application will be submitted, referencing a ground sign shown in the exhibit.
The applicant confirmed correct, the ground sign in the exhibit only illustrates an example of a potential sign. In
regards to a future ground sign, a Commissioner asked the applicant to be mindful about visibility due to the high
traffic on York Road. The applicant concurred to be mindful for potential signage.

A Plan Commissioner asked where the dogs “go” with the elimination of the outdoor dog walk area. Dr. Kremer
responded the dogs will not leave the facility for that, and there is an indoor exercise area where they learn to go.

The PC in general was supportive of the new building, expressed that it looks good, and believes it may drive
redevelopment in the area. It was also mentioned that the masonry fits in well with Gateway Square (across the
street).

Dr. Kremer reviewed the improvement in services the new building will help provide compared to the existing
facility. The number of additional boarding space, exam rooms, surgery suites, and adoption space will increase,
which also helps with turnaround time.

IL RECOMMENDATIONS
Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed Exterior Appearance and Site Plan as submitted, the

Village of Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of six (6) “Ayes,” and three (3) “Absent,” recommends that the
President and Board of Trustees approve the Exterior Appearance and Site Plan application as submitted.

THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By:

Chairman

Dated this day of , 2017.
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AGENDA ITEM # %%

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

VILLAGE OF

Est. 1873 Finance

AGENDA SECTION: Consent — ACA

SUBJECT: Accounts Payable-Warrant #1630

MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017

FRrROM: Darrell Langlois, Assistant Village Manager/Finance Director W

Recommended Motion

Move to approve payment of the accounts payable for the period of June 14, 2017 through July
11, 2017 in the aggregate amount of $1,639,448.58 as set forth on the list provided by the
Village Treasurer, of which a permanent copy is on file with the Village Clerk.

Background
At each Village Board meeting the Village Treasurer submits a warrant register that lists bills

to be paid and to ratify any wire transfers that have been made since the last Village Board
meeting. Supporting materials for all bills to be paid are reviewed by Village Treasurer and
one Village Trustee prior to the Village Board meeting.

Discussion & Recommendation
After completion of the review by the Village Treasurer and Village Trustee approval of
Warrant #1630 is recommended.

Budget Impact
N/A

Village Board and/or Committee Action
Village Board agenda policy provides that the Approval of the Accounts Payable should be
listed on the Consent Agenda

Documents Attached
1. Warrant Register #1630
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Village of Hinsdale
#1630
Summary By Fund

General Fund 10000 93,483.37 | 202,569.0 596,052.
Capital Project Fund 45300 297,507.33 - 297,507.33
Water & Sewer Operations | 61061 42,912.35 - 42,912.35
Water & Sewer Capital 61062 119,298.56 119,298.56
Escrow Funds 72100 204,522.00 204,522.00
Payroll Revolving Fund 79000 14,858.62 | 363,632.32 | 378,490.94
Library Operating Fund 99000 665.00 665.00
Total 1,073,247.23 | 566,201.35 | 1,639,448.58




Village of Hinsdale

Schedule of Bank Wire Transfers and ACH Payments

1630

Electronic Federal Tax Payment Systems
6/16/2017
6/30/2017

Illinois Department of Revenue
6/16/2017
6/30/2017

ICMA - 457 Plans
6/16/2017
6/30/2017

HSA PLAN CONTRIBUTION
6/16/2017

Village Payroll #12 - Calendar 2017
Village Payroll #13 - Calendar 2017

Village Payroll #12 - Calendar 2017
Village Payroll #13 - Calendar 2017

Village Payroll #12 - Calendar 2017
Village Payroll #13 - Calendar 2017

Village Payroll #12 - Calendar 2017

Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative

[llinois Municipal Retirement Fund

FWH/FICA/Medicare
FWH/FICA/Medicare

State Tax Withholding
State Tax Withholding

Employee Withholding
Employee Withholding

-Employer/Employee Withholding

Employee Insurance

Employer/Employee

$

96,035.78

$ 102,513.60

$

14,207.71
14,979.68

14,565.82
14,817.68

1,360.78

$ 202,569.03

$ 105,151.27

Total Bank Wire Transfers and ACH Payments $§ 566,201.35




Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 1

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 0711117
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
AFLAC-FLEXONE
209279 AFLAC OTHER 061617000000000 $317.52
209280 ALFAC OTHER 061617000000000 $211.29
209281 AFLAC SLAC 061617000000000 $220.03
Total for Check: 110397 $748.84
NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOL
209274 USCM/PEBSCO 061617000000000 $165.25
209275 USCM/PEBSCO 061617000000000 $1,105.00
Total for Check: 110398 $1,270.25
NATIONWIDE TRUST CO.FSB
209282 PEHP UNION 150 061617000000000 $366.40
209283 PEHPPD 061617000000000 $504.63
209284 PEHP REGULAR 061617000000000 $2,186.70
Total for Check: 110399 $3,057.73
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT '
209285 CHILD SUPPORT 061617000000000 $313.21
Total for Check: 110400 $313.21
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
209286 CHILD SUPPORT 061617000000000 $230.77
Total for Check: 110401 $230.77
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
209287 CHILD SUPPORT 061617000000000 $764.77
Total for Check: 110402 $764.77
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT -
209288 CHILD SUPPORT . 061617000000000 $175.00
Total for Check: 110403 $175.00
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
209289 CHILD SUPPORT 061617000000000 $672.45
Total for Check: 110404 $672.45
V.0.H. FLEX BENEFITS
209276 MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT 061617000000000 $283.33
209277 MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT 061617000000000 $487.32
209278 DEP CARE REIMBURSEMENT 061617000000000 $33.33
Total for Check: 110405 $803.98
VSP ILLINOIS - 30048087
209272 VSP SINGLE ALLEMPLOYEES 061617000000000 $99.18
209273 VSP FAMILY ALL EMPLOYEES 061617000000000 $213.12

Total for Check: 110406 $312.30



Run date: 07-JUL-17

VOUCHER

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER
DESCRIPTION

AMERICAN EXPRESS

209599
209599
209599
209599
209599
209599
209599
209599
209599
209599
209599
209599
209599
209599
209599

CALL ONE
209603
209603
209603
209603
209603
209603
209603
209603
209603

COMCAST
209604
209604
209605
209606
209607
209608

ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE
ASST MERCHANDISE

PHONE CHARGES
PHONE CHARGES
PHONE CHARGES
PHONE CHARGES
PHONE CHARGES
PHONE CHARGES
PHONE CHARGES
PHONE CHARGES
PHONE CHARGES

POLICE/FIRE
POLICE/FIRE
WATER PLANT
VILLAGE HALL
KLM

POLICE

CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY

209602
209602
209602
209602
209602
209602

GAS CHARGES
GAS CHARGES
GAS CHARGES
GAS CHARGES
GAS CHARGES
GAS CHARGES

INVOICE
NUMBER

8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017

" 8-03003-06232017

8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017
8-03003-06232017

Total for Check: 110407

1213105-1136113
1213105-1136113
1213105-1136113
1213105-1136113
1213105-1136113
1213105-1136113
1213105-1136113
1213105-1136113
1213105-1136113

Total for Check: 110408

8771201110009242
8771201110009242
8771201110036815
8771201110036757
8771201110036807
8771201110036781

Total for Check: 110409

0036139858
0036139858
0036139858
0036139858
0036139858
0036139858

Total for Check: 110410

Page: 2
DATE: 07/11/17

AMOUNT
PAID

$4.11
$209.50
$70.86
$30.00
$255.95
$195.00
$30.09-
$54.46
$49.95
$35.00
$56.20
$65.95
$13.72
$94.12
$31.44
$1,136.17

$586.96
$1,083.57
$227.97
$50.41
$89.48
$50.41
$242.35
$151.67
$1,264.08
$3,746.90

$69.57

$69.57
$134.85
$214.85
$104.85
$162.90
$756.59

$293.78
$293.78
$897.73
$720.86
$253.35
$502.44
$2,961.94



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 3

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 07/11/17
VOUCHER INVOICE : AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
FIRST COMMUNICATIONS, LLC ‘
209601 PHONE CHARGES 113439091 $480.14
209601 PHONE CHARGES 113439091 $1,620.25
209601 PHONE CHARGES 113439091 $910.06
209601 PHONE CHARGES 113439091 $390.03
209601 PHONE CHARGES 113439091 $166.75
209601 PHONE CHARGES 113439091 $343.72
209601 PHONE CHARGES 113439091 $91.03
Total for Check: 110411 $4,001.98
SAMS CLUB #6384
209598 ASST SUPPLIES 6046002039006910 $47.88
209598 ASST SUPPLIES 6046002039006910 $1,039.09
Total for Check: 110412 $1,086.97
U S POSTAL SERVICE
209600 PERMIT #137 PERMIT #137 $2,000.00
Total for Check: 110413 $2,000.00
NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOL
209746 USCM/PEBSCO 063017000000000 $1,105.00
209747 USCM/PEBSCO 063017000000000 $170.61
Total for Check: 110414 $1,275.61
NATIONWIDE TRUST CO.FSB
209748 PEHP REGULAR 063017000000000 $2,206.48
209749 PEHP UNION 150 063017000000000 $366.40
209750 PEHPPD 063017000000000 $504.63
Total for Check: 110415 $3,077.51
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
209751 CHILD SUPPORT 063017000000000 $313.21
Total for Check: 110416 $313.21
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
209752 CHILD SUPPORT 063017000000000 $230.77
_ Total for Check: 110417 $230.77
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
209753 CHILD SUPPORT 063017000000000 $764.77
Total for Check: 110418 $764.77
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
209754 CHILD SUPPORT 063017000000000 $175.00
Total for Check: 110419 $175.00
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT

209755 CHILD SUPPORT 063017000000000 $672.45



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Page: 4

DATE: 071117

Village of Hinsdale
WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
Total for Check: 110420 $672.45
TWO BROTHERS ROUNDHOUSE
209804 HOLIDAY EXPRESS DEPOSIT 070317 $1,125.00
Total for Check: 110421 $1,125.00
23 E BIRCHWOOD LLC
209790 CONT BD 23 E BIRCHWOOD 23876 $7,500.00
Total for Check: 110422 $7,500.00
5 STAR SOCCER CAMPS, INC
209532 YOUTH SOCCER 06142017 $2,059.20
209808 YOUTH SOCCER 6-26 CAMPS 62917 $200.00
, Total for Check: 110423 $2,259.20
721 WEST WALNUT LLC
209711 ST MGMT 721 W WALNUT 23528 $3,000.00
Total for Check: 110424 $3,000.00
A & B LANDSCAPING
209869 JUNE FY17-18 2017-211 $3,008.50
209869 JUNE FY17-18 2017-211 $10,488.10
209869 JUNE FY17-18 2017-211 $57.00
209869 JUNE FY17-18 2017-211 $494.00
‘ Total for Check: 110425 $14,047.60
A + EXHAUST HOOD CLEANING
209494 EXHAUST CLEANING 20170608 $205.00
209494 EXHAUST CLEANING 20170608 $205.00
209494 EXHAUST CLEANING 20170608 $455.00
209494 EXHAUST CLEANING 20170608 $255.00
' Total for Check: 110426 $1,120.00
A BLOCK MARKETING INC -
209632 CBD LANDSCAPE MULCH EF00004148 $194.48
209633 PARK MULCH TJ00001978 $170.17
Total for Check: 110427 $364.65
A LAMP CONCRETE
209930 2017 RESURFACING PROJECT 15664 $1,647.50
209930 2017 RESURFACING PROJECT 15664 $5,491.65
209930 2017 RESURFACING PROJECT 15664 $53,125.00
209931 2017 RECONSTRUCTION PROJ 15670 $78,453.87
209931 2017 RECONSTRUCTION PROJ 15670 $49,739.36
Total for Check: 110428 $188,457.38

A/R CONCEPTS INC
209662 A/R FEES

VOH300

$24.00



Run date: 07-JUL-17

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER
VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION

AFFILIATED RESTORATION

1209581 CONT BD 420 N COUN TYLINE

AIR ONE EQUIPMENT
209479 6 NOMEX CHIN STRAPS

ALEXANDER EQUIPMENT
209488 FEED WHEEL/BEARING

ALLIED 100 t
209655 ELECTRODES FOR AEDS
209655 ELECTRODES FOR AEDS

ALLIED GARAGE DOORINC
209460 REPAIRS TO #85
209461 REPAIRS TO #84

AMERICAN MESSAGING
209379 VEECK CSO PAGER

AMERICAN UNDERGROUND INC
209492 EMERGENCY SEWER

AMG/SOUND MEMORIES VIDEO
209687 MOVIES IN THE PARK

ANDRES MEDICAL BILLING LT
209663 MONTHLY FEES-MAY

ANIMAL CARE EQUIP & SVCS
209802 CATCH POLE
209802 CATCH POLE

ANTHONY J PIGATI
209789 CONT BD 313 W NORTH

INVOICE
NUMBER

Total for Check: 110429

23762
Total for Check: 110430

123287
Total for Check: 110431

134307
Total for Check: 110432

8113999
8113999
Total for Check: 110433

92180
92162
Total for Check: 110434

U1153710RF
Total for Check: 110435

8431 -
Total for Check: 110436

815.00
Total for Check: 110437

141143
Total for Check: 110438

53383
53383
Total for Check: 110439

23797
Total for Check: 110440

Page: 5
DATE: 0711117

AMOUNT
PAID

$24.00

$7,500.00
$7,500.00

$249.10
$249.10

$625.13
$625.13

$367.20
$545.40
$912.60

$575.14
$487.74
$1,062.88

$29.59
$29.59

$1,300.00
$1,300.00

$815.00
$815.00

$3,243.50
$3,243.50

$81.95
$28.50
$110.45

$1,500.00
$1,500.00



Run date: 07-JUL-17

Village of Hinsdale Page: 6
WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 071117
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
APWA ASSOCIATION
209393 APWA MEMBERSHIP 833519 $95.00
209515 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 688933 $190.00
Total for Check: 110441 $285.00
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES
209397 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081076151 $71.95
209397 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081076151 $8.99
209397 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081076151 $161.00
209397 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081076151 $15.15
209398 FLOOR MATS FD 2081076150 $79.80
209470 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081095083 $71.95
209470 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081095083 $8.99
209470 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081095083 $161.00
209470 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081095083 $15.156
209471 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081085611 $71.95
209471 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081085611 $8.99
209471 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081085611 $161.00
209471 FLOOR MATS/SHOP TOWELS 2081085611 $15.15
209472 FLOOR MATS 2081085610 $79.80
209564 FLOOR MATS/ SHOP TOWELS 2081104380 $71.95
209564 FLOOR MATS/ SHOP TOWELS 2081104380 $8.99
209564 FLOOR MATS/ SHOP TOWELS 2081104380 $161.00
209564 FLOOR MATS/ SHOP TOWELS 2081104380 $15.15
209565 FLOOR MATS 2081104379 $79.80
Total for Check: 110442 $1,267.76
AT &T
209557 VEECK PARK WP 630323386306 $198.07
Total for Check: 110443 $198.07
ATLAS BOBCAT LLC
209356 FEED WHEEL FOR #105 BD4710 $1,021.00
Total for Check: 110444 $1,021.00
BACKGROUNDS ONLINE
209926 BACKGROUND CHECKS 487441 $49.95
209926 BACKGROUND CHECKS 487441 $49.95
209926 BACKGROUND CHECKS 487441 $49.95
209926 BACKGROUND CHECKS 487441 $49.95
Total for Check: 110445 $199.80
BATTAGLIA HOMES
209583 CONT BD 311 PRINCETON 22962 $10,000.00
Total for Check: 110446 $10,000.00

BATTAGLIA HOMES



Run date: 07-JUL-17

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER
VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION

209588 ST MGMT 311 PRINCETON RD

BAYLESS COMMUNICATIONS
209875 PROF SERVICE COMM

BENSFIELD, ANNA
209715 REFUND DEPOSIT EN170623

BOMBA, SUSAN
209421 OVERPAID FINAL BILL

BOUGHTON MATERIALS
209348 GROUND SAND

BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC
209653 MEDICINE CELL CONTAINER
209654 MISC MEDICAL SUPPLIES

BROADCAST MUSIC INC
209455 ANNUAL MUSIC LICENSE

BROWN, TERRY
209416 DOUBLE PAID FINAL BILL

BUILD-A-BEAR WORKSHOP

209656 TEDDY BEAR AMBULANCE CALL

BURRIS EQUIPMENT CO

209372 SPARE WHEELS TRACTOR #40

BUTTREY RENTAL SERVICE IN
209365 ~ SEWERDIG

BYRNE BUILDERS
209791 STMWR BD 118 E HICKORY

INVOICE
NUMBER

22963
Total for Check: 110447

971.25
Total for Check: 110448

23426
Total for Check: 110449

0709786
Total for Check: 110450

251042
Total for Check: 110451

82529689
82529688
Total for Check: 110452

2392497
Total for Check: 110453

0210206
Total for Check: 110454

1983
Total for Check: 110455

PS09642
Total for Check: 110456

238403
Total for Check: 110457

22942
Total for Check: 110458

Page: 7
DATE: 07/11117

AMOUNT
PAID

$3,000.00
$3,000.00

$971.25
$971.25

$500.00
$500.00

$31.65
$31.65

$1,585.95
$1,585.95

$103.05
$804.93
$907.98

$28.71
$28.71

$68.77
$68.77

$640.98
$640.98

$247.20
$247.20

$285.00
$285.00

$6,833.00
$6,833.00



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 8

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 07/11/17
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
CARRIE THANGAMANI, DDS
209696 REFUND OF RED PERMIT 062817 $180.00
Total for Check: 110459 $180.00
CARROLL DISTRIBUTING
209350 POCKET PARK BENCHES OAK LEO25539 . $15.12
209358 CONCRETE PATCH-POOL DECK LEO025165 $179.15
Total for Check: 110460 $194.27
CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES,IN
209733 FLAG FOR MUN! BLDGS 34131900 $76.31
209733 FLAG FOR MUNI BLDGS 34131900 $9.81
209733 FLAG FOR MUNI! BLDGS 34131900 $207.01
209733 FLAG FOR MUNI BLDGS 34131900 $76.31
Total for Check: 110461 $369.44
CATCHING FLUID POWER
209745 HYD HOSE & FITTINGS #21 2487062 $44.16
209780 HYD HOSE-CRIMP FITTINGS 6171362 $44.16
Total for Check: 110462 $88.32
CBC RESTAURANT CORP
209695 CBD PUBLIC INFO MTG 11003907230097 $214.49
. Total for Check: 110463 $214.49
CCP INDUSTRIES INC
209805 UNIFORM T-SHIRTS IN01886675R $77.60
209805 UNIFORM T-SHIRTS INO1886675R $618.39
209805 UNIFORM T-SHIRTS INO1886675R $401.95
209805 UNIFORM T-SHIRTS INO1886675R $386.49
209805 UNIFORM T-SHIRTS INO1886675R $510.17
Total for Check: 110464 $1,994.60
CHICAGO BULLS/WHITE SOX :
209758 WHITE SOX CAMP REIMBURSE 7499 $2,924.00
Total for Check: 110465 ' $2,924.00
CHICAGO PARTS & SOUND LLC
209779 OIL FILTERS-PATROL CARS 301C016657 $51.60
Total for Check: 110466 $51.60
CHRISTOPHER P DOOLEY
209710 CONT BD 818 S BODEN 24021 $500.00
Total for Check: 110467 $500.00

CINTAS FIRST AID & SAFETY -
209667 MEDICAL SUPPLIES 5008140108 $54.93
209667 MEDICAL SUPPLIES 5008140108 $54.93



Run date: 07-JUL-17

VOUCHER

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER

DESCRIPTION

CJ ERICKSON PLUMBING

209355

HYDRO EXCAVATE POOL LEAK

CLARENDON HILLS PARK DIST

209528
209936

WINTER SPRING DANCE CLASS
WOMENS SELF DEFENSE REIMB
Total for Check: 110470

CLARK BAIRD SMITH LLP

209559

LEGAL

CLEMENT, MARY

209570

REIMBURSEMENT TREE

CLOWNING AROUND ENTERTNMT

209526

4TH OF JULY

COCHLAN, SUSAN

209410

COMED
209888
209889
209890
209891
209892
209893
209894
209895
209896
209897
209898
209899
209900
209901
209902
209903
209904
209905
209906
209907

CLASS CREDIT BALANCE

57TH STREET

ELEANOR PARK

WARMING HOUSE/PADDLE HUT
CHESTNUT PARKING
CLOCK TOWER

STREET LIGHTS

314 SYMONDS DR
FOUNTAIN

BURLINGTON PARK
ROBBINS PARK

STREET LIGHTS

VILLAGE PLACE ALLEY
STREET LIGHTS

TRAFFIC SIGNALS
WASHINGTON

VEECK PARK

WASHINGTON PARKING LOT
VEECK PARK-WP
BURLINGTON PARK

NS CBQ RR

INVOICE
NUMBER

Total for Check: 110468

57249TF

Total for Check: 110469

06082017
063017

8658

Total for Check: 110471

1573312

Total for Check: 110472

32406

Total for Check: 110473

154180

Total for Check: 110474

0015093062
0075151076
0203017056
0203065105
0381057101
0395122068
0417073048
0471095066
0499147045
0639032045
0697168013
1094271003
1653148050
1653148069
2378029015
2425068008
2838114008
3454039030
6583006139
7011157008

Page: 9
DATE: 0711/17

AMOUNT
PAID

$109.86

$1,725.00
$1,725.00

$324.00
$60.00
$384.00

$1,556.25
$1,556.25

$520.00
$520.00

$2,072.00
$2,072.00

$75.00
$75.00

$229.88
$318.71
$128.82
$40.91
$31.69
$39.68
$253.67
$160.09
$36.28
$21.66
$26.87
$363.30
$8,663.20
$32.07

- $50.64
$524.19
$36.13
$911.09
$31.69
$34.22



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 10
WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 07/11/17
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
209908 PIERCE PARK 7011378007 $953.16
209909 WALNUT STREET 7011481018 $42.22
209910 KLM LODGE 80/20 7093551008 $948.09
209912 KLM LODGE 80/20 . 7093551008 $237.02
209913 SAFETY TOWN 7261620005 $22.24
209914 ROBBINS PARK 8521083007 $73.07
209915 TRAIN STATION 8521342001 $333.02
209916 WATER PLANT 8521400008 $35.50
209918 BROOK PARK 8605174005 $251.13
209919 POOL 8605437007 $656.44
209921 ELEANOR PARK 8689206002 $48.74
209923 STOUGH PARK 8689480008 $21.32
209924 BURNS FIELDN 8689640004 $22.08
209925 WOODLANDS 1107024145 $32.98
Total for Check: 110475 $15,611.80
* NOTE: Overflow check number 110476 processed
COMMERCIAL COFFEE SERVICE
209390 COFFEE 142495 $43.00
209391 COFFEE WATER PLANT 142309 $91.50
Total for Check: 110477 $134.50
CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY
209881 MAY GAS CHARGES 0040231030 $220.16
209881 MAY GAS CHARGES 0040231030 $220.16
209881 MAY GAS CHARGES 0040231030 $441.21
209881 MAY GAS CHARGES 0040231030 $470.65
209881 MAY GAS CHARGES 0040231030 $1,974.93
209881 MAY GAS CHARGES 0040231030 $138.90
Total for Check: 110478 $3,466.01
COOK COUNTY WASTE & RECYL
209353 SWEEPING AND HAULING 7160 $425.00
209499 SWEEPING AND HAULING 7175 $425.00
Total for Check: 110479 $850.00
COURTNEYS SAFETY LANE
209373 SAFETY INSPECTIONS 9810 $35.00
209373 SAFETY INSPECTIONS 9810 $35.00
209373 SAFETY INSPECTIONS 9810 $35.00
209475 INSPECTION FOR MEDIC #84 9860 $35.00
209569 SAFETY INSPECTION #31 9919 $35.00
Total for Check: 110480 $175.00
CRAIG MYGROUP
209878 KLM SECURITY DEP-EN171007 070617 $250.00
Total for Check: 110481 $250.00

CUTTERS LANDSCAPE INC.



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale \ Page: 11

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 07/11/17
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
209708 CONT BD 108 N GARFIELD 24069 $500.00
Total for Check: 110483 $500.00
DAILY HERALD
209376 LEGAL FOR BID T4473137 $117.30
Total for Check: 110484 $117.30
DANIEL BOLAN
209688 POOL PASS REFUND 062817 $150.00
Total for Check: 110485 $150.00
DAVE SOLTWISCH PLUMBING
209395 SERVICE REPAIR 485345 $163.00
Total for Check: 110486 $163.00
DELL MARKETING L.P.
- 209718 SERVER PROSUPPORT 10155956304 - $1,014.21
209719 SERVER PROSUPPORT 10155206435 $1,442.89
Total for Check: 110487 $2,457.10
DIAMOND SPEED PRODUCTS .
209514 SAW BLADES 51521 $269.68
Total for Check: 110488 $269.68
DIGITCERT o
209342 SSL CERTIFICATES 74984 $269.00
e Total for Check: 110489 $269.00
DOHERTY & ASSOCIATES INC
209943 PROF SERVICE PARKING DECK 062617 $525.00
209943 PROF SERVICE PARKING DECK 062617 $975.00
Total for Check: 110490 $1,500.00
DRESCHER LANDSCAPING INC
209676 CONT BD 323 W CHICAGO 23990 $500.00
209677 CONT BD 15 S QUINCY 23980 $500.00
Total for Check: 110491 $1,000.00
DRISCOLL, GRIFFIN
209495 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE W1031678172 $185.94
Total for Check: 110492 $185.94
DUPAGE COUNTY RECORDER
209666 RECORDING FEES 20170322 $180.00
Total for Check: 110493 $180.00
DUPAGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S

209544 INTERVENTION TRAINING 06192017 $125.00



Run date: 07-JUL-17

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER
VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION
DUPAGE JUVENILE OFFICERS
209538 MEMBERSHIP FEE
209539 MEMBERSHIP FEE

DUPAGE TOPSOIL, INC.
209734 DIRT & SEED

ELEMENTAL LANDSCAPE
209590 CONT BD 311 PRINCETON

EMERGENCY MEDICAL PROD
209652 MIS INFECTION CONTROL-EMS

ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRIES

209686 DJ ENTERTAINMENT
209686 DJ ENTERTAINMENT
209686 DJ ENTERTAINMENT
ERWIN, CHAD
209418 ACTIVITY REFUND
ETP LABS, INC
209573 BACTERIA/BOD SAMPLES
209634 BACTERIA SAMPLES
209720 BACTERIA SAMPLES
FACS
209723 SIGNATURE CHG ON LIB CKS

FACTORY AUTHORIZED PARTS

INVOICE
NUMBER

Total for Check: 110494

07012017
0072017
Total for Check: 110495

044442
Total for Check: 110496

24063
Total for Check: 110497

1913469
Total for Check: 110498

02052017
. 02052017
02052017

Total for Check: 110499

155220
Total for Check: 110500

17-51892
17-132454
17-132396

Total for Check: 110501

10335
Total for Check: 110502

209547 AC REPAIR 1003015
Total for Check: 110503
FACTORY MOTOR PARTS CO
209347 AXLE JACK 50-1643150
209380 DVOM TESTING ELECTRICAL 50-1641381
209381 TAX XHARGE CREDIT 50-1642824
209877 WINDSHIELD WASHER SOLVENT 50-1664858

Page: 12
DATE: 07/11/17

AMOUNT
PAID

$125.00

$30.00
$30.00
$60.00

$335.00
$335.00

$1,000.00
$1,000.00

$448.95
$448.95

$200.00
$300.00
$300.00
$800.00

$170.00
$170.00

$1,379.00
$192.00
$192.00
$1,763.00

$665.00
$665.00

$23.00
$23.00

$517.99

$579.87
$47.88-
$68.99



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 13

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 0711117
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
Total for Check: 110504 $1,118.97
FEDERAL SIGNAL CORP
209537 INTERVIEW ROOM CAMERAS 6599412 $750.00
Total for Check: 110505 $750.00
FIRESTONE STORES
209721 REPLACE TIRE ON #44 117752 $135.92
Total for Check: 110506 $135.92
FIRST COMMUNICATIONS, LLC
209880 JUNE 2017 PHONE CHARGES 114086689 $307.01
209880 JUNE 2017 PHONE CHARGES 114086689 $698.46
209880 JUNE 2017 PHONE CHARGES 114086689 $417.49
209880 JUNE 2017 PHONE CHARGES 114086689 $178.93
209880 JUNE 2017 PHONE CHARGES 114086689 $105.65
209880 JUNE 2017 PHONE CHARGES 114086689 $221.52
209880 JUNE 2017 PHONE CHARGES 114086689 $60.48
Total for Check: 110507 $1,989.54
FLEET SAFETY SUPPLY
209797 EMERG LIGHTS FOR C84 68225 $6,556.01
Total for Check: 110508 $6,556.01
FRED GLINKE PLUMBING AND
209359 VILLAGE HALL REPLACEMENT 32751 $142.00
209360 IRRIGATION REPAIRS 32763 $3.50
209361 IRRIGATION REPAIRS 32784 $76.00
209572 SINK REPAIR 32689 $4.85
209771 PLUMBING REPAIR 32748 $1,662.90
Total for Check: 110509 $1,889.25
GALLS ‘
209764 SHOES--CAUGHIE 007720599 $77.94
209812 BELT 007595390 $22.92
209814 UNIFORM 007634246 $218.58
Total for Check: 110510 $319.44
GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS
209345 MISC SUPPLIES PiINV1342810 $6.29
209451 MISC SUPPLIES PINV1343543 $134.65
Total for Check: 110511 $140.94
GENES TIRE SERVICE
209369 FRONT END ALIGNMENT 124827 $101.95
Total for Check: 110512 $101.95

GLOBAL EMERGENCY PRODUCTS



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 14

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 07/11/17
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
209476 15 LED LIGHTS AG56592 $150.48
Total for Check: 110513 $150.48
GRAINGER, INC.
209489 FLOOR SAFETY SIGNS 9474297547 $44.56
209504 TOILET REPAIR 9466654424 $209.36
Total for Check: 110514 $253.92
GRANDY, CHRISTIAN
209763 REFUND 063017 $29.98
Total for Check: 110515 © $29.98
GROTE, CHRISTOPHER
209402 CONT BD 620 FRANKLIN 24054 $500.00
Total for Check: 110516 $500.00
GSG CONSULTANTS
209945 2018 RECONSTRUCTION DESIG 062817 $14,010.00
209946 2018 RESURFACING PROJ 062817 $20,245.00
Total for Check: 110517 $34,255.00
GUERIN, BRIAN
209691 ACTIVITY REFUND 062817 $187.50
209691 ACTIVITY REFUND 062817 $60.00
Total for Check: 110518 $247.50
HAACKE, RICHARD
209535 AIRFARE REIMBURSEMENT 06052017 $420.09
Total for Check: 110519 $420.09
HAWKINS, INC.
209378 CHEMICALS FOR POOL 4079898 $583.24
209389 CHEMICALS FOR POOLS 4085054 $1,152.00
209491 C12 DEL 4086059 $442.50
209567 C12 DELIVERY 4090274 $960.00
209737 C12 REFILL 4093648 $961.58
209794 CHLORINE FOR POOL 4095500 $486.00
209795 CHLORINE FOR POOL 4097362 $760.50
Total for Check: 110520 $5,345.82
HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS,LTD
209362 TAPPING CLAMPS/FREIGHT H247806 $12.82
209362 TAPPING CLAMPS/FREIGHT H247806 $249.00
209363 SEWER REPAIR PIPE H259551 $238.00
209364 WATER METERS CHANGE OQUT H227868 $6,538.99
209387 POOL LEAK REPAIR H212047 $202.80
209388 TAPPING MATERIALS/B BOXES H233246 $3,313.20

209516 WATER METER CHANGE OUT H259238 $2,928.00



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale
WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER
VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION

209566 HYDRANT METERS

209635 WATER MAIN REPAIR CLAMPS
209636 1 1/2 TAPPING BRASS-6 SET
209637 MXD FOR METER CHANGEOUT

HEALY ASPHALT COMPANY LLC
209500 COLD PATCH

HILDEBRAND SPORTING GOODS
209541 ' 4 PLATES AND 1 PLAQUE
209638 FIELD MARKING CHALK
209699 SOFTBALL SAFETY BASE

HINSDALE FOREIGN FIRE
209787 COFFEE SUPPLIES

HINSDALE HISTORICAL
209868 HISTORIC PRES GRANT

HOLLAND HARDWARE

209466 BURNS FIELD TENNIS SHED

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICE
209882 ASSORTED HARDWARE
209883 ASSORTED HARDARE
209883 ASSORTED HARDARE
209883 ASSORTED HARDARE
209884 ASSORTED HARDWARE
209885 ASSORTED HARDWARE
209886 ASSORTED HARDWARE
209887 ASSORTED HARDWARE

HOMER TREE CARE, INC
209522 TREE REMOVALS

HOVING PIT STOP

209818 PORTABLE JOHNS FOR KLM
209819 PORTABLE JOHNS FOR KLM

INVOICE
NUMBER

H302857
H313084
H332127
H332081

Total for Check: 110521

63796MB
Total for Check: 110522

17588
‘RR2843
RR2846
Total for Check: 110523

063017
Total for Check: 110524

070617
Total for Check: 110525

009378
Total for Check: 110527

6020099
9022580
9022580
9022580
8021329
7012131
3010589
. 580514
Total for Check: 110528

27766
Total for Check: 110529

162209
162210
Total for Check: 110530

[fosab VoIo

Page: 15
DATE: 071117

AMOUNT
PAID

$2,590.00
$756.00
$3,064.20
$2,835.00
$22,728.01

$940.58
$940.58

$68.00
$59.70
$58.00
$185.70

$116.36
$116.36

$5,000.00
$5,000.00

8.91
$8.91

$46.08
$23.91
$119.85
$13.94
$125.88
$106.92
$72.94
$69.94
$579.46

$4,150.00
$4,150.00

$368.00
$320.00
$688.00



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale
WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER INVOICE
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER
HR GREEN INC
209870 BI-ANNUAL BRIDGE INSPECT 112038
209927 2016-17 VEECK PARK OPERAT 112076
209928 2017 RESURFACING PROJ 111930
: Total for Check: 110531
ICON
209578 CONT BD 120 N OAK 24003
Total for Check: 110532
"IL PUBLIC EMPLOYER
209571 SEMINAR ~ 03032017

Total for Chécki 110533
ILLINOIS ASSOCIATION OF

209543 AWARDS BRKFST REGIST 2017-381
Total for Check: 110534
ILLINOIS EPA
209743 VH CSO NPDES FEE ILO066818A
209744 VH STORM WATER NPDES FEE ILR400355A
Total for Check: 110535
ILLINOIS GIRLS LACROSSE
209937 SUMMER CAMP 956

Total for Check: 110536
INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC

209371 ELECTRICAL WORK POOL 249384
209400 LAP POOL LIGHTS 249300
209507 ELECTRIC HARDWARE 249674
209568 ELECTRIC REPAIRS WATER PL 249673

Total for Check: 110537
INTERNATIONAL EXTERMINATO

209671 PEST CONTROL 273.00
209671 PEST CONTROL 273.00
209671 PEST CONTROL 273.00
209671 PEST CONTROL 273.00
209671 PEST CONTROL 273.00

Total for Check: 110538

INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM
209508 BATTERIES 24029985
Total for Check: 110539

INTERSTATE BILLING SERVIC
209401 WIPER ARMS/BLADES 3006617917

Page: 16
DATE: 07/11/17

AMOUNT
PAID

$2,500.00
$384.57
$80,384.31
$83,268.88

$1,000.00
$1,000.00

$175.00
$175.00

$29.00
$29.00

$5,000.00
$1,000.00
$6,000.00

$637.00
$637.00

$18.00
$30.00
$39.01
$26.15
$113.16

$40.00
$40.00
$113.00
$40.00
$40.00
$273.00

$91.95
$91.95

$153.16



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 17

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 07/11/17
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
Total for Check: 110540 $153.16
IRMA
209593 MAY DEDUCTIBLE SALES0016194 $2,217.82
209593 MAY DEDUCTIBLE SALES0016194 $3,820.92
Total for Check: 110541 $6,038.74
J & L ENGRAVING
209463 COMMAND BOARD TAGS _ 2273 $45.50
Total for Check: 110542 $45.50
J CLICHT CO
209467 MISC PAINTING SUPPLIES 09035124 ° $18.86
Total for Check: 110543 $18.86
J CONGDON SEWER SERVICE
209929 2017 WM PROJECT 396 $69,559.20
Total for Check: 110544 $69,559.20
J JORDAN HOMES
209406 ST MGMT 212 N LINCOLN 23550 $3,000.00
i Total for Check: 110545 $3,000.00
J JORDAN HOMES
209580 CONT BD 706 S ADAMS 23850 $2,000.00
" Total for Check: 110546 $2,000.00
J.S. PALUCH COMPANY INC
209457 POOL AD DSC210.60 $234.00
209457 POOL AD DSC210.60 $312.00
Total for Check: 110547 $546.00
JANIK CUSTOM MILLWORK
209730 VLG HALL-REWORK FRNT CNTR 17360 $4,400.00
Total for Check: 110548 $4,400.00
JAY'S PLUMBING
209403 CONT BD 316 W NINTH ST 24015 $500.00
Total for Check: 110549 $500.00
JEAN BUECHE
209785 MISC SUPPLIES/MILEAGE 063017 $6.00
209785 MISC SUPPLIES/MILEAGE 063017 $7.15
209785 MISC SUPPLIES/MILEAGE 063017 $80.44
209785 MISC SUPPLIES/MILEAGE 063017 $241.71
209785 MISC SUPPLIES/MILEAGE 063017 $15.00
209785 MISC SUPPLIES/MILEAGE 063017 $10.00

209785 MISC SUPPLIES/MILEAGE 063017 $12.34



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 18

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 0711117
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
209785 MISC SUPPLIES/MILEAGE 063017 $136.16
Total for Check: 110550 $508.80
JIM MANGANIELLO
209485 METER READING JUNE 2017 06012017 $160.00
Total for Check: 110551 $160.00
JIM SKOGSBERGH
209682 CONT BD 120 N WASHINGTON 23230 $10,000.00
, : Total for Check: 110552 $10,000.00
JIM SKOGSBERGH ’
209683 CONT BD 120 N WASHINGTON 23229 $3,000.00
Total for Check: 110553 ~ $3,000.00
JOHNSON, SHAWN
209352 PPE T SHIRTS POS7E00070847 $75.00
209374 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 06012017 $197.57
Total for Check: 110554 $272.57
JOHNSTONE SUPPLY
209639 HVAC FAN MOTOR-MEM HALL 4014682 $251.22
Total for Check: 110555 $251.22
JSN CONTRACTORS SUPPLY .
209640 MARKING PAINT 80963 $130.20
209641 PAINT & WAND 80964 : $199.60
209784 STREET LIGHT LOCATE PAINT 80975 $106.20
Total for Check: 110556 $436.00
K-FIVE CONSTRUCTION CORP
209399 HOT PATCH 825 $144.75
209735 HOT PATCH 1410 $254.76
Total for Check: 110557 $399.51
K-PLUS ENGINEERING
209694 2017 RECONSTRUCTION PROJ INV100742 $30,797.50
Total for Check: 110558 $30,797.50
KARA SYSTEMS
209871 FIELD MEASURING EQUIP 328553 $318.92
. Total for Check: 110559 $318.92
KARBAN, MICHAEL
209932 TRAVEL EXPENSE 070617 $316.54
Total for Check: 110560 $316.54

KATHLEEN W BONO CSR



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER INVOICE
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER
209558 PUBLIC HEARING A-14-2017 7477
209670 V-04-17 & V-05-17 7471
209788 APP-01-17 & V-07-17 HEAR 7486
209788 APP-01-17 & V-07-17 HEAR 7486
Total for Check:
KIEFT BROS INC
209367 SUMP PUMP ADAPTERS 224121
209505 STORM SEWER REP GLENDALE 224330
Total for Check:
KING'S LANDSCAPING
209576 CONT BD 111 N GRANT 24042
Total for Check:
KING'S LANDSCAPING
209586 CONT BD 5509 S OAK 24018
Total for Check:
KINGS LANDSCAPING CO
209349 BRICK DRIVEWAY RESTORE 1209289
Total for Check:
KLEIN,THORPE,JENKINS LTD
209659 MAY 2017 LEGAL FEES 189938
Total for Check:
KOLLUM, JASON
209685 LUNCH ON LAWN 062817
Total for Check:
KORTEMEYER, ANN
209414 PAID FINAL BILL TWICE 2402034
Total for Check:
KOZIARSKI, ANDRZEJ
209584 CONT BD 311 PRINCETON 23971
- Total for Check:
KRAMER FOODS
209669 SUPPLIES 06132017
Total for Check:
KROESCHELL SERVICE, INC
209642 HVAC MEM HALL REPAIR 57750
209726 HVAC REPAIRS 56273
209727 HVAC SERVICE WORK KLM 56755
209728 PRESSURE SWITCH FOR HVAC 56272

110561

110562

110563

110564

110565

110566

110567

110568

110569

110570

Page: 19
DATE: 0711/17

AMOUNT
PAID

$290.00
$776.00
$1,214.00
$842.00
$3,122.00

$24.16
$223.39
$247.55

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$1,800.00
$1,800.00

$23,403.96
$23,403.96

$75.00
$75.00

$47.44
$47.44

$33,000.00
$33,000.00

$33.00
$33.00

$608.00
$592.00
$639.00
$296.00



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 20

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 07/11/17
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
209728 PRESSURE SWITCH FOR HVAC 56272 , $296.00
Total for Check: 110571 $2,431.00
KUEHN, JILL
209343 APRIL-JUNE YOGA REIMBURSE 06012017 $280.00
Total for Check: 110572 $280.00
LANGLOIS, DARRELL
209649 REIMB COSTCO MEMBERSHIP 041617 $90.00
209649 REIMB COSTCO MEMBERSHIP 041617 _ $60.00
209649 REIMB COSTCO MEMBERSHIP 041617 $60.00
209649 REIMB COSTCO MEMBERSHIP 041617 $90.00
Total for Check: 110573 $300.00
LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES
209533 OVER PHONE INTERPRETATION 4083455 $12.57
Total for Check: 110574 . $12.57
LAPSHIN, TRACY
209938 FENCING SUMMER SESSIONS 17SUM $408.00
Total for Check: 110575 $408.00
LARRICK, STEVE
209417 ACTIVITY REFUND 155426 $363.20
Total for Check: 110576 $363.20
LATTANZIO, JOSEPH
209585 CONT BD 421 S THURLOW 23572 $10,000.00
Total for Check: 110577 $10,000.00
LATTANZIO, JOSEPH
209589 ST MGMT 23571 $3,000.00
Total for Check: 110578 $3,000.00
LEGACY PROJECT
209650 PROJ DUES GARGANO 061917 $40.00
Total for Check: 110579 $40.00
LIFEGUARD STORE
209524 UNIFORMS INV536454 $83.25
209525 RESCUE TUBES INV538750 $2,336.35
209525 RESCUE TUBES INV538750 $62.00
Total for Check: 110580 $2,481.60

LITHOGRAPHICS
209462 FIRE INSPECTIONS FORMS 3521 $130.79
Total for Check: 110581 $130.79



Run date: 07-JUL-17

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER
VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION
MAC BRADY ASSOCIATES
209942 ROOF REPAIR & REPLACEMENT
209942 ROOF REPAIR & REPLACEMENT
209942 ROOF REPAIR & REPLACEMENT

MADISON CONSTRUCTION CO
209678 CONT BD 105 E MAPLE

MALIK, ASIF

209420 ACTIVITY REFUND

MARIANA ENTERPRISES
209681 CONT BD 215 W AYRES

MARLAS, THOMAS
209422 CONT BD 330 S COUNTYLINE

MARLAS, THOMAS
209423 ST MGMT 330 S COUNTYLINE

MARLAS, THOMAS
209424 CONT BD 330 S COUNTYLINE

MARQUARDT PRINTING CO

209684 KLM BROCHURE INSERTS
MARY CLEMENT
209680 CONT BD 216 N GRANT

MCELROY, CHERIE
209497 REIMBURSEMENT FOR TREE

MCGAHEY, ROBERT
209697 REFUND OF CLASS

MCMASTER-CARR
209657 7 VALVES FOR HOSE TESTER

INVOICE
NUMBER

16038K

16038K

16038K
Total for Check:

23833
Total for Check:

155884
Total for Check:

24047
Total for Check:

19225
Total for Check:

18957
Total for Check:

21758
Total for Check:

30566
Total for Check:

23904
Total for Check:

1563073
Total for Check:

062817
Total for Check:

27086140

110582

110583

110584

110585

110586

110587

110588

110589

110590

110591

110592

Page: 21
DATE: 0711117

AMOUNT
PAID

$2,500.00
$2,500.00
$6,550.00
$11,550.00

$3,500.00
$3,500.00

$88.75
$88.75

$1,600.00
$1,600.00

$10,000.00
$10,000.00

$3,000.00
$3,000.00

$7,000.00
$7,000.00

$85.00
$85.00

$700.00
$700.00

$260.00
$260.00

$225.00
$225.00

$455.02



Run date: 07-JUL-17

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER

VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION

MICRO CENTER A/R

209482 VIZIO 40" COPIER ROOM
209483 LGESUSA 43" 1080P TV
209484 4GB MEMORY/CORD

209553 USB DRIVES 64GB

209702 VERBATIM 8GB USB

209703 CRUCIAL 525 GB MX300 SSDS
209704 8GB USBS & 32GB USBS
209705 IPSG 128GB USB 3.0

209706 CRUCIAL 8GBS 2X4 D3L
209707 CRUCIAL 8GB & 4GB

MIDAMERICAN TECHNOLOGY

209948 STREET LIGHT LOCATOR
MIDCO
209549 ADMIN SOFTWARE

MIKOLS CONSTRUCTION
209712 CONT BD 18 S MADISON
209713 ST MGMT 18 S MADISON

MINER ELECTRONICS

209724 UNIT 9/BOBCAT 2-WAY RADIO
MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS

209480 STARCOM USER FEE

209552 STARCOM FEES
MUNOZ, HUGO

209782 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

NAPA AUTO PARTS

209382 BLIND SPOT MIRRORS
209383 SEALER FOR GLASS INSTALL
209384 MIRRORS FOR #15

209385 DEF FLUID

209385 DEF FLUID

209385 DEF FLUID

INVOICE
NUMBER

Total for Check: 110593

4195567
4195711
4204551
4205667
4200776
4201351
4206535 -
4208487
4210028
4210663
Total for Check: 110594

12011
Total for Check: 110595

315932
Total for Check: 110596

23457
23458
Total for Check: 110597

13629
Total for Check: 110598

28586312017
296354272017
Total for Check: 110599

POS7E00076708
Total for Check: 110600

Jlobo! vo O

4343-496213
4343-495945
4343-495823
4343-496205
4343-496205
4343-496205

Page: 22
DATE: 07/11/17

AMOUNT
PAID

$455.02

$249.99
$369.97
$206.97
$134.91
$21.99
$319.98
$159.75
$203.94
$111.98
$83.99
$1,863.47

$1,109.00
$1,109.00

$50.00
$50.00

$10,000.00
$3,000.00
$13,000.00

$1,206.00
$1,206.00

$306.00
$34.00
$340.00

$212.70
$212.70

$4.05
$23.90
$67.24
$17.39
$34.77
$17.38



Run date: 07-JUL-17

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER

VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION

209386 BELTS

209740 FILTERS - E84

209783  AIRFILTERS - #127 & #100
NATIONAL PUBLIC EMPLOYER

209456  DUES
NICK SKOKNA

209876  MAY & JUNE PADDLE CLEAN

209876  MAY & JUNE PADDLE CLEAN
NICOR GAS

209554 350 N VINE

209555 5905 S COUNTYLINE

209556  PLATFORM TENNIS
NUCO2 INC

209377  CO2 REFILL

209517  CO2

209643  CO2

209644  CO2 TANK RENTAL

CO2 DELIVERY

209645

OAKWOOD ELEC & GENERATOR

209709

ONE STEP
209597

CONT BD 5650 S WASHINGTON

PRIVATE LESSON BOOKS

PACE SYSTEMS, INC

209545

YEARLY DUE SOFTWARE

PATEL, VIMAL

209575

CONT BD 5721 GIDDINGS

PIONEER PRESS

209725

ANNUAL SUB FOR THE DOINGS

INVOICE
NUMBER

4343-495973

4343-498257

4343-499715
Total for Check: 110602

71915
Total for Check: 110603

062817
062817
Total for Check: 110604

13270110003

12952110000

066773596575
Total for Check: 110605

52399874
52475910
52649341
52546851
52645520

Total for Check: 110606

23989
Total for Check: 110607

N105810
Total for Check: 110608

IN000016104
Total for Check: 110609

23952
Total for Check: 110610

176889406
Total for Check: 110611

Page: 23
DATE: 071117

AMOUNT
PAID

$27.75
$79.53
$22.76
$294.77

$153.75
$153.75

$350.00
$500.00
$850.00

$130.60

$49.10
$163.23
$342.93

$161.05
$144.27
$227.91

$37.30
$185.00
$755.53

$500.00
$500.00

$125.23
$125.23

$1,800.00
$1,800.00

$750.00
$750.00

$10.56
$10.56



Run date: 07-JUL-17

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

. VOUCHER
VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION

PLAY WELL TEKNOLOGIES
209759 JUNE 26 CLASSES

POOJA MAHAJAN -
209679 CONT BD 555 JUSTINA

POP IT RITE
209357 KETTLE CLEANER PARKS

PORTER LEE CORPORATION
209548 LABELS FOR THE BEAST

PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION, INC
209658 AIR TANK

PROMOS 911 INC
209551 BADGE STICKERS

PROVEN BUSINESS SYSTEMS
209698 SERVICES CALLS & PARTS
209698 SERVICES CALLS & PARTS
209698 SERVICES CALLS & PARTS
209698 SERVICES CALLS & PARTS

R.E. WALSH & ASSOCIATES

209536 FINGERPRINT EXAM SERVICES

RAILROAD MANAGEMENT CO
209351 RAILROAD EASEMENT FEE

RAY O'HERRON CO INC
209809 RANGE AMMO SUPPLIES

RED WING SHOE STORE
209477 STATION BOOTS
209509 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

INVOICE
NUMBER

DB12661B
Total for Check: 110612

23792
Total for Check: 110613

4868
Total for Check: 110614

19144
Total for Check: 110615

77414124
Total for Check: 110616

6767
Total for Check: 110617

404039
404039
404039
404039
Total for Check: 110618

23166
Total for Check: 110619

348676
Total for Check: 110620

1724038-IN
Total for Check: 110621

13-FDS045
000000010-045
Total for Check: 110622

Page: 24
DATE: 07111117

AMOUNT
PAID

$875.00
$875.00

$500.00
$500.00

$44.75
$44.75

$184.22
$184.22

$64.13
$64.13

$352.85
$352.85

$1,200.00
$1,200.00
$600.00
$600.00
$3,600.00

$2,625.00
$2,625.00

$713.28
$713.28

$316.16
$316.16

$290.47
$116.99
$407.46



Run date: 07-JUL-17

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

‘ VOUCHER
VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION
RELIABLE FIRE & SECURITY

209591 FIRE ALARMS
209591 FIRE ALARMS

209591 FIRE ALARMS
209591 FIRE ALARMS
209591 FIRE ALARMS
209591 FIRE ALARMS
209591 FIRE ALARMS
209591 FIRE ALARMS
209591 FIRE ALARMS

REPUBLIC SERVICES #551
209490 TRASH CANS/ROLLOFF
209490 TRASH CANS/ROLLOFF

RYDIN SIGN & DECAL
209664 PARKING PERMITS

S&P GLOBAL
209778 2017A BOND RATING

SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, INC
209512 USED FILTER PICK UP

SCHABERG, PATRICK

209481 ANNUAL EMS EMT LICENSE

SCHAEFER GREENHOUSES
209563 CBD ANNUAL PLANTS

SECRETARY OF STATE

209760 RENEWAL PLATE SQUAD #35

SELIP, MARLAINE
209415 DOUBLE PAID FINAL BILL

SERVICE FORMS & GRAPHICS
209673 BUSINESS CARDS
209674 ENVELOPES

INVOICE
NUMBER

691817R
691817R
691817R
691817R
691817R
691817R
691817R
691817R
691817R
Total for Check: 110623

0551-013502578
0551-013502578
Total for Check: 110624

331905
Total for Check: 110625

11332475
Total for Check: 110626

73811392
Total for Check: 110627

60070042
Total for Check: 110628

98013
Total for Check: 110629

063017
Total for Check: 110630

0504580
Total for Check: 110631

161072
161176

Page: 25
DATE: 07/11/17

AMOUNT
PAID

$192.57
$192.58
$808.05
$690.87
$468.95
$67.75
$100.40
$417.20
$187.05
$3,125.42

$384.20
$500.00
$884.20

$256.51
$256.51

$15,000.00
$15,000.00

$93.00
$93.00

$41.00
$41.00

$6,384.30
$6,384.30

$101.00
$101.00

$31.65
$31.65

$40.00
$317.38



Run date: 07-JUL-17

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER

VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION

SHAH, ABHI
209498 ACTIVITY REIMBURSEMENT

SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP
209700 2-PLANAR MONITOR STANDS
209701 BROTHER LASER PRINTER
209799 DELL OPTIPLEX 3050 SFF

SIMONS, LISA
209340 ACTIVITY REFUND

SIRCHIE
209761 EVIDENCE BAGS

SITE ONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY
209732 FIX PKWY SPRINKLER HEAD

SKYHAWKS SPORT ACADEMY IN
209807 SPORTS CAMP INSTRUCTION

SMITH & WARREN
209550 CHIEF BADGE

SOCIETY FOR HUMAN
209651 DUES GARGANO

SOUTH SIDE CONTROL SUPPLY
209546 A/C REPAIR

SPORTS R US
209521 JUNE CLASSES

ST FRANCIS UNIVERSITY
209419 ACTIVITY REFUND

INVOICE
NUMBER

Total for Check: 110632

157323
Total for Check: 110633

B06669183

B06671140

B06679128
Total for Check: 110634

153464
Total for Check: 110635

0305397-IN
Total for Check: 110636

81040955
Total for Check: 110637

17124
Total for Check: 110638

A670597
Total for Check: 110639

061917
Total for Check: 110640

$10039413001
Total for Check: 110641

2220
Total for Check: 110642

154394
Total for Check: 110643

Page: 26
DATE: 07/11/17

AMOUNT
PAID

$357.38

$275.00
$275.00

$130.00
$112.00
$3,305.00
$3,547.00

$32.00
$32.00

$106.09
$106.09

$10.71
$10.71

$1,730.70
$1,730.70

$155.69
$155.69

$199.00
$199.00

$143.08
$143.08

$2,016.00
$2,016.00

$50.00
$50.00



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 27

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 07/11/17
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
ST. FRANCIS UNIVERSITY
209408 KLM SECURITY DEPOSIT EN170505 $250.00
Total for Check: 110644 $250.00
STANDARD INDUSTRIAL
209370 ANNUAL LIFT INSPECTION WO0-0847 $535.00
Total for Check: 110645 $535.00
STARFISH AQUATICS INSTITU
209520 BOOKS 15165 $381.57
209527 BOOKS 14815 $552.78
Total for Check: 110646 $934.35
STEVE COLLINS PAINTING
209646 REPAIR COMMUNITY SERVICES 575936 $375.00
209647 PAINT HALLWAY MEM BLDG 575938 $400.00
Total for Check: 110647 $775.00
STREICHERS
209815 BODY ARMOR 11264139 $1,272.98
209816 TRAUMA PLATES 11264150 $119.98
209817 SHIPPING FOR BODY ARMOR 11264982 $13.00
Total for Check: 110648 $1,405.96
SUBURBAN DOOR CHECK
209510 KEYS IN488104 $9.20
209510 KEYS IN488104 $31.30
209510 KEYS IN488104 $8.70
Total for Check: 110649 $49.20
SUBURBAN FAMILY MAGAZINE
209872 POOL AD 8231 $650.00
Total for Check: 110650 $650.00
SUMMIT HOSE REELS
209392 HOSE REEL/SWIVEL REBUILD 114858 $68.53
Total for Check: 110651 $68.53
SURDENIK, CHRIS
209409 KLM SECURITY DEPOSIT EN170603 $500.00
Total for Check: 110652 $500.00
SWARD, CARTER
209757 NOTARY APPLICATION 063017 $54.00
Total for Check: 110653 $54.00

SWIM OUTLET TEAM DIVISION
209800 WATER POLO EQUIPMENT 13474243 $1,125.82



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 28
WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 071117
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
Total for Check: 110654 $1,125.82
T-REXPLORERS, LLC
209496 CLASS REIMBURSEMENT 201733006 $120.00
Total for Check: 110655 $120.00
T2 SYSTEMS
209756 T2 SUBSCRIP 8/9/17-8/8/18 F008873 $19,850.25
Total for Check: 110656 $19,850.25
TAPCO
209803 RED BLINKER STOP SIGNS 1567813 $2,980.00
Total for Check: 110657 $2,980.00
THE COMMUNITY HOUSE
209574 PICKLE BALL OPEN PLAY 100 $35.00
Total for Check: 110658 $35.00
THE HINSDALEAN
209341 POOL FLYER 26968 $318.50
209540 JOB POSTING 5/25/2017 HINS $478.95
209714 PUBLIC HEARING H-04-2017 00030954 $190.80
Total for Check: 110659 $988.25
THE PACK DRUMLINE LLC JJob6o v 010
209944 AUG LUNCH ON LAWN 062817 $1,000.00
Total for Check: 110661 $1,000.00
THE POLICE & SHERIFFS
209534 ID CARD 94791 $17.49
209762 ID CARD FOR BERLAND 95062 $17.49
Total for Check: 110662 $34.98
THE W-T GROUP, LLC
209947 SVCS WITH TOLLWAY PROJECT CE17063-1 $1,408.75
Total for Check: 110663 $1,408.75
THIRD MILLENIUM
209661 UTILITY BILLING-MAY 20865 $1,252.30
Total for Check: 110664 $1,252.30
THOMPSON ELEVATOR INSPEC
209453 3RD PARTY INSPECTIONS 17-1753 $100.00
Total for Check: 110665 $100.00
TOSHIBA BUSINESS -
209594 KLM COPIER 13633464 $122.45

Total for Check: 110666 $122.45



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale
WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER INVOICE
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER
TOTAL PARKING SOLUTIONS
209810 MONITORING FOR WASH. LOT 103879
209811 QTRLY PREVENT MAINT. 103878
Total for Check: 110667
TP LASER CONTRUCTION
209579 CONT BD 907 N ELM 23907
: Total for Check: 110668
TPI BLDG CODE CONSULTANT ,
209346 3RD PARTY INSPECTIONS 201705
Total for Check: 110669
TRAFFIC CONTROL & PROTECT
209396 STREET SIGN MATERIALS 89797
209731 PD MISC PERMIT SIGNS 1015
Total for Check: 110670
TRAFFIC CONTROL CORP
209801 SOLAR POWER SIGN/ANALYZER 711124
209801 SOLAR POWER SIGN/ANALYZER 711124
Total for Check: 110671
TRANE
209736 HVAC SVCS-FIRE-POLICE-VH 2626864
209736 HVAC SVCS-FIRE-POLICE-VH 2626864
209736 HVAC SVCS-FIRE-POLICE-VH 2626864
Total for Check: 110672
TUFF SHED
209404 CONT BD 23984
Total for Check: 110673
TYCO INTEGRATED SECURITY
209595 KLM SERVICE 28757437
209596 BRIVO SYSTEM INSTALL 28598443
Total for Check: 110674
UNIQUE APPAREL SOLUTIONS
209473 T SHIRT STATION WEAR 41753
209675 BADGES 41898
209675 BADGES 41898
209675 BADGES 41898
Total for Check: 110675
UNIVERISTY OF ILLINOIS

209474 INCIDENT SAFETY CLASS UFINX809

Page: 29
DATE: 07/11117

AMOUNT
PAID

$960.00
$1,380.00
$2,340.00

$6,000.00
$6,000.00

$2,550.00
$2,550.00

$77.35
$705.50
$782.85

$3,749.00
$400.00
$4,149.00

$28.37
$28.36
$142.54
$199.27

$500.00
$500.00

$664.86
$3,495.00
$4,159.86

$28.00
$132.00
$162.00
$81.00
$403.00

$300.00



Run date: 07-JUL-17

VOUCHER
209660

US GAS
209344
209459

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER
DESCRIPTION

FIRE INSPECTOR 1 CLASS

POOL OXYGEN
OXYGEN RENTAL MAY

USA BLUE BOOK

209366
209394
209465

WATER MAINT/HYD REPAIR
CHLORINE TESTING
SAFETY RAILING REPAIR

VERIZON WIRELESS

209458
209458

PHONE CARDS IPADS
PHONE CARDS IPADS

VERMONT SYSTEMS, INC.

INVOICE
NUMBER

UFINX856
Total for Check: 110676

277348
288305
Total for Check: 110677

268273
267800
274108
Total for Check: 110678

9789585810
9789585810
Total for Check: 110679

209530 SOFTWARE HOSTING/UPGRADE 54899
209530 SOFTWARE HOSTING/UPGRADE 54899
209530 SOFTWARE HOSTING/UPGRADE 54899
Total for Check: 110680
VINE PROPERTIES
209792 STMWR BD 820 W MAPLE 22641

VIVID CONSTRUCTION

209933

CONT BD 706 JUSTINA

VIVID CONSTRUCTION

209934

VOSS SIGNS

209729

ST MGMT 706 JUSTINA

BAL DUE ON POLICE SIGNS

WAELTER, KARINA

209577

CONT BD 505 MORRIS LANE

WAREHOUSE DIRECT INC

209334
209334

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

Total for Check: 110681

23469
Total for Check: 110682

23468
Total for Check: 110683

C-198048
Total for Check: 110684

23923
Total for Check: 110685

3477972-0
3477972-0

Page: 30
DATE: 07/11/17

AMOUNT
PAID

$350.00
$650.00

$44.05
$23.25
$67.30

$737.45
$452.00
$25.95
$1,215.40

$437.31
$213.08
$650.39

$11,500.00
$800.00
$618.00
$12,918.00

$8,639.00
$8,639.00

$10,000.00
$10,000.00

$3,000.00
$3,000.00

$872.50
$872.50

$500.00
$500.00

$245.43
+ $678.79



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 31
WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 07/11/17
VOUCHER INVOICE AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
209335 TONER 3483192-0 $99.12
209336 SUPPLIES 3466505-1 $40.22
209337 SUPPLIES 34891249 $91.26
209338 SUPPLIES 3489150 $33.03
209339 SUPPLIES 3499575 $14.92
209469 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 3498398-0 $160.28
209469 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 3498398-0 $220.70
209503 DESK SUPPLIES 3515820-0 $33.58
209531 ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES 3499571-0 $175.41
209562 DESK SUPPLIES 3518548-0 $107.54
209648 JANITORIAL WET FLOOR SIGN 3520925-0 . $113.10
209665 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3513297-0 $11.98
209765 OFFICE & COFFEE SUPPLIES 3520364-0 $174.46
209767 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3521982-0 $119.99
209768 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3522131-0 $53.76
209793 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3524220 $525.32
209796 KLM SUPPLIES 3510809-0 $156.75
209796 KLM SUPPLIES 3510809-0 $81.27
209813 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3506772-0 $187.30
209939 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3533493-0 $470.74
209940 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3529677-1 $8.09
209941 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3529677-0 $99.48
Total for Check: 110686 $3,902.52
WARREN OIL COMPANY
209786 UNLEADED GAS & DIESEL W1063260 $2,300.20
209786 UNLEADED GAS & DIESEL W1063260 $11,695.80
Total for Check: 110687 $13,996.00
WEBER, KAREN
209717 REFUND DEPQOSIT EN170605 23437 $500.00
) Total for Check: 110688 $500.00
WERLEY, JAMES
209411 PAID FINAL BILL TWICE 06062017 $249.86
Total for Check: 110689 $249.86
WEST CENTRAL MUNICIPAL
209523 SPRING TREE PLANTING 0006491-IN $71,669.00
Total for Check: 110690 $71,669.00
WEST PAYMENT CENTER
209542 CLEAR MONTHLY FEE MAY 836220620 $174.28
Total for Check: 110691 $174.28
WHITENY SIGNATURE HOMES

209405 ST MGMT 5650 S WASHINGTON 23498 $3,000.00
~ Total for Check: 110692 $3,000.00



Run date: 07-JUL-17

VOUCHER

Village of»HinsdaIe

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER
DESCRIPTION

WHITNEY SIGNATURE HOMES

209407 CONT BD 5650 S WAHINGTON
WHITNEY SIGNATURE HOMES
209582 CONT BD 138 S MADISON

WHITNEY SIGNATURE HOMES

209587

ST MGMT 138 S MADISON

WHITWELL, MELISSA

209716

REFUND DEPOSIT EN170610

WILLOWBROOK FORD INC

209354
209368
209486
209486
209501
209502
209742

LEFT REAR TAIL LAMP
CALIPER BRKT/PAD KIT #37
OXYGEN SENSOR/BALL JOINT
OXYGEN SENSOR/BALL JOINT
BALL JOINTS #65

RETURNED CREDIT

BRAKE PADS & ROTORS- #830

WORLDPOINT ECC INC

209478 CPR SUPPLIES
XEROX CORPORATION

209560 FIRE COPIER

209672 FINANCE COPIER

YIAYIAS PANCAKE HOUSE

209493

YU, WEI
209413

OT MAINBREAK MEAL

TICKET VOIDED AFTER PAID

ZAVISKA, MELINDA

209689

MISC KLM SUPPLIES

INVOICE
NUMBER

23499
Total for Check: 110693

23619
Total for Check: 110694

23620
Total for Check: 110695

22827
Total for Check: 110696

5124692
5124062
5124730
5124730
5124715
5124731
5125006
Total for Check: 110697

. 5673275
Total for Check: 110698

089311422
089311421
Total for Check: 110699

116080
Total for Check: 110700

315884
Total for Check: 110701

062817
Total for Check: 110702

Page: 32
DATE: 07/11/117

AMOUNT
PAID

$10,000.00
$10,000.00

$10,000.00
$10,000.00

$3,000.00
$3,000.00

$500.00
$500.00

$45.59
$133.54

$56.45

$73.18
$234.40
$173.75-
$173.71
$543.12

$99.95
$99.95

$85.00
$85.00
$170.00

$73.65
$73.65

$25.00
$25.00

$142.12
$142.12



Run date: 07-JUL-17

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER
VOUCHER  DESCRIPTION
ZIPORIN, EMILY
209412 PASS REFUND

DUPAGE COUNTY COLLECTOR

209448 2ND INSTALLMENT
DUPAGE COUNTY DIV OF
209561 PD SIGNS

DUPAGE COUNTY DiV OF

209772 SIGNS
ILCMA
209668 JOB AD POSTING
A & M AUTO PARTS
209833 BATTERIES FOR T84 LADDER

ABC COMMERCIAL MAINT SERV
209829 KLM JANITORIAL FOR MAY

ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES
209821 FLOOR MATS

CHICAGO TRIBUNE SUBSCRIPT
209828 RENEWAL

COOK COUNTY WASTE & RECYL

209773 SWEEPING HAULING
FCWRD
209825 SEWER 4/20/17-6/20/17
FLEET SAFETY SUPPLY
209820 FREIGHT ON EMERG LTS C480

INVOICE
NUMBER

155673
Total for Check: 110703

05012017
Total for Check: 110704

3783
Total for Check: 110705

3787
Total for Check: 110706

872
Total for Check: 110707

430304
Total for Check: 110708

115
Total for Check: 110709

2081113840
Total for Check: 110710

20097644
Total for Check: 110711

7232
Total for Check: 110712

008919-000
Total for Check: 110713

68225
Total for Check: 110714

Page: 33
DATE: 07/11/17

AMOUNT
PAID

$294.00
$294.00

$4,807.66
$4,807.66

$70.68
$70.68

$227.00
$227.00

$50.00
$50.00

$503.96
$503.96

$1,185.00
$1,185.00

$79.80
$79.80

$103.72
$103.72

$850.00
$850.00

$49.65
$49.65

$178.22
$178.22



Run date: 07-JUL-17

VOUCHER

Village of Hinsdale

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630

VOUCHER
DESCRIPTION

FULLERS HOME & HARDWARE

209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879
209879

NEOPOST USA INC

209827

NICOR GAS
209823
209824
209824

POSTAGE MACHINE INK

YOUTH CENTER
121 SYMONDS-POL AND FIRE
121 SYMONDS-POL AND FIRE

SERVICE FORMS & GRAPHICS

209826

SIKICH , LLP
209777

SPRINT
209830
209830
209830
209830
209830
209830
209830
209830

BUSINESS CARDS-LAMBERT

PROGRESS BILL 2017 AUDIT

PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17
PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17
PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17
PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17
PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17
PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17
PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17
PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17

INVOICE
NUMBER

MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
MAY 2017
Total for Check: 110715

15148500
Total for Check: 110716

90077900000

38466010006

38466010006
Total for Check: 110717

161249
Total for Check: 110718

300933
Total for Check; 110719

977740515-185
977740515-185
977740515-185
977740515-185
977740515-185
977740515-185
977740515-185
977740515-185

Page: 34
DATE: 07/11/117

AMOUNT
PAID

$10.04
$2.86
$9.31
$5.02
$12.59
$11.04
$2.70
$18.67
$42.51
$2.69
$19.33
$8.09
$23.36
$154.03
$53.85
$50.48
$38.29
$7.26
$472.12

$204.00
$204.00

$38.15
$48.58
$48.57
$135.30

$50.18
$50.18

$3,750.00
$3,750.00

$367.87
$43.90
$658.52
$351.45
$43.90
$43.90
$43.90
$87.80



Run date: 07-JUL-17 Village of Hinsdale Page: 35

WARRANT REGISTER: 1630 DATE: 07/1117
VOUCHER INVOICE - AMOUNT
VOUCHER DESCRIPTION NUMBER PAID
209830 PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17 977740515-185 $133.73
209830 PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17 977740515-185 $178.21
209830 PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17 977740515-185 $87.80
209830 PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17 977740515-185 $43.90
209830 PHONE CHRGS 5/24-6/23/17 977740515-185 $395.11
Total for Check: 110720 $2,479.99
SWIM OUTLET
209769 POOL SKIMMERS 13525063 $33.70
Total for Check: 110721 $33.70
VERIZON WIRELESS
209822 WATER DEPT IPADS 9788035602 $114.03
209834 PHONE CHRGS FIRE DEPT 9788080221 $267.05
Total for Check: 110722 $381.08
WISNIOWICZ, DANE
209775 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE POS7E00076761 - $89.40
209776 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE POS7E00076710 $154.80
Total for Check: 110723 $244.20
ZOLL MEDICAL CORP

209831 12 LEAD MONITOR CABLES 2536712 $320.84
209832 1 CASE OF CPR ELECTRODES 2536200 $420.00

_ Total for Check: 110724 $740.84

ADVENTIST BOLINGBROOK HOS .

209935 VOH WELLNESS SCREENINGS 2090 $90.00
209935 VOH WELLNESS SCREENINGS 2090 $110.00
209935 VOH WELLNESS SCREENINGS 2090 $3,640.00
Total for Check: 110725 $3,840.00

REPORT TOTAL $1,073,247.23
END OF REPORT



AGENDA ITEM # %E?

VILLAGE OF

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
Est. 1873 Finance
AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda — ACA
SUBJECT: Amendment to Application Service Agreement with Aptean, Inc.
MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017

FRoOM: Darrell Langlois, Assistant Village Manager/Finance Director ‘%

Recommended Motion

Move to Approve an Amendment of an Application Service Agreement Between the Village of
Hinsdale and Aptean, Inc.

Background
For over 25 years the Village has used the “4gov’ financial software package that was initially

developed by Information Development Consultants (IDC) of Chicago. In 2010, IDC was acquired by
CDC Cloud, and in 2013 CDC Cloud was acquired by Aptean, Inc. The Village’s current contractual
relationship is based on our agreement with CDC from 2011 and an amendment to this agreement
with Aptean from 2014. The Aptean amendment, which essentially updated pricing and contract
term, expires on June 30, 2017. These agreements provide for support and maintenance for the
various financial modules of the current ERP system (accounting, payroll, utility billing, Cyberquery,
etc.), software improvements as the applications evolve, and offsite hosting of both the software
applications and data. The bundled fee for these services is currently $75,042.48 per year.

Discussion & Recommendation

Attached is a recommended amendment to the current application service agreement with
Aptean/CDC. This amendment provides for bundled software maintenance at an annual rate of
$77,668.98 through June 30, 2018, and $80,387.39 through June 30, 2019. These rates reflect an
annual increase of 3.5%. Please note that this is a “sole source” item and was negotiated downward
from an initial proposal of a 5% increase per year for three years. Once a replacement ERP system is
selected it is expected that the conversion process will take 12 to 18 months to complete and the
subsequent audit requirements will extend the need to keep Aptean “live” for some period of time, so
staff would expect that the Village will need these services for most if not all of the two year term.

Budget Impact
Sufficient funds are included in Account 1020-7309 to fund this expense.

Village Board and/or Committee Action
The first reading of this item was held on June 13, 2017 whereby it was the consensus of the Village
Board to place this item on the consent agenda for July 11, 2017.

Documents Attached
1. Amendment to Agreement Between the Village of Hinsdale and Aptean, Inc.

Page 1 of 2
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AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
Village of Hinsdale, lllinois ("Custorer")
AND
Aptean, Inc. ("Aptean”)

This Amendment (this "Amendment") amends that certain Application Service Agreement, between Customer and
Aptean with an effective date of July 12, 2011 (including all prior addenda and amendments thereto, collectively, the
"Agreement"). In case of any conflict between the Agreement and this Amendment, the terms and conditions of this
Amendment shall control. Except as otherwise modified herein, all terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties
hereby agree as follows:

1. In consideration of Customer's non-cancelable commitment to renew the applicable license term, maintenance
term and/or hosting term for the Software (each a "Term"), as indicated below, commencing on July 1, 2017 (the
"CommencementDate") through the period ending June 30, 2019 (the "Expiration Date," and such period, the
"Commitment Period"), Customer's annual fees for such Software shall be as follows:

‘ Fees for Subscription and Term Model
Subscription / License Term Aniitial Fees
‘ Fees for Perpetual Model :
‘ ) “Annual Fees
| 1$77,6568.98 ("Annual Period One")
1$80,387.39 ("Annual Period Two")
Quantity
G Quantity
: 15
4gov +Utility Billing - SaaS 1
" Budget Preparation - Per User 1
" CAPPS - Purchasing/Accounts Payable 1
Cash Receipts - Per User 1
Central Name and Address - Per User 1
CyberQuery Report Writer - Runtime licenses, per user 1
DILOG Accountiing - Management Accounting - Per User 1
" DILOG Accounting - Financial Accounting - Per User | 1
Payroll/Personnell - Per User 1
Requisitioning 1

All fees specified in this Section 1 are in USD and do not include any applicable sales tax.

2. Customer understands that, if a software product is not listed above, then any such non-listed software is neither
subject to nor included in the amounts listed in Section 1 above, and additional maintenance fees shall apply for

any such non-listed software.

3. The parties agree that the discounted fees specified above are offered by Aptean solely in reliance upon
Customer's commitment to renew the Term for the Commitment Period. In the event Customer cancels the Term
at any time prior to the Expiration Date, Customer agrees to immediately pay the outstanding annual fees that
Aptean would have received for the Commitment Period, less any amounts previously paid by Customer under

LTC Amendment (NA) v.2 3 Proprietary and Confidential
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this Amendment. The parties agree that such payment is to be considered liquidated damages, and not a penalty,
and the parties agree that such amount is a fair and reasonable estimation of Aptean's damages in the event
Customer breaches Customer's obligation to maintain services until the Expiration Date.

If Customer elects to renew maintenance services beyond the Commitment Period, then beginning with the first
annual maintenance period immediately following the Expiration Date, the annual maintenance fee for the above-
specified Software shall not increase by more than six percent (6%) over the immediately preceding year's
annual maintenance fee.

Payment of the annual maintenance fee for Annual Period One is due and payable at least fifteen (15) days prior
to the Commencement Date, or as otherwise stated in the Customer Order Form. In the event this Amendment is
signed less than fifteen (15) days from the Commencement Date, payment of the annual fee for Annual Period
One is due an payable within fifteen (15) days of the Effective Date (as defined below). Payment of the remaining
annual maintenance fees will be made according to the terms set forth in the Agreement.

The terms and conditions stated herein are expressly contingent upon C Customer's execution of this Amendment
by July 28, 2017.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, each party has executed this Amendment effective as:of the Iast date entered in the

signature blocks below (the “Effective Date") and represents and warrants to. the other that its executton has been duly

authorized.

Village of Hinsdale, lllinois ' o Aptean Inc.
Authorized Signature o - "Authorized Signature
Printed Name B Printed Name
Title: ' Title:

Date: Date:

LTC Amendment (NA) v.2 4 . Proprietary and Confidential



AMENDMENT TO APPLICATION SERVICE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
VILLAGE OF HINSDALE, ILLINOQIS (“Customer®)
AND
APTEAN, INC.,, SUCCESSOR-IN-INTEREST TO CDC CLOUD, INC. (“Aptean™)

This Amendment (this “Amendment”) amends that certain Application Service Agreement, which includes
any exhibits and schedules attached thereto, between Customer and Aptean executed by the Customer on July 12,
2011 (the “Agreement”). In case of any conflict between the Agresment and this Amendment, the terms and
conditions of this Amendment shall control. Except as otherwise modified herein, all terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the
parties hereby agree as follows:

1. In consideration of Customer’s non-cancelable commitment to renew the Agreement for the Software listed
in Section 2 below through the period ending June 30, 2017, Customer’s annual subscription fee for
such software shall be as follows:

Subscription Period Annual Subscription Fee

07/01/14 through 06/30/15 $70,734.74 (“Annual Period One™)
07/01/15 through 06/30/16 $72,856.78 (“Annual Period Two")
07/01/16 through 06/30/17 $75,042.48 (“Annual Period Three”)

All fees specified in this Section 1 are in US Dollars and do not include applicable sales tax.

2. The Software covered by the three (3) year commitment period specified in Section | above is:

Seftware Product Quantity
4gov - Basic Financial Suite - SaaS (SW-VS-GOM-4BF-SAS) 15
CyberQuery Report Writer - Runtime licenses, per user (SW-VS-GOM-CRW1) 1

CAPPS - Purchasing/Accounts Payable (SW-VS-GOM-CPP1) 1
Requisitioning (SW-VS-GOM-RPU1) 1
Budget Preparation - Per User (SW-VS-GOM-BPP 1) 1
Cash Receipts - Per User (SW-VS-GOM-CRP1) 1
4gov - Utility Billing - SaaS (SW-VS-GOM-4UB-SAS) 1
Payrol/Personnel - Per User (SW-VS-GOM-PPU1) 1
DILOG Accounting - Management Accounting - Per User (SW-V5-GOM-DAM 1) 1
DiILOG Accounting - Financial Accounting - Per User (SW-VS-GOM-DAF1) 1
Central Name and Address - Per User (SW-VS-GOM-CNAL) 1

Customer understands that, if a Software product is not listed above, then any such non-listed Software is
not subject to, nor included in, the amounts listed in Section 1, and additional subscription fees shall apply
for any such non-listed Software.

REV 2014/02/18 AMENDMENT CONFIDENTIAL
PAGE | OF 2



The parties agree that the discounted fees specified above are offered by Aptean solely in reliance upon
Customer’s commitment to renew the Agreement through the period ending 06/30/17. In the event
Customer terminates the Agreement at any time prior to 06/30/17, for reasons other than an uncured
material breach of the Agreement by Aptean, Customer agrees to inmediately pay the outstanding annual
subscription fees that Aptean would have received for the three (3) year commitment period commencing
on 07/01/14 and ending on 06/30/17, less any amounts previously paid by Customer for the
aforementioned period. The parties agree that this payment is to be considered liquidated damages, and not
a penalty, and the parties agree that this amount is a fair and reasonable estimation of Aptean’s damages in
the event Customer breaches Customer’s obligation to subscribe to services through 06/30/17.

Following the conclusion of the three (3) year commitment period specified in Sections | and 2 of this
Amendment, the Agreement will no longer renew automatically as set forth in Section 4.1 of the
Agreement. Instead, if Customer elects to renew the Agreement, as amended herein, and the related
subscription services, beyond the three (3) year commitment period, it may do so on an annual basis with
the written consent of both parties. Beginning with the fourth year the annual subscription fee for the
above-specified Software shall not increase by more than five percent (5%) over the preceding year’s
subscription fee.

Payment of the annual subscription fees will be made according to the terms set forth in the Agreement, or
any amendment modifying such.

The terms and conditions stated herein are expressly contingent upon Customer’s execution of this
Amendment by 07/31/14,

IN WITNESS HEREOF, each party has executed this Amendment effective as of the last date entered in

the signature blocks below (the “Effective Date™) and represents and warrants to the other that its execution has been
duly authorized.

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE, ILLINOIS APTEAN, INC.

N

Title l/ ‘i//ﬁ $e Mo pa § ¢ Title
- J J

By 2///7/(/,5//1( _,/-/ét’/// %711 ANl By

fre Printed _ e $h7 o0 4 60 cqapp Name Printed

pwe_July 23 Joly Date L

REV 2014/02/18 AMENDMENT CONFIDENTIAL
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CDG Cloud
a wholly owned subsidiary of CDC Software

APPLICATION SERVICE AGREEMENT (ABA)

This APPLICATION SERVICE AGREEMENT ("Agreement’) is
made by and between COC Cloud, inc., a wholly owned subsidiary
of CDC Software and hereinafter referred to as “CDC®, a Delaware
corporalion with its principal place of business at Two Summit Bivd,
Sulte 700, Atlanta, GA 30319, and Village of Hinsdale, llincis
(“Customer”), willy its principal place of business at 19 East Chicago
Avenuse, Hinsdale, 1l 80521. The Effective Date of this Agreement
;hall be the date of Customer's signature In the signature block
elow.

WHEREAS, CDC provides 4gov® financial resource management
and cilizen services ("Services"), and selected other third party
soflware products, from its hosted site ("Slie") on the World Wids
Waeh portlon of the Internat ("Web"); and

WHEREAS, Customer desires to engage CDC, and CDC desires
to ba engaged by Customar, to provide the Services on the terms
and subject to the condilicns set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in conslderation of the mutual promises st
forth hereln, CDC and Custarner hereby agree as follows:

1. CDC Undertaking

(R CDC Services

CDC Agrees to provide the Services pursuant to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and the Software Hosting and
Support Schedule attached hereto as Exhiblt A,

1.2 Avallability of tha Services
The Services shall he accesslble to Customer via the Site twenty-
four hours per day, seven days per waek, except for scheduled
malntenance and requirad repalrg, and except for any loss or
interruption of Services due to causes beyond the control of CDG.
In the event of a loss or Interruption of Services exceading a total
of four hours in any week, other than as a result of the
maintenance activities described In Ssction 1.4, below, & pro rata
portion of Feas (as herelnafter defined) for the period of the
dovmtime and the appilcable monthiy involce will be adjusted
_accordingly. For the purposes of this Agreement, a week shall be
considared to run from Sunday to Saturday. Customer's Internet
sorver shall be deemed o ba not available for purposes of this
Sectlon 1.3, If CDC's standard hardware, software, or operating
system ig functloning in @ mannor that prevenis hiip, fip, or eccess
to the Internet server or the Sofiware ("Unavailability). For
purposes of this Section 1.3, Unavallahility shall not be deemed to
occur hereunder as a result of Customer action or Inaction,
Including, but not limited fo, Customer utilization or Gustomer
ownhed, non-standard, or unsupported software installed by CDC at
the Customer's request.

1.3  [Aainienange o ,

CDC designates time periods (“Scheduled Maintenance Times")
during which it may limlt or suspend the avallabllily of the hardware
and/or software involvad In providing s Services and praducts (an
"Outage”) to perform necessary maintenance or upgrades or
selectsd backups of the data, Scheduled Maintenance Times
currently ars each Tuesday and Thursday balwaen the hours of 2
am. and 6 am, Central Standard Times (CST) and the third
Sunday of each month between the hours of 12 a.m. and 8 am.
CST. If planned maintenance has the possibllity of making the
server or servers, as the case may be, ulilized by Customer

inaccessible to the Intemet during a Scheduled Mainlenance Time,
CDC will provide not less than twenty-four hours' sfectronic mall or
other notice lo Customer of the Scheduled Maintenance Times
durihg which the Qutage Is plannad, In addiion, GDC reserves the
right to perform any Immedlately required malntenance worl
outsids of the Scheduled Mainlanance Times with prior notice to
Cusfomer.

14  Customes Support Services

CDC shall provide Customer with standard support services as
describad in Exhibil B altached hersto. Customer will [dentify two
palnts of contact to manage e support interaction between CDC
and Customer. - These Individuals must have ful securlty
authorizations in the use of the software to parmit complete suppon
and ba fully trainad in the use of the softiware,

Technical Suppert for Hardware is available 24 hours a day at the
telsphone number 1-800-632-8634 x 2074. This is for access
problems as they relate {o the Intsmet Usaga of the CDC site.

Customer Suppori Is avallable & days per wesk and 8 hours per
day through an e-mail support line, a8 well as a telephone support
line. This [s for questions related fo the usage of the software
products. The coverage extands from 8:30 a.m. to £:30 p.m. EST,
with CDC response within two business hours, Holldays are
exempted from covarage.

15 - CustomerData

Cus}tomer‘s data for the applications as shown on Exhibit A will be
maintainad on servar(s) al CBC' Sits, and CDC wilf provide these
standard backup services: Daily backup of changed Customer data
flles (the most recent four coples of a changed data file are kept,
and with each subsequent change to a data file, the aldest copy Is
discarded); Storage of backup tapes on Site for a perlod of 30
days; and Up to three data flle restoration operations per month
(add[tlonal data file restore operations are available for an
addliional charge). At the oplion of the Customer, and for an
addiflonal fee, CDC shall provide the Customer with a back-up
copy of any Customer data maintained at CDC' Site, provided the
Customear hae pald all curvent and past dus faes.

R E STt e

2. Customer Underiakings

24, Fdes Payable io CDC

in consideration of the obligafions underiaken by CDC hersunder,
Customer shall pay to CDC the fees for the Inllial Installation
Services according to the Price set forth in Exhibit A and the Total

. Manthly Recurring Charges ("Service Fees") for Application

Software, and Support Servicas, as described in Exhibit A.

2.2,  Payment Terms ‘
cDC wi'll invalce Customer and Customer will pay for the Initial
Installation as such servicas: are rendersd and products are
ardered by COC on Cuslomar's bshalf. CDC will Involce Customer
ggg %tflstggxrslz :All \Eﬁry ;or gweﬂﬁﬁl wonth's service fees on tha flrst
» Wnich shall be on or aboui July 10, 2011.
Thereafter, GCDC will involee Customer on the 15™ day of the month
for the next month's use as well as adjustments for any additions or
custom work performad during the prior month. Paymant of all
faes will be by check due on the 1" day of the month, or by
automatic deblt of the Customer's designad U.S. bank account in



U.S. dollars on a date chosen by the Customer, which shall be on
or befora the 5™ day of the month and shall be listed in Exhibit A
All past due amounts are subject to a lale charge equal o the
tower of the highest lawful rate or 1.6% per month. In addition, the
parties hereby agree that fallure of Customer to fully pay any Fees
within 20 days after the appiicable due date may be deemed a
materlal breach of this Agreement, Justifying suspension of the
performance of Services by CDC, and will be sufficlent cause for
immadiate termination of this Agreement by CDC. Any such
suspension does not rellave Customer from paying past due Feas,
plus Interest, and in the avent of collection enforcemaent, Customer
shall be llable for any costs associated with such callection,
including, without limitation, legal costs, attorneys' fees, court costs
and collection agency fees,

23 | Tages . . o
Customer shall pay or reimburse CDG for all sales, use, {ransfer,
privilege, exciss, and all other texes and ail dutles, whether
intarnatlonal, national, stale, or local, howaver deslighated, which
ara levied or imposed by reason of the performance by COC under
this Agreament; excluding, howsver, (a) income tax on profits
which may be levisd against CDC, and (b) taxes for which
Customer provides CDC with a valid tax exemption cerlificate.

3. . Restrlctions on Use

3.4, Termgof Use ‘

Customer agrees to use the Software and Services anly for
Customer's own business. Customer will be responsible for
assigning, maintaining, and monitoring the use and password
authorization of the software and deta flles to staff, offlcers,
auditors, and other authorized contractors.

Customer ghall not (i) parmit any other agencies, affiliated entities
or third parties, other than confractors or subcontractors for which
customer licenses have been paid, to use the Software or
8ervices, (If) use the Software or Services for any other pary's
financial managemant rasource services, or {ill) use the Softwars
or Services in the operation of a service bureau without the
exprass written permission of CDC.

344, Madifications; Revérse-Englneering .
Customer agraes that only CDC shall have the right to change,
malintaln, deleta, enhance or otherwise modify the Sofiware,
Customer shall not disassemble, decompile or reverse-enginesr
the Software's computer programs,

3.2 Specific Peohlbltions -
Without limitation, the Custorner ugrees that it and its users of the
system will not use the Services or the hosted Slie to:

B) upload, store, post, email or otherwise transmit, distribute,
publish or disseminale any infonmation that is unlawiul, haemiul,
threatening, abusive, harassing, forluous, defamatory, vulgar,
obscens, or llbelous, or promotes such activity;

h) upload, store, post, link to, emall or otherwise lransmit,
distribute, publish or disseminate any site Information, content or
ather Informatlon or material that Infringes any patent, tradsmark,
trade sacret, copyright ar other propristary rights of any party or
otherwlse viclates the lagal rights (such as rlghts of privacy and
publicity) of others, violates any contractual or flduclary
relatlonships or Is otharwise objectionable;

o} upload, store, post, link to, email or otherwise transmit,
distribute, publish or disseminate any material that contalns
software viruses, trojan horses, worms, time hombs, cancelbots or
any other computer code, files or programs designed to interrupt,
destray or limit the functionality of any computer software or
hardware or telecommunications equlpment or circumvent any
"gopy-protectsd” devices, or any other harmful or disruptive

program, or any cracks, hacks, associated utilities or other privacy
related-information.

d) Violate (intsntionally or unintentionally) any applicable
local, state, national or International law or regulation, including, but
not limited lo, laws regarding the transmission through the Services
of technical data or sofiware exported from the Unlted States
andlor the country(ies) In which the Customer and/or Its users
reside, and all local laws and regulations regarding online conduct
and acceptable conlent.

4, Term and Termination

44 Term ,

This Agreement shall commence as of the date first wrilten above
and shall continua for a period of two (2) years from that dats,
unless earller terminaled as provided below. After the Initial two
year perfod, thls Agreement shall renew automatically for
succassive one-year terms, unless tarminated sarlier In
actordance with terms set forth in 4.2. in order to terminate this
agreement, Customar must give CDC notice thereof at least 80
days prior to the and of the applicable term.

42 . Termination.

424 Insolvency _ N

Elther party may tarminate this Agreement Immediately upon
delivery of written notice in the event that the other party shall be
unable to pay its liabiities when due, or shall make any assignment
for the benefit or creditors, or shall fils a petition under any foderal
or sfate bankruptoy statute or a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or
an Involuntary petilion shali be filed and not discharged within 60
dlays after such filing, or shall be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent,
or If any receiver shell be appointed for its business or proparty, or
any trusiae In bankruptoy or nsolvency shall be appointed under
any faw of the United States or the several states.

4,23 ‘Breach o

f althar parly is alleged to be in material breach of any provision of
this Agraement, thal party shall have 30 days from recaipt of
spacific notice to cure the indicated breach. If the breach Is not
cured within the 30-day perlod, the nan-breaching parly will have
the option, but not the obligation, to terminate the Agreement.

4.2,3. . Terminatlon for Converilence

The Customer reserves the right to terminate this agreement for its
gole convanlencs. In the evant of such termination, Customer shall
pay lo CDC the amounls set forth in paragraph 4.3,

4.3. - Effect of Termination

Upon any termination or explration of thls Agreament, Customer
shall pay all unpaid and outstanding Fees through the effaclive
date of termination or explration. In the event Customer lerminates
the monthly servica lh whale or In part prior to the expiration of the
term (except a3 othensise permitted In this agresment), Customer
will be liable for any early termination charges Imposed by the
carrler(s) of any Dedigated Communications Servicas. If Customer
terminates for convenience, In whole or in part prior to the
axplration of the term, Customer shall immediately pay to CDC all
remalplng fees due o CDC under this agreement as sel forth In
Exhibit A. The termination of this Agreement shall not prejudics the
right of COC to recover any Fees or other sums otherwise dus It at
tha time of terminalion or cancallation,

44,  CustomerData

Upon terminaflon of the agreement, Customer agrees that COC
may remove fom iis servers all of the Customer's ‘data, slts
information, reglstralion data and personal Information, provided
ghat CDC shall first glve Customer at least thirly (30) days' nolice of
its Infent to remove any such data. Upon termination of the
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Agreement Customer may receive a capy of the Customer dala
through the payment of the then-current data export fee.

5. Proprletary Informatlon

5.1 Proprletary Rights of Customer

As batween Customer and CDC, Customer's dala shall remaln the
sole and exclusive property of Customer. CDC further
acknowledges and agrees that any data and materlals supplied by
Customer are confidential and proprietary irade secrets of
Customer protected by law, and of substantlal value to Customer,
and thelr use and disclosure must be carefully and continuausly
controlled by CDC. CDC shall notify Customer immediately of the
unauthorized use or knowledge of any Item supplied to CDC
pursuant to thls Agresment.

5.2 Praprletary Rights of CDC

* Gustomer acknowledges and agrees that (a) any data and
matarlals supplied by CDC are confldential and proprietary trade
sacrats of COC protected by law, and of substantial valus fo CDC,
and their use and disclosure must be carefully and canilinuously
confrolled by Cusfomer, and (b) the Softwara e profectsd by the
Copyright Laws of the United States, Customer shall notify CDC
immedlately of the unauthorized use or knowledge of any item
supplied to Customer pursuant to this Agreement Customer
agrees not to challenge the tghts of CDC in and to such data and
materials, including without limitation, the copyrighis in the
Software. In the event Customer threatens to breach any of the
provisions of this paragraph, CDC shall have the right, in addition
to such other remedies that may be available to them, to injunctive
relief, without posting bond, enjoining such actions or altempts, it
being acknowledged that CDC would suffer lireparable injurles and
that legal remedies are inadequate. The provisions of the
paragraph shall survive the termination of this Agresment.

8.. Wagcanties
8.1 Warranties of CDC
8.44  Woiknianshlp

COC represents and warrants that () the Software and Services
shall perform substantlelly in accordance with the curent
documentation provided by CDC, as amended from tims to time
and (il) the Soflware and Services will not infringe any third-party
proprietary tights. In the avent of any breach of the foregoing
warranty, CDC shall, as the Customer's sole and exclusive

remeady, use commerclally reasonable efforts fo correct any

probiems specifically identifled by Customer.in writing. ... .
61.2  Limitdtion of Wayranties L
THE FOREGOING ARE THE ONLY WARRANTIES MADE BY
CDC, and CDC SPECIFIGALLY DISCLAIMS, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, ALL OTHER WARRANTIES TO CUSTOMER, OR
OTHER THIRD PARTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING,
WITH  LIMITATION, THE [MPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE. NEITHER CDC NOR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES OR
AGENTS MAKES ANY WARRANTY THAT ACCESS TO THE
SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED, SECURE, COMPLETE,
ACCURATE OR ERROR-FREE, NOR DOES CDC MAKE ANY
WARRANTY AS TO THE LIFE OF ANY URL GENERATED OR
PUBLISHED BY CDC. CERTAIN SOFTWARE USED BY END-
USERS MAY NOT BE CAPABLE OF SUPPORTING GERTAIN
CDC FEATURES. CDC SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY
WHATSOEVER FOR ANY CLAIMS RELATING TO ANY END-
USER'S ABILITY TO ACCESS THE WEB SITE PROPERLY OR
COMPLETELY.

8.1.3  Lbimitation of Liabillty

The parlles acknowiedge that the limitations set forth In this
Section 8,13 .are Itegral to the amount of fees lovied in
connection with Agresment, and that, were CDC to assume any
further liability other than as set forth hereln, such fees would of
necessity be set substantially higher. (T IS UNDERSTOOD AND
AGREED THAT CDC SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR ANY
INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES (INGLUDING LOSS OF PROFIT, LOSS OF USE OF
THE SERVICES, COSTS OF SUBSTITUTE SERVICES, OR
DOWNTIME COSTS) SUFFERED BY CUSTOMER OR ANY
THIRD PARTY, EVEN IF CDC HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES., NOT
WITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION OF THIS
AGREEMENT, THE ENTIRE LIABILITY OF CDC FOR DAMAGES
FOR ANY CAUSE WHASOEVER, AND REGARDLESS OF THE
FORM OF ACTION, SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT PAID
BY CUSTOMER TO CDC IN THE ONE-YEAR PERIOD PRIOR TO
THE EVENT SIVING RISE TO SUCH DAMAGES,

8.2 Customer's  Representations, Wawanties and
Indemnity '
8.2.1 Represontations and Warranties

Customer covenanis, represents and warrants that all of
Customer's software and code used to access the Services do not,
and will not during the term of this Agreament, be in violalion of any
software license agreement which Customer has entered with CDC
or any third parly. No third party software used by Customer to
access the services contalns any feature which would in any way
Impair the oparation of () the Services, or () the software or
hardware of any olkar user using the Services, In each Instance
including, without limltation, any form of virus, a Trojan horse,
worm, or other software routing or hardware component which may
disable, erass or othsrwise harm software, hardware, or data,

6.22 Indemnification by Customer

Customar shall be Yable for, and shail fully indemnify and hold
CDC harmless agairst, any logs, llability, cost, expense (including
attorneys’ fees and expanses) or damages arising from any action,
Inaction, breach or fallure to perform under this Agreement by
Customer, or by the officers, employees, elected officials, agents,
reprasantaflves, consuliants, or customers of Customer. This
indemniiication obligation shall survive the termination of this
Agreamant,

623 mndemnlfication by CDC

- .CDG. shall- be - liabls - for, - arid--shall- fully - indemnify—and ~hold

Customer harmless against any loss, llability, cost, expense
(including attorneys’ [zes and expenses) or damages arising from
any aclion, Inaclior, breach or fallure to perform under this
Agreament by CDG, or by CDC's officers, employees, elected
offictals, agents, representalivas or consultents.  This
Indemnificatlon obligation shall survive tha termination of this
Agreemant.

7. Genaral

74 Export Gontro) Restrigtions >

Sofiware available on the Siie Is subject to United States export
controls. No softwars from the Site may be downloaded or
otherwise exported or re-axported (l) Into (or to a national or
resident of) Cuba, Ireq, Libya, Sudan, North Kores, Iran, Syria, or
any other country t which the United States has embargoed
goods, or (i) to anyens on the U.S. Treasury Deparimant's list of
Speclally Designated National or the U.S. Commerce Department's
Table of Denlal Orders. By using the Services or the Softwars,
Customer warrants that it Is not located In, under the cantrol of, or
a national or resident of any such country or on any such list,
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7.2 Third-Party Materials and Web Site Links
The site contalns references and links to third parly web sites,

which are not under the control of CDC. CDC makes no’
representations whalsoever about any other web site to which -

Customar may have access through the Site, Including without
limitation any siie whose services may be describad or offared on
the Site.

7.3 Asglignwient

Customer shall not assign, grant a security Interest in, or transfer
this Agreement or the Services without the express prior wriiten
consent of CDC in each nstance.

7.4 Notlges

Al notices and other communications required or permilted to be
given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
affective when deliverad personally, when transmitted by facsimite
or electranic mall to the address provided by the receiving party, or
by certified mall, roturn recelpt requested, addressed to the other
parly at thelr respective addresses set forth on the first page
hereof, unless by natice & different address shall have been
designated for glving notice hersunder,

7.5 . Force Majeure ) .

Nelther party shall be liable for any delay or failure to perform its
obligation under this Agreement Iif prevented from doing so by a
cause or causes bayond its reasonahble control. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, such causes Include acts of God,
the public enemy, fires, floods, storms, hurricanes, earthquakes,
riots, strikes, blackouts, wars or war operation, restraints of
government, ufillty or communications fatlures, or other causes
which could not with reasonable diligence be controlied or
prevented by the parly.

7.8  Anigndments, Walvers .

This Agraenent may be emended from time to time only by written
agraement of the parties. No term or provision of this Agresment
may be waived or madified uniess such waiver or modiflcation is in
writing and signed by the party against whom such waiver or
modification Is sought lo be enforced. Ne failure on the part of any
party to exercise and no delay In exercising, any right, power, or
remedy under this Agreemant shall aperate as a walver thereof,
nor shall any single or partial exercisa of any right under this
Agreement preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the
exercise of any other right. The remedies provided In this
Agreement are cumulative and not exclusive of any remedies
providedbylaw. .o -

7.7 Severablity .

If any provision of this Agreement Is held by final judgment of a
court of compatent jurisdiction to be invalid litegal or unanforceable,
such Invalid, illegel or unenforceable provision shall be severad
from the remainder of this Agreement, and the remainder of this
Agreement shall be enforced,

78 Goveriing Law; Dispute Resolution Procsss and

Binding Arbltration - - ;
If a party brings a dispute ("Dispuling Party") against the other party ("Non-
Disputing Party"} to enforce this Agraemant, the Disputing Party agrees that
such dispute shall be governed by lllincls law without giving effact to any
cholcs af law of conflist of iaw provision, and shall be heard in the exclusive
Jurlsdiction, of the Non-Disputing Party.
7.8 Entire Agroement ’

This Agreement, Including the exhiblts attached hereto, if any,
together with any duly exacuted Software License Agreements In
force hetween Customar and GDC, contalng the entire agreement
of the parties with respect to the subject malter of this Agreerent,
and supersades all prior agreaments belwesn them whether oral or
written of any nature whatsoever with respect to the subject matter
hergof. This Agreernent Is binding upon the parties hereto, their
successors and penmilted assigns. No amendment, alteraflon, or
modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless in each
Instarice such amendment, alferation, or madification Is expressed
In a written instrument duly executed by the parties,

7.40_  Headings, Construction

The section titlas In this Agreement are for convenlence only and
shall have no effect on the Interpretation of any part or provision
regardless of the tille heading under which the part or provision is
located. Whenaver the context of this Agreement requires, the
gender of all words hereln shell include the masculine, feminine,
and nauter, and the number of all words herein shall inglude the
singular and plural. Al references to section numbers in this
Agreement shall be references to seclions In this Agreement,
unless otherwise spaclfically indicated.

741 . Colnterparts

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts
and any panty hereto may exacute any such counterpan, sach of
which when execulsd and delivered shall be deamed to be an
original and all of which counterparis taken together shall constitute
but one and the sams instrument. A telecopied facsimile of an
executed counterpard of this Agresmant shall he sufficlent to
svidenca the binding 2greerent of each parly to the terms hareof.

TN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreament to be executed on thel: behalf by thelr duly autharized

officera as of the date first above set forth.
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Exhibit B

Software Maintenance Agreement

The ANNUAL MAINTENANCE SUPPORT AGREEMENT for dpoy®
Software , (“Licensed Software *) fram CDC Cloud, Inc., & wholly owned
- subsidiary of CDC Softwure and hereinafier referred to as "CDC”,  Delaware
cotporation with its principal place of business at Two Summit Bivd, Suite 700,
Allanta, GA 30319 and providad under the CDC Software License Agreement,
provides the following services and warranties to the Customer numed below.

I Cugtomer Information

Orgunization: Viliage of Hinsdale

Address: 19 E Chicago Ave, Hinsdale l 60521
Telephone:630-789-7000

FAX: 630-789-3463

Email: dlanglois@villageofhinsdale.org

The Customer is authorized to have fwo employees naed as Authorized
Contacts who can contact CD( with support issues, These emiployees must have
been truined [n the use of the Licensed Program,

Authorized Contacts nre specifically named by Customer in Exhibit A, with any
restrictions written on Exhibit 1, and sont to CDC by July 30, 2011, Any
changes, additions, delotions are to be sent, {axed, or emailed on or before the
dats they are to take effect. .

2. Plan Selection (Select with “X" and Initial)

%1 _Standasd Malotenance

[J___ Extended Products, Support, and Services as listed on Exhibit 2
[J____Extended Hosted Access and Support as listed on Exhibit 3

3 Services Provided in ali Malntenance Plans

A) CDC will provide Customer with Enhancements and Upgeades thal
CDC makes fo the Lisensed Software and which CDC elects to
incorporate into and make a past of the Licensed Software and does not
separately markel. Enhagcements will be sent via CD, DVD, or
availuble for download an the Internet.

BY CDC will furnish “hot-lne" telephone and internet support from 8:30am
CST 10 5:00pm CST, or es otherwise stipulated In Exhibit B, in the
form of counsel and advice on use of the Licensed Software to
Authorized Contacts listed in Exhibic .

C) Customer will be provided with any known problem solutlons relating
to the Licensed Program us such solutiong become known to CDC.

D) CRC will assist the Customer on an hourly fee basis, with in house PC,

7 iHlAter, A oUier dquifiment , conimiinications, and 3" party soflware
issues, 0 it relateg to COC products, after written authorization for
services has been glven.

Confidential  2010-2011

4, Warranties )
A) Licensed Programs end Materials will conform substantiatly to the
published documentation provided to Customer by CDC,

B) CDC will furnish to Custorer any necessury prograns cortections al no
cost to Customer within thirty (30) days of receipt of written natice of
verifiable and reproducible errors, and if requiced In the judantent of
CDC, provide onsite assistancs to correct the deficiency. If it s
determined by CDC that the problem is duc to Customer fault or
neghgence, or to items beyond CDC' contral including but not limited
to (a) Customcr Non-supporied old or new hardware, hardware failure;
(b) Operating system, patclies, or service pack erors; {¢) data base
software; (d) Non-CDC product errors; () Licensed Program alterations
or gustom eade/scripts not under maintenancs; or () failure to comply
with the lerme of thls warranty, then lime, expenses, and taxes
nssaclated with such suppost shall be billed by CDC at its then curvent
upplicable rates and paid by Custome.

8, Customer Tering snd Conditions

A) Customer shll procure, install, and maintain all requiced, computer
hordware, software, teleplione, and communication lines, Internet
gecess, emnail, and other hardware deemed necessary by CDC to operate
the Licensed Sofiware,

B) Customer shall malntain and protect any on-site data files and data
bases with backups on a regular basis.

C) Customer shall perform regular system maintchance on internal
Workstations, PCs, pririters, and other hardware used in the operation of
the 4gov sofiware, to [usure maximum system performance and
reliability.

D) Customer's Authorfzed Contacts shall be provided appropriste security
goeess by Cuslomer 5o that such Authorized Cointacis can reasonably
perform their responsibsilities. Customer shall also ensure that CDC has
access to the system to verify, analyze, and updale Sofiware as

necessary so (hat CDC can provide the services under this Maintenance
Agrecment.

6. Fees and Charges

The Maintenance and Warranty services as stated under this agreement
ara Included with the APPLICATON SERVICE AGREEMENT (ASA).
Services provided urder this Agraement shall continue through the life of
the valid ASA agrserant. For any additional services duly authorized under
“thig Apeéeiient, Customer shall pay satd sums as invaiced to the Customer
promuptly upon receipt by the Customer.
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CDC Cloud

n wholly owned subsidiary of CNC Seftware

Software Maintenance Agreement

Exhibit 1

Authorized Contacts

Primary Contact ,

Name ‘)Aﬁ)’L Lﬁﬂ"tﬁ' Lﬂ"’/s

Te FPINANMCE  DIRE d TOL

Phonett 4 40 ¥ 70 0
. 630 —-? g

Emal DLAM Ma/s (, viL MN dﬁ/%m&)/m«. IR&

EFFECTIVEDATE
Extended Support Hours

Authorization Yes o ‘o
GL/Mpmt Accounting }l
CAPPS-AF/PO £8
Requlsitions y el
Budgets - YES
Pixed Assels

Payysl/Psrsonncl yES
Human Resources

CajlvReceipts 7‘
Billing/AR v £.s
Invontory

Cash Management
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AGENDA ITEM #;&/

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
Administration

VILLAGE OF

Est. 1873

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda - ACA

SUBJECT: Adjust number of liquor licenses in Classes A3 and C
MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017
FrROM: Christine Bruton, Village Clerk

Recommended Motion
To approve an Ordinance Amending Subsection 3-3-13A of the Village Code of Hinsdale
Related to the Number of Liquor Licenses

Background
The Village has received liquor license applications for two new Class C — Personal Services

licenses from Nourished Table & Home located at 111 S. Vine, and Elysian Nail Spa to be
located at 24 W. Chicago Avenue. Nourished Table is a cooking school that wants to serve
wine and beer during classes, and Elysian is a nail spa that intends to serve wine and beer to
their clients. Representatives from both businesses addressed the Board at the June 13"
meeting and explained their business models. The Board had no objections to these
applications. Current Class C liquor license holders are Ten Friends Blow Dry and Style and
Trunk Club.

Additionally, Class A3 - Packaged Sales at Boutiques license holder The Village Cellar located

at 24 W. Chicago Avenue, has closed their doors; therefore the number of authorized Class A3

licenses should be reduced from 2 to 1. The remaining Class A3 license is held by the Hinsdale
Wine Shop.

Total # of licenses Decreased by: Increased by: Net increase
26 1 2 1

Discussion & Recommendation

In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 3-3-13B, Board approval is required to increase
or decrease the number of licenses permitted in any classification. The action before the
Board will increase the number of Class C licenses from two to four, and reduce the number
of Class A3 licenses from 2 to 1. Staff recommends the Board approve this maintenance
ordinance.

Budget Impact
N/A

Village Board and/or Committee Action

This item appears on the Consent Agenda as a routine item. Additionally, this item was
introduced to the Board as a discussion item at their meeting of June 13, 2017, and Board
members expressed no objections to the requests.
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VILLAGE OF

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

Est. 1873

Attachments

1. Discussion item memorandum

2. Class C Liquor License description
3. Letter from Nourished Table

4. Ordinance
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VILLAGE OF

MEMORANDUM
Est. 1873
DATE: June 9, 2017
TO: President Tom Cauley & Village Board of Trustees |
CC: Kathleen A. Gargano
FROM: Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk
RE: Class C — Personal Services liquor license requests

The. Village has received two new requests for Class C — Personal Services liquor
licenses. Hinsdale currently has two licensed business in this class; Ten Friends Blow
Dry and Style and The Trunk Club.

The first is from an existing business, Nourished Table & Home, located at 111 S. Vine
Street. They would like to offer a glass of wine, for purchase, during their cooking
classes. | have attached a letter from their attorney outlining the specifics of their
request.

The second is from Elysian Nail Spa, to be located at 24 W. Chicago Avenue. This
business is not operating yet, and is currently working with the Community Development
department for their Certificate of Occupancy. The applicant, Ms. Teanna Tran, has
communicated her intent to serve beer and wine by the glass for a fee.

A copy of the Class C license requirements and conditions is attached. Both

businesses meet the square footage requirements of the Class C license, and both
have provided completed liquor license applications and fees.

Thank you.



C. Class C - Personal Services:

. A class C liquor license shall authorize the retail sale or complimentary distribution by the glass of

wine and beer only at any licensed business not otherwise eligible for a liquor license in the village of
Hinsdale. Such license shall be subject to all of the following conditions:

. Sales By The Glass: Such license shall authorize the retail sale or complimentary dispensing by the

glass of wine and beer only.

. Consumption On Premises Only: The sale or dispensing by the glass of wine and beer shall be for

consumption on the premises only.

. Seating: Seating for customers within the premises shall not exceed thirty (30) seats.

. Use Limited: Such license shall be issued only to an establishment whose principal business is not a

restaurant or the retail sale of alcoholic liquors. Retail sale by the glass of wine and beer shall be
permitted only incidental to the business of the establishment.

. Establishment Size: Such license may be issued only to an establishment that does not exceed two

thousand five hundred (2,500) square feet in gross customer service area.

f. Hours: Unless otherwise indicated on the liquor license, the sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption is

permitted only between the hours of eleven o'clock (11:00) A.M. and twelve o'clock (12:00) midnight
Friday and Saturday and eleven o'clock (11:00) A.M. and ten thirty o'clock (10:30) P.M. Sunday
through Thursday.

g. Consumption Limited: All patrons and customers of a licensed business that is licensed for on

premises consumption shall leave the premises not later than thirty (30) minutes following the
closing hours recited herein.
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Attorneys at Law Chicago, I].lin(()is 6)0654-4785
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Brittany E. Hartwig Ellen N. Roche

James D. Brosnshan

May 26, 2017

Liquor Control Commission
Village of Hinsdale

19 E. Chicago Avenue
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521

Re:  Nourished Table & Home — 111 S. Vine St., Hinsdale, Illinois 60521
Liquor License Application

Dear Commissioner,

Please find enclosed Nourished Table & Home LLC’s application for consideration to
obtain a Class C liquor license from the Village of Hinsdale. As you may or may not be aware,
my client, Nourished Table & Home, opened its doors in November 2016. It is the goal of
Nourished to provide the community with the knowledge and tools to sustain a healthy lifestyle
in the areas of food and nutrition as well as personal and home care.

Nourished Home & Table is located at 111 S. Vine Street. It is an old farmhouse that
Kathleen Napleton, as Owner & Manager, has transformed into a beautiful space to offer her
services. Their services focus on small-group cooking classes and one-on-one nutrition and
wellness coaching.

Since opening its doors late last year, customers have requested and suggested that my
client offer an alcoholic beverage during the cooking classes. My client remains focused on the
food and wellness aspect of her business, but understands from a business standpoint the
importance of demand and customer service.

We are applying for a Class C: Personal Services license. Nourished would like to offer
its customers a glass of wine, for purchase, during the cooking classes. It will not be offering
hard liquor, nor will it be selling wine by bottle. Also, we are not seeking a BYOB license.
Currently, Nourished offers approximately three (3) night classes per week and two (2) lunch &
learn classes. It will also be offering a cooking demonstration class two (2) Saturdays per month
starting in June 2017. All classes are limited to 10 people per class and only one (1) class at a
time.



Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me. Thank
you for your consideration and we look forward to answering any additional questions at the
June 13, 2017 Board meeting.

Very truly yours,

Megan S. Roche

Cc:  Kathleen Napleton



VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SUBSECTION 3-3-13A
OF THE VILLAGE CODE OF HINSDALE
RELATED TO THE NUMBER OF LIQUOR LICENSES

WHEREAS, the Village of Hinsdale carefully licenses and regulates the sale and
service of alcoholic liquor in the Village;

WHEREAS, among the alcoholic liquor regulations are limits on the number of
available licenses in each license class, which limits are set forth in Subsection 3-3-13A
of the Village Code of Hinsdale; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale have
determined that it is appropriate and in the best interests of the Village and its residents
to amend Subsection 3-3-13A as provided in this Ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of Illinois, as follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this
Ordinance as findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

Section 2. Amendment of Subsection 3-3-13A.  Subsection 3-3-13A, titled
“Number of Licenses,” of the Village Code of Hinsdale shall be, and it is hereby,
amended in its entirety so that said Subsection 3-3-13A shall hereafter be and read as
follows:

3-3-13: LOCAL LIQUOR LICENSES:

* * *

A. Number of Licenses:

License Category Number of Licenses

Class A1 Packaged Sales-Beer/Wine
Class A2 Packaged Sales-Liquor/Beer/\Wine
Class A3 Packaged Sales-Boutique
Class A4 Packaged Sales-Consumption
Class B1 Restaurant-Beer/Wine
Class B2 Restaurant-Liquor/Beer/Wine
Class B3 Restaurant-BYOB
Class B4 Restaurant-Packaged Sales
Class C Personal Services
Class D1 Special Events - Annual
Class D2 Special Events™ - Single
*(As approved by the Hinsdale Liquor Commissioner)

-—



Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect on
immediately following its passage and approval. The Village Clerk is hereby authorized
and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published in pamphlet form.

PASSEDthis _____day of 2017,
AYES: |
NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this _____ day of 12017,

Village President

ATTEST:

Village Clerk



AGENDA ITEM # I s

VILLAGE OF

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
Est 1873 Finance
AGENDA SECTION: Second Reading — ACA
SUBJECT: Annual Appropriations Ordinance
MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017
FrROM: Darrell Langlois, Assistant Village Manager/Finance Director

Recommended Motion

Move to Approve the Annual Appropriations Ordinance for the Fiscal Year May 1, 2017 to April 30,
2018.

Background
Attached is the proposed Annual Appropriation Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2017-18. The ordinance

represents the legal spending authority of the Village for Fiscal Year 2017-18 and is required by state
statues to be adopted by July 31, 2017. It should be noted that although the appropriation ordinance
represents the Village's legal spending authority, the Village's budget, which was adopted in April, is
the financial plan which the Village operates under throughout the fiscal year.

Prior to adopting the ordinance, statutes require that the Village hold a public hearing on the
ordinance and that notice of the public hearing be published in the newspaper. The notice of the
public hearing was published in the Hinsdalean on May 25, 2017, and the legally required public
hearing on the proposed appropriation ordinance was held on June 13, 2017 prior to first reading of
the ordinance.

Discussion & Recommendation
in most cases the line items contained in the proposed appropriation ordinance are identical to the
Village's FY 2017-18 Budget. For this year there are 3 exceptions:

¢ The amount appropriated for Street Improvements in account 45300-7906 has been increased
by $8 million (to a revised total of $13,263,455) to appropriate sufficient funds for the
accelerated street resurfacing program, which was not contemplated at the time of the original
budget preparation. '

e The Foreign Fire Insurance Fund submitted their initial budget request for FY 2017-18 on
November 18, 2017. The Foreign Fire Insurance Fund Board has recently identified several
other spending items that they wish to proceed with for FY 2017-18. To accommodate this
request, the Training appropriation in account 25000-7735 was increased by $1,500 from the
budgeted amount (to a revised total of $9,500) and the General Equipment appropriation in
account 2500-7918 was increased by $39,000 from the budgeted amount (to a revised total of
$86,500). The General Equipment additional items include $10,000 for assorted fire hose and
nozzles, $13,000 for stabilization equipment on vehicles #84 and #85, $12,000 for vehicle
extrication equipment for vehicle #84, and $4,000 for a ventilation fan for vehicle #84. There
are sufficient funds in the Foreign Fire Insurance Tax Fund to allow for this request.
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VILLAGE OF

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

Est. 1873

In addition to the line item budget amounts, a contingency amount is added for unforeseen expenses
in each department. The contingency amount is to ensure that the Village has spending authority in
case of unforeseen emergencies such as severe weather or fire. If the contingency amount is not
available, the Village would be legally precluded from procuring needed services to the citizens in a
timely manner. As to the amounts for the Hinsdale Public Library, these amounts were approved by a
separate resolution of the Hinsdale Public Library Board.

Budget Impact
There is no impact to the original budget. The Appropriations Ordinance sets the legal spending limit

for the Village.

Village Board and/or Committee Action
The public hearing and first reading of this item was held on June 13, 2017 whereby it was the
consensus of the Village Board to place this item on the second reading agenda for July 11, 2017.

Documents Attached
1. FY 2017-18 Annual Appropriations Ordinance
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
ORDINANCE NO. 02017-

ANNUAL APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR MAY 1, 2017, TO APRIL 30, 2018

WHEREAS, a proposed appropriation ordinance for the Village of Hinsdale for the fiscal
year ending April 30, 2018, upon which this Annual Appropriation Ordinance is based, was
heretofore duly prepared and made conveniently available to the public for at least 10 days prior to
the public hearing described below and for at least 10 days prior to the adoption of this Annual
Appropriation Ordinance, all in accordance with the requirements of Section 8-2-9 of the Illinois

Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/8-2-9; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale, pursuant to notice duly
published on May 25, 2017 in the Hinsdalean in accordance with the requirements of said Section
8-2-§ held a public hearing on June 13, 2017, at the Memorial Buildiﬁg, 19 East Chicago Avenue,
Hinsdale, Illinois, for the purpose of hearing and considering testimony regarding the proposed

appropriation ordinance; and

WHEREAS, all required or necessary revisions, alternations, increases, or decreases in the
proposed appropriation ordinance have since been made and are reflected in this Annual

Appropriation Ordinance;



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the

Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of Illinois, as follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as findings of the

President and Board of Trustees.

Section 2. General Corporate Appropriations. The following sums of money, or so

much thereof as may be authorized by law, are deemed necessary to defray all necessary expenses
and liabilities of the Village of Hinsdale for the fiscal year commencing on May 1, 2017, and
ending April 30, 2018, and the same shall be, and they are hereby, appropriated for the objects and

purposes hereinafter specified:



FY 2017-18 Appropriation Ordinance

Corporate Fund - 10000
General Government Department - 1000

7001
7002
7003
7005
7099
7101
7102
7105
7111
7201
7204
7299
7309
7316
7399
7401
7402
7403
7414
7415
7419
7499
7501
7503
7508
7520
7539
7599
7602
7606
7701
7702
7703
7706
7707
7709
7710
7711
7725
7729
7735

Salaries & Wages

Overtime

Temporary Help

Longevity Pay

Water Fund Cost Allocation
Social Security

IMRF

Medicare

Employee Insurance

Legal Services

Auditing

Misc. Professional Services
Data Processing

IT Service Contract

Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Utilities

Telephone

Legal Publications
Employment Advertising
Printing & Publications

Misc. Services

Office Supplies

Gasoline & Oil

Licenses

Computer Equipment Supplies
Software Purchases

Misc. Supplies

Office Equipment

Computer Equipment
Conferences & Staff Development
Memberships & Subscriptions
Employee Relations

Plan Commission

Historic Preservation Commission
Board of Fire & Police Commissioners
Economic Development Commission
Zoning Board of Appeals
Ceremonial Occasions
Principal Expense

Educational Training

Appropriation
893,826

10,000
168,025
1,200
(781,648)
56,253
125,179
15,559
137,588
250,000
34,000
38,100
109,180
176,000
28,500
17,500
3,000
13,775
6,000
4,000
12,100
4,850
14,400
250
2,500
19,300
35,600
11,200
12,000
1,000
20,000
24,175
14,100
500
10,000
33,900
90,000
500
1,500
217,910
800



Corporate Fund - 10000
General Government Department - 1000 (cont)
7736 Personnel
7737 Mileage Reimbursement
7749 Interest Expense
7795 Bank & Bond Fees :
7797 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
7810 IRMA Premiums
7812 Self-Insured Deductible
7899 Other Insurance
7909 Buildings
7918 General Equipment
7919 Computer Equipment
7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total General Government Department

Corporate Fund - 10000

Police Department - 1200
7001 Salaries & Wages
7002 Overtime
7003 Temporary Help
7005 Longevity Pay
7008 Reimbursable Overtime
7099 Water Fund Cost Allocation
7101 Social Security
7102 IMRF
7105 Medicare
7106 Police Pension
7111 Employee Insurance
7299 Misc. Professional Services
7306 Building & Grounds
7307 Custodial
7308 Dispatch Service
7309 Data Processing
7399 Misc. Contractual Services
7401 Postage
7402 Utilities
7403 Telephone
7419 Printing & Publications
7501 Office Supplies
7503 Gasoline & Oil
7504 Uniforms
7507 Building Supplies
7508 Licenses
7509 Janitor Supplies

Appropriation
750

200
5,557
59,400
350,000
28,400
15,000
400
150,000
39,500
405,000
288,683

3,175,512

Appropriation
2,526,490
120,000
179,533
11,400
50,000
(18,820)
21,243
34,099
41,880
791,178
442,585
7,065
750
20,600
273,909
21,504
56,453
1,400
7,500
34,000
10,550
7,700
38,000
34,650
150
1,000
2,500



Corporate Fund - 10000
Police Department - 1200 (cont)
7514 Range Supplies
7515 Camera Supplies
7520 Computer Equipt Supplies
7525 Emergency Management
7530 Medical Supplies
7539 Software Purchases
7599 Misc. Supplies
7601 Buildings
7602 Office Equipment
7603 Motor Vehicles
7604 Radios
7611 Parking Meters
7618 General Equipment

7701 Conferences & Staff Development
7702 Memberships & Subscriptions

7719 HSD Sewer Use Charge
7735 Educational Training
7736 Personnel

7737 Mileage Reimbursement
7810 IRMA Premiums

7812 Self-Insured Deductible
7902 Motor Vehicles

7909 Buildings

7918 General Equipment

7990 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses

Total Police Department

Corporate Fund - 10000
Fire Department - 1500
7001 Salaries & Wages
7002 Overtime
7003 Temporary Help
7005 Longevity Pay

7099 Water Fund Cost Allocation

7101 Social Security
7102 IMRF

7105 Medicare

7107 Firefighters Pension
7111 Employee Insurance
7306 Building & Grounds
7307 Custodial

7308 Dispatch Services
7399 Misc. Contractual Services
7401 Postage

7402 Utilities

Appropriation
10,300

500
5,000
1,250

450
2,450

20,700
12,000
4,900
24,000
1,000
1,500
1,500
12,550
7,830
300
29,500
1,000
1,500
66,900
30,000
66,000
46,000
102,000
258,322

5,424,771

Appropriation
2,267,131
215,000
51,893
11,500
(18,820)
14,948
20,369
36,910
976,718
390,238
600
3,000
207,820
10,820
750
7,500



Corporate Fund - 10000
Fire Department - 1500 (cont)

7403
7419
7501
7503
7504
7506
7507
7508
7510
7515
7520
7525
7530
7531
7532
7533
7534
7535
7536
7537
7539
7601
7602
7603
7604
7606
7618
7701
7702
7719
7729
7735
7736
7749
7810
7812
7902
7909
7990

Telephone

Printing & Publications
Office Supplies

Gasoline & Oil

Uniforms

Motor Vehicle Supplies
Building Supplies
Licenses

Tools

Camera Supplies
Computer Equipment Supplies
Emergency Management
Medical Supplies

Fire Prevention Supplies
Oxygen & Air Supplies
Hazmat Supplies

Fire Suppression Supplies
Fire Inspection Supplies
Infection Control Supplies
Safety Supplies

Software Purchases
Buildings

Office Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Radios

Computer Equipment
General Equipment
Conferences & Staff Development
Memberships & Subscriptions
HSD Sewer Use Charge
Bond Principal Repayment
Educational Training
Personnel

Interest Expense-Loan
IRMA Premiums
Self-Insured Deductible
Motor Vehicles

Buildings

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses

Total Fire Department

Appropriation
15,000

750
4,000
12,100
13,000
250
5,800
1,500
5,000
200
1,000
4,500
7,550
2,000
800
4,350
4,150
225
1,200
500
6,000
15,000
1,350
47,000
16,750
1,200
10,100
3,800
8,910
250
103,748
23,590
700
5,909
60,100
15,000
295,000
26,000
246,033

5,166,692




Corporate Fund - 10000
Public Services Department - 2200

7001
7002
7003
7005
7099
7101
7102
7105
7111
7202
7299
7301
7303
7304
7306
7307
7310
7312
7313
7319
7320
7399
7401
7402
7403
7405
7409
7411
7419
7501
7503
7504
7505
7506
7507
7508
7509
7510
7518
7519
7530
7539
7599
7601

Salaries & Wages
Overtime

Temporary Help

Longevity Pay

Water Fund Cost Allocation
Social Security

IMRF

Medicare

Employee Insurance
Engineering

Other Professional Services
Street Sweeping

Mosquito Abatement

D E D Removals

Building & Grounds
Custodial

Traffic Signals
Landscaping

Third Party Review

Tree Trimming

Elm Tree Fungicide Program

Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Utilities

Telephone

Dumping

Equipment Rental
Holiday Decorating
Printing & Publishing
Office Supplies
Gasoline & Oil
Uniforms

Chemicals

Motor Vehicle Supplies
Building Supplies
Licenses

Janitor Supplies
Tools

Laboratory Supplies
Trees

Medical Supplies
Software Purchases
Misc. Supplies
Buildings

Appropriation
1,230,594

65,000
63,236
4,100
(130,472)
83,499
156,537
19,762
195,010
1,000
18,500

47,660 -
55,496
94,396
10,000
48,240
400
59,371
40,000
65,740
147,237
47,200
1,200
150,300
9,350
19,800
1,300
10,060
500
5,250
19,300
12,460
76,530
2,500
3,000
122
3,800
8,265
75
99,180
1,000
2,500
9,700
30,490



Corporate Fund - 10000

Public Services Department - 2200 (cont)

7602
7603
7604
7605
7615
7618
7619
7622
7699
7701
7702
7719
7735
7736
7810
7812
7902
7909
7990

Office Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Radios

Grounds

Streets & Alleys

General Equipment
Traffic & Street Lights
Traffic & Street Signs
Misc. Repairs
Conferences & Staff Development
Dues & Subscriptions
HSD Sewer Use Charge
Educational Training
Personnel

IRMA Premium

Self Insurance Deductable
Motor Vehicles

Buildings

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses

Total Public Services Department

Corporate Fund - 10000
Community Dev. Department - 2400

7001
7002
7003
7005
7099
7101
7102
7105
7111
7309
7311
7313
7401
7403
7419
7499
7501
7502
7503
7504

Salaries & Wages
Overtime

Temporary Help
Longevity Pay

Water Fund Cost Allocation
Social Security
IMRF

Medicare

Employee Insurance
Data Processing
Inspectors
Commercial Review
Postage

Telephone

Printing & Publishing
Misc. Services

Office Supplies
Publications

Gasoline & Oil
Uniforms

Appropriation
2,350

42,760
1,865
3,316

50,240
1,250
7,000

18,300

550
1,520
7,150
1,500
7,370
2,550

48,600

25,000

270,000
225,000
175,275

3,680,784

Appropriation
543,755
5,000
84,688
1,900
(149,111)
38,268
75,295
9,212
72,406
9,300
35,000
10,000
2,500
7,000
750
7,500
6,000
1,200
600
850



Corporate Fund - 10000
Community Dev. Department - 2400 (cont)

7510
7599
7602
7603
7701
7702
7735
7736
7737
7810
7812
7990

Tools

Misc. Supplies

Office Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Conferences & Staff Development
Dues & Subscriptions

Educational Training

Personnel

Mileage Reimbursement

IRMA Premiums

Self-Insured Deductible

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total Community Development Department

Corporate Fund - 10000
Parks & Recreation Department - 3000

7001
7002
7003
7005
7099
7101
7102
7105
7111
7306
7307
7309
7312
7314
7399
7401
7402
7403
7406
7409
7419
7501
7503
7504

Salaries & Wages
Overtime

Temporary Help
Longevity Pay

Water Fund Cost Allocation
Social Security

IMRF

Medicare

Employee Insurance
Buildings & Grounds
Custodial

Data Processing
Landscaping
Recreation Programs
Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Utilities

Telephone

Citizen Information
Equipment Rental
Printing & Publications
Office Supplies
Gasoline & Oil
Uniforms

Appropriation
500

100
3,500
750
750
2,250
2,500
200
100
10,400
2,500
39,283

824,946

Appropriation
412,767

10,200
277,413
1,400
(18,820)
43,448
56,561
10,161
85,402
48,550
36,150
14,580
107,250
232,850
23,318
3,300
89,000
9,500
22,800
5,555
18,700
6,250
7,700
7,545



Corporate Fund - 10000

Parks & Recreation Department - 3000 (cont)

7505
7507
7508
7509
7510
7511
7517
7520
7530
7537
7599
7601
7602
7603
7604
7605
7617
7618
7699
7701
7702
7708
7719
7735
7736
7737
7795
7810
7812
7902
7908
7909
7918
7990

Chemicals

Building Supplies

Licenses

Janitorial Supplies

Tools

KLM Event Supplies
Recreation Supplies

Computer Equipment

Medical Supplies

Safety Supplies

Misc. Supplies

Buildings

Office Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Radios

Grounds

Recreation Equipment

General Equipment

Misc. Repairs

Conferences & Staff Development
Memberships & Subscriptions
Park & Recreation Commission
Flagg Creek Sewer Charge
Educational Training
Personnel

Mileage Reimbursement

Bank & Bond Fees

IRMA Premiums

Self-Insured Deductible

Motor Vehicles

Land & Grounds

Buildings

General Equipment
Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total Parks & Recreation Department

Motor Fuel Tax Fund - 23000

7990

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

Appropriation
13,850
4,000
3,475
5,550
2,550
2,500
39,000
500
380
850
50
61,600
4,100
1,750
660
16,700
2,000
24,480
150
3,000
2,198
50
3,500
2,045
330
650
11,000
29,500
2,500
36,000
211,405
105,000
15,000
105,895

2,223,798

Appropriation
0

0




Foreign Fire Insurance Fund - 25000

7504
7735
7802
7918
7990

Uniforms

Educational Training

Officials Bonds

General Equipment

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

Debt Service Funds - 32000

7729
7749
7795
7990

Bond Principal Payment

Interest Expense

Bank & Bond Fees

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

MIP Infrastructure Projects Fund-45300

7202
7904
7906
7990

Engineering

Sidewalks

Street Improvements

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

Annual Infrastructure Projects Fund-45400

Appropriation
5,000

9,500
500
86,500
10,150

111,650

Appropriation
745,000

333,754
1,700
54,023

1,134,477

Appropriation
223,000
305,000
13,263,455
689,573

14,481,028

7925
7990

Infrastructure Improvements
Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

Water & Sewer Oper. Fund - 61061

7001
7002
7005
7099
7101
7102
7105
7111
7201
7202

Salaries & Wages

Overtime

Longevity Pay .
Water Fund Cost Allocatio
Social Security

IMRF

Medicare

Employee Insurance

Legal Services

Engineering

Appropriation
2,251,086
112,554

2,363,640

Appropriation
563,896
80,000
3,100
1,117,692
40,114
77,187
9,381
87,712
2,500
7,500



Water & Sewer Oper. Fund - 61061 (cont)

7299
7306
7307
7309
7330
7399
7401
7402
7403
7405
7406
7419
7499
7501
7503
7504
7505
7509
7510
7518
7520
7530
7599
7601
7602
7603
7604
7608
7609
7614
7618
7699
7701
7702
7713
7719
7735
7736
7748
7749
7810
7812
7902
7910
7912
7918
7990

Misc. Professional Services
Buildings & Grounds
Custodial Services

Data Processing

DWC Costs

Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Utilities

Telephone

Dumping

Citizens Information
Printing & Publishing
Misc. Services

Office Supplies

Gasoline & Oil

Uniforms

Chemicals

Janitor Supplies

Tools

Laboratory Supplies
Computer Equipment Supplies
Medical Supplies

Misc. Supplies

Buildings

Office Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Radios

Sewers

Water Mains

Catchbasins

General Equipment
Miscellaneous Repairs
Conferences & Staff Development
Memberships & Subscriptions
Utility Tax

HSD Sewer Use Charge
Educational Training
Personnel

Loan Principal

Interest Expense

IRMA Premiums
Self-Insured Deductibles
Motor Vehicles

Water Meters

Fire Hydrants

General Equipment
Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

Appropriation
9,645

1,500
7,272
11,100
4,270,000
117,000
13,000
69,600
36,000
16,350
2,400
600
17,639
700
8,500
5,500
7,000
675
14,027
400
775
550
700
31,280
450
9,157
1,100
20,062
82,074
7,822
9,550
2,500
1,400
8,212
390,000
400
465
250
180,045
38,555
122,000
2,500
200,000
75,000
25,000
105,000
395,642

8,308,479




Water & Sewer Capital Fund - 61062

7905
7907
7990

Water & Sewer Debt Service Fund - 61064 & 61065

Sewers
Water Mains

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

Appropriation
816,000

342,000
115,800

1,273,800

7729
7749
7795
7990

Bond Principal Payment
Interest Expense
Bank & Bond Fees

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

Police Pension Fund - 71100

7011
7012
7201
7299
7702
7735
7795
7799
7990

Pension Payments

Disability Payments

Legal Expenses

Misc. Professional Services
Memberships & Subscriptions
Educational Training

Bank & Bond Fees
Miscellaneous Expenses

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

Firefishters' Pension Fund - 71200

7011
7012
7201
7299
7702
7735
7795
7990

Pension Payments

Disability Payments

Legal Expenses

Misc. Professional Services
Memberships & Subscriptions
Educational Training

Bank & Bond Fees

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

Library Capital Projects Fund - 95000

7729
7748
7749
7909
7990

Bond Principal Payment

Loan Principal

Interest Expense

Buildings

Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses
Total

Appropriation
560,000

103,336
875
33,211

697,422

Appropriation
1,689,790
120,411
10,000
161,000
- 795
3,500
1,000
5,500
199,200

2,191,196

Appropriation
1,334,363

260,579
10,000
58,100

795
2,500
1,000

166,734

1,834,071

Appropriation
0

50,000
2,995
110,750
100,000

263,745




Library Operations Fund - 99000

7001
7002
7003
7101
7102
7105
7111
7114
7115
7121
7125
7126
7127
7128
7130
7134

7135
7144
7146
7161
7163
7165
7167
7169
7181
7182
7183
7184
7185
7186
7187
7188
7189
7191
7192
7193
7194
7195
7196
7197
7198
7199
7297
7298
7729
7749
7795
7803

Salaries & Wages

Overtime

Temporary Help

Social Security Expense

IMRF

Medicare Expense

Employee Insurance

Conferences & Staff Development
Staff Recognition
Marketing-Printing

Library Programs - Youth

Library Programs - Adult

Books - Youth & YA

Adult Materials - Books/Audio/Video
Periodicals

E-Books

Technical Services - Cards/Bindery
Software Purchases
Computer Support - Maintenance
Custodial

Utilities

Janitorial - Maintenance Supplies
Maintenance Contracts

Misc. Repairs - Improvements
Legal Expenses

Planning Services

Misc. Contractual Services
Postage

Telephone

Accounting

Misc. Services

Office Supplies

Copier Supplies

Office Equip Maintenance
Memberships & Subscriptions
Special - Ceremonial Events
HPL Foundation

Helen O'Neill Scholarship
Library Development

Friends Pledges Exp

Grant Expenses

Misc Expense

Donations Expenses
Foundation Expenses
Principal

Interest Expense

Credit Card/Bank Fees
Liability Insurance

Appropriation
1,389,710
1,000
4,000
86,857
136,000
20,151
145,000
24,000
3,000
54,000
24,000
9,000
66,750
185,000
19,000
44,000

18,000
25,000
65,122
31,000
12,000
6,500
9,000
33,000
5,500
1,000
11,000
650
5,500
52,061
1,500
14,000
2,750
3,500
3,000
7,500
0

500

0
50,000
0
1,000
50,000
50,000
57,090
1,456
750
300



Library Operations Fund - 99000
7810 IRMA Premiums
7812 IRMA Deductible
7909  Art Acquistions
9032 Transfer-Debt Service
9095 Transfer-Capital Reserve

7900 Contingency for Unforeseen Expenses

Total

All Funds Summary
Corporate Fund - 10000

Departments - 1000 thru 4000

Motor Fuel Tax Fund - 23000

Foreign Fire Insurance Fund - 25000

Debt Service Funds - 37000

MIP Infrastructure Project Fund - 45300
Annual Infrastructure Project Fund - 45400
Water & Sewer Operations Fund - 61061
Water & Sewer Capital Fund - 61062
Water & Sewer Debt Service Fund - 61063
Police Pension Fund - 71100

Firefighters' Pension Fund - 71200

Library Funds - 95000 & 99000

Total All Funds

Appropriation
37,374

10,000

15,000
223312
163,745
317,958

3,497,536

Appropriation

20,496,503
0

111,650
1,134,477
14,481,028
2,363,640
8,308,479
1,273,800
697,422
2,191,196
1,834,071
3,761,281

56,653,547




Section 3. Unexpended Prior Appropriations. Any sum of money heretofore

appropriated for any object or purpose and not expended that is now in the Treasury of the Village
of Hinsdale or that may hereafter come into the Treasury of the Village of Hinsdale is hereby re-
appropriated by this Annual Appropriation Ordinance for such object or purpose.

Section 4. Allotment of Funds. Any funds derived from sources other than the 2016

tax levy and other than revenue pledged for specific purposes may be allotted by the Village
President and Board of Trustees to such appropriations and in such amounts, respectively, as the
Board of Trustees may determine, within the limits of said appropriations, respectively, insofar as
the doing of same does not conflict with law.

Section 5. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with the

provisions of this Annual Appropriation Ordinance shall be, and they are hereby, repealed.

Section 6. Effective Date. This Annual Appropriation Ordinance shall be in full force

and effect from and after its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner
provided by law.

PASSED this 11™ day of July 2017.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 11" day of July 2017.

Thomas Cauley, Village President
ATTEST:

Christine Bruton, Village Clerk



AGENDA ITEM #q b

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

VILLAGE OF

Est. 1873 Finance
AGENDA SECTION: Second Reading — ACA
SUBJECT: 2017A General Obligation (Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Bond Issue
MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017
FROM: Darrell Langlois, Assistant Village Manager/Finance Director

Recommended Motion

Move to approve an ordinance authorizing and providing for the issue of approximately $9,900,000
General Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2017A, for the purpose of
providing for certain public infrastructure projects, the pledge of certain sales tax revenues and the
imposition of taxes to pay said bonds, and the sale of said bonds to the purchaser thereof.

Background
During early May the Village started the process to sell up to $10 million in bonds in order to begin to

finance the accelerated infrastructure program. At the meeting on May 2, 2017, the Village Board
adopted an ordinance formally authorizing the sale of the bonds. The required public hearing on the
bond sale was held on June 13, 2017. The actual competitive sale of the bonds is scheduled for the
morning of July 11, 2017.

Discussion & Recommendation

The attached bond ordinance has been prepared by Chapman and Cutler, Village bond counsel and
has been reviewed by the Village Attorney. There are still several items that need to be inserted in
the final document once bids are received on Tuesday July 11. Although the amount of the bonds to
be sold is currently blank, it is estimated that bonds totaling $9,900,000 will be sold in order to fund
the first stage of the accelerated infrastructure program. A financial summary of the competitive sale
and a complete version of the final ordinance will be distributed before the Village Board meeting on
July 11, 2017.

Budget Impact
Proceeds from the bond sale will be used to fund the accelerated infrastructure program.

Village Board and/or Committee Action
The authorizing ordinance was approved on May 2, 2017. The legally required public hearing was
held on June 13, 2017.

Documents Attached
1. Ordinance authorizing and providing for the issue of approximately $9,900,000 General
Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2017A, for the purpose of
providing for certain public infrastructure projects, the pledge of certain sales tax revenues and
the imposition of taxes to pay said bonds, and the sale of said bonds to the purchaser thereof

Page 1 of 2



ORDINANCE NUMBER

AN ORDINANCE authorizing and providing for the issue of
$ General Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate
Revenue Source), Series 2017A, of the Village of Hinsdale,
DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, for the purpose of providing
for certain public infrastructure projects, the pledge of certain sales
tax revenues and the imposition of taxes to pay said bonds, and the
sale of said bonds to the purchaser thereof.

Adopted by the President and Board
of Trustees of said Village on the
11th day of July, 2017.

Published in Pamphlet Form by
Authority of the President and Board
of Trustees of said Village on the
___day of July, 2017.
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ORDINANCE NUMBER

AN ORDINANCE authorizing and providing for the issue of
$ General Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate
Revenue Source), Series 2017A, of the Village of Hinsdale,
DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, for the purpose of providing
for certain public infrastructure projects, the pledge of certain sales
tax revenues and the imposition of taxes to pay said bonds, and the
sale of said bonds to the purchaser thereof.

WHEREAS, the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois (the “Village”),
is a duly organized and existing municipality incorporated and existing under the provisions of
the laws of the State of Illinois, and is now operating under the provisions of the Illinois
Municipal Code, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village (the “Corporate
Authorities”) has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the best interests of
the Village and its residents to finance certain costs to be incurred in connection with certain
public infrastructure projects, including, but not limited to, acquisition and construction of
improverhent_s to municipal roads and streets, access roads, bridges, and sidewalks; waste
disposal systetﬁs , water and sewer line extensions, water distribution and purification facilities,
storm water drainage and retention facilities, and sewage treatment facilities; and construction of
a parking deck structure within the Village; and including, in connection with said
improvements, acquisition of all land or rights in land, engineering, planning, architectural,
mechanical, electrical, and other services necessary, useful, or advisable thereto and, incidental
to said improvements (the “Project”), at an estimated cost, including expenses and
contingencies, of not less than $ plus investment earnings thereon, for which there
are no funds of the Village on hand and lawfully available for the purpose, and that
$ will need to be obtained through the borrowing of money and the issuance of

bonds; and



WHEREAS, the expenses and contingencies related to the Project include legal, financial,
and accounting services related to the accomplishment of the Project and the issuance of bonds
therefor, bond discount, bond registrar, paying agent, and other similar banking fees, printing and
publication costs, and other miscellaneous costs; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 15 of the Local Government Debt
Reform Act of the State of Illinois, as amended (the “Reform Act”), whenever there exists a
revenue source, the Village is authorized to issue “alternate bonds,” being general obligation
bonds payable from such revenue source; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities, on the 2nd day of May, 2017, adopted an ordinance
(the “Authorizing Ordinance”), authorizing the issuance of certain Alternate Bonds, being
General Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) payable from revenue sources
as provided by the Reform Act (the “2017 Alternate Bonds”), in an amount not to exceed
$10,000,000 for the Project; and

WHEREAS, on the 11th day of May, 2017, the Authorizing’Ordinance, which included
therein a notice in the statutory form, was published in The Hinsdalean, a paper having a general
circulation in the Village, and an affidavit evidencing the publication of the Authorizing
Ordinance and said notice has heretofore been presented to the Corporate Authorities and made a
part of the permanent records of the Village; and

WHEREAS, no petition has ever been filed with the Village Clerk requesting that the
question of the issuance of the 2017 Alternate Bonds for the Project be submitted to referendum;
and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have been authorized to issue the 2017 Alternate
Bonds to the amount of $10,000,000 in accordance with the provisions of the Reform Act and

the Authorizing Ordinance; $-0- of such bonds have heretofore been issued by the Village; and



the Corporate Authorities hereby determine that it is necessary and advisable that there be issued
at this time $ of the authorized amount; and

WHEREAS, the 2017 Alternate Bonds to be issued will be payable from the Pledged
Revenues and the Pledged Taxes, both as hereinafter defined; and

WHEREAS, the Pledged Revenues will be pledged to the 2017 Alternate Bonds on a parity
with the Village’s outstanding General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source),
Series 2012A (the “20! ZA Alternate Bonds”), which 2012A Alternate Bonds were issued
pursuant to an ordinance adopted by the Corporate Authorities on the 14th day of August, 2012
(the “2012A Alternate Bond Ordinance”), and General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue
Source), Series 2014B (the “2014B Alternate Bonds”), which 2014B Alternate Bonds were
issued pursuant to an ordinance adopted by the Corporate Authorities on the 17th day of June,
2014 (the “2014B Alternate Bond Ordinance”); and

WHEREAS, the 2012A Alternate Bond Ordinance and the 2014B Alternate Bond
Ordinance permit the issuance of additional alternate bonds on a parity with the 2012A Alternate
Bonds and the 2014B Alternate Bonds provided that the requirements of the Reform Act for the
issuance of alternate bonds payable from the Pledged Revenues shall have been met; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities hereby determine that the Pledged Revenues will
provide in each year to final maturity of the proposed 2017 Alternate Bonds an amount not less
than 1.25 times total debt service on the proposed 2017 Alternate Bonds, the 2014B Alternate
Bonds and the 2012A Alternate Bonds, said series of bonds being the only series of alternate
bonds payable from the Pledged Revenues; and

WHEREAS, such determination of the sufficiency of the Pledged Revenues is supported by
the most recent audit of the Village for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2016 (the “Audit”),

which Audit has been presented to and accepted by the Corporate Authorities, is now on file with



the Village Clerk and is for a fiscal year ending not earlier than 18 months previous to the time
of the proposed issuance of the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the Bond Issue
Notification Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, the President of the Village (the
“President”), on the 2nd day of May, 2017, executed an Order calling a public hearing (the
“Hearing”) for the 13th day of June, 2017, concerning the intent of the Corporate Authorities to
sell not to exceed $10,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source)
for the Project; and

WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing was given by (i) publication at least once not less than
seven (7) nor more than thirty (30) days before the date of the Hearing in The Hinsdalean, the
same being a newspaper of general circulation in the Village and (ii) posting at least 96 hours
before the Hearing a copy of said notice at the principal office of the Corporate Authorities; and

WHEREAS, the Hearing was held on the 13th day of June, 2017, and at the Hearing, the
Corporate Authorities explained the reasons for the proposed bond issue and permitted persons
desiring to be heard an opportunity to present written or oral testimony within reasonable time
limits; and

WHEREAS, the Hearing was finally adjourned on the 13th day of June, 2017, and not less
than seven (7) days have passed since the final adjournment of the Hearing; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities are now authorized to issue the 2017 Alternate
Bonds to the amount of $10,000,000 in accordance with the provisions of the Reform Act, and
the Corporate Authorities hereby determine that it is necessary and desirable that there be issued
at this time 2017 Alternate Bonds as necessary for the Project, and that the amount of bonds so

required to be issued at this time is $ ;and



WHEREAS, the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law of the State of Illinois, as
amended (the “Tax Limitation Law”), imposes certain limitations on the “aggregate extension”
of certain property taxes levied by the Village, but provides that the definition of “aggregate
extension” contained in Section 18-185 of the Tax Limitation Law does not include “extensions
... made for payments of principal and interest on bonds issued under Section 15 of the Local
Government Debt Reform Act”; and

WHEREAS, the County Clerks of The Counties of DuPage and Cook, Illinois (the “County
Clerks”), are therefore authorized to extend and collect said direct annual ad valorem tax so
levied for the payment of the 2017 Alternate Bonds for the Project without limitation as to rate or
amount:

NoWw, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village
of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1.  Definitions. Words and terms used in this Ordinance shall have the
meanings given them unless the context or use clearly indicates another or different meaning is
intended. Words and terms defined in the singular may be used in the plural and vice-versa.
Reference to any gender' shall be deemed to include the other and also inanimate persons such as
corporations, where applicable.

A. The following words and terms are as defined in the preambles hereto.

2012A Alternate Bond Ordinance
2014B Alternate Bond Ordinance
2012A Alternate Bonds

2014B Alternate Bonds

2017 Alternate Bonds

Audit



Authorizing Ordinance

Corporate Authorities

Hearing

President

Project

Reform Act

Tax Limitation Law

Village
B. The following words and terms are defined as set forth.

“Additional Bonds” means any alternate bonds issued in the future in accordance
with the provisions of the Reform Act on a parity with and sharing equally in the Pledged
Revenues with the Bonds.

“Alternate Bonds” means the Bonds, the 2012A Alternate Bonds, the 2014B
Alternate Bonds and any Additional Bonds.

“Bond” or “Bonds” or “2017 Alternate Bonds” means one or more, as
applicable, of the $ General Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate Revenue
Source), Series 2017A, authorized to be issued by this Ordinance.

“Bond Fund” means the 2017 Alternate Bond Fund established hereunder and
further described in Section 11 of this Ordinance.

“Bond Register” means the books of the Village kept by the Bond Registrar to
evidence the registration and transfer of the Bonds.

“Bond Registrar” or “Paying Agent” means Amalgamated Bank of Chicago,

Chicago, Illinois, a banking association having trust powers, or a successor bank with



trust powers or a trust company, duly authorized to do business as a bond registrar and as
paying agent as herein required.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Designated Oﬁficersv” means the President, Village Clerk, or Treasurer, or
assigns, or any of them acting together.

“Expense Fund” means the fund established hereunder and further described in
Section 19 of this Ordinance.

“Fiscal Year” means that twelve-calendar month period selected by the Corporate
Authorities as the Fiscal Year for the Village.

“Ordinance” means this Ordinance as supplemented or amended from time to
time.

“Outstanding” or “outstanding” when used with reference to the Bonds, the
2012A Alternate Bonds, the 2014B Alternate Bonds and Additional Bonds means such of
those bonds which are outstanding and unpaid; provided, however, such term shall not
include Bonds, 2012A Alternate Bonds, 2014B Alternate Bonds or Additional Bonds
(i) which have matured and for which moneys are on deposit with proper paying agents
or are otherwise sufficiently available to pay all principal thereof and interest thereon or
(ii) the provision for payment of which has been made by the Village by the deposit in an
irrevocable trust or escrow of funds or direct, full faith and credit obligations of the
United States of America, the principal of and interest on which will be sufficient to pay
at maturity or as called for redemption all the principal of, redemption premium, if any,
and interest on such Bonds, 2012A Alternate Bonds, 2014B Alternate Bonds or

Additional Bonds.



“Pledged Moneys” means, collectively, the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged
Taxes, as each are defined herein.

“Pledged Revenues” means collections distributed to the Village from those taxes
imposed by the State of Illinois (the “State”) pursuant to the Use Tax Act, the Service
Use Tax Act, the Service Occupation Tax Act, the Retailers’ Occupation Tax Act, the
Non-Home Rule Municipal Retailers’ Occupation Tax Act and the Non-Home Rule
Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act, each as supplemented and amended from time to
time, or substitute taxes therefor as provided by the State in the future.

“Pledged Taxes” means the ad valorem taxes levied against all of the taxable
property in the Village without limitation as to rate or amount, pledged hereunder by the
Village as security for the Bonds, as more fully described in Section 12 of this Ordinance.

“Project Fund” means the Project Fund (2017) established hereunder and further
described in Section 19 of this Ordinance.

“Purchase Contract” means the contract for the purchase and sale of the Bonds
with the Purchaser, consisting of an official “Notice of Sale” by the Village and an
official “Bid Form” by and between the Purchaser and the Village.

“Purchase Price” means the price paid for the Bonds, to-wit: $
(being the par amount of the Bonds, plus original issue premium in the amount of

$ , and net of an underwriter’s discount of $ ), plus accrued

interest (if any).

“Purchaser” means

“Record Date” means the 1stday of the month of any regularly scheduled

interest payment date.



“Tax-exempt” means, with respect to the Bonds, the status of interest paid and
received thereon as excludable from the gross income of the owners thereof under the

Code for federal income tax purposes and as not included as an item of tax preference in

computing the alternative minimum tax for individuals and corporations under the Code,

but as taken into account in computing an adjustment used in determining the federal
alternative minimum tax for certain corporations.
“Term Bonds” means Bonds subject to mandatory redemption by operation of the

Bond Fund and designated as term bonds in Section 6 hereof.

“Treasurer” means the Treasurer of the Village.
“Village Clerk” means the Village Clerk of the Village.

Section 2.  Incorporation of‘Preambles. The Corporate Authorities hereby find that the
recitals contained in the preambles to this Ordinance are true and correct and do incorporate
them into this Ordinance by this reference, and such finding shall be incontestable under the
Reform Act as therein provided.

Section 3. Authorization. It is hereby found and determined that the Corporate
Authorities have been authorized by law to borrow the sum of $ upon the credit of
the Village and as evidence of such indebtedness to issue bonds of the Village in said amount,
the proceeds of said bonds to be used for the Project, and that it is necessary to borrow
$ of said authorized sum and issue the Bonds in evidence thereof for purposes of
paying costs of the Project, and that it is necessary and for the best interests of the Village that
there be issued at this time $ of the bonds so authorized for the Project.

Section 4.  Determination to Issue Bonds. It is necessary and in the best interests of the
Village for the Village to undertake the Project for the public health, safety and welfare, and to

issue the Bonds to enable the Village to pay the costs thereof.



Section 5. Bond Details. For the purpose of providing for the payment of the costs of
the Project, there shall be issued and sold the Bonds in the principal amount of $
The Bonds shall each be designated “General Obligation Bond (Sales Tax Alternate Revenue
Source), Series 2017A,” and be dated the date of issuance thereof (the “Dated Date”), and shall
also bear the date of authentication thereof. The Bonds shall be in fully registered form, shall be
in denominations of $5,000 or authorized integral multiples thereof (but no single Bond shall
represent principal maturing on more than one date), as shall be numbered in such reasonable
fashion as may be selected by the Bond Registrar, and shall mature (subject to prior redemption
as hereinafter provided) on December 15 of the years and in the amounts and shall bear interest

at the rates percent per annum as follows:

YEAR AMOUNT ($) RATE (%)

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037

Each Bond shall bear interest from the later of its Dated Date as herein above provided or

from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for,
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until the principal amount of such Bond is paid or duly provided for, such interest (computed
upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) being payable semiannually on each
June 15 and December 15, commencing on June 15, 2018. Interest on each Bond shall be paid
by check or draft of the Paying Agent, payable upon presentation thereof in lawful money of the
United States of America, tb the person in whose name such Bond is registered at the close of
business on the Record Date. The principal of the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the
United States of America upon presentation thereof at the principal corporate trust office of the
Paying Agent.

Section 6.  Redemption. (a) Optional Redemption. The Bonds due on and after
December 15, 2026 are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Village as a
whole, or in part in any order of maturity determined by the Village (less than all of the Bonds of
a single maturity to be selected by the Bond Registrar), on December 15, 2025, or on any date

thereafter, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

b) Mandatory Redemption. [The Bonds are not subject to mandatory redemption].

(c) Redemption Procedure. The Bond Registrar shall proceed with mandatory
redemption without further notice or direction from the Village. For redemptions at the option of
the Village, the Village shall, at least 45 days prior to the redemption date (unless a shorter time
period shall be satisfactory to the Bond Registrar), notify the Bond Registrar of such redemption
date and of the principal amount and maturities of Bonds to be redeemed. For purposes of any
redemption of less than all of the Bonds of a single maturity, the particular Bonds or portions of
Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot not more than 60 days prior to the redemption date
by the Bond Registrar for the Bonds of such series and maturity by such method of lottery as the
Bond Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate; provided, that such lottery shall provide for the

selection for redemption of Bonds or portions thereof so that any $5,000 Bond or $5,000 portion
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of a Bond shall be as likely to be called for redemption as any other such $5,000 Bond or $5,000
portion.

The principal amounts of Bonds to be mandatorily redeemed in each year may be reduced
through the earlier optional redemption thereof, with any partial optional redemptions of such
Bonds credited against future mandatory redemption requirements in such order of the
mandatory redemption dates as the Village may determine. In addition, on or prior to the
60th day preceding any mandatory redemption date, the Bond Registrar may, and if directed by
the Corporate Authorities shall, purchase Bonds required to be retired on such mandatory
redemption date. .Any such Bonds so purchased shall be cancelled and the principal amount
thereof shall be credited against the mandatory redemption required on such next mandatory
redemption date.

The Bond Registrar shall promptly notify the Village and the Paying Agent in writing of
the Bonds or portions of Bonds selected for redemption and, in the case of any Bond selected for
partial redemption, the principal amount thereof to be redeemed.

Unless waived by the registered owner of Bonds to be redeemed, official notice of any
such redemption shall be given by the Bond Registrar on behalf of the Village by mailing the
redemption notice by first-class mail not less than 30 days and not more than 60 days prior to the
date fixed for redemption to each registered owner of the Bond or Bonds to be redeemed at the
address shown on the Bond Register or at such other address as is furnished in writing by such
registered owner to the Bond Registrar.

All official notices of redemption shall include the name of the Bonds and at least the

information as follows:

(1) the redemption date;

(2) the redemption price;
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(3) if less than all of the Bonds of a single maturity are to be redeemed, the
identification (and, in the case of partial redemption of any Bonds, the respective
principal amounts) of the Bonds to be redeemed,;

(4) a statement that on the redemption date the redemption price will become
due and payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption and that
interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after said date; and

(5) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the
redemption price, which place of payment shall be the principal corporate trust business
office of the Paying Agent.

Unless moneys sufficient to pay the redemption price of the Bonds to be redeemed shall
have been received by the Paying Agent prior to the giving of such notice of redemption, such
notice may, at the option of the Village, state that said redemption shall be conditionai upon the
receipt of such moneys by the Paying Agent on or prior to the date fixed for redemption. If such
moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect, the Village shall not redeem
such Bonds, and the Bond Registrar shall give notice, in the same manner in which the notice of
redemption shall have been given, that such moneys were not so received and that such Bonds
will not be redeemed. Otherwise, prior to any redemption date, the Village shall deposit with the
Paying Agent an amount of money sufficieﬁt to pay the redemption price of all the Bonds or
portions of Bonds which are to be redeemed on that date.

Subject to the provisions for a conditional redemption described above, notice of
redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds so to be redeemed
shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price therein specified,
and from and after such date (unless the Village shall default in the payment of the redemption
price) such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of such
Bonds for redemption in accordance with said notice, such Bonds shall be paid by the Paying
Agent at the redemption price. The procedure for the payment of interest due as part of the
redemption price shall be as herein provided for payment of interest otherwise due. Upon

surrender for any partial redemption of any Bond, there shall be prepared for the registered
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owner a new Bond or Bonds of like tenor, of authorized denominations, of the same maturity,
and bearing the same rate of interest in the amount of the unpaid principal.

If any Bond or portion of a Bond called for redemption shall not be so paid upon
surrender thereof for redemption, the principal shall, until paid or duly provided for, bear interest
from the redemption date at the rate borne by the Bond or portion of Bond so called for
redemption. All Bonds which have been redeemed shall be cancelled and destroyed by the Bond
Registrar and shall not be reissued.

Section 7. Execution; Authentication. The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the
Village with the manual or facsimile signature of the President and attested with the manual or
facsimile signature of the Village Clerk, as they may determine, and shall have impressed or
imprinted thereon the corporate seal or facsimile thereof of the Village. In case any officer
whose signature shall appear on any Bond shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of
such Bond, such signaturé shall nevertheless be valid aﬁd sufficient for all purposes, the same as
if such officer had remained in office until delivery. |

All Bonds shall have thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form
hereinafter set forth duly executed by the Bond Registrar as authenticating agent of the Village
and showing the date of authentication. No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpbse or
* be entitled to any security or benefit under this Ordinance unless and unﬁl such certificate of
authentication shall have been duly executed by the Bond Registrar by manual signature, and
such certificate of authentication upon any such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such
Bond has been authenticated and delivered under this Ordinance. The -certificate of
authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to have been executed by the Bond Registrar if
signed by an authorized officer of the Bond Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same

officer sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds issued hereunder.
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Section 8.  Registration of Bonds; Persons Treated as Owners; Global Book-Entry
System. (a) General. The Village shall cause books for the registration and for the transfer of
the Bonds as provided in this Ordinance to be kept at the principal corporate trust office of the
Bond Registrar, which is hereby constituted and appointed the registrar of the Village for this
issue. The Village is authorized to prepare, and the Bond Registrar shall keep custody of,

multiple Bond blanks executed by the Village for use in the transfer and exchange of Bonds.

Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the
Bond Registrar, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of
transfer in form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar and duly executed by the registered owner or
his or her attorney duly authorized in writing, the Village shall execﬁte and the Bond Registrar
shall authenticate, date and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new fully
registered Bond or Bonds of the same maturity of authorized denominations, for a like aggregate
principal amount. Any fully registered Bond or Bonds may be exchanged at said office of the
Bond Registrar for a like aggregate principal amount of Bond or Bonds of the same maturity of
other authorized denominations. The execution by the Village of any fully registered Bond shall
constitute full and due authorization of such Bond and the Bond Registrar shall thereby be
authorized to authenticate, date and deliver such Bond; provided, however, the principal amount
of outstanding Bonds of each maturity authenticated by the Bond Registrar shall not exceed the
authorized principal amount of Bonds for such maturity less previous retirements.

The Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange any Bond during the
period beginning at the close of business on the 1st day of the month of any interest payment
date on the Bonds and ending at the opening of business on such interest payment date, nor to

transfer or exchange any Bond after notice calling such Bond for redemption has been mailed,
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nor during a period of fifteen (15) days next preceding mailing of a notice of redemption of any
Bonds.

The person in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as
the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of the principal of or interest on any
Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of the registered owner thereof or his or her legal
representative. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the
liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

No service charge shall be made for any transfer or exchange of Bonds, but the Village or
the Bond Registrar may require paymentk of a sum sufficient to cover ‘any tax or other
governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with any transfer or exchange of Bonds,

except in the case of the issuance of a Bond or Bonds for the unredeemed portion of a Bond

“surrendered for redemption.

(b) Global Book-Entry System. The Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a
separate single fully registered Bond for each of the maturities of the Bonds determined as
described in Section 5 hereof. Upon initial issuance, the ownership of each such Bond shall be
registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede & Co., or any successor thereto (“Cede”), as
nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors and
assigns (“DTC”). All of the outstanding Bonds shall be registered in the Bond Register in the
name of Cede, as nominee of DTC, except as hereinafter provided. The Designated Officers and
the Bond Registrar are each authorized to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Village, such
letters to or agreements with DTC as shall be necessary to effectuate such book-entry system
(any such letter or agreement being referred to herein as the “Representation Letter”), which
Representation Letter may provide for the payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds by

wire transfer.
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With respect to Bonds registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede, as nominee
of DTC, the Village and the Bond Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any
broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which DTC holds Bonds from time to time
as securities depository (each such broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution being
referred to herein as a “DTC Participant”) or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC
Participant holds an interest in the Bonds. Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence,
the Village and the Bond Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to
(i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede or any DTC Participant with respect to any
ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person,
other than a registered owner of a Bond as shown in the Bond Register, of any notice with
respect to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC
Participant or any other person, other than a registered owner of a Bond as shown in the Bond
Register, of any amount with respect to the principal of or interest on the Bonds. The Village
and the Bond Registrar may treat and consider the person in whose name each Bond is registered
in the Bond Reg.ister as the holder and absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose of payment
of principal and interest with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of giving notices of
redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of registering transfers
with respect to such Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever. The Bond Registrar shall pay
all principal of and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of the respective registered
owners of the Bonds, as shown in the Bond Register, or their respective attorneys duly
authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and
discharge the Village’s obligations with respect to payment of the principal of and interest on the
Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than a registered owner of a

Bond as shown in the Bond Register, shall receive a Bond evidencing the obligation of the
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Village to make payments of principal and interest with respect to any Bond. Upon delivery by
DTC to the Bond Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a
new nominee in place of Cede, and subject to the provisions in Section 5 hereof with respect to
the payment of interest to the registered owners of Bonds at the close of business on the 1st day
of the month of the applicable interest payment date, the name “Cede” in this Ordinance shall
refer to such new nominee of DTC.

In the event that (i) the Village determines that DTC is incapable of discharging its
responsibilities described herein and in the Representation Letter, (ii) the agreement among the
Village, the Bond Registrar and DTC evidenced by the Representation Letter shall be terminated
for any reason or (iii) the Village determines that it is in the best interests of the beneficial
owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, the Village shall notify DTC
and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of certificated Bonds and the Bonds shall
no longer be restricted to being registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede, as nominee
of DTC. At that time, the Village may determine that the Bonds shall be registered in the name
of and deposited with such other depository operating a universal book-entry system, as may be
acceptable to the Village, or such depository’s agent or designee, and if the Village does not
select such alternate universal book-entry system, then the Bonds may be registered in whatever
name or names registered owners of Bonds transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in
accordance with the provisions of Section 8(a) hereof.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as any
Bond is registered in the name of Cede, as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to
principal of and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such Bond shall be made

and given, respectively, in the name provided in the Representation Letter.
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Section 9. Form of Bond. The Bonds shall be in substantially the form hereinafter set
forth; provided, however, that if the text of the Bonds is to be printed in its entirety on the front
side of the Bonds, then the second paragraph on the front side and the legend “See Reverse Side
for Additional Provisions” shall be omitted and the text of paragraphs set forth for the reverse

side shall be inserted immediately after the first paragraph.
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[Form of Bond - Front Side]
REGISTERED REGISTERED
No. $
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF ILLINOIS
COUNTIES OF DUPAGE AND COOK

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND (SALES TAX ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE)

SERIES 2017A
See Reverse Side for
Additional Provisions
Interest Maturity Dated »
Rate: % Date: December 15, 20__ Date: July 26, 2017 CUSIP: 433416 __

Registered Owner: CEDE & Co.
Principal Amount:

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook
Counties, Illinois, a municipality and unit of local government and political subdivision of the
State of Illinois (the “Village”), hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received
promises to pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns as hereinafter
provided, on the Maturity Date identified above, the Principal Amount identified above and to
pay interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) on such
Principal Amount from the later of the Dated Date of this Bond identified above or from the
most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for at the
Interest Rate per annum identified above, such interest to be payable semiannually on June 15
and December 15 of each year, commencing on June 15, 2018, until the Principal Amount is
paid or duly provided for, except as the provisions hereinafter set forth with respect to

redemption prior to maturity may be and become applicable hereto. The Principal Amount of
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this Bond is payable in lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation at the
principal corporate trust office of Amalgamated Bank of Chicago, Chicago, Illinois, as paying
agent and bond registrar (the “Bond Registrar”). Payment of the installments of interest shall be
made to the Registered Owner hereof, as shown on the registration books of the Village
maintained by Bond Registrar at the close of business on the Istday of the month of each’
interest payment date. Interest shall be paid by check or draft of the Bond Registrar, payable
upon presentation in lawful money of the United States of America, mailed to the address of
such Registered Owner as it appears on such registration books or at such other address
furnished in writing by such Registered Owner to the Bond Registrar.

Reference is hereby made to the further pfovisions of this Bond set forth on the reverse
hereof, and such further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at
this place. |

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be done
precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have been done and have happened and have been
performed in regular and due form of law; that the indebtedness of the Village, including the
issue of Bonds of which this is one, does not exceed any limitation imposed by law, unless the
Pledged Taxes shall have been extended pursuant to the general obligation full faith and credit
promise supporting the Bonds, in which case the amount of the Bonds then outstanding shall be
included in the computation of indebtedness of the Village for purposes of all statutory
provisions or limitations until such time as an audit of the Village shall show that the Bonds have
been paid from the Pledged Revenues for a complete Fiscal Year; that provision has been made
for the collection of the Pledged Revenues, the levy and collection of the Pledged Taxes, and the
segregation of the Pledged Moneys to pay the interest hereon as it falls due and also to pay and

discharge the principal hereof at maturity; and that the Village hereby covenants and agrees that
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it will properly account for said Pledged Moneys and will comply with all the covenants of and
maintain the funds and accounts as provided by the Ordinance. For the prompt payment of this
Bond, both principal and interest at maturity, the full faith, credit and resources of the Village are
hereby irrevocably pledged.

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until the certificate of
authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Bond Registrar.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, by
its President and Board of Trustees, has caused this Bond to be executed with the manual or duly
authorized facsimile signature of its President and attested by the manual or duly authorized
facsimile signature of its Village Clerk and its corporate seal or a facsimile thereof to be
impressed or reproduced hereon, all as appearing hereon and as of the Dated Date identified

above.

President, Village of Hinsdale,
DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois
ATTEST:

Village Clerk, Village of Hinsdale,
DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois

[SEAL]
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

Date of Authentication: July 26, 2017
This Bond is one of the Bonds described in the within-mentioned Ordinance and is one of the
General Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2017A, of the Village

of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois.

AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHICAGO
Chicago, Illinois, as Bond Registrar

By:

Authorized Officer
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[Form of Bond - Reverse Side]

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE, DUPAGE AND COOK COUNTIES, ILLINOIS
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND (SALES TAX ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE)
SERIES 2017A

This bond and the bonds of the series of which it forms a part (“Bond” and “Bonds”
respectively) are of an authorized issue of Million Dollars ($ ) of like dated
date and tenor except as to maturity and rate of interest, and are issued pursuant to the Illinois
Municipal Code, as amended, the Local Government Debt Reform Act, as amended, and all acts
of the General Assembly of the State of Illinois, and as supplemented and amended (collectively,
the “Applicable Law”), for the purpose of financing certain costs to be incurred in connection
with certain public infrastructure projects, including, but not limited to, acquisition and
construction of improvements to municipal roads and streets, access roads, bridges, and
sidewalks; waste disposal systems; water and sewer line extensions, water distribution and
purification facilities, storm water drainage and retention facilities, and sewage treatment
facilities; and construction of a parking deck structure within the Village and related
improvements and expenses incident thereto, as more fully described in the Ordinance as herein
below defined. The Bonds are issued pursuant to an authorizing ordinance passed by the
President and Board of Trustees of the Village (the “Corporate Authorities”) on the 2nd day of
May, 2017, and a more complete bond ordinance passed by the Corporate Authorities on the
11th day of July, 2017 (the “Ordinance”), to which reference is hereby expressly made for
further definitions and terms and to all the provisions of which the Registered Owner by the
acceptance of this Bond assents.

The Bonds are payable from collections distributed to the Village from those taxes
imposed by the State of Illinois (the “State”) pursuant to the Use Tax Act, the Service Use Tax

Act, the Service Occupation Tax Act, the Retailers’ Occupation Tax Act, the Non-Home Rule
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Municipal Retailers’ Occupation Tax Act and the Non-Home Rule Municipal Service
Occupation Tax Act, each as supplemented and amended from time to time, or substitute taxes
therefor as provided by the State in the future (the “Pledged Revenues”). Additional Bonds,
secured ratably and equally By the Pledged Revenues, or by any portion thereof, may be issued in
the future as provided in the Ordinance and the Applicable Law. The Bonds are also payable
from ad valorem taxes levied against all of the taxable property in the Village without limitation
as to rate or amount (the “Pledged Taxes”) (the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Taxes being
collectively called the “Pledged Moneys”), all in accordance with the provisions of the
Applicable Law.

Under the Applicable Law and the Ordinance, available Pledged Revenues shall be
deposited into and segregated in the Pledged Revenues Account of the 2017 Alternate Bond
Fund, and the Pledged Taxes shall be deposited into and segregated in the Pledged Taxes
Account of the 2017 Alternate Bond Fund, each as created by the Ordinance. Moneys on deposit
in said Accounts shall be used and are pledged for paying the principal of and interest on the
Bonds and for any further purposes in the priority of lien and as provided by the terms of the
Ordinance.

Bonds of the issue of which this Bond is one maturing on and after December 15, 2026
are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Village as a whole, or in part in
integral multiples of $5,000 in any order of their maturity as determined by the Village (less than
all the Bonds of a single maturity to be selected by lot by the Bond Registrar), on December 15,
2025, and on any date thereafter, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the
redemption date.

Notice of any such redemption shall be sent by first class mail not less than thirty (30)

days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner
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of each Bond to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration books of the Village
maintained by the Bond Registrar or at such other address as is furnished in writing by such
registered owner to the Bond Registrar. When so called for redemption, this Bond will cease to
bear interest on the specified redemption date, provided funds for redemption are on deposit at
the place of payment at that time, and shall not be deemed to be outstanding.

This Bond may be transferred or exchanged, but only in the manner, subject to the
limitations, and upon payment of the charges as set forth in the Ordinance.

The Village, the Paying Agent and the Bond Registrar may deem and treat the Registered
Owner hereof as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on
account of principal hereof and interest due hereon and for all other purposes, and neither the

Village, the Paying Agent nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto

(Name and Address of Assignee)

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint

as attorney to transfer the said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof with full power of

substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature guaranteed:

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name of the registered
owner as it appears upon the face of the within Bond in every particular, without
alteration or enlargement or any change whatever.
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Section 10.  Treatment of Bonds as Debt. The Bonds shall be payable from the Pledged
Moneys and shall not constitute an indebtedness of the Village within the meaning of any
constitutional or statutory limitation, unless the Pledged Taxes shall have been extended pursuant
to the general obligation, full faith and credit promise supporting the Bonds, as set forth herein,
in which case the amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall be included in the computation of
indebtedness of the Village for purposes of all statutory provisions or limitations until such time
as an audit of the Village shall show that the Bonds have been paid from the Pledged Revenues
for a complete Fiscal Year, in accordance with the Reform Act.

Section 11.  Alternate Bond Fund. There is hereby created a special fund of the Village,
which fund shall be held by the Treasurer separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of
the Village and be known as the “2017 Alternate Bond Fund” (the “Bond Fund”). The purpose
of the Bond Fund is to provide a fund to receive and disburse the Pledged Revenues and to
receive and disburse Pledged Taxes for any (or all) of the Bonds. There are hereby created two
accounts of the Bond Fund, designated the “Pledged Revenues Account” and the “Pledged Taxes
Account”. All Pledged Revenues shall be deposited to the Pledged Revenues Account, and all
Pledged Taxes shall be deposited to the credit of the Pledged Taxes Account. The Bond Fund
and its respective accounts constitute a trust fund established for the purpose of carrying out the
covenants, terms and conditions imposed upon the Village by this Ordinance.

Any Pledged Taxes received by the Village shall promptly be deposited into the Pledged
Taxes Account of the Bond Fund. Pledged Taxes on deposit to the credit of the Pledged Taxes
Account of the Bond Fund shall be fully spent to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds
for which such taxes were levied and collected prior to use of any moneys on deposit in the
Pledged Revenues Account of the Bond Fund.

There shall be credited to the Pledged Revenues Account of the Bond Fund and held, in

cash and investments, on or before the fifteenth day of each month by the financial officer of the
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Village, without any further official action or direction, the Pledged Revenues. Each monthly
deposit shall be a fractional amount of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding interest
payment date on all Bonds and also a fractional amount of the principal becoming due on the
next succeeding maturity date of all of the Bonds until there shall have been accumulated and
held, in cash and investments, in the Pledged Revenues Account on or before the month
preceding such maturity date of interest or maturity date of principal, an amount sufficient to pay
such principal or interest, or both. |

In computing the fractional amount to be set aside each month in the Pledged Revenues
Account, the fraction shall be so computed that a sufficient amount will be set aside in said
Account and will be available for the prompt payment of such principal of and interest on all
Bonds and shall be not less than one-sixth of the interest becoming due on the succeeding
interest payment date and not less than one-twelfth of the principal becoming due on the next
succeeding principal payment date on all Bonds outstanding until there is sufficient money in
said Account to pay such principal or interest, or both.

Credits to the Pledged Revenues Account need not be made at such time as there shall be
a sufficient sum, held in cash and investments, in said Account to meet principal and interest
requirements in said Account on the next two (2) succeeding debt service payment dates on the
Bonds outstanding.

Section 12.  Pledged Taxes; Tax Levy. The Bonds are Alternate Bonds. For the purpose
of providing funds to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds at maturity, and as provided
in Section 15 of the Reform Act, there is hereby levied upon all of the taxable property within
 the Village, in the years for which any of the Bonds are Outstanding, a direct annual tax for each
of the years while the Bonds or any of them are Outstanding, in amounts sufficient for that
purpose, and there be and there hereby is levied upon all of the taxable property in the Village

the direct annual taxes in the amounts as follows (the “Pledged Taxes”):
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YEAR A TAX SUFFICIENT TO PRODUCE THE DOLLAR SUM OF:

2017 $ for principal and interest up to and
including December 15, 2018
2018 $ for principal and interest
2019 $ for principal and interest
2020 $ for principal and interest
2021 $ for principal and interest
2022 $ for principal and interest
2023 $ for principal and interest
2024 $ for principal and interest
2025 $ for principal and interest
2026 $ for principal and interest
2027 $ for principal and interest
2028 $ for principal and interest
2029 $ for principal and interest
2030 $ for principal and interest
2031 $ for principal and interest
2032 $ for principal and interest
2033 $ for principal and interest
2034 $ for principal and interest
2035 $ for principal and interest
2036 $ for principal and interest

Principal or interest maturing at any time when there are insufficient funds on hand from
the Pledged Moneys to pay the same shall be paid promptly when due from current funds on
hand in advance of the collection of the Pledged Moneys herein pledged and levied; and when
the Pledged Moneys shall have been collected, reimbursement shall be made to said funds in the
amount so advanced. The Village covenants and agrees with the purchasers and registered
owners of the Bonds that so long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the Village will take
no action or fail to take any action which in any way would adversely affect the ability of the
Village to levy and collect the foregoing tax levy. The Village and its officers will comply with
all present and future applicable laws in order to assure that the Pledged Taxes may be levied,
extended and collected as provided herein and deposited into the Bond Fund.

Section 13.  Filing with County Clerks. After this Ordinance becomes effective, a copy

hereof, certified by the Village Clerk, shall be filed with each of the County Clerks. The County
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Clerks shall in and for each of the years required ascertain the rate percent required to produce
the aggregate Pledged Taxes hereinbefore levied in each of said years; and the County Clerks
shall extend the same for collection on the tax books in connection with other taxes levied in said
years in and by the Village for general corporate purposes of the Village; and the County Clerks,
or other appropriate officers or designees, shall remit the Pledged Taxes for deposit to the credit
of the Bond Fund, and in said years the Pledged Taxes shall be levied and collected by and for
and on behalf of the Village in like manner as taxes for general corporate purposes of the Village
for said years are levied and collected, and in addition to and in excess of all other taxes. The
Pledged Taxes are hereby irrevocably pledged to and shall be used only for the purpose of
paying principal of and interest on the Bonds.

Section 14.  Abatement of Pledged Taxes. TFor the purpose of providing Pledged
Revenues in each year sufficient to pay debt service of all Outstanding Bonds for such year, the
Village agrees and covenants to make provision therefor in the Village’s annual budget and
appropriation ordinance to be duly adopted by the Corporate Authorities, all in the manner, form
and time as provided by law. Prior to the deadline for the timely annual abatement of the
Pledged Taxes for the Bonds for the then current year, established by applicable law and the
procedures of the County Clerks, the appropriate Village officers shall deposit Pledged Revenues
into the Pledged Revenues Account of the Bond Fund in an amount necessary to provide for the
payment of interest and principal coming due on the Bonds otherwise payable from the proceeds
of such tax levy. Upon (but in no event prior to) the deposit of such moneys, the Corporate
Authorities or the officers of the Village acting with proper authority shall direct the abatement

of such levy of Pledged Taxes for the Bonds.
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Section 15.  Pledged Revenues; General Covenants. The Village covenants and agrees
with the holders of the Alternate Bonds that, so long as any Alternate Bonds remain Outstanding:
A. The Pledged Revenues are hereby pledged to the payment of the Alternate
Bonds, and the Corporate Authorities covenant and agree to provide for, collect and
apply the Pledged Revenues to the payment of all such bonds as are from time to time
Outstanding Bonds and the provision of not less than an additional .25 times debt service
thereon. The determination of the sufficiency of the Pledged Revenues pursuant to this
subsection (A) shall be supported by reference to the Audit, and the reference to and
acceptance of the Audit by the Corporate Authorities shall be conclusive evidence that

the conditions of Section 15 of the Reform Act have been met.

B. The Village will punctually pay or cause to be paid from the Bond Fund the
principal of and interest on to become due in respect to the Alternate Bonds in strict
conformity with the terms of the Alternate Bonds and this Ordinance, and it will
faithfully observe and perform all of the conditions, covenants and requirements thereof
and hereof.

C. The Village will pay and discharge, or cause to be paid and discharged,
from the Bond Fund any and all lawful claims which, if unpaid, might become a lien or
charge upon the Pledged Revenues, or any part thereof, or upon any such funds in the
hands of the Paying Agent, or which might impair the security of the Alternate Bonds.
Nothing herein contained shall require the Village to make any such payment so long as
the Village in good faith shall contest the validity of said claims.

D. The Village will keep, or cause to be kept, proper books of record and
accounts, separate from all other records and accounts of the Village, in which complete

and correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the Project, to the Pledged
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Revenues and to the Bond Fund. Such books of record and accounts shall at all times
during business hours be subject to the inspection of the holders of not less than ten per
cent (10%) of the principal amount of the Outstanding Alternate Bonds or their
representatives authorized in writing.

E. The Village will preserve and protect the security of the Alternate Bonds
and the rights of the registered owners of the Alternate Bonds, and will warrant and
defend their rights against all claims and demands of all persons. From and after the sale
and delivery of any of the Alternate Bonds by the Village, the Alternate Bonds shall be
incontestable by the Village.

F. The Village will adopt, make, execute and deliver any and all such further
ordinances, resolutions, instruments and assurances as may be reasonably necessary or
proper to carry out the intention of, or to facilitate the performance of, this Ordinance,
and for the better assuring and confirming unto the holders of the Alternate Bonds of the
rights and benefits provided in this Ordinance.

G. As long as any Alternate Bonds are Outstanding, the Village will continue
to deposit and apply the Pledged Revenues and, if applicable, the Pledged Taxes as
provided herein. The Village covenants and agrees with the purchasers of the Alternate
Bonds and with the registered owners thereof that so long as any Alternate Bonds remain
Outstanding, the Village will take no action or fail to take any action which in any way
would adversely affect the ability of the Village to collect the Pledged Revenues. The
Village and its officers will comply with all present and future applicable laws in order to
assure that the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Taxes may be collected as provided

herein and deposited into the Bond Fund.
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H. Once issu’ed, the Alternate Bonds shall be and forever remain until paid or
defeased the general obligation of the Village, for the payment of which its full faith and
credit are pledged, and shall be payable, in addition to the Pledged Revenues, from the
levy of the Pledged Taxes as provided in the Reform Act.

Section 16.  Additional Bonds. The Village reserves the right to issue Additional Bonds
without limit from time to time payable from the Pledged Revenues, and any such Additional
Bonds shall share ratably and equally in the Pledged Revenues with the Bonds, the 2014B
Alternate Bonds and the 2012A Alternate Bonds; provided, however, that no Additional Bonds
shall be issued except in accordance with the provisions of the Reform Act.

Section 17.  Defeasance. Bonds which are no longer Outstanding Bonds as defined in
this Ordinance shall cease to have any lien on or right to receive or be paid from the Pledged
Revenues or the Pledged Taxes and shall no longer have the benefits of any covenant for the
registered owners of Outstanding Bonds as set forth herein as such relates to lien and security for
the Bonds in the Pledged Revenues or the Pledged Taxes.

Section 18.  Sale of the Bonds. The Bonds hereby authorized shall be executed as in this
Ordinance provided as soon after the passage hereof as may be, and thereupon be deposited with
the Treasurer, and be by said Treasurer delivered to the Purchaser, upon receipt of the Purchase
Price. The Purchase Contract is in all respects ratified, approved and confirmed, it being hereby
found and determined that the Bonds have been sold at such price and bear interest at such rates
that neither the true interest cost (yield) nor the net interest rate received upon such sale exceed
the maximum rate otherwise authorized by Illinois law and that the Purchase Contract is in the
best interests of the Village and that no person holding any office of the Village, either by

election or appointment, is in any manner financially interested directly in his or her own name
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or indirectly in the name of any other person, association, trust or corporation, in the Purchase
Contract.

The use by the Purchaser of any Preliminary Official Statement and any final Official
Statement relating to the Bonds (the “Official Statement”) is hereby ratified, approved and
authorized; the execution aﬁd delivery of the Official Statement is hereby authorized; and the
officers of the Corporate Authorities are hereby authorized to take any action as may be required
on the part of the Village to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Purchase
Contract, this Ordinance, said Preliminary Official Statement, the final Official Statement and
the Bonds.

Section 19.  Use of Proceeds. The proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds shall be
used as follows:

A. Accrued interest, if any, received by the Village upon the sale of the Bonds
shall be remitted by the Treasurer for deposit into the Bond Fund and be used to pay first
interest coming due on the Bonds.

B. The Village shall then allocate frorh the Bond proceeds, along with any
premium receive by the Village upon the sale of the Bonds, the sum necessary for
expenses incurred in the issuance of the Bonds which shall be deposited into an “Expense
Fund” to be maintained by the Treasurer and disbursed for such issuance expenses from
time to time in accordance with usual Village procedures for the disbursement of funds,
which disbursements are hereby expressly authorized. Moneys not disbursed from the
Expense Fund within six months shall be transferred by the Village for deposit in the
Project Fund, and any deficiencies in the Expense Fund shall be paid by disbursement

from the Project Fund.
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C. The remaining funds shall be set aside in a separate fund hereby created and
designated as the “Project Fund (2017)” (the “Project Fund”), which the Village shall
maintain as a separate and segregated account. Moneys in said fund shall be withdrawn
from time to time as needed for the payment of costs of the Project, and paying the fees
and expenses incidental thereto not paid out of the Expense Fund; and said moneys shall
be disbursed by the Village from time to time only upon submission to the Treasurer of
the following:

(1) If such disbursement is for payment to a supplier, materialman, or
contractor for work done in connection with the Project, a certificate executed by
the engineer or architect or Village officer in charge of the construction or
acquisition of the pertinent project stating the amount of materials supplied or the
nature of the work completed, that such materials have been properly accepted or
such work approved by him, the amount due and payable thereon, and the amount
remaining to be paid in connection with the project as applicable; and

(2) A duplicate copy of the order signed by an officer of the Village,
stating specifically the purpose for which the order is issued and indicating that
the payment for which the order is issued has been approved by the Village.

Funds on deposit in the Project Fund may be invested by the Treasurer in any lawful
manner. All investment earnings in the Project Fﬁnd shall first be reserved and transferred to
such other account as and to the extent necessary to pay any “excess arbitrage profits” or
“penalty in lieu of rebate” under Section 148 of the Code to maintain the Tax-Exempt status of
the Bonds, and the remainder shall be retained in the Project Fund and appropriate account for

costs of the Project.
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Within sixty (60) days after full depletion of any account of the Project Fund, or if the
Project has been completed and accepted, the Treasurer shall certify to the Corporate Authorities
the fact of such depletion or the engineer or architect or Village officer in responsible charge of
the pertinent project shall certify to the Corporate Authorities the fact that the work has been
completed and accepted, and upon approval of such certification by the Corporate Authorities,
funds (if any) remaining in the Project Fund shall be credited by the Treasurer to the appropriate
account for payment of the Bonds; and the Project Fund shall be closed.

Section 20.  General Arbitrage Covenants. The Village hereby covenants that it will not
take any action, omit to take any action or permit the taking or omission of any action within its
control (including, without limitation, making or permitting any use of the proceeds of the
Bonds) if taking, permitting or omitting to take such action would cause any of the Bonds to be
an arbitrage bond or a private activity bond within the meaning of the Code or would otherwise
cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in the gross income of the recipients thereof for
federal income tax purposes. The Village acknowledges that, in the event of an examination by
the Internal Revenue Service of the exemption from Federal income taxation for interest paid on
the Bonds, under present rules, the Village may be treated as the “taxpayer” in such examination
and agrees that it will respond in a commercially reasonable manner to any inquiries from the
Internal Revenue Service in connection with such an examination.

The Village also agrees and covenants with the purchasers and holders of the Bonds from
time to time outstanding that, to the extent possible under Illinois law, it will comply with
whatever federal tax law is adopted in the future which applies to the Bonds and affects the
Tax-exempt status of the Bonds.

The Corporate Authorities hereby authorize any of its officers to make such further

covenants and certifications as may be necessary to assure that the use thereof will not cause the
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Bonds to be arbitrage bonds and to assure that the interest on the Bonds will be exempt from
federal income taxation. In connection therewith, the Village and the Corporate Authorities
further agree: (a) through their officers, to make such further specific covenants, representations
as shall be truthful, and assurances as may be necessary or advisable; (b) to consult with counsel
approving the Bonds and to comply with such advice as may be given; (c) to pay to the United
States, as necessary, such sums of money representing required rebates of excess arbitrage
profits relating to the Bonds; (d) to file such forms, statements, and supporting documents as
may be required and in a timely manner; and (e) if deemed necessary or advisable by their
officers, to employ and pay fiscal agents, financial advisors, attorneys, and other persons to assist
the Village in such compliance.

Section 21.  Registered Form. The Village recognizes that Section 149(a) of the Code
requires the Bonds to be issued and to remain in fully registered form in order to be and remain
Tax-exempt. In this connection, the Village agrees that it will not take any action to permit the
Bonds to be issued in, or converted into, bearer or coupon form.

Section 22.  Certain Specific Tax Covenants. A. None of the Bonds shall be a
“private activity bond” as defined in Section 141(a)‘ of the Code; and the Village certifies,
represents, and covenants as follows:

(1) Not more than 5% of the net proceeds and investment earnings of the Bonds
is to be used, directly or indirectly, in any activity carried on by any person other than a
state or local governmental unit.

(2) Not more than 5% of the amounts necessary to pay the principal of and
interest on the Bonds will be derived, directly or indirectly, from payments with respect

to any private business use by any person other than a state or local governmental unit.
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(3) None of the proceeds of the Bonds is to be used, directly or indirectly, to
make or finance loans to persons other than a state or local governmental unit.

(4) No user of the infrastructure of the Village to be improved as part of the
Project other than the Village or another governmental unit, will use the same on any

. basis other than the same basis as the general public; and no person, other than the
Village or another governmental unit, will be a user of such infrastructure as a result of
(i) ownership or (ii) actual or beneficial use pursuant to a lease, a management or
incentive payment contract other than as expressly permitted by the Code, or (iii) any
other arrangement.
B. The Bonds shall not be “arbitrage bonds” under Section 148 of the Code; and the
Village certifies, represents, and covenants as follows:

(1) With respect to the Project, the Village has heretofore incurred or within six
months after delivery of the Bonds expects to incur substantial binding obligations to be
paid for with money received from the sale of the Bonds, said binding obligations
comprising binding contracts for the Project in not less than the amount of 5% of the
proceeds of the Bonds allocable to the Project.

(2) More than 85% of the proceeds of the Bonds allocable to the Project will be
expended on or before three years for the purpose of paying the costs of the Project.

(3) All of the principal proceeds of the Bonds allocable to the Project and
investment earnings thereon will be used, needed, and expended for the purpose of
paying the costs of the Project including expenses incidental thereto.

(4) Work on the Project is expected to proceed with due diligence to

completion.
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(5) Except for the Bond Fund, the Village has not created or established and
will not create or establish any sinking fund reserve fund or any other similar fund to
provide for the payment of the Bonds. The Bond Fund has been established and will be
funded in a manner primarily to achieve a proper matching of revenues and debt service
and will be depleted at least annually to an amount not in excess of 1/12th the particular
annual debt service on the Bonds. Money deposited into the Bond Fund will be spent
within a 13-month period beginning on the date of deposit, and investment earnings in
the Bond Fund will be spent or withdrawn from the Bond Fund within a one-year period
beginning on the date of receipt.

(6) Amounts of money related to the Bonds required to be invested at a yield
not materially higher than the yield on the Bonds, as determined pursuant to such tax
certifications or agreements as the Village officers may make in connection with the
issuance of the Bonds, shall be so invested; and appropriate Village officers are hereby
authorized to make such investments.

(7) Unless an applicable exception to Section 148(f) of the Code, relating to the
rebate of “excess arbitrage profits” to the United States Treasury (the “Rebate

Requirement”) is available to the Village, the Village will meet the Rebate Requirement.

(8) Relating to such applicable exceptions, any Village officer charged with
issuing the Bonds is hereby authorized to make such elections under the Code as such
officer shall deem reasonable and in the best interests of the Village. If such election
may result in a “penalty in lieu of rebate” as provided in the Code, and such penalty is
incurred (the “Penalty”), then the Village shall pay such Penalty.

C. None of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to pay, directly or indirectly, in

whole or in part, for an expenditure that has been paid by the Village prior to the date hereof
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except architectural or engineering costs incurred prior to commencement of any of the Project
or expenditures for which an intent to reimburse it as properly declared under Treasury
Regulations Section 1.103-18. This Ordinance is in itself a declaration of official intent under
Treasury Regulations Section 1.103-18 as to all costs of the Project paid after the date hereof and
prior to issuance of the Bonds.

D. The Village reserves the right to use or invest moneys in connection with the Bonds
in any manner or to make changes in the Project list or to use the Village infrastructure acquired,
constructed, or improved as part of the Project in any manner, notwithstanding the
representations and covenants in (Sections 19 and 20 of) this Ordinance, provided it shall first
have received an opinion from an attorney or a firm of attorneys of nationally recognized
standing in matters pertaining to Tax-exempt bonds to the effect that use or investment of such
moneys or the changes in or use of such infrastructure as contemplated will not result in loss or
impairment of Tax-exempt status for the Bonds.

E. Each Bond is hereby designated as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” for the
purposes and within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. In connection therewith the
Village hereby affirms that: (i) none of such Bonds will be at any time a “private activity bond”
(as defined in Section 141 of the Code); (ii) in calendar year 2017, the Village has not issued any
Tax-exempt obligations of any kind nor have any other Tax-exempt obligations of any kind been
issued on behalf of the Village; (iii) during calendar year 2017, the Village will not issue or
cause to have issued on behalf of the Village more than $10,000,000 of Tax-exempt obligations,
including the Bonds; (iv) not more than $10,000,000 of obligations of any kind (including the
Bonds) issued by or on behalf of the Village during calendar year 2017 will be designated for
purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code; and (v) the Village is not subject to control by any

entity, and there are no entities subject to control by the Village.
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Section 23.  This Ordinance a Contract. The provisions of this Ordinance shall
constitute a contract between the Village and the registered owners of the Bonds, in accordance

with the terms hereof; and no changes, additions or alterations of any kind shall be made hereto.

Section 24.  Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. The Designated Officers are each
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver a Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking (the “Continuing Disclosure Undertaking”), in connection with the issuance of the
Bonds, with such provisions therein as he or she shall approve, his or her execution thereof to
constitute conclusive evidence of his or her approval of such provisions. When the Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking is executed and delivered on behalf of the Village as herein provided,
the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking will be binding on the Village and the officers,
employees and agents of the Village, and the officers, employees and agents of the Village are
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such
documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking as executed. Notwithsfanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the
sole remedies for failure to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking shall be the
ability of the beneficial owner of any Bond to seek mandamus or specific performance by court
order, to cause the Village to comply with its obligations under the Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking

Section 25.  Duties of Bond Registrar. If requested by the Bond Registrar, the President
and Village Clerk are authorized to execute the Bond Registrar’s standard form of agreement
between the Village and the Bond Registrar with respect to the obligations and duties of the

Bond Registrar hereunder which may include the following:

(a) to act as bond registrar, authenticating agent, paying agent and transfer agent
as provided herein;
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(b) to maintain a list of Bondholders as set forth herein and to furnish such list
to the Village upon request, but otherwise to keep such list confidential;

(c) to give notice of redemption of Bonds as provided herein;

(d) to cancel and/or destroy Bonds which have been paid at maturity or upon
earlier redemption or submitted for exchange or transfer;

(e) to furnish the Village at least annually a certificate with respect to Bonds
cancelled and/or destroyed; and

(f) to furnish the Village at least annually an audit confirmation of Bonds paid,
Bonds outstanding and payments made with respect to interest on the Bonds

Section 26.  Municipal Bond Insurance. In the event the payment of principal of and
interest on the Bonds is insured pursuant to a municipal bond insurance policy (a “Municipal
Bond Insurance Policy”) issued by a bond insurer (a “Bond Insurer”), and as long as such
Municipal Bond Insurance Policy shall be in full force and effect, the Village and the Bond
Registrar agree to comply with such usual and reasonable provisions regarding presentment and
payment of the Bonds, subrogation of the rights of the Bondholders to the Bond Insurer when
holding Bonds, amendment hereof, or other terms, as approved by the President on advice of
counsel, his approval to constitute full and complete acceptance by the Village of such terms and
provisions under authority of this Section.

Section 27.  Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this
Ordinance shall be held invalid, the invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision
shall not affect any of the other provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 28.  Repealer. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict

with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed.
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Section 29.  Publication and Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be published in
pamphlet form and shall be in effect immediately upon publication.
ADOPTED by the President and Board of Trustees on July 11, 2017.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED on July 11, 2017.

President, Village of Hinsdale,
DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois

PUBLISHED in pamphlet form by authority of the Corporate Authorities on July __, 2017.

RECORDED in the Village Records on July 11, 2017.

Attest:

Village Clerk, Village of Hinsdale,
DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois

[SEAL]
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AGENDA ITEM #Cj_&,
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

VILLAGE OF

Est. 1873 Finance
AGENDA SECTION: Second Reading — ACA
SUBJECT: Banking Resolution with Hinsdale Bank and Trust
MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017
FROM: Darrell Langlois, Assistant Village Manager/Finance Director %-/

Recommended Motion

Move to Waive the First Reading and Approve the Attached Resolution Designating Hinsdale Bank
and Trust as a Public Depository and Authorizing Withdrawal of Municipal Public Moneys

Background
The Village of Hinsdale has used BMO/Harris Bank as its operating bank for many years. About six .

weeks ago, Village staff had a meeting with Harris Bank whereby we were informed that on July 31,
2017 Harris Bank will be removing coin counting machines from all of their banking facilities. | know
this was also done by Chase Bank a couple of years ago when they also removed all of their coin
counting machines, but as a Village with hundreds of parking meters this is a huge problem when
banks are trying to get out of the coin counting business. The budget amount for parking meter
revenue is $235,000 annually and much of this revenue is in the form of coin deposits. The only
option that was presented by Harris would be for the Village to roll the coins (not practical due to the
large volume) or to sort and count the coins and deposit in special bags. This would require the
Village to purchase and maintain its own coin counting equipment, which due to the large volume of
coins this would have to be a large and very expensive machine (well over $5k).

Discussion & Recommendation

In addition to the coin counting problem, over the last 12 months we have had some service issues
with Harris Bank and competitive pricing for banking services should be sought periodically. It is my
intention to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for banking services in the fall after the audit is
complete and the ERP vendor is selected. Issuing an RFP for banking services is a significant and
time consuming process, and if the Village were to make a change it would affect check issuance,
deposit processing, all of our credit card processing, lock box payment processing for all of our utility
bills (over 30,000 transactions per year), how we process our payroll direct deposit files, processing
the automatic debit payment of utility bills, etc.

There is no way to accelerate the RFP process in time for the July 31 date when Harris Bank will no
longer count the Village’s coin deposits. As an interim measure, | have contacted Hinsdale Bank and
Trust and they have agreed to handle our coin deposits provided we open and maintain a deposit
account of $250,000. Instead of receiving interest we would receive an “earnings credit” that would
be used to offset the cost of the account and the processing of the coin deposits. We have been told
that the deposit amount is well below the minimum balance that would normally be required to offset
these kind of service fees. | find this arrangement to be very fair from the Village’s perspective, and
for now this is much more desirable than the Village buying and maintaining its own expensive coin
counting equipment.
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REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

VILLAGE OF

Est. 1873

Budget Impact
There is no direct payment for this service. At today’s lllinois Fund rate of 0.94%, the Village would

forgo interest of $2,350 annually on the deposit of $250,000 at Hinsdale Bank and Trust as this
deposit will be used to offset fees associated with this account.

Village Board and/or Committee Action

None. Since the Village Board is not meeting again until August 15, 2017, staff is requesting that the
Village Board waive the first reading of the resolution so that staff can have the account opened by
August 1 when Harris Bank will no longer count the Village’s coin deposits.

Documents Attached
1. Resolution Designating Hinsdale Bank and Trust as a Public Depository and Authorizing
Withdrawal of Municipal Public Moneys
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RESOLUTION DESIGNATING PUBLIC DEPOSITORY AND AUTHORIZING
WITHDRAWAL OF MUNICIPAL PUBLIC MONEYS

TO: (Name/Address of Financial Institution) FROM: (Name/Address of Municipal Entity)
Hinsdale Bank and Trust Village of Hinsdale
25 East First Street 19 E Chicago Ave

Hinsdale IL 60521
Hinsdale, IL 60521
(630) 323-4404

Words or phrases preceded by a D are applicable only if the is marked.
Under the Governing Municipality of: Village of Hinsdale
State of: 1L,

"IT IS RESOLVED THAT:

Hinsdale Bank and Trust . . (the "Financial Institution”), qualified as a public_depository
gndder statec}aw, is hereby designated as a depository in which the funds of this Municipality may from time to time
e deposited; ’

The, following described account(s) be opened and maintained in the name of this Municjpality with the Financial
Institution subject to the rules and regulations of the Financial Institution from time to time in effect;

The Person(s) and the number thereof designated by title designated account(s) is hereby authorized, for and on
behalf of this Municipality, to sign gorders or checks in accordance with state law, for payment or withdrawal of
money. from said accountés) and to issue instructions regarding the same and to endorse for deposit, negotiation,
collection or discount by Financial Institution any and all checks, drafts, notes, bills, certificates of deposit or other
instruments or orders for the payment of money owned or held by said Municipality;

The endorsement for deposit'may be in writing, by stamp, or otherwise, with or without designation of signature of
the person so endorsing; and

Any one of the persons holding the offices_of this Municipality designated below is hereby authorized to make oral
or_written _req,uests of the Financial Institution for the transfer of funds or money between accounts maintained by
this Municipality at the Financial Institution.”

THIS RESOLUTION APPLIES TO (Select One): [] All Accounts
Specific Account Number(s): 0230169430

DATE OF RESOLUTION:

NO. OF NECESSARY
NAME AND TITLE SIGNATURE COUNTER SIGNATURES

Thomas K Cauley Jr.
Village President

i

Darrell Langlois ('

Village Treasurer / Ww&ﬂ A
\eg 7 Y

Kathleen Gargano
Village Manager

Additional comments or instructions:

This Resolution includes all of the provisions on Page 2.

This is to Certify, that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of resolutions duly and legally adopted by the

governing body of Municipality at an open legal meeting held on the 11th day of July 2017 and
said resolutions are now in full force and effect. .
Signed by
7/11/2017
Date
Clerk

The undersigned member of the governing body not authorized to sign orders or checks certifies that the foregoing
is a correct copy of a resolution passed as therein set forth.

7/11/2017
Date

Title:

© Compliance Systems, Inc. 1997 - 2013 ITEM 583BAL1 (11/2013) Paga 1 of 2 www.compliancesystems.com,



"IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Financial Instjtution be and is hereby authorized and directed to honor,
certify, pay and charge to any of the accounts of this Municipality, all orders or checks for the payment,
withdrawal or transfer of funds or money deposited in these accounts or to the credit aof this Mupicipality for
whatever purpose or to whomever payable, including requests for conversion of such instruments into cash as
well as for deduction from and payment of cash out of any deposit, and whether or not payable to, endorsed or
negotiated by or for the credit of any persons signing such instrument or payable to or for the credit of any other
officer, agent or employee of this Municipality, when signed, accepted, endorsed or agproyed as evidenced by
original or facsimile signature by the person(s), and the number thereof, designated by title for the accounts
described in the foregoing resolution, and to honor any request(s) made in accordance with the foregoing
resolution, whether written or oral, and including but not limited to, request(s) made by telephone or other
electronic means, for the transfer of funds or_money between accounts maintained by this Municipality at the
Financial Institution, and the Financial Institution shall not be required or under any duty to inquire as to the
{:rl‘rcumfstances of the issuance or use of any such instrument or request or the application or use of proceeds
ereof.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Financial Institution be and is hereby authorized to comply with any process

summons, order, injunction, execution, distraint, levy, lien, or notice of_an?f kind (hereafter called "Process”

received by or served upon the Financial Institution, b¥ which,_in the Financial Institution's opinion, another person

or entity claims an interest in any of these accounfs and Financial Institution may, at its option and without

liability, thereupon refuse to honor orders to paY or withdraw sums from these accounts and may hold the balance
n

therein until Process is disposed of to Financial Institution's satisfaction.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any one of the persons holding the offices of this Municipality designated above is
hereby authorized (1) to receive for and on behalf of this Municipality, securities, currency or any other property of
whatever nature held by, sent to, consigned to or delivered to the Financial Institution for the account of or for
delivery to this Municipality, and to give receipt therefor, and the Financial Institution is hereby authorized to make
delivery of such property in accordance herewith, (2} to sell, transfer, endorse for sale or otherwise authorize the
sale. or transfer of securities or any other Frofpert}/ of whatever nature held by, sent to, consigned to or delivered
to the Financial Institution for the account of or for delivery to this Municipality, and to receive and/or apply the
proceeds of any such sale to the credit of this Municipality in any such manner as he/she/they deem(s) proper,
and the Financial Institution is hereby authorized to make a sale or transfer of any of the aforementioned property
in accordance herewith, and (3) in accordance with state law, to accept such security, if .ap&llca.b!e, and to
execute such documents as said officer deems proper and necessary to secure the funds of this Municipality and
to issue instructions regarding the same.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Municipality assumes full responsibility for any and all payments made or any
other actions taken by the Financial Institution in reliance upon the signatures, including facsimiles thereof, of an

person or persons holding the offices of this Munlcclipalltg/ designated above regardless of whether or not the use o

a facsimile signature was unlawful or unauthorized and regardless of by whom or by what means the purported
signature or facsimile signature may have been affixed to any instrument if such signatures resemble the specimen
or facsimile signatures provided to the Financial Institution, for refusing to honor any signatures not provided to
the Financial Institution, for honoring any requests for the transfer of funds or money between accounts or for the
instructions from the persons  designated in the foregoing resolutions regardm? security, for the accounts
notwithstanding any inconsistent requirements of this Municipality not expressed in the foregoing resolutions, and
that this Municipality agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Financial Institutjon against any and all claims,
demands, losses, costs, damages or expenses suffered or incurred by the Financial Institution resulting from or
arising out of any such payment or other action.

Select if applicable: [] Further Resolved, the Financial Institution is authorized to honor facsimile and other
non-manual signatures and may honor and charge the Municipality for all negotiable instruments, checks, drafts,
and other orders for payment of moneg drawn in the name of the Municipality, on its regular accounts, including
an order for electronic debit, whether by electronic tape or otherwise, regardless of by whom or by what means
the facsimile signature or other non-manual signature may have been affixed, or electronically communicated, if
such facsimile signature resembles the specimen attached to this Resolution or filed with the Financial Institution,
regardiess of whether misuse of a_specimen or_non-manual snﬂnatu,re_ls with or without the negligence of the
Municipality. The Specimen Facsimile Signature Exhibit, if attached, is incorporated into and is an infegral part of
this Resolution, The Municjpality indempifies the Financial Institution for all claims, expenses, and losses resulting
from the honoring of any signature certified or refusing to honor any signature not so certified.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Secretary or Clerk of this Municipality be and hereby is authorized and directed to
certify to the Financial Institution the foregaing resolutions, that the provisions thereof are in conformity with law,
the names, incumbencies and specimen of facsimile signature(s) on this resolution and,_if applicable, on signature
cards of the officer or officers named therein, and that the fore om? resolutions and signature cards, if any, and
the authority thereby conferred shall remain in full force and effect until this Municipality notifies the Financial
Institution to the contrary in writing; and the Financial Institution ma co,ncluswelkl_ presume that such resolutions
and signature cards are in effect and that the persons identified therein from time to time as officers of the
Municipality have been duly elected or appointed to and continue to hold such offices.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution authorizes the Financial Institution to honor all orders or checks when
bearing, or purporting to bear, the facsimile signature(s) provided below, if any, by any of the named
officers, or in an attached Exhibit when indicated.”

Facsimile Signature Facsimile Signature

The Specimen Facsimile Signature Exhibit attached is incorporated into and is an integral part of this
Resolution.

By initialing, | acknowledge this is page 2 of 2 of the Resolution Designating

i i izi ithd { of Municipal Public Moneys e — — s
Public Depository and Authorizing Withdrawa unicipal Pu y Initials Initials imitials Initials
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AGENDA ITEM # ! e

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
Public Services & Engineering

VILLAGE OF

Est. 1873

AGENDA SECTION: Second Read - EPS

SUBJECT: 2017 Resurfacing Construction Change Order Number 1
MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017
FrRoOm: Dan Deeter, PE Village Engineer

Recommended Motion
Approve a resolution for the 2017 Resurfacing Construction contract change order number 1
in the amount not to exceed $42,000 to A Lamp Concrete Contractors

Background
On February 21, 2017, the Board of Trustees awarded the 2017 Resurfacing Construction

contract to A Lamp Concrete Contractors. This contract included improvements in the
Central Business District (CBD) which included reconstruction of the stamped concrete
pavement in Village Place and limited replacement of the smooth concrete pavement.

Discussion & Recommendation

On Tuesday, June 27, 2017, Mr. George Peluso, Director of Public Services and
Engineering, sent the attached email to the Board of Trustees and Village staff explaining the
intent to add the removal and replacement of smooth concrete pavement in Village Place.
Staff and local business owners felt this complete reconstruction would improve the
appearance of Village Place and avoid any further disruption to the businesses if additional
repairs were necessary in the future. The Village's engineering consultant, HR Green,
estimated that this additional concrete removal and replacement would cost $42,000.

Budget Impact
The Village of Hinsdale will utilize funds through the MIP project to pay for the additional

work. The project is currently under the budget estimate by approximately $150,000.

Village Board and/or Committee Action

Since the improvements to Village Place are tentatively scheduled for Phase 3 (7/27/17 —
8/17/17), the 7/11/17 Board of Trustee meeting is the only meeting available for the Board of
Trustees to approve this change order. Therefore, in late June, Mr. Peluso discussed the
change order with the Village President and the Environment and Public Services (EPS)
Committee chairman. Both were supportive of the change order. Mr. Peluso then sent out
the June 27, 2017 email to the Board of Trustees.

Documents Attached

1. June 27, 2017 email from George Peluso to the Village Trustees (with attachments)
2. Resolution :
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Daniel Deeter
.-

From: George Peluso

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 12:41 PM

To: Village Trustees

Cc: Kathleen Gargano; Darrell Langlois; Daniel Deeter

Subject: Village Place Change Order

Attachments: Village Place Change Order.docx; Change Order Policy.docx
Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Good Afternoon,

| recently met with some of the business owners along Village Place regarding the improvements scheduled for that
area. Originally, our plan was to replace only the stamped concrete portions of the alley. After discussing this further
with several business owners located in the alley, they expressed concerns about the condition of the “non ~stamped”
concrete center lane and leaving that in the “as is” condition.

Staff asked HR Green to prepare an estimate to replace the entire center lane in conjunction with the planned
improvements. The total estimated cost to reconstruct the entire alley is an additional $42,000. Our bid for the first
portion of the roadway resurfacing contract is trending positively, and is currently under bid by approximately $150,000.
The plan is to use these savings toward the completion of the additional work.

Since the amount of the change order is over $20,000, Staff discussed this with the both the Village President and EPS
Chairman. They are both supportive of adding the work as described. Attached is memo prepared by Jean from the
Manager’s Office explaining in more detail the circumstances regarding the change order. | have also attached a memo
regarding the Village’s change order policy in case some of you are not aware of the procurement process related to
contract changes. ’

Since the Village Board will not meet until July 11, Staff would like to notify the contractor about adding this work so
that it can be staged as part of the Central Business District resurfacing project scheduled to start on July 5. This item
would then need to be ratified by the entire Village Board at the July 11 meeting.

In my opinion, it makes sense to reconstruct the entire alley at this time. There are several areas of the center lane that
have failed or are showing signs of deterioration. This would also avoid any further disruption to the businesses by
coming back to do more work in future years.

If you have any concerns or objections with proceeding with this work, please contact Kathleen or me directly.

Sincerely, George

George Peluso
Director of Public Services
Village of Hinsdale



VILLAGE OF

MEMORANDUM
Est. 1873
DATE: June 23, 2017
TO: Village President Cauley and Board of Trustees
CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager
FROM: Jean Bueche, Management Analyst
RE: Village Place Reconstruction

On June 22, 2017, Public Services Director George Peluso met with several business
owners along Village Place. The merchants raised a concern over the cement center
lane which was intended to be patched and not reconstructed as part of the Central
Business District (CBD) resurfacing project. Originally, the rehab of this area included
the installation of stamped concrete with minor patching to the center concrete. After
receiving feedback from the merchants, our consulting engineer prepared an estimate as
to what the additional costs would be to replace the concrete center lane. .

The estimated cost to add the additional work and reconstruct all of Village Place is
$42,000. The residential portion of the paving project (non-CBD and accelerated
resurfacing work) is running approximately $150,000 under the bid amount and may be
used to offset this reconstruction. Due to the condition of the concrete center and in an
effort to only touch the alley once, it is reasonable to complete this work during this time.
The reconstruction will include the middle area being constructed of concrete and the
edges of stamped concrete. The contractor will work with the affected businesses to
complete as much of this project outside of normal business hours as possible.

During the reconstruction, businesses will remain open but pedestrian access maybe
impacted partially in order to complete the work. Staff will work with the contractor on
staging the work with as little disruption as possible. Adding this work to the project will
create the need to extend working days to the contract, however, we are hopeful to have
the Central Business District work completed prior to the start of school.

Due to the project start date of July 5, and that the additional work exceeds $20,000 the
Village Manager and Director of Public Services discussed this matter with the Village
President and Chairman of the EPS Committee, and they are both in agreement with
adding this work to the contract. Staff will draft a resolution ratifying the change order for
the July 11 Village Board meeting.

Thank you.



VILLAGE OF

MEMORANDUM
Est. 1873
DATE: March)30, 2016
TO: President Cauley and Village Board of Trustees
Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager
FROM: George Peluso, Director of Public Services and Engineering

RE: Construction Change Order Policy

With the start of the construction, | thought it would be prudent to provide a general update
regarding the Village’'s change order policy. Section 4.4 of the Village's purchasing states the
following:

4.4 CHANGE ORDERS

The Village Manager or designee is authorized to approve any change order to a Village public
works contract which is less than twenty thousand dollars ($20,000). The following change order
provisions shall apply:

a. A change order that increases a Village contract by twenty thousand dollars ($20,000) or
more must have authorization from the Village Board.

b. The Village Engineer or Department Heads and designees shall consult with the Village
Manager on an ongoing basis regarding change order requests on all infrastructure
projects. '

c. For every change order, the Village will receive and keep on file supporting paperwork
provided by the Village Engineer and/or engineering firm providing construction
observation on the project.

d. If in any given week change orders are estimated to be in excess of $20,000 in the
aggregate, the Village Manager shall notify the chairman of the EPS Committee and
Village President.

e. The Engineering Monthly Report shall include an exhibit listing all change orders on all
infrastructure projects up to the date of that Report. The listing shall include a brief
description of the change order, the cost of the change order and its status. In addition,
for any change orders the exceed $5,000, the exhibit shall include a memorandum from
the Village Engineer detailing the change order as well as the reason and support for the
change order. ‘

All change orders shall be authorized in writing, and any change order authorizing or
necessitating an increase or decrease in either the cost of a public contract by a total of ten
thousand dollars ($10,000) or more, or the time of completion by a total of thirty (30) days or
more shall require a written determination that (1) the circumstances said to necessitate the
change in performance were not reasonably foreseeable at the time the contract was signed, or
(2) the change is germane to the original contract as signed, or (3) the change order is in the
best interests of the Village.



RESOLUTION NO.
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2017 RESURFACING
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER
NUMBER 1 IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$42,000.00 TO A LAMP CONCRETE CONTRACTORS
WHEREAS, the Village of Hinsdale (the “Village”) and A Lamp Concrete Contractors (‘A
Lamp”) have entered into that certain Contract (the “Coﬁtract”) providing for the construction of
the 2017 Resurfacing Project; and
WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village hereby find that the
circumstances said to necessitate this Change Order were not reasonably foreseeable at the
time the Contract was signed, the Change Order was germane to the original Contract as
signed, and the Change Order is in the best interest of the Village of Hinsdale and authorized
by law; |
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of the

Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of lllinois, as follows:

Section 1. Recital. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as findings of the

President and Board of Trustees.

Section 2. Approval of Change Order. The Change Order is hereby approved in

the form attached (Exhibit A) to this Ordinance and by this reference incorporated herein.

Section 3. Final Determination. This Resolution shall constitute the written

determination required by Section 33E-9 of the Article 33E of the Criminal Code of 1961, as
amended and shall be retained in the Contract file as required by said Section.

Section 4. Execution of Change Order.  The Vilage Manager is authorized to

execute the Change Order on behalf of the Village.



Section 5. Effective Date. This resolution shall be in full force and effective from and

after its passage and approval.

PASSED: this day of 2017,
AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this day of 2017.

Village President

ATTEST:

Village Clerk



Exhibit A

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
CHANGE ORDER
Project: 2017 Resurfacing Construction Change Order No. 1
Location: Various Streets Contract No. - N/A
Contractor: A Lamp Concrete Contractors Date: 07/11/17

Page 1 of 1

[ A. Description of Changes Involved:
1 Reconstruction of additional Portland Cement Concrete
(PCC) portions of Village Place.

B. Reason for Change:
1 To improve the appearance of Village Place at the request
of local business owners.

C. Revision in Contract Price: Total Addition: $ 42,000.00
1 Addition $ 42,000.00

il. Adjustments in Contract Price:
A.  Original Contract Price: $ 2,093,814.25

B. Net (addition)(reduction) due
to all previous Change Order

No. $ -
C. Contract Price, notincluding $ 2,093,814.25
this Change Order '

D. (Addition)(Deduction) to Contract Price
due to this Change Order $ 42,000.00

E. Contract Price including this
Change Order $ 2,135,814.25

Accepted:
Contractor: A Lamp Concrete Contractors

By:

Signature of Authorized Representative Date
Village of Hinsdale:

By:

Signature of Authorized Representative Date

























































HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION

RE: Case A-07-2017 — Applicant: Village of Hinsdale

Request: Text Amendment to Prohibit a Secondary Access to or from a Commercially Zoned Property into a
Residentially Zoned District

DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW: May 10, 2017

DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 15" READING: June 13, 2017

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION

l. FINDINGS

1. The PC heard testimony from the applicant (Village of Hinsdale) for the proposed text amendment to Zoning Code
Section 9-104 to prohibit a secondary access to or from a commercially zoned property into a residentially zoned
District. Staff reviewed that the Village application was in result to the concerns voiced by the residents at a
previous public meeting (Case A-15-2016) when a commercial property requested to create a secondary access
onto a residential street. Many residents expressed concerns over the increase of vehicular traffic and its impact to
the general safety of the residential neighborhood.

2. The PC was unanimously supportive for the request, and commented that it is a great idea. The PC also recalled
the concerns by the residents and believes this will prevent similar situations in the future.

3. This application affects the Village in general and not a specific subject property. Thus, the public hearing was
notified by publication in the Hinsdalean on April 20, 2017 (without the typical 250" mailing and signage based on a.
specific subject property). There was no one from the audience who commented during the Plan Commission public
hearing on May 10, 2017.

IL RECOMMENDATIONS
Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed text amendment application as submitted, the Village of

Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of seven (7) “Ayes," and two (2) "Absent,” recommends that the President
and Board of Trustees approve the text amendment application as submitted.

THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By:

Chairman

Dated this M/ day of ()MM ,2017.
















PASSED this day of 2017.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED by me this day of , 2017, and
attested to by the Village Clerk this same day.

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President

ATTEST:

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk
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HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION

RE: Case A-08-2017 - Applicant: Village of Hinsdale

Request: Text Amendment to include Educational Services as a Special Use (Section §-105(C)) in the B-2 (but not

on the 1% floor) and B-3 Districts

DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW: May 10, 2017

DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1°" READING: June 13, 2017

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION

I. FINDINGS

The PC heard testimony from the applicant (Village of Hinsdale) for the proposed text amendment to Zoning Code
Section 5-105(C) to include Educational Services with a Special Use Permit in the B-2 District, but not on the first
floor of any structure in the B-2 District, and B-3 District. Staff reviewed that this was recommended by the Board of
Trustees since musical tutoring services is the only educational service option in the business districts; and less
intense educational service uses would require a text amendment based on each class description.

A Plan Commissioner asked why the Viliage is excluding the B-1 District in the application. Staff explained the B-1
District was excluded based on the Business District definitions per Section 5-101 (and referenced Attachment 2 in
the application packet). Per the Code, “the B-1 community business district is intended to serve the everyday
shopping needs of village residents as well as to provide opportunities for specialty shops attractive to wider
suburban residential community around the village.” To that end, staff believes the intent of the B-1 District is more
for retail uses versus office uses. There were no additional questions by the Plan Commission.

The PC Chair expressed that he supports the special use permit approach. For example, a special use permit
application requires a notification to the neighbors, so that if they felt the request is incompatible for any reason,
they could reflect their concerns to the PC and subsequently to the Board.

This application affects the Village in general and not a specific subject property. Thus, the public hearing was
notified by publication in the Hinsdalean on April 20, 2017 (without the typical 250" mailing and signage based on a
specific subject property). There was no one from the audience who commented during the Plan Commission public

hearing on May 10, 2017.

IL. RECOMMENDATIONS

Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed text amendment application as submitted, the Village of
Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of seven (7) “Ayes,” and two (2) "Absent,” recommends that the President
and Board of Trustees approve the text amendment application as submitted.

THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By: /ﬂmph(]/ﬂ O \ &AQ'WW[

Chairman

Dated this “H/lﬁ day of dl/ﬂﬁﬁz 2017,




AGENDA ITEM # q )

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
Community Development

VILLAGE OF

Est. 1873

AGENDA SECTION: Second Reading — ZPS

Variations requested relative to the construction of a new commercial

SUBJECT: building for use as an animal hospital at 724 N. York Road, Hinsdale,
IIIIinois.
MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017

Robert McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building

FrROM: .
Commissioner

Recommended Motion

Approve an Ordinance Approving Variations Relative to Construction of a New Commercial
Building for Use as an Animal Hospital at 724 N. York Road, Hinsdale, lllinois — Anthony
Kremer, d/b/a Hinsdale Animal Hospital — Case Number V-02-17

Background
The Village of Hinsdale has received a request from Anthony Kremer, d/b/a Hinsdale Animal

Hospital for certain variations relative to the proposed construction of a new commercial
building to be used as an animal hospital on the Property, located in the B-1 Communlty
Business Zoning District at 724 N. York Road (the “Application”).

The applicant has requested zoning relief for the following:

An allowable building height of thirty-five (35) feet as opposed to thirty (30) feet.

To allow a front yard setback of fifteen (15) feet as opposed to twenty-five (25) feet.
To permit off-street parking in a required front yard.

To allow a floor area ratio of .40 as opposed to .35.

To waive the ten (10) foot landscape buffer requirement.

ahown =

Discussion & Recommendation
The first three (1 to 3) variation requests were unanimously approved by the Zoning Board of
Appeals (ZBA) at its meeting on April 19, 2017.

In addition to the Requested Variations, two (2) additional variations over which the Village
President and Board of Trustees have final authority were sought and recommended for
approval by the ZBA. Those variations were to Section 5-110 of the Zoning Code to allow a
floor area ration of .40 as opposed to the maximum floor area ratio of .35 allowed in a B-1
District, and to Section 9-107.A.1 to waive the ten (10) foot landscape buffer requirement
(together, the “Additional Variations” and, collectively with the Requested Variations, the
“Variations”). The recommendation on the Additional Variations is detailed in a separate
Findings and Recommendation from the ZBA to the Board of Trustees in this matter.

Following the conclusion of the public hearing on this matter, the Zoning Board of Appeals of
the Village of Hinsdale (“ZBA”") indicated its approval of the Requested Variations with one
modification and the preparation of this Final Decision. The modification was a change in the
Requested Variation for a reduced front yard setback, which was approved at seventeen (17)
feet instead of the requested fifteen (15) feet.
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i Z Vitacs of REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

Est. 1873

Village Board and/or Committee Action
This project has been before the Board of Trustees (BOT) on;
e 6/7/17 and 11/1/17 as a discussion item.
e 1/10/17 for a referral to Plan Commission for Exterior Appearance & Site Plan
approval.
e 3/17/17 and 3/22/17 for a First & Second Reading.
e 6/13/17 for the purpose of considering variations requested in conjunction with the
proposed development that the ZBA does not have express authority over.

At their meeting of June 13, 2017, the Board agreed to move this item forward for a second
reading.

Documents Attached
1. Draft Ordinance
2. Final Decision by the ZBA for Zoning Case V-02-17
3. Transcript
4. ZBA Application
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING VARIATIONS RELATIVE TO CONSTRUCTION OF A
NEW COMMERCIAL BUILDING FOR USE AS AN ANIMAL HOSPITAL AT 724 N.
YORK ROAD, HINSDALE, ILLINOIS - ANTHONY KREMER, D/B/A HINSDALE
ANIMAL HOSPITAL - CASE NUMBER V-02-17

WHEREAS, the Village of Hinsdale received an application (the “Application”)
from Anthony Kremer, d/b/a Hinsdale Animal Hospital (the “Applicant”) for variations
relative to the proposed construction of a new commercial building to be used as an
animal hospital, on property located in the B-1 Community Business Zoning District at
724 N. York Road (the “Subject Property”). The variations sought are to Section 5-110
of the Hinsdale Zoning Code to allow a floor area ratio of .40 as opposed to the
maximum floor area ratio of .35 allowed in a B-1 District, and to Section 9-107.A.1. of
the Zoning Code, to waive the ten (10) foot parking lot landscape buffer requirement
(collectively, the “Requested Variations”); and

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is legally described in Exhibit A attached
hereto and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Application has been referred to the Zoning Board of Appeals of
the Village, and has been processed in accordance with the Zoning Code, as amended,;
and

WHEREAS, on Wednesday, April 19, 2017, the Zoning Board of Appeals of the
Village of Hinsdale held a public hearing pursuant to notice given in accordance with
State law and the Zoning Code, relative to the Requested Variations; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, after considering all of the testimony
and evidence presented at the public hearing, recommended approval of the Requested
Variations on a vote of five (5) in favor and zero (0) opposed; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals has filed its report of Findings and
Recommendation regarding the Requested Variation in Case Number V-02-17 with the
- President and Board of Trustees, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and
made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale have
reviewed and duly considered the Findings and Recommendation of the Zoning Board
of Appeals, and all of the materials, facts, and circumstances related to the Application;
and
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WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees find that the Application
satisfies the standards established in Sections 11-503 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code
governing variations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of Illinois, as follows:

SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

SECTION 2: Adoption of Findings and Recommendation. The President and
Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale approve and adopt the findings and
recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals, a copy of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit B and made a part hereof, and incorporate such findings and recommendation
herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

SECTION 3: Variations. The President and Board of Trustees, acting pursuant
to the authority vested in it by the laws of the State of lllinois and Subsection 11-503(A)
of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, grant the Requested Variations to Section 5-110 of the
Zoning Code to allow a floor area ratio of .40 as opposed to the maximum floor area
ratio of .35 allowed in a B-1 District, and to Section 9-107.A.1. to waive the ten (10) foot
parking lot landscape buffer requirement on the Subject Property commonly known as
724 N. York Road, and legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto'and made a part
hereof.

SECTION 4: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. If any section,
paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, the invalidity of
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the other provisions
of this Ordinance, and all ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict
with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed.

SECTION 5. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from
and after its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner
provided by law.
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PASSED this _ day of 2017.
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
APPROVED by me this _ day of 2017 and attested by the

Village Clerk this same day.

ATTEST:

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk
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EXHIBITA
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PARCEL 1: LOT 1 IN CHARLES SHULZE RESUBDIVISION OF PARTS OF
LOT 7 AND 8 IN BLOCK 3 OF THE PLAT OF FULLERSBURGH, IN
SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED AUGUST 13, 1956 AS DO UNEDNGT 811735, IN DU PAGE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2: LOT 2 IN BROCKMAN’S RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 5 IN
RUCHTY’S RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 2 AND 3 IN BLOCK 3 OF THE PLAT
OF FULLERSBURGH AND PART OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN THE PLAT OF
FULLERSBURGH, IN SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING THE PLAT OF
BROCKMAN’S RESUBDIVISION RECORDED DECEMBER 18, 1957 AS
DOCUMENT 866181, IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

PARCEL 3: THE NORTHERLY 60 FEET (AS MEASURED ALONG THE
EAST LINE AND THE WEST LINES THEREOF) OF THAT PART OF LOTS 7
AND 8 IN BLOCK 3 IN FULLERSBURGH, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT AN IRON STAKE ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 8,
68.5 FEET EASTERLY FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF;
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE 229.7 FEET TO AN
IRON STAKE ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 7, 65.5 FEET EAST OF
THE NORTHWEST CORNER

COMMONLY KNOWN AS 724 N. YORK ROAD, HINSDALE, ILLINOIS
PINS: 09-01-202-017-0000, 09-01-202-018 AND 09-01-202-022



EXHIBIT B

FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION

(ATTACHED)
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE
VILLAGE OF HINSDALE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS TO
THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES

ZONING CASE NO. V-02-17

APPLICATION: For Certain Variations Relative to Construction of a new
Commercial Building for use as an Animal Hospital at
724 N. York Road, Hinsdale, lllinois.

PETITIONER: Anthony Kremer, d/b/a Hinsdale Animal Hospital
PROPERTY OWNER: Purchase of the Property by Petitioner is pending
PROPERTY: 724 N. York Road, Hinsdale, lllinois (the “Property”)

HEARING HELD: Wednesday, April 19, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. in Memorial Hall,
in the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue,
Hinsdale, lllinois.

SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND RECOMMENDATION: The Village of Hinsdale has
received a request from Anthony Kremer, d/b/a Hinsdale Animal Hospital (the
“‘Applicant”) for certain variations relative to the proposed construction of a new
commercial building (the “New Building”) to be used as an animal hospital on the
Property, located in the B-1 Community Business Zoning District at 724 N. York Road
(the “Application”). The Applicant has requested variations to the following Sections of
the Zoning Code of the Village of Hinsdale (“Zoning Code”).

e Section 5-110 of the Zoning Code to allow a floor area ratio of .40 as opposed to
the maximum floor area ratio of .35 allowed in a B-1 District;

e Section 9-107.A.1. to waive the ten (10) foot parking lot landscape buffer
requirement.

Collectively, these two (2) variation requests shall be referred to herein as the
“‘Requested Variations.”

In addition to the Requested Variations, three (3) additional variations over which the
Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village of Hinsdale (“ZBA”) has final authority were
sought and approved by the ZBA. Those variations were to 1) Section 5-110.A.1.a. of
the Zoning Code, to allow a height of thirty-five (35) feet as opposed to the thirty (30)
feet allowed in a B-1 District; 2) Section 5-110.C.1.a. of the Zoning Code, to allow a
front yard setback of fifteen (15) feet (this was modified to seventeen (17) feet by the
ZBA at the Public Hearing) as opposed to the twenty-five (25) feet required in a B-1
District; and 3) Section 9-104.G.2.b. to permit off-street parking in a required front yard
(together, these three (3) variations are the “Additional Variations” and, collectively with
the Requested Variations, the “Variations”). The approval by the ZBA of the Additional
Variations is detailed in a separate Final Decision of the ZBA.
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On April 19, 2017, following the conclusion of the public hearing on this matter, the
Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village of Hinsdale (“ZBA”") recommended approval of
the Requested Variations on a vote of five (5) in favor, and zero (0) opposed.

PUBLIC HEARING: At the combined public hearing on the Variations, the Applicant
and a representative of the Applicant testified in support of the Variations. They
described the challenges posed by the unusual shape of the Property. They had
originally proposed preserving certain walls of the existing building, but the Village
Board had indicated a preference for a new building on the Property. The height
variation relates only to a tower that was incorporated into the building design based on
the Board of Trustee’s request for an element that would create architectural interest.
The requested front yard setback is similar to that of the existing building and is driven
by the odd shape of the Property. The footprint of the new proposed building is actually
slightly smaller than that of the existing building. They are doing their best to utilize the
odd-shaped lot. While the Applicant is requesting a small floor area ratio variation, the
proposed floor area ratio would be compliant if the Property had the same zoning
designation as the adjacent lot; the Property had been rezoned by a previous owner.
The possibility of barking dogs was discussed; the building will be designed in the back
half to limit the ability of dogs to be heard in the front half of the building and outside.
The closest neighbors will be further away from the building at the Property than they
are at the present site of the animal hospital. They are proud of their record on being a
good neighbor and in designing buildings that minimize the noise heard outside. The
setback for the parking lot is designed to match the fifteen (15) foot building set back
and to maximum use of the lot for parking purposes. The elimination of the required
landscape buffer is driven by the odd shape of the lot and will allow a double-loaded
parking aisle to run to the back of the Property. The impact of traffic is lessened by the
unique hours of the proposed hospital (7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.). Required parking is
forty-four (44) spaces and the proposed parking at this point is forty-five (45) spaces.

There being no further questions or members of the public wishing to speak on the
application, the Public Hearing was closed.

The ZBA then deliberated and, following motions and seconds on each of the
Requested Variations, recommended approval of the Requested Variations on a vote of
five (5) in favor, and zero (0) opposed.

FINDINGS: The following are the Findings of the ZBA relative to the Requested
Variations:

1. General Standard: Carrying out the strict letter of the provisions of the Zoning Code
would create a particular hardship or a practical difficulty, based on satisfaction of the
standards below:

2. Unique Physical Condition: The Subject Property is exceptional as compared to

other Iots subject to the same provision by reason of a unique physical condition,
including presence of an existing use, structure, or sign, whether conforming or
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nonconforming; irreqular or substandard shape or size; exceptional topographical
features; or other extraordinary physical conditions peculiar to and inherent in the
subject property that amount to more than a mere inconvenience to the owner and that
relate to or arise out of the lot rather than the personal situation of the current owner of
the lot. Al members agree that the Property is an irregular, oddly-shaped lot that
presents difficult and unique conditions and challenges relative to creating a viable
commercial use with parking on the site. The odd-shape is a primary driving force
behind the various Variations requested.

3. Not Self-Created: The unique physical condition is not the result of any action or
inaction of the owner, or of the owner's predecessors in title and known to the owner
prior to acquisition of the subject property, and existed at the time of the enactment of
the provisions from which a variation is sought or was created by natural forces or was
the result of governmental action, other than the adoption of the Zoning Code, for which
no compensation was paid. The irregularity of the shape of the Property is not self-
created. The need for certain variations, including the floor area ratio variation, was
caused by the rezoning of the Property by a previous owner, which resulted in more
restrictive bulk standards.

4. Denied Substantial Rights: The carrying out of the strict letter of the provisions from
which a variation is sought would deprive the owner of the subject property of
substantial rights commonly enjoyed by owners of other lots subject to the same
provision. In this case, requiring the Applicant to conform to the provisions of the Zoning
Code for which relief is sought would severely limit the ability to, among other things,
provide adequate on-site parking or to make commercially viable use of the Property.

5. Not Merely Special Privilege: The alleged hardship or difficulty is not merely the
inability of the owner or occupant to enjoy some special privilege or additional right not
available to owners or occupants of other lots subject to the same provision, nor merely
an inability to make more money from the use of the subject property; provided,
however, that where the standards herein set out exist, the existence of an economic
hardship shall not be a prerequisite to the grant of an authorized variation. The ability to
maintain adequate on-site parking and to site a new commercial building on this oddly-
shaped lot are not special privileges. The Variations are not sought to make more
money from use of the Property, but are instead sought in order to make a viable
commercial use of the Property. The Property, due to its rezoning by a previous owner,
has a different floor area requirement than the adjacent properties with a different
zoning designation.

6. Code And Plan Purposes: The variation would not result in a use or development of
the subject property that would not be in harmony with the general and specific
purposes for which the Zoning Code and the provision from which a variation is sought
were enacted or the general purpose and intent of the official comprehensive plan. The
ZBA found this standard to have been met.
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7. Essential Character Of The Area: The variation would not result in a use or
development on the subject property that:

(a) would be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious fo the
enjoyment, use, development, or value of property or improvements permitted in the
vicinity; or (b) would materially impair an adequate supply of light and air fo the
properties and improvements in the vicinity; or (c) would substantially increase
congestion in the public streets due to traffic or parking; or (d) would unduly increase
the danger of flood or fire; or (e) would unduly tax public utilities and facilities in the
area; or (f) would endanger the public health or safety.

The granting of the Variations will allow the development of the oddly-shaped Property
with a brand new commercial building that is visually interesting, commercially viable,
and that has adequate on-site parking. The impacts on adjacent properties will be
minimal; animal noise will be minimized by the noise-deadening design of the back half
of the building. Traffic impacts would be minimal, as visitors will be spread out over the
extended hours of the facility, and on weekends. On-site parking is anticipated to be
adequate to serve the facility. The proposed building will replace an existing building,
and utilities are already in place. The Variations will not endanger the public health or
safety.

8. No Other Remedy: There is no means other than the requested variations by which
the alleged hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied fo a degree sufficient to
permit a reasonable use of the subject property. This standard has been met. Without
the Variations, the building would have to be significantly smaller and would be unable
to meet parking requirements.

RECOMMENDATION:

Based on the Findings set forth above, the ZBA, by a vote of five (5) in favor and
zero (0) opposed, recommends to the President and Board of Trustees that the
following Requested Variations relative to the proposed construction of the New
Building to be used as an animal hospital on the Property, located in the B-1
Community Business Zoning District at 724 N. York Road, be GRANTED:

e A Variation from Section 5-110 of the Zoning Code to allow a floor area
ratio of .40 as opposed to the maximum floor area ratio of .35 allowed in a
B-1 District;

e A Variation from Section 9-107.A.1. to waive the ten (10) foot landscape
buffer requirement.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
SS:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

DISCUSSIONS OF THE HINSDALE
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

In the Matter of:

724 North York Road,
Case No. V-02-17.

)
)
)
)
)
REPORT OF DISCUSSIONS had of the
above-entitled matter between the Hinsdale
Zoning Board of Appeals, at 19 East Chicago

Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on April 19, 2017,

at the hour of 6:30 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
MR. ROBERT NEIMAN, Chairman;
MR. MARC C. CONNELLY, Member;
MR. JOHN F. PODLISKA, Member;
MR. JOSEPH ALESIA, Member; and

MR. GARY MOBERLY, Member.

* % *x x %k
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4
1 ALSO PRESENT: 1 MR. McGINNIS: They had a new tenant
2 MS. CHRISTINE BRUTON, Deputy Village 2 come in and the assertion from the owner was
Clerk; 3 that they were having a terrible time making a
3 4 go of it in that building with the zoning
MR. ROBB McGINNIS, Director of 5 restrictions in place. When their grandfather
4 Community Development. e .
6 constructed that building, it was more in
5 7 keeping with the uses that were across the
8 street at Gateway Square than it was with those
6 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: T guess we should 9 restrictions in the 0-2 district. So they
7 take these one by one. I guess to some degree wawn 10 actually entertained a map amendment to allow
8 my only real concern is with the height variance
9 request because it is merely an architectural 11 them to have the B-2 zoning.
wvzen 10 detail and given on the one hand I'm, as 1 12 MR. MOBERLY: How long ago was that 5,
11 expressed last month, a little concerned when 13 6 years ago?
12 most any application comes before us with five 14 MR. McGINNIS: No, I think it was
1 vari a n i
13 s e o i o v 15 ngron
15 hand, the board wasn't wrong when they said it's 18 MR. MOBERLY: I was on the board when
16 prettier with the increased height. 17 this happened. So the previous owner made the
17 MR. MOBERLY: Can you flip it over so 18 decision that it's harmful, nobody forced him to
18 we can see that again? 19 make that decision.
19 I'm a channel 6 junkie so I have
wuxwme 20 actually seen several of the hearings with the mosn 20 MR. MCGINNIS: 1t's interesting to
21  board. The board asked them to dress up the 21 watch this whole thing play out and see the
22 building and it's cheaper and more efficient for 22 comparisons made to the adjacent district. It
3 5
1 them to just create a bunker at 30-feet height 1 almost created the problem for the contract
2 all the way around. That architectural element 2 purchaser,
3 costs, apparently, a lot of money. 3 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Any other thoughts
4 So when we say not self-created, 4 from the board members on the height variance?
5 the board is kind of creating this because the 5 MR. CONNELLY: Well, it would be
6 board wanted this thing to be a nicer building. 6 speculation, but speculation based on testimony,
7 1 also concur that muitiple buildings in that 7 that the building would be in danger if it
8 neighborhood are going to be redeveloped, 8 didn't meet criteria required by the board,
9 hopefully, in our lifetime. 9 required by the hardship difficulty that cannot
orserem 10 Also the building, I cannot recall wawew 10 be ==
11 the address, but the one you referenced it was 11 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Fair point. Thank
12 35-feet tall, it looks like that building is 12  you.
13 probably going down in our lifetime as well, but 13 Anybody else?
14 it's already quite a bit taller than this 14 (No response.)
15 building is. 15 Do I hear a motion to approve the
16 Robb, can you help me? I was on 16 variance for the height variation?
17 the board when we changed the zoning 17 MR. MOBERLY: I'll motion that we grant
18 designation. I think that dry cleaners have 18 the height variance.
19 been there for a hundred years and I think it 19 MR, CONNELLY: Second.
wweew 20 was not a permitted but we changed it, so I'm oo 20 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roli call, please?
21 not sure -- they didn't seem to have a good 21 MS. BRUTON: Member Connelly?
22 explanation. 22 MR. CONNELLY: Aye.

KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

2 of 9 sheets



8

1 MS. BRUTON: Member Moberly? 1 MR. PODLISKA: So the question now is a
2 MR. MOBERLY: Yes. 2 setback of 17 --
3 MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia? 3 MR. McGINNIS: It would be 17.
4 MR. ALESIA: Yes. 4 MR. MOBERLY: You are talking about
5 MS. BRUTON: Member Podliska? 5 moving the entire building back 2 feet rather
6 MR. PODLISKA: Yes. 6 than eliminating the cupola?
7 MS. BRUTON: Chairman Neiman? 7 MR. PODLISKA: Correct.
8 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. 8 MR. MOBERLY: Okay. I getyou. So the
9 So the second variation is a front 9 building looks as nice as it does now.
waxen 10 yard setback to reduce the required setback from wassen 10 MR. PODLISKA: If you move the whole
11 25 feet to 15 feet. 11 building back to comply with the 25 feet, they
12 Anybody like to address this one? 12 can still get traffic around the end of it but
13 MR. PODLISKA: Rather than granting the 13 they would lose the 2 parking spaces. So we
14 15 feet it looks like the 17 feet is a workable 14 don't have a traffic flow problem getting around
15 compromise there. That's with the building 15 the corner of that building instead of moving it
16 moved back a little bit so the entranceway is 16 back to the 25 feet, move it back to 17 instead
17 back 17 feet. 17 of 15,
18 MR. MOBERLY: The only issue with that 18 MR. MOBERLY: So I move we should deny
19 1 think that box out, or whatever the 19 the setback variance request?
onen 20 architectural term is, provides a visual wawen 20 MR. McGINNIS: You can modify your
21 interest, a portion of the visual interest to 21 approval.
22 the building which I think it looks nicer with 22 MR. PODLISKA: Approve the variation on
7 9
1 that. Then it would be flush with the rest of 1 the condition the setback be 17 feet.
2 the building. I'm not the planning commission 2 MR. MOBERLY: Okay.
3 butI think it looks nicer the way it is, kind 3 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Explain to me what we
4 of popped out. Not popped out but the box out 4 are gaining by doing it? It's a little less of
5 for the cupola. 5 a variance but it's still a variance but
6 MR. SANDERSON: Can we say something or 6 practically what are we accomplishing?
7 no? 7 MR. PODLISKA: If we can minimize the
8 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: I'm afraid not. We 8 degree to which we are deviated from the
9 could move to reopen it if it's important. 9 requirement without doing irreparable harm to
oraareen 10 DR. KREMER: We can move it back. ws=w 10 the applicant, that would seem to be a
11 MR. PODLISKA: The big problem here is 11 reasonable compromise between the interest of
12 you don't want to lose the parking spaces. We 12 the code and the property.
13 can accomplish that and still move back a little 13 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Before anyone makes a
14 further than the 15 feet being requested. Do we 14 motion, let's see if we can reach a consensus on
15 have to reopen the hearing to get an answer to 15 whether we should vote on it as proposed or as
16 that? 16 John suggested amendment. Any thoughts from
17 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: I suspect we do if we 17 others on that?
18 are going to get it from the applicant. 18 MR, ALESIA: I think what John is
19 MR. McGINNIS: They can shift that 19 suggesting is a good compromise as long as it
wuzen 20 building back and still maintain that wasew 20 can still be done and not losing two parking
21 architectural feature. Shift the whole thing 21 spaces | think is reasonable.
22 back so you reduce the ask by 2 feet. 22 MR, CONNELLY: I agree.
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1 MR. MOBERLY: I'm okay with it. 1 if it were the O-2 district that's surrounding
2 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Okay. Do I hear a 2 it
3 motion to approve the front yard setback but 3 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Do I hear a motion?
4 reducing it from -- 4 MR. MOBERLY: Motion to recommend
5 MR. PODLISKA: Modifying the variation 5 approval of the FAR from .35 to .40 to the board
6 to provide for a setback of 17 feet. 6 of trustees.
7 MR. McGINNIS: Decrease of 8 rather 7 MR. ALESIA: Second.
8 than 10. 8 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roll call, please?
9 MR. PODLISKA: Are we approving a 9 MS. BRUTON: Member Connelly?
aeew 10 setback of 17 feet? asosen 10 MR. CONNELLY: I'm sorry, could you
1 MR. MOBERLY: We are going to redesign 11 repeat the motion, I didn't hear it.
12 your parking garage for you in about 15 minutes. 12 MR. MOBERLY: Motion to recommend
13 MR. PODLISKA: Technically you reopened 13 approval to the board of trustees the FAR from
14 the hearing. 14 .35 to .40.
15 MR. MOBERLY: No, we didn't. We just 15 MS. BRUTON: Member Connelly?
16 talked amongst ourselves. 16 MR. CONNELLY: Avye.
17 MR. PODLISKA: That's right. Did you 17 MS, BRUTON: Member Moberly?
18 phrase the motion? 18 MR. MOBERLY: Yes.
19 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: I did not. Go for 19 MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia?
wasew 20 it, JOhn, 20 MR. ALESIA: Yes.
21 MR. PODLISKA: Move to approve variance 21 MS. BRUTON: Member Podliska?
22 to a setback of 17 feet or a decrease of 8 feet. 22 MR. PODLISKA: Yes.
11 13
1 MR. ALESIA: Second. 1 MS. BRUTON: Chairman Neiman?
2 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roll cali, please? 2 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes.
3 MS. BRUTON: Member Connelly? 3 MR. PODLISKA: Thisis a
4 MR. CONNELLY: Aye. 4 recommendation. Do we need to attach --
5 MS. BRUTON: Member Moberly? 5 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. I was going to
6 MR. MOBERLY: Yes. 6 address that with Chris. We have done this a
7 MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia? 7 couple of different ways. I think the most
8 MR. ALESIA: Yes. 8 efficient way for us to do it is rather than my
9 MS. BRUTON: Member Podliska? 9 reading the reasons why we think they should
10 MR. PODLISKA: Yes. wsxn 10 grant the variance into the record, when you
1 MS. BRUTON: Chairman Neiman? 11 type up the recommendation, Chris, you can
12 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. 12 incorporate the applicant's reasons why each
13 On the third variance request which 13 standard is in fact met so that the board of
14 we will merely be recommending to the board 14 trustees has some material to read and
15 rather than actually granting or denying the 15 understand.
16 variance. This one is on the FAR issue to -- 16 MS. BRUTON: We actually have the
17 the request is that the maximum FAR be increased 17 village attorney make sure that's done right.
18 from .35 to .40. 18 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Even better.
19 Any thoughts on this one? 19 The fourth variance request is that
w20 MR. MOBERLY: I am okay with it. azeen 20 the parking lot setback in the front yard be
21 MR. PODLISKA: I think in particular 21 reduced from 25 feet to 15 feet to match
22 because it's still less than what FAR would be 22 building setback variations.
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1 Anyone want to address that one? 1 1 The last variance request is also
2 didn't have an issue with this one either. This 2 something that we will merely make a
3 makes sense given the other buildings in the 3 recommendation to the board on. And that is
4 area. 4 that the required 10-foot landscape buffer be
5 MR. MOBERLY: What if we are changing 5 removed to accommodate the odd shape lot and
6 the setback of the building by 2 feet, do we 6 allow for a double-loaded parking aisle to run
7 have to modify this as well or are they 7 back of the property.
8 separate? 8 This one makes perfect sense to me.
9 MR. McGINNIS: No. There's still 9 I don't know how else you get cars in and out
wsws 10 parking in the required front yard, asen 10 Without this variance.
11 MR. MOBERLY: Okay. 11 MR. PODLISKA: I agree for all the
12 MR. PODLISKA: Even though the building 12 reasons stated by the applicant.
13 is back 17 feet now, you authorized 17 feet for 13 MR. ALESIA: I have just one point for
14 the building, do we authorize 15 feet for the 14 all these before we close deliberation on these.
15 parking? That's okay? 15 How, I guess, what are the mechanics of making
16 MR. McGINNIS: The request is strictly 16 sure we get the purchase contingency proof of
17 to allow parking in the required front yard. So 17 that?
18 regardless of whether you move this building 18 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: I will take the
19 back 2 feet or not, you are still parking cars 19 applicant at their word that they will submit
asws 20 in the front yard, the required frdnt yard. wsoew 20 that to the village tomorrow and the village can
21 MR. MOBERLY: Just by looking here it 21 circulate that to us. I don't know that we need
22 looks like if you moved the parking back 2 feet 22 to make our vote to approve any variances or
15 17
1 you may lose a spot at the very end. 1 recommend any variances contingent on our
2 MR. PODLISKA: Yes. Good point. 2 receipt of that. I think at a certain point -~
3 Right. So it will stay at 15. 3 well --
4 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Is there a motion to 4 MR. MOBERLY: It's sworn testimony.
5 approve the variance request that the parking 5 MR. CONNELLY: Correct. I thinkI
6 lot setback in the front yard be reduced from 6 would rely on that.
7 25 feet to 15 feet? 7 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: I guess for the
8 MR. CONNELLY: I make a motion that the 8 record we can say that if for any reason we
9 parking lot setback in the front yard be reduced 9 don't receive confirmation that there is a
asss 10 from 25 feet to 15 feet. sz 10 contract to purchase the property contingent on
11 MR. MOBERLY: Second. 11 granting the variances that's received promptly,
12 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roll call, please? 12 then the sworn testimony was false and we would
13 MS. BRUTON: Member Connelly? 13 be able at our next meeting to take the vote
14 MR. CONNELLY: Aye. 14 back. I'm sure that's not going to happen. At
15 MS. BRUTON: Member Moberly? 15 certain point we have to take applicant's word
16 MR. MOBERLY: Yes. 16 but we will trust but verify.
17 MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia? 17 So I think we need a motion to
18 MR. ALESIA: Yes. 18 approve the fifth variance request.
19 MS. BRUTON: Member Podliska? 19 MR. CONNELLY: To recommend.
20 MR. PODLISKA: Yes. wsssen 20 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: To recommend to the
21 MS. BRUTON: Chairman Neiman? 21 board that they approve.
22 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. 22 MR. PODLISKA: For the reasons set
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forth by the applicant?
CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes.

MR. CONNELLY: So moved.

MR. ALESIA: Second.

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roll call, please?
MS. BRUTON: Member Connelly?

MR. CONNELLY: Avye.

MS. BRUTON: Member Moberly?

MR. MOBERLY: Yes.

MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia?

MR. ALESIA: Yes.

MS. BRUTON: Member Podliska?

MR, PODLISKA: Yes.

MS. BRUTON: Chairman Neiman?

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes.
Thank you very much.

(WHICH, were all of the
proceedings had, evidence
offered or received in the
above entitled cause.)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified
Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the
County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that the discussion by the board was
reduced to writing by means of shorthand and
thereafter transcribed into typewritten form;
and that the foregoing is a true, correct and
complete transcript of my shorthand notes so

taken aforesaid.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have
hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial
seal this 27th day of April, A.D. 2017.

19

KATHLEEN W. BONO,

C.S.R. No. 84-1423,

Notary Public, DuPage County
237 South Wisconsin Avenue,
Addison, IL 60101-3837
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) Ss:

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )
BEFORE THE HINSDALE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
In the Matter of:

724 North York Road,
Case No. V-02-17.

)
)
)
)
)

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony
taken at the hearing of the above-entitled
matter before the Hinsdale Zoning Board of
Appeals, at 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale,
Tllinois, on April 19, 2017, at the hour of 6:30
p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

MR. ROBERT NEIMAN, Chairman;

MR. MARC C. CONNELLY, Member;

MR. JOHN F. PODLISKA, Member;

MR. JOSEPH ALESIA, Member; and

MR. GARY MOBERLY, Member.
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1 ALSO PRESENT:
1 that agreement tomorrow to Robb and Robb can
2 MS. CHRISTINE BRUTON, Deputy Village 2 pass italong. Is that fair?
Clerk;
3 3 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. Our concern is
MR. ROBB McGINNIS, Director of 4 merely that we don't want to rule on variance
4 C i .
ommunity Development; 5 applications that are hypothetical in nature.
5 MR. JASON SANDERSON, Applicant's 6 MR. SANDERSON: Absolutely
6 Representative; 7 understanding.
DR. TONY KREMER, Applicant. 8 Just to give you some level of
7 9 confidence of where we are at and having
8 wewen 10 invested a substantial amount of money between
(The oath was administered 11  architecture and engineering so we are heavily
9
12 invested.
en masse.)
10 13 We wanted to stay in Hinsdale ever
CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: The next matte.r IS 14 since the first hospital was purchased and
11 Vv-02-17, 724 North York Road. Good evening. I
12 have certificates for the mailing. 15 didn't quite understand the nonconforming use
13 MR. SANDERSON: My name is Jason 16 that it had associated with it. We were hoping
14 Sanderson with RWE Management.
15 DR. KREMER: I'm Dr. Tony Kremer from 17 to redevelop on that site. So since the time we
16  Hinsdale Animal Hospital. 18 purchased that hospital, we have been looking
17 MR. SANDERSON: I'm going to apologize 19 ¢ h d so this i "
18 alittle bit. I wasn't here last month, the or a new home and so this is -- you can te
19 architect presented to you guys at the wsoen 20 the site is not perfect but we are excited about
wsawew 20 prehearing. He's out sick today so I'm going to .
- i 21 it
21 Aillin for him.
22 I'm quite familiar with the 22 We worked with the village board on
3 5
1 project. I have been working with Dr. Kremer on 1 the concept and design and I think we have a
2 this Hinsdale Animal Hospital for over five 2 nice project and so we are absolutely committed
3 years and have met with Robb and staff on this 3 and excited to do it.
4 specific project over the last six months, so 4 I have a couple of exhibits that
5 I'm quite familiar with it but I wasn't at this 5 the architect did prepare for me so I hope you
6 prehearing meeting so I'll apologize and I know 6 guys don't mind, I'll pass those out to you. We
7 Dr. Kremer was here and will do our best to go 7 can go through the variances in detail but what
8 through this. 8 I just handed out to you guys was just an
9 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: I have one question 9 exhibit because I know this came up, he did try
wxzn 10 before you get started. wwaes 10 to prep me, it came up about the building
11 At last month's hearing we asked if 11 setback and there's a little history on that
12 there was a contingency agreement to purchase 12 that Robb's familiar with.
13 the property contingent upon our granting the 13 When we first met with staff, our
14 variances and I was told yes, but I haven't seen 14 intention was to save a portion of the building
15 anything to substantiate that. 15 and for a couple different reasons. One, from
16 MR. SANDERSON: Absolutely. We can get 16 our standpoint for an animal hospital it's a
17 you the agreement. I apologize if that wasn't 17 substantial investment buying the property so we
18 done but obviously, the offer, based on the sale 18 were trying to salvage the building that was the
19 price, is absolutely contingent on not only 19 original intent.
wsoew 20 getting the special use but because the site is orooosen 20 The building is not in the best
21 really unique given the variances necessary to 21 shape but we were trying to make the deal work
22 develop the lot. So we can get you a copy of 22 and I know it's not so much for your guys'
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1 consideration, but when we met with staff we 1 We can -- again, we can shift it
2 talked about keeping two walls and by doing that 2 back to get the tower within the existing
3 it would allow us to keep the building 3 setback without affecting the site plan. If we
4 positioned where it's at and so when we met with 4 move the whole building back to meet the current
5 the village board the first time, I don't know 5 setback, we would lose to more parking spaces
6 what we call that meeting, but it's kind of like 6 which would then bring us into a different
7 a temperature reading meeting to see if this 7 variance of not having enough parking.
8 thing was even viable from their standpoint we 8 So the building setback we would
9 kind of got some feedback to say hey, we really 9 like to match the existing setback and, again,
aows 10 don't want that building. We would be happier w10 to push back the tower to get it to fit, that's
11 if you guys knocked that building down. I 11 within the realm of possibilities here that we
12 believe we said, well, that's going to force us 12 can do. So that was the first variance that we
13 to push that building back and we want that 13 were going after was that front yard setback.
14 frontage. We would have liked to have been on 14 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: I think it might be
15 Ogden rather than be on York, to be honest, more 15 helpful, but I'm open to suggestion from the
16 exposure where we are at now. 16 other board members, to have you go through the
17 So we kind of got the impression 17 criteria for each variance request. We have
18 that we will work with you on the setback, if 18 that in writing and we have several variances to
19 you give us a new building. So that's where 19 go through, and I don't want to unnecessarily
anwen 20 this first stem of this first variation comes anwes 20 prolong the meeting but in terms of anybody have
21 from. 21 any thoughts on whether that's a worthwhile use
22 Is that somewhat accurate, Robb, do 22 of ourtime?
7 9
1 you remember it that way? 1 MR. MOBERLY: That makes sense to me.
2 MR. McGINNIS: Itis. Yes. 2 MR. SANDERSON: Sure. He gave me a
3 MR. SANDERSON: So we went down that 3 nice write-up so I'll start to read through
4 road of trying to match that setback and what 4 these.
5 vyou are seeing on this first exhibit is the 5 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: You can summarize.
6 existing building and then the green is our 6 You don't have to read through everything. A
7 overlay and our bump out sticks out past it. 7 summary and overview of each criteria is what we
8 Now we can easily shift the building back to get 8 are looking for.
9 that bump out within the existing setback. 9 MR. SANDERSON: So there's five
ooraoew 10 MR. ALESIA: Is that just for the aues 10 variations that we are seeking. Height
11 cupola? 11 variation, which is a maximum of 30 feet. The
12 MR. SANDERSON: Yes, the tower. 1 12 second one is a front yard setback, which is
13 don't know architecturally what they call it, 13 currently set at 25 feet. Third one is the
14 but it's this front element. (Indicating.) 14 maximum floor area ratio, FAR, which is .035.
15 Again, when we first started 16 Fourth one is a parking setback variation,
16 designing the site plan we didn't have any ins 16 parking required yards. And then the fifth one
17 and outs but the village board asked us for some 17 is a landscape buffer, so parking lot screening.
18 more dimensional interest. It was a box to 18 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Just for all the
19 begin with because again we were trying to match 19 board members' background, the third and fifth
ansen 20 What's beside it a little bit. But they asked auwy 20 variation requests will be recommendations to
21 us to give some architectural element so we 21 the board rather than actual approvals by us.
22 created that tower. 22 With that, go on.
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1 MR. SANDERSON: I guess it looks like 1 kind of spot-zoned the way we are now. The
2 Section 11.5 standards for variation. Starting 2 surrounding areas are all 0-2.
3 with the first one. The height variation is 3 MR. McGINNIS: No, you have the B-2
4 being requested to allow the entrance tower 4 across the street, it's not spot zoning.
5 architectural feature to exceed the maximum 5 MR, SANDERSON: Okay. Apologize. We
6 30-foot and allow a 35-foot for this element 6 were 0-2 and they down-zoned it down. Had they
7 only as depicted in the proposed elevations. 7 not done it, we could have been at 40 feet. We
8 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Would it be accurate 8 are thinking we are operating in some kind of a
9 to say that the height variance is being 9 good manner here but we still nonetheless we are
susen 10 requested solely because you want the wueew 10 here to ask for variations.
11 architectural detail rather than that it serves 1 So to answer your first question,
12 any functional purpose? 12 absolutely architectural element. I'll go
13 MR. SANDERSON: That would be a hundred 13 through --
14 percent accurate and again, through the great 14 MR. PODLISKA: Do you have any drawings
15 efforts of the village board, we met and we had 15 of what it would look like if you did pull it
16 some leadership liaison and again, pushed and 16 back to the 30-foot limit?
17 pulled the building a little bit and we 17 MR. SANDERSON: I can't remember if we
18 obviously agree with the direction it took on, 18 had those. I don't think so. I think when we
19 but I don't want you guys to think we were out 19 met and started getting some feedback it was
wsaen 20 0N an island trying to push something here. aawn 20 just, like, yes, we want it; can we just squeeze
21 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: If the board can 21 it down without making it look odd because you
22 suggest that variances can be granted, maybe we 22 crushed it down.
11 13
1 can appropriate money or something. 1 So that parapet wall is at that
2 MR. SANDERSON: I don't want to throw 2 30-foot mark. So if we started to puil it down,
3 anybody under the bus because we all have to go 3 you are going to lose that hip roof on top of
4 back and see everybody once more. I just want 4 it. It can still be pushed out and we could
5 to make sure the full story comes together 5 just put a corner step wrapped around it and you
6 that's all. 6 would have the arched windows.
7 You are absolutely right that is an 7 Again, we are getting some feedback
8 architectural element and we can easily lop it 8 looking at the overlay district and in that
9 off. 9 Graue Mill, if I'm saying that right, and when
wrosseem 10 DR. KREMER: The other thing about that eowen 10 we looked at that there was some arched windows
11 it was higher on the first one and they asked us 11 on the McDonald's. There was a in-fill window.
12 to bring it down a couple of feet. 12 So we were trying to take some inspiration based
13 MR. SANDERSON: Yes. It was at 37 and 13 on the overlay even though we aren't in the
14 we brought it down to 35. 14 overlay and that's part of what we were trying
15 Now, there's another backdrop to 15 to --
16 this story. This used to be, I believe, 0-2, 16 MR. MOBERLY: Did you go before the
17 Robb? 17 plan commission?
18 MR. McGINNIS: That's correct. 18 MR. SANDERSON: Yes. We went to the
19 MR. SANDERSON: And the current owners 19 plan commission as well,
amwen 20 down zoned it to put a dry cleaner in there woroen 20 MR. MOBERLY: They have seen this
21 which then put us into a lower maximum building 21 version?
22 height. The surrounding areas we are actually 22 MR. SANDERSON: Yes. They absolutely
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1 have seen this version. We have been to plan 1 the owner of the subject property of substantial
2 commission a couple of times, I believe, and the 2 rights commonly enjoyed by the owners of the
3 village board a couple of times. 3 adjacent lots that remain zoned O-2 which allows
4 MR. McGINNIS: That's correct on these. 4 for heights up to 40 feet.
5 This will go back to the plan commission on 5 Not merely a special privilege.
6 exterior appearance assuming you approve it. 6 The variation and height is not a request for
7 MR. SANDERSON: Although when we went 7 special privilege but a consideration to allow
8 to those boards, they wanted us to have this 8 petitioner to enjoy rights that are afforded to
9 level of detail so they could understand the 9 adjacent property owners in the O-2 with a
swwn 10 scope of the project, right, Robb? wnaes 10 Maximum height of 40 feet.
1 MR. McGINNIS: I think that's probably 11 Code and plan purposes. The
12 how we got here is the board wanted a complete 12 variation would not result in a development that
13 picture before they were willing to entertain 13 would not be in harmony with the purpose of this
14 the special use and I think A kind of drove B 14 code and the intent of the official
15 and maybe we got a little further out of the 15 comprehensive plan because the variation
16 gate than we otherwise would have. 16 requested is already afforded to adjacent
17 MR. SANDERSON: I know they have seen 17 properties in the O-2 district.
18 this even though they didn't vote on some of the 18 Essential character of the area.
19 stuff we are getting influence from the 19 The variation would not be materially
~mwen 20 different boards, including yourselves. ansew 20 detrimental, and would not increase congestion
21 MR. PODLISKA: So if it got pulled back 21 of public streets, will not increase danger of
22 down to the 30-foot max, are you back before the 22 flood, would not impact public utilities, would
15 17
1 plan commission to show them again those plans? 1 not endanger the public health and safety.
2 MR. McGINNIS: This has to go to the 2 No other remedy. The variation
3 plan commission regardless for exterior 3 allows a character element to the architecture
4 appearance and site plan approval. It hasn't 4 of the tower like form defining the entrance.
5 gone to them yet. It starts here by design for 5 Without this variation the building would have
6 that reason. 6 to carry the same parapet height around the
7 MR. SANDERSON: So some things I don't 7 perimeter of the building which would negatively
8 quite understand but makes sense now. So if we 8 impact architectural interest.
9 didn't get granted the variation, we would be 9 Those are the standards for the
wwwew 10 pulling that thing down for sure. anaen 10 first variation.
1 So the first standard of the 11 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Anyone on the board
12 variation is unique physical condition. The 12 have any questions about whether the applicant
13 site is -- I kind of alluded it's a stand-alone 13 meets the standards for that variance?
14 B-1, although across the street is B-1, by 0-2 14 MR. PODLISKA: As to the no other
15 district and it was previously rezoned as I 15 remedy, there really is a remedy as you
16 mentioned. 16 discussed. You can remove that and still have a
17 Not self-created. Previous owner 17 building that functions exactly the way in all
18 down-zoned it to the B-1 to meet their needs 18 other respects.
19 with the dry cleaner use. 19 MR. SANDERSON: From a function
wooen 20 Denied substantial rights. The awoew 20 standpoint, absolutely. From a form standpoint,
21 carrying out the strict letter of the provision 21 obviously it would not have the same interest as
22 from which the variation is sought would deprive 22 it would I think with -- I think it obviously
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1 creates a nice architecture element. 1 prerequisite for being self-created. So when
2 MR. PODLISKA: And would the arched 2 John phrased the one issue that this could be a
3 windows not be saved if it was lowered? 3 discussion after we close the hearing.
4 MR. SANDERSON: It would be something 4 DR. KREMER: If I could just mention
5 that we would play with and try and make sure 5 one thing. The tower is actually a pretty
6 that from a scale standpoint and a masting 6 expensive element to this building and it was
7 standpoint that it works. Obviously it's meant 7 not something I was in agreement with when we
8 to be like a beacon and so by adding the height, 8 first started, especially when we were thinking
9 it's like a library or anything else or a 9 about keeping two of the walls and building in
+wam 10 school, it's going to draw it and call it the weew 10 the exact same place and building very similar
11 entrance, now that's where I go in the front 11 to what's there and the board of trustees did
12 door. 12 numerous times say it will just be a box and
13 MR. CONNELLY: Are any of the other 13 they didn't like that.
14 buildings in the area over 35 feet? 14 So then we pushed the architect to
15 MR. SANDERSON: We have a height study. 15 do something different so that's kind of where
16 MR. MOBERLY: Just to the north there's 16 it came out of.
17 a brown building looks like it's a full three 17 MR, SANDERSON: I know somebody asked
18 stories. 18 did you play with bringing it down to 30 feet?
19 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: There's a lot of them 19 1 don't think we ever played with bringing it
aueen 20 that go 40 feet but they are zoned different. ases 20 down there but we did play with that height, We
21 MR. SANDERSON: 35 feet here and 21 started at 37, we were going for the grandiose,
22 32 feet here. Now, I don't know if these are 22 and I'm sure we went down to 33 and said ah. So
19 21
1 surveyed engineered as-builts. I don't know if 1 obviously we want to push, right? Everybody
2 they were using Google Earth so I can't speak to 2 comes here to push. I think we settled with 35
3 the validity of it but I believe there's a 3 with staff support.
4 couple over there. 4 Shall I continue on to the next
5 And obviously, the buildings that 5 variation?
6 are adjacent to us aren't brand new buildings. 6 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: I think so.
7 1think one was for sale. We think if people 7 MR. SANDERSON: Front yard setback
8 start to redevelop, obviously they are going to 8 variation is being requested to reduce the
9 start to want to max out based on land costs. 9 required front setback from 25 feet to 15 feet.
anwew 10 S0 you can get people built around us, but they awwy 10 The existing building is currently located
11 are going to push up but it's pure speculation. 11 within setback 15.38 feet from the property
12 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Any other questions 12 line.
13 on this variation, the height issue? 13 Item A. Unique physical condition.
14 My initial instinct was that this 14 The front yard setback variation being requested
15 one was self-created but when you read the 15 will match the existing building setback to be
16 definition of what the standard is, it says the 16 redeveloped. The applicant is requesting that
17 aforesaid unique physical condition was not a 17 the variation be granted to allow parking to be
18 result of any action or inaction by the owner 18 maximized to the rear of the property that is
19 and that's not what we are talking about here. 19 difficult due to the very odd shape property
ortasoem 20 So this is -- the tower is entirely aween 20 configuration. This unique shape makes it
21 self-created but it's not part of the aforesaid 21 difficult to obtain the required parking for the
22 unique physical conditions which is a 22 proposed development and use.
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1 Item B. Not self-created. The 1 MR. SANDERSON: That's correct. Again,
2 building location would be following previously 2 this is an odd-shape lot. You can see some of
3 defined building line along North York Road. 3 the things we are doing on the back with the
4 The odd shape lot makes efficient parking 4 parking. It's 60 feet curb to curb. So I won't
5 difficult, is not the result of any action by 5 say we are shoehorning it but we are trying to
6 the petitioner. 6 make the best of this odd-shape lot.
7 Item C. Denied substantial rights. 7 MR, PODLISKA: If you move the building
8 The carrying out of the strict letter of the 8 back to comply with the 25 feet, you told us you
9 provision from which the variation is sought 9 are going to lose some parking spaces back
awes 10 would deprive the owner of the subject property oo 10 there; right?
11 rights that were previously afforded to the site 1 MR, SANDERSON: Yes, sir.
12 development with the existing building on the 12 MR. PODLISKA: Would you still be able
13 site as well as the established setback of 13 to come around the corner of that building to
14 adjacent properties. 14 get to the rest of those parking spaces? I was
15 Item D. Not merely special 15 looking at the edge of that building. It would
16 privilege. The variation setback is not a 16 make it awfully narrow there.
17 request for special privilege but a request for 17 MR. SANDERSON: It's really tight and
18 consideration to allow the petitioner to enjoy 18 he was playing with it and we think we can get
19 the rights that are currently afforded to 19 through there. What happens is we shift the
aneen 20 sUbject property and adjacent property. awwen 20 trash enclosures down two spots and we start to
21 Item E. Code and plan purposes. 21 lose those two spots. So we did play with the
22 The variation would not result in the 22 scenario.
23 25
1 development that would not be in harmony with 1 MR. PODLISKA: I can see where you lose
2 the purpose of this code or the intent of the 2 parking. It looks like you also create a
3 official comprehensive plan because the 3 difficulty for vehicles to move to the back.
4 variation requested is already afforded to the 4 You have parking spaces back there but you have
5 existing building and the adjacent properties. 5 to get around the corner of the building right
6 Item F. Essential character of the 6 at that point where the odd shape of the lot
7 area. The variation would not be materially 7 narrows it down.
8 detrimental and would not increase congestion on 8 MR. SANDERSON: That's correct.
9 public streets, would not increase danger of 9 MR. PODLISKA: Are you comfortable with
awou 10 flood, would not impact public utilities and aw2ew 10 that or is that also a factor in our decision?
11 would not endanger the public health and safety. 11 MR. SANDERSON: Well, we think we can
12 No other remedy. The variation 12 get the building to work. We just think we are
13 allows the site development to meet the offsite 13 now going to be asking for a different variance
14 parking requirement. Due to the shape of the 14 because we are not going to meet the parking
15 |ot, without this variation it would not be 15 requirements. And for us parking -- if you know
16 possible to meet the parking requirements. 16 our current situation, parking has been an issue
17 MR. MOBERLY: Is it fair to say your 17 since day one for us as well.
18 proposed footprint is actually a little smaller 18 We really want the parking spaces.
19 than the existing building footprint? I'm 19 It's important for us and there's a little bit
wuoen 20 colorblind but it looks like it's slightly awsen 20 Of Off-street parking currently but we don't
21 smaller and that's why it allows for better 21 want our clients with dogs trying to trek across
22 access to the back parking. 22 York Road, so having parking spaces on site is
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1 really important. 1 of substantial rights commonly enjoyed by owners
2 So I can't answer your guestion a 2 of other adjacent lots that remain zoned as 0-2
3 hundred percent because I don't have an exact 3 which allows for maximum FAR of .50.
4 layout yet but we think we can get the building 4 Not merely special privilege. The
5 to work, it's just the parking becomes an issue. 5 variation in FAR is not a request for special
6 MR. PODLISKA: If you move the building 6 privilege but consideration to allow the
7 back instead of having it at 15 feet to 17 feet, 7 petitioner to enjoy the rights that are afforded
8 in other words so the entryway there is back 8 the adjacent properties in the O-2 district with
9 17 feet, you don't lose the parking spaces; 9 a max FAR of .50.
onaee 10 right? wzsen 10 Item E. Code and plan purposes.
1 MR. SANDERSON: That's correct. So as 11 The variation would not result in the
12 1 kind of started off, I think we can move the 12 development that would not be in harmony with
13 entrance back to meet the current. I don't 13 the purpose of this code or the intent of the
14 think that will affect the parking. It shifts 14 official comprehensive plan because the
15 things on the site. 15 variation request is already afforded to
16 I apologize if I'm talking too fast 16 adjacent properties in the O-2 district.
17 for you guys. Let me know. 17 Item F. Essential character of the
18 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: You are doing fine. 18 area. The variation would not be materially
19 Any questions on the second 19 detrimental and would not increase congestion on
aneen 20 variance by the board? wnom 20 public streets, would not increase danger of
21 (No response.) 21 flood, would not impact public utilities and
22 Carry on. 22 would not endanger the public health or safety.
27 29
1 MR. SANDERSON: No. 3. The applicant 1 Item G. No other remedy. Without
2 is requesting that the maximum FAR be increased 2 this variation the petitioner would have to
3 from .35 to .40. This increase would be under 3 reduce the building size by 25 percent.
4 the max FAR .5 in the surrounding O-2 district 4 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Let me ask this
5 which surrounds the site on all sides except for 5 question. Doesn't -- it pertains to all of the
6 across the street. 6 variance reguests equally.
7 Item A. Unique physical condition. 7 If I'm a neighbor, residential
8 The site is a standalone B-1 surrounded by an 8 neighbor, I suspect my main concern is I want to
9 0-2 district. It was previously rezoned to 9 make sure that at 2 o'clock in the morning I'm
anww 10 allow for a particular desired use that was not a=w 10 NOt hearing the dogs barking and I know that in
11 permitted in the O-2 district. The surrounding 11 your materials you address the mitigation of
12 0-2 district has a FAR of .50 permitted by the 12 adverse impacts and said you were doing special
13 zoning code. It is reasonable that the proposed 13 soundproofing.
14 site be held to a similar guideline that of the 14 To what degree can you represent to
15 adjacent property. 15 the residential neighbors that they are not
16 Item B. Not self-created. The 16 going to hear dogs barking from inside the
17 site was rezoned by the previous property owner, 17 facility?
18 it was not self-created by petitioner. 18 MR. SANDERSON: We have in the past in
19 Item C. Denied substantial rights. 19 front of boards we have brought in sound
axuew 20 The carrying out of the strict letter of the o 20 consultants that have done readings outside of
21 provision from which the variation is sought 21 facilities we have built, so believe it or not,
22 would deprive the owner of the subject property 22 we specialize in designing building animal
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1 hospitals. Probably in Chicago we have done 1 currently; correct?
2 150. Won some national awards we are really 2 MR. SANDERSON: Absolutely. And we
3 proud of. Designed a number of facilities for 3 continue to position the building further away
4 Dr. Kremer. All in Chicagoland area. 4 from them and we do board at the current
5 And usually when we sit in front of 5 facility and I think we brought in a letter Iasf
6 a board, the two things that come up is sound 6 time there's been no complaints. Actually the
7 and odor. And for a veterinarian they want to 7 neighbors supported us. There were no
8 be next to neighbors because that's who has the 8 complaints and I think we might have reached out
9 animals. 9 to the police department to verify that. So I
oasuen 10 So we have gotten, I want to say, wsen 10 think we pride ourselves on being good neighbors
11 pretty good at designing buildings that contain 11  and designing good buildings but obviously, I
12 the noise but Dr. Kremer is a special kind of 12 can't guarantee.
13 veterinarian. He does some unique surgeries. 13 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Fair enough.
14 When he's doing surgery within the facility, he 14 MR. SANDERSON: It's absolutely one of
15 doesn't want to hear those dogs barking either 15 the top considerations. That's how we
16 believe it or not. 16 differentiate ourselves as a firm.
17 So we take great pride on how we 17 DR. KREMER: I felt even with the
18 design. The back half of the hospital gets 18 outdoor area being a fenced in area of some nice
19 designed differently than the front half. The 19 grass, synthetic grass, that walking one animal
axwn 20 front half has more drywall and softer for the anwn 20 out there at a time would still pose no problem
21 clients but the back half we start using 21 about incessant barking. If the dog barked, you
22 concrete block. We will use sound panels. 22 could bring it back in. But we just chose to
31 33
1 The board actually asked us to get 1 not go down that route and deal with having the
2 rid of -- we had an outdoor exercise area and so 2 area where they would go and exercise indoors,
3 if we get complaints, it's not because of what's 3 which takes away from space we could use for
4 inside it's because what happens outside. So we 4 something else, but it seemed to be a big issue
§ acquiesced and got rid of that outside exercise § that they just didn't want to deal with so we
6 area. 6 moved in that direction.
7 To say guaranteeing anything, 7 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Do any board members
8 that's tough. I can tell you it's my job and 8 have questions on the third variance request?
9 Tony's trusted us for a number of years to build 9 (No response,)
aszw 10 these facilities, that he doesn't get those azraen 10 MR. SANDERSON: No. 4. The applicant
11 types of complaints. Because you guys have code 11 is requesting that the parking lot setback in
12 enforcement and if they continue to have 12 the front yard be reduced from 25 feet to
13 complaints, they will pull the special use. We 13 15 feet to match building setback variation.
14 have been threatened with that before in public 14 I'm going to run through those
15 hearings. 15 again. It's going to be the same.. You want me
16 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Unlike your current 16 to run through them? I don't want to waste your
17 site where there are residential neighbors very 17 time.
18 close. 18 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: I don't think it's
19 MR. SANDERSON: They continue to build 19 necessary.
wmwn 20 closer to us. wrzsen 20 Any objection? Okay.
21 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Your closest 21 MR, SANDERSON: Item 5. The applicant
22 residences would be farther away than they are 22 is requesting that the required 10-foot
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1 landscape buffer be removed to accommodate the 1 possible to meet the parking requirement.
2 odd shape lot and allow double-loaded parking 2 Expand on this one a little bit?
3 aisle to run to the back of the property. 3 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Sure.
4 This is slightly different and I 4 MR. SANDERSON: So I kind of alluded to
5 can run through these. They might sound the 5 this when we got the survey from the seller,
6 same but when we get into discussion, I can 6 this back half here is 60 feet. Parking lot
7 explain better. 7 designs minimum 18 feet for the depth of a
8 Item A. The unique physical 8 stall, 24 feet for a drive aisle, add 18, 18, 24
9 condition. The applicant is requesting that the 9 and you get 60. There's just no room to fill
«»ow 10 landscape buffer variation be granted to allow «»ew 10 that back end and if we single-loaded it, we
11 parking to be maximized which is difficult due 11  wouldn't meet the parking requirements. And
12 to the very odd shape property configuration. 12 it's not so much we will decrease the size of
13 This unique shape makes it difficult to obtain 13 your building because you have two spurs that
14 the required parking for the proposed 14 come off this site that we are doing the most we
15 development and use. 15 can with it.
16 Not self-created. The odd shape 16 So I have been through these
17 lot makes efficient parking difficult is not the 17 meetings before where boards feel like we are
18 result of any action by the petitioner. 18 getting greedy and we can just decrease our
19 C. Denied substantial rights. The 19 building and create some more green space. I
ameew 20 carrying out of the strict letter of the wwwen 20 don't feel like that's not the case here. We
21 provision from which the variation is sought 21 are really trying to make this thing get
22 would deprive the petitioner of the ability to 22 redeveloped and so we do feel like this is a
35 37
1 provide adequate parking. 1 little hardship here based on this particular
2 Not merely special privilege. The 2 site.
3 variation landscape buffer is not a request for 3 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: So let me pose this
4 special privilege but a request for 4 question to both you and Robb. Just looking at
5 consideration due to the odd shape lot. 5 the flow of traffic coming out of the proposed
6 Item E. Code and plan purposes. 6 site, I know that when one comes out of Grant
7 The variation would not result in a development 7 Square, you can make a left turn or a right turn
8 that would not be in harmony with the purpose of 8 no problem and that never seems to be an issue.
9 this code or the intent of the official 9 Given the fact that this building
w=xm 10 comprehensive plan because the variation anwen 10 is directly opposite Gateway Square, I'm just
11 requested is already afforded the existing 11  wondering if it presents any kind of a traffic
12 building and to adjacent properties. 12 hazard if people were making left turns coming
13 F. Essential character of the 13 simultaneously coming both ways and if the
14 area. The variation would not be materially 14 village needs to do any traffic study or needs
15 detrimental and would not increase congestion on 15 to limit the left turns out of this parking lot.
16 public streets, would not increase danger of 16 I'm just not sure what's required and what's
17 flood, would not impact public utilities and 17 appropriate.
18 would not endanger the public health or safety. 18 MR. SANDERSON: In that test the
19 G. No other remedy. The variation 19 temperature meeting, the first thing the village
axwen 20 allows the site development to meet the off- wnwes 20 board asked us to get a traffic study so we
21 street parking requirement. Due to the shape of 21 went -- we met with them. They said go back
22 the lot, without this variation it would not be 22 with traffic study. That was probably their
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1 first concern. So we waited a month, got the 1 flow. Do you need that many spaces? What's the
2 traffic study, brought the traffic study to 2 number of employees? I'm assuming a lot of the
3  them. 3 bulk of the parking is going to be by employees.
4 We are kind of unique. We are open 4 DR. KREMER: I wish we had 10, 15 more.
5 alot of hours. They will open 7 a.m. and maybe 5 MR. ALESIA: Even though the business
6 close at 7:00 p.m. so we stretch the business. 6 is spread out like you were saying, is it the
7 8:00 p.m. I'm sorry. So we stretch the 7 employees taking up a lot of the spots?
8 business over a 13-hour period. 8 DR. KREMER: We have a lot of employees
9 So although it's 12,000 square 9 potentially. We will use that back lot for
oneew 10 feet, there's a decent amount of it that's wswn 10 employee parking and I hope we will be busy
11 devoted just to animals boarding there. So our 11 enough.
12 traffic impact when you look at it compared to 12 It needs to be pretty busy to
13 other businesses is not as impactful as you 13 afford what we are doing here and we have never
14 might believe, although there's -~ and the times 14 built an animal hospital on a $2 million piece
15 that we are at peak are on Saturdays and 15 of ground before and so I know this is a lot of
16 Sundays, which is not rush-hour traffic for 16 variances and in the past we have shied away
17 commuters. So he holds Saturday hours and 17 from asking for any variances and done
18 Sundays hours and that's when a lot of people 18 everything we could to keep that from happening
19 aren't working and they can bring their animals 19 but we need the size of the building to afford
w=wew 20 in to get services. aswn 20 that kind of price for the lot, especially the
21 So we absolutely got a traffic 21 shape of it.
22 study from a reputable traffic firm and I think 22 MR. SANDERSON: Parking is something
39 41
1 we met the concerns of the village board in that 1 sooner or later we need it and once you need it,
2 regard. 2 you can'tfind it. You don't want to go across
3 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Thank you. 3 the street looking for it. So we will probably
4 Any questions on the fifth variance 4 grow into that lot as time goes on.
5 request? 5 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Any other questions?
6 MR. ALESIA: You keep mentioning the 6 (No response.)
7 number of spaces that are needed. If we vote 7 Thank you,
8 against this, then we are going to be hearing a 8 Is there anyone else in the
9 variance for that. What is that number? 9 audience who would like to speak on this case?
oo 10 MR. SANDERSON: 1 think I have the waszen 10 (No response.)
11 study somewhere. 1 per 275 when over 10,000 11 We will move now to close the
12 square feet. The required parking spaces is 44; 12 public hearing.
13 actual parking spaces is 45. 13 Do I hear a motion to close the
14 Now, I'm not going to promise you 14 public hearing on Case No. V-02-17, 724 North
15 this is the exact site plan we have in front of 15 York?
16 you tonight. I believe this to be accurate. So 16 MR. PODLISKA: So moved.
17 if we lost two, we would be down one as I was 17 MR. CONNELLY: Second.
18 saying earlier. 18 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roll call, please?
19 Does that sound right, Robb? 19 MS. BRUTON: Member Connelly?
wauen 20 MR. McGINNIS: It does. 20 MR. CONNELLY: Aye.
21 MR. ALESIA: The question I'm going 21 MS. BRUTON: Member Moberly?
22 along with the chairman was asking the traffic 22 MR. MOBERLY: Yes.
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MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia?
MR. ALESIA: Yes.
MS. BRUTON: Member Podliska?
MR. PODLISKA: Yes.
MS. BRUTON: Chairman Neiman?
CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes,
(WHICH, were all of the
proceedings had, evidence
offered or received in the
above entitled cause.)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified
Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the
County DuPage, State of lilinois, do hereby
certify that previous to the commencement of the
examination and testimony of the various
witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to
testify the truth in relation to the matters
pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by
said witnesses was reduced to writing by means
of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into
typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a
true, correct and complete transcript of my
shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have
hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial
seal this 28th day of April, A.D. 2017.

KATHLEEN W. BONO,
C.S.R. No. 84-1423
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Zoning Calendar No.

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

APPLICATION FOR VARIATION

COMPLETE APPLICATION CONSISTS OF TEN (10) COPIES
(Al materials to be collated)

FILING FEES: RESIDENTIAL VARIATION $850.00

NAME OF APPLICANT(S): 10Ny Kremer, DVM

ADDRESS OF SUBJECT PROPERTY: -\ YOt Roxd

815-436-8387

TELEPHONE NUMBER(S):

If Applicant is not property owner, Applicant's relationship to property owner.

DATE OF ApPLICATION: 1 1-30-2016




10.

11.

12.

Village Personnel. Name and address of any officer or employee of the Village with an

interest in the Owner, the Applicant, or the Subject Property, and the nature and extent of

that interest:

.. None

b.

Neighboring Owners. Submit with this application a list showing the name and address
of each owner of (1) property within 250 lineal feet in all directions from the subject
property; and (2) property located on the same frontage or frontages as the front lot
line or corner side lot line of the subject property or on a frontage directly opposite any
such frontage or on a frontage immediately adjoining or across an alley from any such
frontage.

After the Village has prepared the legal notice, the applicant/agent must mail by
certified mail, “return receipt requested” to each property owner/ occupant. The
applicant/agent must then fill out, sign, and notarize the “Certification of Proper
Notice” form, returning that form and all certified mail receipts to the Village.

Survey. Submit with this application a recent survey, certified by aregistered land surveybr,
showing existing lot lines and dimensions, as well as all easements, all public and private
rights-of-way, and all streets across and adjacent to the Subject Property.

Existing Zoning. Submit with this application a description or graphic representation of the
existing zoning classification, use, and development of the Subject Property, and the adjacent
area for at least 250 feet in all directions from the Subject Property.

Conformity. Submit with this application a statement concerning the conformity or lack of
conformity of the approval being requested to the Village Official Comprehensive Plan and
the Official Map. Where the approval being requested does not conform to the Official
Comprehensive Plan or the Official Map, the statement should set forth the reasons

justifying the approval despite such lack of conformity.

Zoning Standards. Submit with this application a statement specifically addressing the
manner in which it is proposed to satisfy each standard that the Zoning Ordinance establishes

as a condition of, or in connection with, the approval being sought.

Successive Application. In the case of any application being filed less than two years after
the denial of an application seeking essentially the same relief, submit with this application a
statement as required by Sections 11-501 and 11-601 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code.




- SECTION 11

When applying for a variation from the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, you must provide the
data and information required above, and in addition, the following:

1.

Title. Evidence of title or other interest you have in the Subject Project, date of acquisition
of such interest, and the specific nature of such interest.

Ordinance Provision. The specific provisions of the Zoning Ordinance from which a
variation is sought:

1. B-1 Height variation, Sec 5-110:A.1.a: max height 30' - 2. B-1 Front yard setback,Sec 5-110:C.1.a: Min. front yard setback 25'

3. B-1 Max Floor Area Ratio, Sec 5-110: D. : F.A.R.:0.35 - 4. Parking set back variation Sec 9-104:G.2.b

5. Landscape buffers, Sec 9-107:a.1 Parking lot Screehing

Variation Sought. The precise variation being sought, the purpose therefor, and the specific
feature or features of the proposed use, construction, or development that require a variation:
(Attach separate sheet if additional space is needed.)

See the attache section 1.3

Minimum Variation. A statement of the minimum variation of the provisions of the Zoning
Ordinance that would be necessary to permit the proposed use, construction, or development:
(Attach separate sheet if additional space is needed.)

See the attached Section 1.4

Standards for Variation. A statement of the characteristics of Subject Property that prevent
compliance with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and the specific facts you believe
support the grant of the required variation. In addition to your general explanation, you must
specifically address the following requirements for the grant of a variation:

4



SECTION I

Please complete the following:

1.

Owner. Name, address, and telephone number of owner: Trust Number L-1497

Trustee Disclosure. In the case of a land trust the name, address, and telephone number of

all trustees and beneficiaries of the trust: Dorothea A. Lorenzetti, Kimberly Brockman,

Robert Brockman, 724 York Road, Hinsdale, IL

Applicant. Name, address, and telephone number of applicant, if different from owner, and
rty: Anthony Kremer, DVD 14411 IL-59

applicant's interest in the subject prope

Plainfield 60544, 815-436-8387

Subject Property. Address and legal description of the subject property: (Use separate sheet.

for legal description if necessary.) S€€ attached

Consultants. Name and address of each professional consultant advising applicant with
respect to this application:

Robert Aument, Daspin & Aument, LLP, 300 S Waker Drive, Suite 2200 Chicago, IL. 60606

b. Engineer: Bill Zalewski, Advantage Engineering
c Architect: Michael Matthys, Linden Group Inc, 10100 Orland Parkway, Orland Park, IL 60467

a. Attorney:




(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

()

®

Unique Physical Condition. The Subject Property is exceptional as compared to
other lots subject to the same provision by reason of a unique physical condition,
including presence of an existing use, structure of sign, whether conforming or

‘nonconforming; irregular or substandard shape or size; exceptional topographical

features; or other extraordinary physical conditions peculiar to and inherent in the
Subject Property that amount to more than a mere inconvenience to the owner and
that relate to or arise out of the lot rather than the personal situation of the current lot
owner.

Not Self-Created. The aforesaid unique physical condition is not the result of any
action or inaction of the owner, or of the owner's predecessors in title and known to
the owner prior to acquisition of the Subject Property, and existed at the time of the
enactment of the provisions from which a variation is sought or was created by
natural forces or was the result of governmental action, other than the adoption of
this Code, for which no compensation was paid.

Denied Substantial Rights. The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from
which a variation is sought would deprive the owner of the Subject Property of
substantial rights commonly enjoyed by owners of other lots subject to the same

provision.

Not Merely Special Privilege. The alleged hardship or difficulty is not merely the
inability of the owner or occupant to enjoy some special privilege or additional right
not available to owners or occupants of other lots subject to the same provision, nor
merely an inability to make more money from the use of the subject property;
provided, however, that where the standards herein set out exist, the existence of an
economic hardship shall not be a prerequisite to the grant of an authorized variation.

Code and Plan Purposes. The variation would not result in a use or development of
the Subject Property that would not be in harmony with the general and specific
purposes for which this Code and the provision from which a variation is sought
were enacted or the general purpose and intent of the Official Comprehensive Plan.

Essential Character of the Area. The variation would not result in a use or
development of the Subject Property that:

(1)  Would be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious
to the enjoyment, use development, or value of property of improvements
permitted in the vicinity; or

(2)  Would materially impair an adequate supply of light and air to the properties
and improvements in the vicinity; or

(3)  Would substantially increase congestion in the public streets due to traffic or
parking; or



@ Would unduly increase the danger of flood or fire; or
) Would unduly tax public utilities and facilities in the area; or
(6)  Would endanger the public health or safety.
(g)  NoOther Remedy. There is no means other than the requested variation by which
the alleged hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to

permit a reasonable use of the Subject Project.
(Attach separate sheet if additional space is needed.)

SECTION III

In addition to the data and information required pursuant to any application as herein set forth, every
Applicant shall submit such other and additional data, information, or documentation as the Village
Manager or any Board of Commission before which its application is pending may deem necessary
or appropriate to a full and proper consideration and disposition of the particular application.

1. A copy of preliminary architectural and/or surveyor plans showing the floor plans, exterior
elevations, and site plan needs to be submitted with each copy of the zoning petitions for the
improvements.

2. The architect or land surveyor needs to provide zoning information concerning the existing

zoning; for example, building coverage, distance to property lines, and floor area ratio
calculations and data on the plans or supplemental documents for the proposed

improvements.



SECTION IV

L. Application Fee and Escrow. Every application must be accompanied by a non-refindable
application fee of $250.00 plus an additional $600.00 initial escrow amount. The applicant
must also pay the costs of the court reporter's transcription fees and legal notices for the
variation request. A separate invoice will be sent if these expenses are not covered by the
escrow that was paid with the original application fees.

2. Additional Escrow Requests. Should the Village Manager at any time determine that the
escrow account established in connection with|any application is, or is likely to become,
insufficient to pay the actual costs of processinglsuch application, the Village Manager shall
inform the Applicant of that fact and demand aniadditional deposit in an amount deemed by
him to be sufficient to cover foreseeable additional costs. Unless and until such additional
amount is deposited by the Applicant, the Village Manager may direct that processing ofthe
application shall be suspended or terminated.

3. Establishment of Lien. The owner of the Subject Property, and if different, the Applicant,
are jointly and severally liable for the payment of the application fee. By signing the
applicant, the owner has agreed to pay said fee, and to consent to the filing and foreclosure
of alien against the Subject Property for the fee plus costs of collection, if the account is not
settled within 30 days after the mailing of a den!l,and for payment.

SECTION V

The owner states that he/she consents to the filing ofithis application and that all information
contained herein is true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge. '

Name of Owner: vy e L

Signature of Owner:

Name of Applicant:

Signature of Applicant:

Date:




b. Not Self-Created

i.  The building location would be following previously defined building line along
North York Road. The odd shaped lot that makes efficient parking difficult is not
the result of any action by the petitioner.

c. Denied Substantial Rights

i. The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from which the variation is
sought would deprive the owner of the subject property rights that were
pfeviously afforded to the site development with the existing building on the
site as well as the established setback of adjacent properties.

d. Not Merely Special Privilege

i. The variation in setback is not a request for special privilege but a request for
consideration to allow the petitioner to enjoy the rights that are currently
afforded to the subject property and adjacent property.

e. Code and Plan Purposes .

i. The variation would not result in a development that would not be in harmony
with the purpose of this code or the intent of the official comprehensive plan
because the variation requested is already afforded to the existing building and
to adjacent properties.

f. Essential Character of the Area

i. The variation would not be materially detrimental, and would not increase
congestion on public streets, would not increase danger of flood, would not
impact public utilities, and would not endanger the public health of safety.

g. No other Remedy

i. The variation allows the site development to meet the off street parking

requirement. Due to the shape of the lot without this variation it would not be

possible to meet the parking requirement.

The applicant is requesting that the maximum F.A.R. be increased from .35 to .40. This
increase would be under the Max. F.A.R. of .50 in the surrounding O-2 District which

surrounds the site on all sides.

a. Unigue Physical Condition
i. The site is a standalone B-1 surrounded by an O-2 district. It was previously

rezoned to allow for a p'a—r'acular desired use that was not permitted in the 0-2
district. The surrounding O-2 District has a F.A.R. of .50 permitted by the zoning
code. It is reasonable that the proposed site be held to a similar guideline to
that of the adjacent property.

b. Not Self-Created
i. The site was rezoned by the previous property owner and was not self-created

by the petitioner.

c. Denied Substantial Rights
i. The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from which the variation is

sought would deprive the owner of the subject property of substantial rights



commonly enjoyed by the owners of other adjacent lots that remain zoned as
0-2 which allows for a maximum F.A.R. of .50.
d. Not Merely Special Privilege

i. The variation in F.AR. is not a request for special privilege but a consideration to
allow the petitioner to enjoy the rights that are afforded to the adjacent
properties in the O-2 district with a maximum F.A.R of .50.

e. Codeand Plan Purposes .

i.  The variation would not result in a development that would not be in harmony
with the purpose of this code or the intent of the official comprehensive plan
because the variation requested is already afforded to adjacent properties in
the 0-2 district.

f. Essential Character of the Area

i. The variation would not be materially detrimental, and would not increase
congestion on public streets, would not increase danger of flood, would not
impact public utilities, and would not endanger the public health of safety.

g. No other Remedy
i. Without this variation the petitioner would have to reduce the building size by

25%.

The applicant is requesting that the parking lot setback in the front yard be reduced from 25’
to 15’ to match building setback variation.

a. Unigue Physical Condition
i. The front yard setback variation that is being requested will match the existing

building setback to be redeveloped. The applicant is requesting that the
variation be granted to allow parking to be maximized which is difficult due to a
very odd shaped property configuration. This unique shape makes it difficult to
obtain the required parking for the proposed development and use.

b. Not Self-Created

i. The parking location would be following previously defined building line along

North York Road. The odd shaped lot that makes efficient parking difficult is not
the result of any action by the petitioner.

¢. Denied Substantial Rights
i. The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from which the variation is
sought would deprive the owner of the subject property rights that were
previously afforded to the site development with the existing building on the
site as well as the established setback of adjacent properties.
d. Not Merely Special Privilege
i. The variation in setback is not a request for special privilege but a request for
consideration to allow the petitioner to enjoy the rights that are currently
afforded to the subject property and adjacent property.



e. Code and Plan Purposes
i. The variation would not result in a development that would not be in harmony
with the purpose of this code or the intent of the official comprehensive plan
because the variation requested is already afforded to the existing building and
to adjacent properties.
f. Essential Character of the Area
i. The variation would not be materially detrimental, and would not increase
congestion on public streets, would not increase danger of flood, would not
impact public utilities, and would not endanger the public health of safety.
g. No other Remedy
i. The variation allows the site development to meet the off street parking
requirement. Due to the.shape of the lot without this variation it would not be
possible to meet the parking requirement.

The applicant is requesting that the required 10’ landscape buffer be removed to
accommodate the odd shape lot and allow for a double loaded parking isle to run to the back
of the property.
a. Unique Physical Condition
i. The applicant is requesting that the Landscape buffer variation be granted to
allow parking to be maximized which is difficult due to a very odd shaped
property configuration. This unique shape makes it difficult to obtain the
required parking for the proposed development and use.
b. Not Self-Created
i. Theodd shaped lot that makes efficient parking difficult is not the result of any
action by the petitioner.
c. Denied Substantial Rights
i. The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from which the variation is
sought would deprive the petitioner of the ability to provide adequate parking.
d. Not Merely Special Privilege
i. The variation in Landscape buffer is not a request for special privilege but a
request for consideration due to the odd shaped lot.
e. Code and Plan Purposes
i. The variation would not result in a development that would not be in harmony
with the purpose of this code or the intent of the official comprehensive plan
because the variation requested is already afforded to the existing building and
to adjacent properties.
f. Essential Character of the Area
i. The variation would not be materially detrimental, and would not increase
congestion on public streets, would not increase danger of flood, would not
impact public utilities, and would not endanger the public health of safety.

g. No other Remedy




i. The variation allows the site development to meet the off street parking
requirement. Due to the shape of the lot without this variation it would not be
possible to meet the parking requirement.
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Hinsdale Animal Hospital (# 101-15)

Property Owners within 250 ft of site (724 N York Rd — Hinsdale, IL 60521):

PIN

09 01 202 002
09 01 202 003
09 01 202 004
09 01 202 012
09 01 202 013
0201 202011
09 01 202 015
09 01 202 016
09 01 202 018
09 01 202 019
09 01 202 020
09 01 202 021
09 01 202 022
09 01 202 023
09 01 209 007
09 01 209 010
0901 209011
09 01 209 031
09 01 209 032
09 01 209 020
09 01 209 021
09 01 209 022

Address

110 Ogden Ave
120 E Ogden Ave
120 E Ogden Ave
Fuller Rd

120 E Ogden Ave
117 E Fuller Rd
806 N York Rd
736 York Rd

218 Fuller Rd
718 N York Rd
710 N York Rd
150 E Ogden Ave
133 Fuller Rd
133 Fuller Rd
777 N York Rd
777 N York Rd
777 N York Rd
777 N York Rd
777 N York Rd
701 N York Rd
207 Fuller Rd
211 Fuller Rd

Owner

Nicole Zreczny Trust 43 Crescent Dr - Glencoe, IL 60022

120 E Ogden Ave LLC 21 Spinning Wheel - Hinsdale, IL 60521
120 E Ogden Ave LLC 21 Spinning Wheel - Hinsdale, IL. 60521
120 E Ogden Ave LLC 21 Spinning Wheel - Hinsdale, IL 60521
120 E Ogden Ave LLC 21 Spinning Wheel - Hinsdale, IL 60521
Michael & Alice Kuhn 117 E Fuller Rd - Hinsdale, IL 60521
Cassie Yen 806 N York Rd - Hinsdale, IL 60521

TMS Health LLC 3161 Burlington Ave - Lisle, IL 60004

Robert Brockman 724 N York Rd - Hinsdale, IL 60521

Carlo Enterprises PO Box 607 - Hinsdale, IL 60521

HMH LP 710 N York Rd - Hinsdale, IL 60521

150 E Ogden Ave LLC - 17W474 Earl Ct - Darien, IL 60561
Robert Brockman 724 N York Rd - Hinsdale, IL. 60521

Joan W Mancini 133 Fuller Rd - Hinsdale, IL 60521
Hathaway Equities LLC 830 S Buffalo Grove Rd-Buf Grv 60089
Hathaway Equities LLC 830 S Buffalo Grove Rd-Buf Grv 60089
Hathaway Equities LLC 830 S Buffalo Grove Rd-Buf Grv 60089
Hathaway Equities LLC 830 S Buffalo Grove Rd-Buf Grv 60089
Hathaway Equities LLC 830 S Buffalo Grove Rd-Buf Grv 60089
Ruth H Larsen 701 N York Rd - Hinsdale, IL. 60521

James & FJ Paracsil 536 N Thompson Rd-Apopka, FL 32712
Jacob & Suja Matthew 607 Walker Rd - Hinsdale, IL 60521



APPLICATION FOR DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL AND ZONING RELIEF;

LAND USE VARIATION, AND ZONING VARIATION

To: Chan Yu
Village Planner

Department of Community Development

Village of Hinsdale
19 East Chicago Avenue
Hinsdale, IL 60521

Dr. Tony Kremer submits this Application and its supporting documents to petition the
Corporate Authorities for approval of certain zoning relief in order to construct a 12,000 sq.ft. new
building with a Preliminary Plan, Site Plan, and Building Elevations (attached hereto) on the below
described property. Based on the regulations set forth in the Hinsdale Zoning Code, the requested
zoning relief will have to be considered by the Plan Commission and the Village Board as noted below.

Applicant:

I Subject Property Address:

Legal Description:

Tony Kremer, DVM
Hinsdale Animal Hospital
724 North York Road
Hinsdale, IL

724 North York Road

PARCEL 1: LOT 1 IN CHARLES SHULZE RESUBDIVISION OF PARTS
OF LOT 7 AND 8 IN BLOCK 3 OF THE PLAT OF FULLERSBURGH, IN
SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH RANGE 11 EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT
THEREOF RECORDED AUGUST 13, 1956 AS DOCUMENT 811735,
IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2: LOT 2 IN BROCKMAN'S RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 5 IN
RUCHTY’S RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 2 AND 3 IN BLOCK 3 OF THE
PLAT OF FULLERSBURGH AND PART OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN THE
PLAT OF FULLERSBURGH, IN SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH,
RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINICPAL MERIDIAN,
ACCORDING THE PLAT OF BROCKMAN'S RESUBDIVISION
RECORDEDED DECEMBER 18, 1957 AS DOCUMENT 866181, IN
DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

PARCEL 3: THE NORTHERLY 60 FEET (AS MEASURED ALONG THE
EAST LINE AND THE WEST LINES THEREOF) OF THAT PART OF
LOTS 7 AND 8 IN BLOCK 3 IN FULLERSBURGH, DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT AN IRON STAKE ON THE SOUTH LINE
OF SAID LOT 8, 68.5 FEET EASTERLY FROM THE SOUTHWEST
CORNER THEREOF; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT
LINE 229.7 FEET TO AN IRON STAKE ON THE NORTH LINE OF
SAID LOT 7, 65.5 FEET EAST OF THE NORTHWEST CORNER



THEREOF; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID
LOT 7, 65.5 FEET TO AN IRON STAKE; THENCE SOUTHERHERLY
ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, 150.9 FEET TO AN IRON STAKE THAT
IS 131.50 FEET EAST OF THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 8; THENCE
SOUTHERLY 79 FEET TO AN IRON STAKE ON THE SOUTH LINE OF
SAID LOT 8 THAT IS 137 FEET EAST OF THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
THEREROF; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID
LOT 8, 68.5 FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING; IN THE WEST
HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP
38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JUNE
14, 1852 AS DOCUMENT 6172, AND RE-RECORDED APRIL 9,
1929 AS DOCUMENT 277264, IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

P.LN.: 0901202017
0901202018
0901202022
Lot Size: 30,144 SQ.FT.
Current Zoning District: B-1

Zoning Relief Requested:

1.
2.

Request for Text Amendment to add Animal Hospital and Animal Boarding to B-1

Request for Special Use to construct and operate an Animal Hospital and Animal Boarding
Facility.

Request for Variation of Height Requirements from 30°-0” to 35’-0” for the tower entrance area.

See elevations.
Request for Variation of front yard setback requirements from 25’-0” to 15’-0”. This would

match the existing building setback.
Request for Variation of F.A.R. from 0.35 to 0.40. Existing building is 14,000 s.f. and over the

F.A.R. The new building is only 12,000 s.f.
Request for Variation of front yard parking setback requirements from 25’-0” to 15'-0” to allow

the building to reach necessary parking space requirements.
Request for Variation of the Landscape buffer requirement for parking from 10’-0” to 0’-0” the

building to reach necessary parking aisles and space requirements.

Introduction:

Thanks for taking the time to evaluate our proposal and request for moving our Hinsdale Animal Hospital
to a new location at 724 N. York Road in Hinsdale. Our existing hospital is located at 218 W Ogden Ave, in
Hinsdale and has been located in the community since 1950. Since purchasing the Animal Hospital
practice we have enjoyed a steady growth that has led to us outgrowing our existing home. The new
facility we are planning on N. York Road will accommodate our current practice and provide room for
growth into the future while providing an updated. This move will allow us to update our facilities and
provide state of the art animal care services to the Hinsdale Community including, General veterinary
services, specialized surgeries, physical therapy, training, adoption, grooming, and luxury boarding.



We are requesting a Special Use for the proposed site at 724 N. York Avenue to allow for the Animal
Hospital and Commercial Kennel use. We are also requesting variation from the B-1 Zoning regulations
for 1. Building Set Back, 2. Building Height, 3. Floor area ratio, 4. Parking set back, and 5. Landscape buffer
requirement. These variations are being requested to allow our proposed building to be built at the
current existing building setbacks which relate to the adjacent buildings. Height and F.A.R. variation are
being requested to relate zoning site restrictions in the surrounding 0-2 district. Parking setback
variations are being requested to accommodate required off street parking requirements with the odd
shape property boundary.

The proposed animal hospital will be constructed of brick, and stone. Punched window openings will be
accented with stone elements. Brick detailing will include traditional detailing such as soldier and row
lock coursing. A tower feature at the entry will provide for architectural interest of the North York Road
facing elevation. The first floor plan will have a generous lobby with 10 exam rooms. Operational areas
will include a small treatment area, a pharmacy, animal care areas and boarding for 75 dogs. The second
floor will include a large treatment area complete with 2 surgical suites, ICU area, dental treatment area,
isolation rooms, animal wards, staff support areas, grooming, a large training/play room, and a luxury
boarding room. The proposed hours will be Monday — Friday 7 am to 8 pm, Saturday 7 am to 3 pm, and
Sunday Samto 1 pm.

Thank you for consideration of the above request.

Sincerely, Dr. Anthony Kremer DrTony.com

Text Amendment
1. The cons)‘stency of the proposed amendment with the purpose of this Code.

The code establishes specific uses within zoning districts as special uses that require approval
to be developed. The requested animal hospital and commercial kennel use is a professional
office service use that is compatible with permitted uses in the B-1 district and the
surrounding 0-2 district and therefore should be considered as a special use base on its
suitability to the set parameters of the locality.

2. The existing uses and zoning classifications for the properties in the vicinity of the subject
broperty.

The existing zoning classification is B-1 and is surrounded by 0-2. Current uses on the
property include a commercial dry cleaner, beauty salon, and residential. Surrounding 0-2

businesses are offices uses.

3. The trend of development in the vicinity of the subject property, including changes, if any, such
trend since the subject property was placed in its present zoning classification.

The trend of development in the surrounding O-2 district appears to be
retail/restaurant/automotive along Ogden and office/medical office south of Ogden. The
proposed animal hospital/commercial kennel use at 724 N York Road does not have a
negative impact on these trends. The proposed improvements to the building as proposed



will increase the tax revenue and provide a needed update to an existing building on N.York
Ave offering a new architectural statement building that is accessible and code compliant.

4. The extent, if any, to which the value of the subject property is diminished by the existing
zoning classification applicable to it.

The value of the site is diminished by the existing zoning because the B-1 district does not
identify animal hospital and commercial kennel as a special use. If these uses are permitted
as a special use in the B-1 district the current contract purchaser can redeveloped the property
as proposed. s

5. The extent to which any such diminution in value is offset by an increase in the public health,
safety, and welfare.

The Diminution in value is not offset by an increase in the public health, safety, and welfare.
Hinsdale Animal Hospital has operated on Ogden Avenue in Hinsdale since 1950. It has a long
history of providing a.high quality of animal care to the residents of Hinsdale with public
convenience that contributes to the general welfare of the neighborhood and community.

6. The extent, if any, to which the use and enjoyment of adjacent properties would be affected
by the proposed amendment.

The use and enjoyment of adjacent properties would not be affected by the proposed
amendment to allow the animal hospital / commercial kennel use as proposed.

7. The extent, if any, to which the value of adjacent properties would be affected by the
proposed amendment.

The adjacent properties value would not be affected negatively by the proposed amendment.
it will allow the site to be redeveloped and will provide the replacement of and aging building

with a new updated code compliant building.

8. The extent, if any, to which the future orderly development of adjacent properties would be
affected by the proposed amendment.

The proposed Animal Hospital, Commercial Kennel use will not interfere with surrounding
development. The perimeter of the building is being proposed within the foot print of the
existing building that will be removed. The proposed architecture and 2 story building height

relates to the surrounding buildings.

9. The suitability of the subject property for uses permitted or permissible under its present
zoning classification.



The site is suitable for uses permitted under its present zoning classification.

10. The availability of adequate ingress to and egress from the subject property and the extent
to which traffic conditions in the immediate vicinity of the subject property would be affected
by the proposed amendment.

A traffic study was prepared for the proposed development that reviewed ingress and egress
on York Road and concluded that the proposed ingress/egress was adequate based on
projected traffic counts.

11. The availability of adequate utilities and essential public services to the subject property to
accommodate the uses permitted or permissible under the present zoning classification. 12. The
length of time, if any, that the subject property has been vacant, considered in the context of
the pace of development in the vicinity of the subject property.

Initial investigation has indicated that there are adequate utilities available to accommodate
the proposed uses. Available site utilities have been assumed to be adequate to service the
proposed building. If this is not the case applicant will provide adeguately for such services.

12. The length of time, if any, that the subject property has been vacant, considered in the
context of the pace of development in the vicinity of the subject property.

The property is not currently vacant.

13. The community need for the proposed amendment and for the uses and development it
would allow.

The proposed amendment for the proposed uses will provide a relocation site for a long
standing business in the Village of Hinsdale to relocate off of prominent real estate on Ogden
Avenue. Hinsdale Animal Hospital has operated in and served residents of Hinsdale since
1950 and has been looking to relocate into a new building in the area for several years. This
relocation will allow Hinsdale Animal Hospital to offer the best animal care in the area with

new state of the art facilities.

14. The reasons, where relevant, why the subject property should be established as part of an
overlay district and the positive and negative effects such establishment could be expected to

have on persons residing in the area.
NA

SPECIAL USE PERMIT CRITERIA



1. Code and Plan Purposes. The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the
general and specific purposes for which this Code was enacted and for which the regulations of
the district in question were established.

The proposed Animal Hospital, Commercial Kennel use, is a professional office service
business that is harmonious with the B-1 Community Business District and the surrounding O-
2 Limited office district. It provides essential needs to pet owners within the village of
Hinsdale and offers the convenience of these services in close proximity to permitted B-1 and
0-2 uses.

2. No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or
undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the character of the area, or the public health,
safety, and general welfare.

The proposed Animal Hospital, Commercial Kennel use will not have a substantial or undue
adverse effect upon adjacent property. The character of the area will be enhanced with a new
building built of masonry and stone based on current codes. Animal boarding services will be
operated from with-in the building which will include sound proofing measures that maintain
sound control within village code standards. An indoor play room will be provided to exercise
boarded animals inside. Outdoor pet are will always have supervision when in use. Services
provided with in the facility will enhance pet care in the Village of Hinsdale with state of the
art facilities and care. The facility will also be an adoption center to aid the local humane
society in find homes for pet population.

3. No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be
constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to
interfere with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the
applicable district regulations

The proposed Animal Hospital, Commercial Kennel use will not interfere with surrounding
development. The perimeter of the building is being proposed within the foot print of the
existing building that will be removed. The proposed architecture and 2 story building height
relates to the surrounding buildings.

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served adequately by
essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities, drainage structures, police
and fire protection, refuse disposal, parks, libraries, and schools, or the applicant will provide

adequately for such services.

A traffic study was conducted that concluded existing road way access was suitable for the
intended use and traffic. Available site utilities have been assumed to be adequate to service
the proposed building. If this is not the case applicant will provide adequately for such
services. The proposed building does not increase the need for police and fire protection.

5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets.



A traffic report has been provided based on the proposed use to illustrate that traffic
projections are within 1% of the existing use.

6. No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in
the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
importance.

The proposed new building will offer a big improvement to the character on York Avenue with
a new masonry and stone building. The existing building and site development does not
include anything of significant importance.

7. Compliance with Standards. The proposed use and development complies with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Code authorizing such use.

The proposed use and development is requesting variations from other standards of this code
as described in the project overview. Other than those mentioned variations this project will
comply with all additional standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this code
authorizing Animal Hospital and Commercial Kennel.

8. Special standards for specified special uses. When the district regulations auithorizing any
special use in a particular district impose special standards to be met by such use in such district.

Any special standards that exist or that are conditions of this approved special use will
become strict procedures of our operational protocol or will be implemented into the design

of the project.

9. Considerations. In determining whether.the applicant’s evidence establishes that the
foregoing standards have been met, the Plan Commission shall consider the following:

Public benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the particular
location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is in the
interest of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the

neighborhood or community.

Hinsdale Animal Hospital has operated on Ogden Avenue in Hinsdale since 1950. It has a long
history of providing a high quality of animal care to the residents of Hinsdale with public
convenience that contributes to the general welfare of the neighborhood and community.
The hospital has been in search of a site to update their facility for several years and feels that
the N York Avenue site is a good fit located in a B-1zoning district and surrounded by an 0-2

zoning district



Alternate locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location of
the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that may be more
appropriate than the proposed site.

The Hinsdale Animal Hospital has been in search of an appropriate site for their relocation for
several years. The North York Road site offers an appropriate site for the village and the user.

Mitigation of adverse impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken
to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate vicinity
through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

The following represents measures taken to minimize the possible adverse effect of the
proposed use:

-The Hinsdale Animal Hospital will be designed with sound proofing measures within the
boarding areas to provide sound absorption within the building envelope.

-The boarding areas will be constructed of full masonry construction consisting of 8" concrete
block, building insulation, and veneer brick and stone. This offers optimum sound control to
the exterior of the building.

-The floor plan will include an indoor exercise area.

VARIATION STANDARDS

1. A height variation is being requested to allow the entrance tower architectural feature to exceed the
maximum 30’-0” and allow a height of 35’-0” for this element only as depicted in the proposed
elevations.

Unigue Physical Condition:

The site is a standalone B-1 surrounded by an O-2 district. It was previously rezoned to allow for a
particular desired use that was not permitted in the 0-2 district. The surrounding O-2 District has a
maximum height of 40’ permitted by the zoning code. It is reasonable that the proposed site be held to a

similar guideline to that of the adjacent property.

Not Self-Created:

The site was rezoned by the previous property owner and was not self-created by the petitioner.

Denied Substantial Rights:

The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from which the variation is sought would deprive the
owner of the subject property of substantial rights commonly enjoyed by the owners of other adjacent
lots that remain zoned as 0-2 which allows for heights up to 40 feet.

Not Merely Special Privilege:




The variation in height is not a request for special privilege but a consideration to allow the petitioner to
enjoy the rights that are afforded to the adjacent properties in the 0-2 district with a maximum height
standard of 40°.

Code and Plan Purposes:

The variation would not result in a development that would not be in harmony with the purpose of this
code or the intent of the official comprehensive plan because the variation requested is already afforded
to adjacent properties in the 0-2 district.

Essential Character of the Area:

The variation would not be materially detrimental, and would not increase congestion on public streets,
would not increase danger of flood, would not impact public utilities, and would not endanger the public

health of safety.

No other Remed

The variation allows a character element to the architecture with a tower like form defining the entrance.
Without this variation the building would have to carry the same parapet height around the perimeter of
the building which would negatively impact the architectural interest.

2. A front yard setback variation is being requested to reduce the required front setback from 25’ to 15'-
0”. The existing building is currently located within the setback 15.38’ from the front property line.

Unigue Physical Condition

The front yard setback variation that is being requested will match the existing building setback to be
redeveloped. The applicant is requesting that the variation be granted to allow parking to be maximized
to the rear of the property that is difficult due to a very odd shaped property configuration. This unique
shape makes it difficult to obtain the required parking for the proposed development and use.

Not Self-Created

The building location would be following previously defined building line along North York Road. The odd
shaped lot that makes efficient parking difficult is not the result of any action by the petitioner.

Denied Substantial Rights

The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision fram which the variation is sought would deprive the
owner of the subject property rights that were previously afforded to the site development with the
existing building on the site as well as the established setback of adjacent properties.

Not Merely Special Privilege

The variation in setback is not a request for special privilege but a request for consideration to allow the

petitioner to enjoy the rights that are currently afforded to the subject property and adjacent property.

Code and Plan Purposes



The variation would not result in a development that would not be in harmony with the purpose of this
code or the intent of the official comprehensive plan because the variation requested is already afforded
to the existing building and to adjacent properties.

Essential Character of the Area

The variation would not be materially detrimental, and would ndt increase congestion on public streets,
would not increase danger of flood, would not impact public utilities, and would not endanger the public
health of safety.

No other Remedy

The variation allows the site development to meet the off street parking requirement. Due to the shape
of the lot without this variation it would not be possible to meet the parking requirement.

3. The applicant is requesting that the maximum F.A.R. be increased from .35 to .40. This increase
~ would be under the Max. F.A.R. of .50 in the surrounding O-2 District which surrounds the site on all

sides.

Unigue Physical Condition

The site is a standalone B-1 surrounded by an 0-2 district. It was previously rezoned to allow for a
particular desired use that was not permitted in the 0-2 district. The surrounding 0-2 District has a F.A.R.
of .50 permitted by the zoning code. It is reasonable that the proposed site be held to a similar guideline

to that of the adjacent property.

Not Self-Created

The site was rezoned by the previous property owner and was not self-created by the petitioner.

Denied Substantial Rights

The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from which the variation is sought would deprive the
owner of the subject property of substantial rights commonly enjoyed by the owners of other adjacent
lots that remain zoned as 0-2 which allows for a maximum F.A.R. of .50.

Not Merely Special Privilege

The variation in F.A.R. is not a request for special privilege but a consideration to allow the petitioner to
enjoy the rights that are afforded to the adjacent properties in the O-2 district with a maximum F.A.R of

50.

Code and Pian Purposes

The variation would not result in a development that would not be in harmony with the purpose of this
code or the intent of the official comprehensive plan because the variation requested is already afforded

to adjacent properties in the O-2 district.

Essential Character of the Area




The variation would not be materially detrimental, and would not increase congestion on public streets,
would not increase danger of flood, would not impact public utilities, and would not endanger the public
health of safety.

No other Remedy

Without this variation the petitioner would have to reduce the building size by 25%.

4. The applicant is requesting that the parking lot setback in the front yard be reduced from 25’ to 15’
to match building setback variation.

Unigue Physical Condition

The front yard setback variation that is being requested will match the existing building setback to be
redeveloped. The applicant is requesting that the variation be granted to allow parking to be maximized
which is difficult due to a very odd shaped property configuration. This unique shape makes it difficult to
obtain the required parking for the proposed development and use.

Not Self-Created

The parking location would be following previously defined building line along North York Road. The odd
shaped lot that makes efficient parking difficult is not the result of any action by the petitioner.

Denied Substantial Rights

The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from which the variation is sought would deprive the
owner of the subject property rights that were previously afforded to the site development with the
existing building on the site as well as the established setback of adjacent properties.

Not Merely Special Privilege

The variation in setback is not a request for special privilege but a request for consideration to allow the
petitioner to enjoy the rights that are currently afforded to the subject property and adjacent property.

Code and Plan Purposes

The variation would not result in a development that would not be in harmony with the purpose of this
code or the intent of the official comprehensive plan because the variation requested is already afforded

to the existing building and to adjacent properties.

Essential Character of the Area

The variation would not be materially detrimental, and would not increase congestion on public streets,
would not increase danger of flood, would not impact public utilities, and would not endanger the public

health of safety.
No other Remed

The variation allows the site development to meet the off street parking requirement. Due to the shape
of the lot without this variation it would not be possible to meet the parking requirement.



5. The applicant is requesting that the required 10’ landscape buffer be removed to accommodate the
odd shape lot and allow for a double loaded parking isle to run to the back of the property.

Unigue Physical Condition

The applicant is requesting that the Landscape buffer variation be granted to allow parking to be
maximized which is difficult due to a very odd shaped property configuration. This unique shape makes it
difficult to obtain the required parking for the proposed development and use.

Not Self-Created
The odd shaped lot that makes efficient parking difficult is not the result of any action by the petitioner.

Denied Substantial Rights

The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from which the variation is sought would deprive the
petitioner of the ability to provide adequate parking.

Not Merely Special Privilege

The variation in Landscape buffer is not a request for special privilege but a request for consideration due
to the odd shaped lot.

Code and Plan Purposes

The variation would not result in a development that would not be in harmony with the purpose of this
code or the intent of the official comprehensive plan because the variation requested is already afforded

to the existing building and to adjacent properties.

Essential Character of the Area

The variation would not be materially detrimental, and would not increase congestion on public streets,
would not increase danger of flood, would not impact public utilities, and would not endanger the public

health of safety.

No other Remed

The variation allows the site development to meet the off street parking requirement. Due to the shape
of the lot without this variation it would not be possible to meet the parking requirement.

EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN REVIEW CRITERIA

1. Open spaces. The quality of the open space between buildings and in setback spaces between

‘street and facades.

Site landscaping will be improved to meet code requirements.

2. Materials. The quality of materials and their relationship to those in existing adjacent
structures. ‘



The building will be constructed of high quality materials including Masonry, Stone, and Glass.
Stone detailing will include stone arches. Facade will include decorative lighting.

3. General design. The quality of the design in general and its relationship to the overall
character of neighborhood.

The building is designed is influenced by traditional architecture with brick and stone detailing
consistent with the overlay district. The entrance is accented with a tower element that adds
architectural character.

4., General site development. The quality of the site development in terms of fandscaping,
recreation, pedestrian access, auto access, parking, servicing of the property and impact on
vehicular traffic patterns and conditions on-site and in the vicinity of the site, and the retention
of trees and shrubs to the maximum extent possible.

The site development will be maximized in order to meet parking requirements. Existing
street parking will be removed and replaced with parkway material per the zoning code.
Additional landscape improvements will enhance the front yard.

5. Height. The height of the proposed buildings and structures shall be visually compatible with
adjacent buildings.

The proposed 2 story building will replace an existing 2 story building. The proposed height
will be 30" except at the entrance feature where the height is proposed at 35' high. The
surrounding 0-2 District allows for buildings up to 3 stories and 40' tall.

6. Proportion of front facade. The relationship of the width to the height of the front elevation
shall be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related.

The 2 story front facade of the proposed building is visually compatible with its surroundings.

7. Proportion of openings. The relationship of the width to the height of windows shall be
visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which the building is visually
related.

Window width and height are compatible with buildings in the area.

8. Rhythm of solids to voids in front facades. The relationship of solids to voids in the front
facade of a building shall be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which

it is visually related.

The building has a rhythm of punched openings in brick which is consistent with surrounding
buildings and consistent with the desired overlay district style guidelines.

9. Rhythm of spacing and buildings on streets. The relationship of a building or structure to the
open space between it and adjoining buildings or structures shall be visually compatible with the
buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related.



The building is proposed in the same location as the existing building and will not alter the
existing building spacing significantly.

10. Rhythm of entrance porch and other projections. The relationship of entrances and other
projections to sidewalks shall be visually compatible with the buildings, public ways, and places
to which it is visually related.

The entrance is pronounced with a higher architectural element that is oriented toward the
entrance drive. This creates a desirable rhythm along the public way, providing open space
adjacent to the entrance feature.

11. Relationship of materials dnd texture. The relationship of the materials and texture of the
facade shall be visually compatible with the predominant materials to be used in the buildings
and structures to which it is visually related.

The building materials are predominantly brick and stone that include brick details such as
soldier coursing, rowlock coursing, and various stone accents including stone arches. These
materials create a texture that is visually compatible with buildings in the vicinity and in
Hinsdale Mill overlay district.

12. Roof shapes. The roof shape of a building shall be visually compatible with the buildings to
which it is visually related.

The building is being proposed with a flat roof. There are buildingsin the vicinity that have
flat roofs.

13. Walls of continuity. Building facades and appurtenances such as walls, fences, and landscape
masses shall, when it is a characteristic of the area, form cohesive walls of enclosure along a
street to ensure visual compatibility with the buildings, public ways, and places to which such

elements are visually related.

N.A.

14. Scale of building. The size and mass of buildings and structures in relation to open spaces,
windows, door openings, porches, and balconies shall be visually compatible with the buildings,
public ways, and places to which they are visually related.

See submitted elevations.
15. Directional expression of front elevation. The buildings shall be visually compatible with the

buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related in its directional character,
whether this be vertical character, horizontal character, or nondirectional character.

The front elevation relates to N. York Road.



By:

16. Special consideration for existing buildings. For existing buildings, the Plan Commission and
the Board of Trustees shall consider the availability of materials, technology, and craftsmanship
to duplicate existing styles, patterns, textures, and overall detailing.

N.A.

Date:

Anthony Kremer, DVM

, 2016.




VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
PROPERTY OWNER’S AUTHORIZATION
FORPC / ZBA /| ARC

Date: December 6, 2016

I, Dorothea Lorenzetti, Kimberly & Robert Brockman —Trust, Owner of the Property

(Property Owner: Chicago Title & Land Trust Co, as Successor Trustee to Harris Bank Hinsdale as Trustee under the
provisions of a Trust Agreement dated January 14, 1987 and known as Trust Number L-1497, Dorothea A Lorenzetti,
Kimberly Brockman and Robert Brockman, and the address of the property is commonly known as 724 York Rd, 218
Fuller Rd & 133 Fuller Rd, Hinsdale, IL 60521)

located at: 724 N York Road — Hinsdale, It 60521, do hereby authorize

Tony Kremer, DVM (Contract Purchaser); Jason Sanderson_(General Contractor), MichaelJ Matthys (Architect)

to represent me in the following

Authorized Agent

pC/ ZBA / ARC matter(s):

1. Request for Text Amendment to add Animal Hospital and Commercial Kennel as a special use in the B-1 District,

2. Request for Special Use to construct and operate an Animal Hospital and Commercial Kennel at 724 N York Rd.

3. A height variation is being requested to allow the entrance tower architectural feature to exceed the maximum
30’-0” and allow a height of 350" for this element only as depicted in the proposed elevations.

4. Afront yard setback variation is being requested to reduce the required front setback from 25’ to 15°-0”. The
existing building is currently located within the setback 15.38' from the front property line.

5. The applicantis requesting that the maximum F.A.R. be increased from .35 to0 .40. This increase would be under
the Max. F.A.R. of .50 in the surrounding 0-2 District which surrounds the site on all sides.

6. The applicant is requesting that the parking lot setback in the front yard be reduced from 25’ to 15’ to match
building setback variation. ‘

7. The applicant is requesting that the required 10’ landscape buffer be removed to accommodate the odd shape
lot and allow for a double loaded parking isle to run to the back of the property.

in the Village of Hinsdale

"G S r__ | Codsidy Busdyn

Notary Signature \ Property Ownef Signature

\

(SEAL) L imberly Brosls

Property Owner Printed Name
| 9|3 Forest Drive

i,
Sesrrul, PAUL STEGER .
7 A% commission # FF 938491 Oldsmar, FL 34527
LS My Commission Explres Address .
“ai  January 15, 2020 2272 -0H2-4729

Phone and Fax Number Ny Fap Mo,
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CHULZE RESUBOMSION OF PARTS OF LOT 7 ARD 8 IN BOCK 3 OF THC
1, TOMNSHP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THRD PRINCIPAL
THEREQF RECORDED AUGUST 13, 1955 AS DOCUMENT B11735, N
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FULLERSBURGH, I SECTION 1, TORNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THAD FRINCIPAL

ERIOUN, ACCORDING THE PLAY OF BROCKUAR'S RESUOMISICH RECGAOED DECENEER 18, 1957 AS
BOCUMENT 86611, IN DU PAGE COUNTY, LUINOIS.

PARCEL 3: THE NORTHERLY 60 FEET (AS MEASURED ALONG THE EAST UNE AND WEST LINES
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING VARIATIONS RELATIVE TO CONSTRUCTION OF A
NEW SHARED PARKING DECK AT HINSDALE MIDDLE SCHOOL AT 100 S.
GARFIELD STREET, HINSDALE, ILLINOIS — COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED
SCHOOL DISTRICT #181/VILLAGE OF HINSDALE - CASE NUMBER V-03-17

WHEREAS, the Village of Hinsdale received an application (the “Application”)
from Community Consolidated School District #181 and the Village of Hinsdale, as Co-
Applicants, for certain variations relative to the proposed construction of a new shared
parking deck as part of the development of the new middle school on the site of the
existing middle school on property located in the IB Institutional Buildings Zoning District
at 100 S. Garfield Street (the “Subject Property”). The variations sought are to
Section 7-310.D. of the Village of Hinsdale Zoning Code, to allow a floor area ratio of
.74, which is in excess of the .50 maximum specified by the Code, and to Section 9-
107.A. of the Zoning Code, to reduce the minimum perimeter landscape buffer to five
(5) feet (collectively, the “Requested Variations”); and

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is legally described in Exhibit A attached
hereto and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Application has been referred to the Zoning Board of Appeals of
the Village, and has been processed in accordance with the Zoning Code, as amended;
and

WHEREAS, on Wednesday, April 19, 2017, the Zoning Board of Appeals of the
Village of Hinsdale held a public hearing pursuant to notice given in accordance with
State law and the Zoning Code, relative to the Requested Variations; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, after considering all of the testimony
and evidence presented at the public hearing, recommended approval of the Requested
Variations on a vote of five (5) in favor and zero (0) opposed; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals has filed its report of Findings and
Recommendation regarding the Requested Variation in Case Number V-02-17 with the
President and Board of Trustees, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and
made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale have
reviewed and duly considered the Findings and Recommendation of the Zoning Board
of Appeals, and all of the materials, facts, and circumstances related to the Application;
and
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WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees find that the Application
satisfies the standards established in Sections 11-503 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code
governing variations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of lllinois, as follows:

SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

SECTION 2: Adoption of Findings and Recommendation. The President and
Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale approve and adopt the findings and
recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals, a copy of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit B and made a part hereof, and incorporate such findings and recommendation
herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

SECTION 3: Variations. The President and Board of Trustees, acting pursuant
to the authority vested in it by the laws of the State of lllinois and Subsection 11-503(A)
of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, grant the Requested Variations to Section 7-310.D. of the
Village of Hinsdale Zoning Code, to allow a floor area ratio of .74, which is in excess of
the .50 maximum specified by the Code, and to Section 9-107.A. of the Zoning Code, to
reduce the minimum perimeter landscape buffer to five (5) feet, in order to allow the
construction of a new shared parking deck as part of the development of the new middle
school on the site of the existing middle school on the Subject Property located in the IB
Institutional Buildings Zoning District commonly known as 100 S. Garfield Street, and
legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.

SECTION 4: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. If any section,
paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, the invalidity of
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the other provisions
of this Ordinance, and all ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict
with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed.

SECTION 5: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from
and after its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner
provided by law.
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EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE SOUTH 31 FEET OF LOT 5 AND 6, AND ALL OF LOTS 7 AND 8 IN
BLOCK 5, AND LOTS 1 THROUGH 8, BOTH INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 6, IN
THE ORIGINAL TOWN OF HINSDALE, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN THE
NORTHWEST 1/4 (EXCEPT RAILROAD LANDS) OF SECTION 12,
TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED AUGUST 14, 1866
AS DOCUMENT 7738, TOGETHER WITH THAT PART OF VACATED 2ND
STREET LYING BETWEEN BLOCKS 5 AND 6 AND TOGETHER WITH
THAT PART OF VACATED ALLEY RUNNING NORTH AND SOUTH
THROUGH THE CENTER OF SAID BLOCKS 5 AND 6, WHICH LIES EAST
OF AND ADJOINING THE SOUTH 31 FEET OF LOT 6 AND ALL OF LOT 7
AND WEST OF AND ADJOINING THE SOUTH 31 FEET OF LOT 5§ AND
ALL OF LOT 8 IN BLOCK 5, EAST OF AND ADJOINING LOTS 2, 3, 6 AND
7 AND WEST OF AND ADJOINING LOTS 1, 4,5 AND 8 IN BLOCK 6, IN
DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

COMMONLY KNOWN AS 100 S. GARFIELD STREET, HINSDALE,
ILLINOIS





















STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

DISCUSSIONS OF THE HINSDALE
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

In the Matter of:

100 South Garfield Avenue,
Case No. V-03-17.

)
)
)
)
)
REPORT OF DISCUSSIONS had and of the
above-entitled matter between the Hinsdale
zoning Board of Appeals, at 19 East Chicago

Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on April 19, 2017,

at the hour of 6:30 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
MR. ROBERT NEIMAN, Chairman;
MR. MARC C. CONNELLY, Member;
MR. JOHN F. PODLISKA, Member;
MR. JOSEPH ALESIA, Member; and

MR. GARY MOBERLY, Member.

* * k * K%

1 of 5 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779





































































-Name
SBC
Rlorclan Br_@_r\_%_lfgh
Hartmann Jr., Fred & Sally
Carey, Francis & Jean TR
Scales, Roberta A TR
Saigh, Robert & Patricia
Picerne, Jeanne M
Abdo, Daniel TR
Cesarini, Dominic 2504
Fruit Store
Home Space, LLC
Jciuc
Shriver TR, Catherine & ETA
111 meoln LC
Berberlan Comp nies’

Odegard Propemes

Rock Rubicon LLC Hlnsdale i

Corrigan, Freda Bremer C/O _.)_ea_u_r]qe_ _Vaug_h_a_n )

" Midwest Property Group

- Matzelle, WM & Gretchen_

‘Cefaratti, Samuel & T TR
Coffey, Thomas & Mary
Dobrez, John & Tammy

JDR Investment Properties

: Address

909 Chesnut North 36 M1
1 16 Vy_ Zﬂd _St

119 W. 3rd St.

204 S. Lincoln St.
+218 S. Lincoln St.

210 S. Lincoln St.

304 S. Lincaln St.

"314 S. Lincoln St

54 S. Washington St.
26 W 1st. St.

306 S. Garﬁeld

18 W. 1st. St

14 W 1st St
723 W. North St.
515 Lyell Dr. Unit 101
POBox 58
1MaE.6th st

!970 Greenwood Court South

520 W. Erie Unit 430
1307 S. Luncoln St.

_:23 S. Lincoln St.
1304 S. Washington St.

418 S. Washington

' |B Robm Hood Ranch

True North Investments Agent of Hinsdale First I:L¢3000 Woodcreek Dr. #300

- Hinsdale Building Corporat|on R
29 First LLC, C/O Midwest Property Group
Duboe E B ant, Susie TR

TRP 35 F|rst Street LLC

25 E. 1st. St.

'520 W. Erie | Unlt 430
1662 Foltz

7630 Plaza Ct.

1015 Washington St. LTD PTNRSHP Cc/o Mldwestl

Property Group
8E1 Hinsdale LLC
Wayne ‘Hummer TR 1739
First Church of Christ
Mc Keague, Edward & Nancy
Eighteen East Hiﬁsdalé LL
Wisch Rental Properties L
V|llage of Hinsdale
Garfield Crossing LLC
Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce
Casten, Judith & Thomas
' Schneider, Robyn & Demse
East Third LLC
Ol.es‘ James & S Starkston
Shah, Neel & Caroline
Fiascone, Nicholas & A TR

520 W Erie Unit 430
431 S . Dearborn No. 203
727 N. Bank Lane

405 E. 1st. St.

42 S. Bodin St.

18 E. 1st. St.

PO Box 269

19 E. Chlcago Avenue

1 Lincoln Center Unit 700
22 E. 1st. St.

8 E. 3rd St.

20 E 3rd. St

306 S. Garfield

306 S. Garfield

315 S. Washington St.

11 E. 4th St.

‘City State Zip Code PIN PIN ‘PIN PIN IPIN
St. Louis ‘Mo 63101 912115010
Hinsdale ae 80521 912116002,
‘Hinsdale L 60521 912116005
Hinsdale I 60521 912116006
Hinsdale IL 60521 912116009
Hinsdale I 60521 912116010
Hinsdale 1L 60521 9121 177004l
-Hinsdale I 60521 912117013
Hinsdale I 60521 912121020
_Hinsaale L 60521 912122001
i L 60521 912122002
i 60521 912122003
H|nsdale B JE 60521: 9.1~21_2-2_0351 B
‘Hinsdale 'J!_ 60521 912122005 ' ’
AIModesto i cA 95356/ 912122008 912122007 ST o
) 605581 912122008 912122008 912122010
'Hinsdale i 60521! 912122013 T
i sanibel FL 33957' 912122014 ) o
“Chicago AL 60654 912122015 ) T
"Hinsdale L 60521 912124001 i
_ iHinsdale 1L  80521] 912124002 .
;Hinsdale i 605211 912124008 912124008 B e
Hinsdale L 60521 912124007 - T
1 0akbro | 60523 9121280168 ’ o T T
_iDowners Grove 1L 60515] 912128018 o
T Hinsdale 60521 912129009 S T
iChicago 60654| 912129010 ) )
[Hofftman Estate Co12129017 T
 Wilowbraok L 912129012 9012120013 e '
Chicago L 606541 912130001
“Chicago I s060s| 91213000z 912130007
‘Lake Forest ‘I 60045 912130003 '
Hinsdale I 60521 912130004
"Hinsdale I 60521 912130005
Hinsdale IL 60521 9121300086
Hinsdale I 60522 912130008
Hinsdale I 60521 912130010 912130020
Oakbrook Terrace IL 60181 912130018
Hinsdale L 60521 912130027
Hinsdale I 60521 912131007
“Hinsdale L 60521 912131002
‘Hinscale I 60521 912131003
'Hinsdale L 60521 912131004l
Hinsdale I 60521 912131008
Hinsdale i 60521 912131007




































VILLAGE OF

MEMORANDUM
Est. 1873
DATE: March 9, 2017
TO: Chairman Neiman & Members of the Zoning Board of Appeals
CC: Christine Bruton, Village Clerk
FROM: Robert McGinnis, MCP

Director of Community Development/Building commissioner

RE: Zoning Variation — V-04-17; 444 E. 4th Street

In this application for variation, the applicant requests relief from the Minimum Lot Area
set forth in section 3-110(E) in order to subdivide the property and create a buildable lot
on Woodside Avenue. The specific request is for 9,908 square feet of relief. As the
Zoning Board of Appeals has the authority to grant only up to a 10% reduction in lot
area under the provisions set forth in section 11-503(E)(1)(c), the request will need to
move on to the Board of Trustees as a recommendation.

This property is located in the R1 Residential Zoning District in the Village of Hinsdale
and is located on the south side of 4th Street between Oak Street and County Line
Road. The property is a through-lot and has a frontage of approximately 228’, a depth
of approximately 332.8", and a total square footage of approximately 53,888. The
maximum FAR is .20 plus 2,000 or 12,777 square feet, the maximum Building Coverage
is 25% or 13,472 square feet, and the maximum Total Lot Coverage is 50% or 26,944
square feet.

cc.  Kathleen Gargano, Village Manager
Zoning file V-04-17



































































































VILLAGE OF

MEMORANDUM
Est. 1873
DATE: July 11, 2017
TO: President Cauley and the Village Board of Trustees
FROM: Emily Wagner, Administration Manager
CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager
RE: Residential Refuse Contract Update

Purpose

Village staff is seeking direction from the Village Board regarding the potential request for
proposal (RFP) process for a new refuse, recycling and yard waste franchise agreement. The
Village's current franchise agreement with Republic Services expires April 30, 2018.

Background

Since 2007, the Village and Republic Services have engaged in a franchise agreement to
provide residential refuse, recycling and yard waste services to the Village of Hinsdale.
According to records, it appears that the Village and Republic Services originally entered into a
franchise agreement in 2007. A contract extension was granted in 2009. Thereafter, a contract
extension was granted in 2012 and then again in 2015.

Due to the timeframe required to go out for bid for a franchise agreement, it is recommended
that the Village commence this process now if interested in conducting a formal RFP process.

Other Considerations and Next Steps

When the Village Board reviewed the contract extension in May of 2015, the Trustees had a
discussion about the cost of the refuse service. The cost is higher than other municipalities due
to back door service. One option going forward is to bid for both back door and curbside
collection services to compare prices and allow residents to select their preferred service.
However, any service change would necessitate an information campaign to educate residents.

Currently, the agreement requires the use of 95 or 65-gallon wheeled “toter” containers that are
issued by the contractor for refuse and recycling services. One consideration for a future
contract is to allow for 34-gallon wheeled toter containers that may better suit the needs of
smaller families, such as those that may select the future Hinsdale Meadows.

Another service consideration that may be included in the RFP is a spring clean-up day. The
current agreement allows residents to disposed of bulk items that with prepaid affixed stickers.
Other municipal agreements contain spring clean-up programs that allow residents to dispose of
bulk items at no cost on one designated day per year.

If the Village wishes to extend the agreement for up to three additional years, the Village has not
less than 120 days prior to the end of the term to negotiate a successor agreement. The
agreement ends April 30, 2018, so therefore the 120 days prior to the expiration is January 1,
2018.



VILLAGE OF

MEMORANDUM

Est. 1873

Since 10 years have elapsed since the last time the Village conducted a formal bid for refuse
services, staff is seeking direction from the Village Board with regard to this service.

Overview of next steps:

- Perform a community survey comparing Hinsdale’s refuse, recycling and yard waste
rates and services to other municipalities

- If directed to go out to conduct RFP process, create a timeline of action item steps

- Draft and distribute RFP documents

- Notify Republic Services of the bidding process



























Traffic Safety Reviews:

Garfield & Walnut: An intersection study was completed following internal analysis of increased crashes at
the intersection in the past 24-hour period, when compared to the past ten years. A recommendation has
been forwarded to the Village Board for the installation of 4-way stop signs.

800 blk N. Washington: Recommendations were made for installing additional no parking signs to supple-
ment existing restrictions for parking on the hillcrest. A resident reported several near-miss collisions
when landscape trucks park in this prohibited area.

4th & Bodin: A request was received from a concerned citizen for a stop sign installation. The study showed
the minimum number of crashes and volumes of vehicles were not met for a stop sign installation.

Justina & Fuller: A request was received from a concerned citizen for a stop sign installation. The study
showed the minimum number of crashes and volumes of vehicles were not met for a stop sign installation.

200 blk Jackson: Recommendations were made for installing a “No Parking 7:00 AM to 9:00 AM” sign to
supplement the existing Village ordinance due to the close proximity to train depot. A resident reported
routine 7:00 AM to 9:00 AM violations in this area.

On-going Traffic Studies: Traffic studies are in-progress at the intersection of 8t & Adams following a resi-
dent concern, 800 blk Phillippa following concerns of speeding vehicles, and 10 blk of Orchard for compari-

son traffic counts from historical samplings.

Other Traffic related activity:

Memorial Day DUI Initiative: Between May 15 and May 30, Hinsdale Officers participated in a statewide
enforcement initiative to address impaired driving. Officers stopped 46 vehicles, issued 21 warnings and
34 citations or criminal complaints during the initiative.

SOUTH SIDE
County Line Road: 47th to 55th (15)
55th Street (75)

NORTH SIDE
Chicago Ave: Rt. 83 to Monroe (0)
County Line Road: Walnut to Ogden (15)
Madison: North to Ogden (2)
Ogden Avenue (155)

York Road: The Lane to Ogden (4

200 blk E. 8th 7th & Monroe
500 blk N. County Line Road
700 blk W. Chicago Avenue

600 blk S. Monroe

800 blk Phillippa
10 blk Orchard Place

Hinsdale Police Department
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SERVICE CALLS—May 2017

e, | ot [t TLasteael o onane

Sex Crimes 2 0 5 0 500
Robbery 0 0 1 0 100
IAssault/Battery 4 3 13 11 18
Domestic Violence 18 16 56 62 -10
Burglary 1 0 3 1 200
Residential Burglary 1 2 4 5 -20
Burglary from Motor Vehicle 0 3 0 15 -100
Theft 3 9 15 38 -61
Retail Theft 0 4 2 9 -78
Identity Theft 7 5 26 34 -24
IAuto Theft 2 3 6 6 0
IArson/Explosives 0 0 0 0 0
Deceptive Practice 0 0 1 0 100
Forgery/Fraud 6 5 40 21 90
Criminal Damage to Property 5 6 29 21 38
Criminal Trespass 4 0 8 2 300
Disorderly Conduct 10 0 28 10 180
Harassment 7 3 27 18 50
Death Investigations 1 1 10 4 150
Drug Offenses 4 8 24 30 -20
Minor Alcohol/Tobacco Offenses 2 1 5 7 -29
Juvenile Problems 10 9 36 51 -29
Reckless Driving 12 5 66 38 74
Hit and Run 6 7 34 37 -8
Traffic Offenses 14 21 71 68 4
Motorist Assist 35 35 144 118 22
\Abandoned Motor Vehicle 0 2 4 3 33
Parking Complaint 33 44 139 159 -13
IAuto Accidents 69 45 234 248 -6
IAssistance to Outside Agency 50 47 225 249 -10
Traffic Stops 377 415 2,133 1,955 9
Noise complaints 16 12 42 36 17
Vehicle Lockout 10 21 82 107 -23
Fire/Ambulance Assistance 125 104 588 504 17

larm Activations 81 111 467 503 -7
Open Door Investigations 9 6 32 23 39
Lost/Found Articles 17 18 72 68 6
Runaway/Missing Persons 2 1 5 10 -50
Suspicious Auto/Person 100 50 328 254 29
Disturbance 0 0 5 9 -44
911 hangup/misdial 23 13 112 128 -13
IAnimal Complaints 35 32 145 176 -18
Citizen Assists 43 52 217 212 2
Solicitors 6 12 25 39 -36
Community Contacts 0 1 3 8 -63
Curfew/Truancy 0 1 3 6 -50
Other 279 292 1,139 1,184 -4
TOTALS 1,429 1,425 6,654 6,487 3

*Higher totals in the “Other” classitication are due to incident numbers being generated by DuComm for many administrative matters that would not have required
an incident number previously with SWCD, or incidents that are not specific to an [UCR offense specified in the monthly report. Examples include: mutual aid
requests for the fire department to other towns, administrative duties, transport of prisoners, complaint cancellation, in-service training, and child seat inspections.

Hinsdale Police Department










Hinsdale Police Department

Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices Warrants

Section 2B.04 Yield/Stop Signs
The use of YIELD or STOP signs should be considered at the intersection of two minor streets or local roads
where the intersection has three or more approaches and where one of more of the following conditions exist:

A. The combined vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian volume entering the intersection from all approaches aver-
ages more than 2,000 units per day;

B. The ability to see conflicting traffic on an approach is not sufficient to allow a road user to stop or yield in
compliance with the normal right-of-way rule if such stopping or yielding is necessary; and/or

C. Crash records indicate that five or more crashes that involve the failure to yield right-of-way at the inter-
section under the normal right-of-way rule have been reported within a 3-year period, or that three or more
such crashes have been reported within a 2-year period.

YIELD or STOP signs should not be used for speed control.

Section 2B.07 Multi-Way Stop Applications

Multi-way stop control can be useful as a safety measure at intersections if certain traffic conditions exist.
Safety concerns associated with multi-way stops include pedestrians, bicyclists, and all road users expecting
other road users to stop. Multi-way stop control is used where the volume of traffic on the intersecting roads is
approximately equal.

Guidance:

The decision to install multi-way stop control should be based on an engineering study. The following criteria
should be considered in the engineering study for a multi-way STOP sign installation:

A. Where traffic control signals are justified, the multi-way stop is an interim measure that can be
installed quickly to control traffic while arrangements are being made for the installation of the traffic control
signal.

B. Five or more reported crashes in a 12-month period that are susceptible to correction by a multi-way stop
installation. Such crashes include right-turn and left-turn collisions as well as right-angle collisions.

C. Minimum volumes:

1. The vehicular volume entering the intersection from the major street approaches (total of both approaches)
averages at least 300 vehicles per hour for any 8 hours of an average day; and

2. The combined vehicular, pedestrian, and bicycle volume entering the intersection from the minor street
approaches (total of both approaches) averages at least 200 units per hour for the same 8hours, with an
average delay to minor-street vehicular traffic of at least 30 seconds per vehicle during the highest hour;
but

3. If the 85th -percentile approach speed of the major-street traffic exceeds 40 mph, the minimum vehicular
volume warrants are 70 percent of the values provided in Items 1 and 2.

D. Where no single criterion is satisfied, but where Criteria B, C.1, and C.2 are all satisfied to 80 percent of the
minimum values. Criterion C.3 is excluded from this condition.

Hinsdale Police Department
15



CITATIONS—May 2017

CITATIONS BY LOCATION Thie

This Month
Month Last Year YTD Last YTD

Chestnut Lot Commuter Permit 42 45 163 185
Highland Lot Commuter Permit 39 22 121 109
Village Lot Commuter Permit 67 56 261 197
Washington Lot Merchant Permit 47 123 192 350
Hinsdale Avenue Parking Meters 291 404 1,343 2,171
First Street Parking Meters 231 414 1,166 2,171
Washington Street Parking Meters 299 497 1,628 2,345
Lincoln Street Parking Meters 21 10 82 132
Garfield Lot Parking Meters 51 116 366 410
Other All Others 353 462 1,810 | 2,066
VIOLATIONS BY TYPE This  Maks

Month Last Year YTD Last YTD

Parking Violations

METER VIOLATIONS 988 1,671 4,813 7,679
HANDICAPPED PARKING 2 13 8 52
NO PARKING 7AM-9AM 23 23 167 180
NO PARKING 2AM-6AM 88 110 585 577
PARKED WHERE PROHIBITED BY SIGN 55 54 204 282
NO VALID PARKING PERMIT 73 77 263 308

Vehicle Violations

VILLAGE STICKER 90 60 324 212
REGISTRATION OFFENSE 40 52 293 386
VEHICLE EQUIPMENT 6 20 24 47
Animal Violations 3 1 9 14
All Other Violations 73 68 442 399

Hinsdale Police Department
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VILLAGE OF

MEMORANDUM
Est. 1873
DATE: July 7, 2017
TO: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager
CC: President Cauley and the Village Board of Trustees
FROM: Anna Devries, Economic Development Coordinator / Finance Clerk
Emily Wagner, Administration Manager :
RE: June Economic Development Monthly Report
The following economic development updates are for your review:

Throughout June, staff members Anna Devries, Jean Bueche and Emily Wagner
volunteered at the Chamber of Commerce’s Uniquely Thursday concert series.

The Economic Development Commission (EDC) meeting was cancelled in June. The next
meeting is scheduled for July 25.

On June 1, staff assisted the EDC’s marketing agency, Direct Advantage, with filming
footage around the community to later create short marketing videos to promote
Hinsdale’s business districts and the community.

On June 2, staff met with the owners of the Gateway Square shopping district to discuss
the owner’s idea of adding a second floor to a section of the building.

On June 2, staff had a conference call with Tim King of Hitchcock Design Group to discuss
the overall plan and design of the new Village welcome sign. Hitchcock Design Group is
familiar with Hinsdale’s signage requirements as they assisted in the design of the Oak
Street Bridge, the Village’s wayfinding signage and the historical downtown signage.

On June 5, staff met with Five Star Valet to discuss the details of the upcoming valet
service that will be provided to customers of the CBD during July and August.

On June 5, staff met with Michael Kiyosaki, the new EDC Commissioner, to discuss the
Commission’s overall goals and upcoming initiatives.

On June 8, staff attended the Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting to discuss the
upcoming Central Business District construction and communication plan.

On June 13, the Village hosted an informational meeting for the Central Business District
community to review the upcoming construction schedule for the CBD repaving, and staff
was present to answer any questions.

On June 13, staff attended the Oak Street Bridge pocket park dedication to show support
of the new community amenity.

On June 15, staff met with the Chamber of Commerce and Pam Lannom of The
Hinsdalean to talk about promoting Small Business Saturday, which is held nationwide the
Saturday after Thanksgiving to promote shopping locally.
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On June 19, staff attended the Chamber of Commerce Membership meeting to discuss
member retention and member engagement.

On June 21, staff attended the DuPage Mayors and Managers Conference to learn about
the DuPage County Tourism Strategic Plan.

Throughout the month, staff attended a weekly construction meeting to learn about the
upcoming CBD construction project and to communicate it with the business community.
Robert Rigali has signed a lease at 24 W. Chicago Avenue to open a cryotherapy
business. Robert recently opened The Cryo Bar in Chicago.

Staff has continued working to increase the Village’s business licenses compliance rate.
Currently the Village has a 92% compliance rate, which has increased from 87% in 2016.
During the month of June, staff has been working on creating and maintaining construction
updates on the Village website to assist in communication with the Central Business
District resurfacing project and the accelerated roadway plan.

Throughout the month, staff has been working with potential business owners who are
interested in opening a business in the Hinsdale community.
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MEMORANDUM
Est. 1873 —rr
DATE: June 19, 2017
TO: President Cauley and the Village Board of Trustees
CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager
FROM: Robert McGinnis, Community Development Director/Building Commissionerﬁ—
RE: Community Development Department Monthly Report- May 2017

In the month of May the department issued 104 permits, including 1 demolition permit and 1
permit for a new single family home. The department conducted 424 inspections and revenue
for the month came in at just under $68,000.

There are approximately 109 applications in house, including 16 single family homes and 18
commercial alterations. There are 21 permits ready to issue at this time, plan review
turnaround is running approximately 3-4 weeks, and lead times for inspection requests are
running approximately 24 hours.

The Engineering Division has continued to work with the department in order to complete site
inspections and respond to drainage complaints. In total, 76 engineering inspections were
performed for the month of May by the division. This does not include any inspection of road
program work and is primarily tied to building construction and drainage complaints.

We currently have 23 vacant properties on our registry list. The department continues to
pursue owners of vacant and blighted properties to either demolish them and restore the lots
or come into compliance with the property maintenance code.



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MONTHLY REPORT May 2017

PERMITS THIS THIS MONTH FEES FY TO DATE |TOTAL LASTFY
MONTH | LAST YEAR TO DATE

New Single 1 5

Family Homes

New Multi Family 0 0

Homes

Residential 14 15

Addns /Alts.

Commercial 0 0

New

Commercial 7 6

Addns./Alts.

Miscellaneous 47 35

Demolitions 1 4

Total Building 70 65 $ 50,656.00 $50,656.00 $145,929.00

Permits

Total Electrical 15 18| $ 8,661.00 $ 8,661.00 $11,306.00

Permits ‘

Total Plumbing 19 22| $ 8,488.00f $ 8,488.00 $23,330.00

Permits

TOTALS 104 105| $ 67,805.00 $67,805.000 $ 180,565.00

Citations $250

Vacant 23

Properties

INSPECTIONS THIS THIS MONTH
MONTH LAST YEAR

Bldg, Elec, HVAC 204 224

Plumbing 51 41

Property

Maint./Site Mgmt. 93 93

 Engineering 76 86

TOTALS 424 444

REMARKS:




VILLAGE OF HINSDALE - May 2, 2017 _
Name Ticket NO. Location Violation Ord Fine Resuit

46 S. Madison

J. Jordan Homes 11866 212 N. Lincoln Early work start 250 250

Total: 750 250

MONTHLY TOTAL: 250
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MEMORANDUM

Est. 1873

TO: President Cauley and the Board of Trustees
FROM: Dan Deeter, PE
DATE: July 11, 2017

RE: Engineering May/June 2017 Monthly Report
Executive Summary

e 2017 Resurfacing. ALamp has completed the water main and resurfacing
outside of the CBD. Resurfacing and crosswalk construction in the CBD starts
07/05/17.

e 2017 Reconstruction. ALamp has completed this project.

e 2017 Resurfacing (Phase 2). ALamp has started the accelerated resurfacing
working from the south to the north.

e Graue Mill Flood Protection. On 05/30/17, DuPage County received bid that was
+/-$160,000 below the budget for the final flood protection phase. DuPage
County has 120-days to award the contract. They will not award the contract
until the State of lllinois has a budget that will allow the release of the State funds
for the project.

Engineering Monthly Report Page 1
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Est. 1873
TO: President Cauley and the Board of Trustees
FROM: Dan Deeter, PE
DATE: July 11, 2017
RE: Engineering May/June 2017 Monthly Report

The Engineering Division activities include working with the Building Division to
complete site inspections, managing Capital Improvement Projects, responding to
drainage complaints, and addressing environmental permit obligations. In total, three
Engineering employees performed 114 construction site inspections or drainage
complaint inspections in May & June. In May & June, staff submitted eight
environmental reports to the lllinois EPA and conducted the annual Public Notice
meeting as required by the Village’s Combined Sewer Overflow permit. The eight
reports consisted of the monthly Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) for each of the
Village’s four Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) locations.

The following capital improvement projects and engineering studies are underway:

2017 Resurfacing Project (including the 2017 Maintenance and Central Business
District (CBD) Resurfacing)

e Objective
v Improve Village Streets by resurfacing with 2" hot mix asphalt
v Improve water main on Symonds Drive and N. Elm Street
v Improve Village Place by removing & replacing the stamped concrete
pavement with similar stamped concrete. Replace the standard concrete
as necessary.

e Areas to be improved
v' 2017 MIP Resurfacing

» 59" Street from Elm to the east end resurfaced
= 58t Street from Garfield to the east end resurfaced
» Giddings Avenue from 58t Street to the south end  resurfaced
» Ninth Street from Thurlow to Madison resurfaced
» Washington Street from Third to Fourth resurfaced
v' 2017 Maintenance recommendations ‘
» Madison Street from Second to Sixth resurfaced
= North Street from Adams to Madison resurfaced
» Hickory Street from EIm to Oak (W) resurfaced
» Park Avenue from First to Third resurfaced

Elm Street from Chicago to Fourth resurfaced

Engineering Monthly Report Page 2
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Est. 1873
*  Symonds Drive from Garfield to EIm WM complete & resurfaced
» EIm Street from Symonds to Walnut VWM complete & resurfaced
* Adams Street from North to Maple resurfaced
» Park Street from Seventh to Eighth resurfaced
» Stough Street from Eighth to the south end resurfaced
=  Woodmere Drive from Garfield to the west end resurfaced
» Qak Street from First to Third resurfaced

v Central Business District (CBD) scheduled from 07/05/17 — 08/18/17
= Hinsdale Avenue from Grant to Garfield
* First Street from Grant to Garfield
» Grant Street from Hinsdale to First
* Lincoln Street from Hinsdale to Second
» Washington Street from Hinsdale to Second
» Garfield Street from Hinsdale to First
» Village Place from Hinsdale to First
e Project Status
v The pre-construction meeting was held on 03/02/17.
v' CBD Phase 1 — pavement removal overnight
» (07/05-06/17 — Hinsdale Avenue from Grant to Garfield
» (07/06-07/17 — First Street from Grant to Garfield
= (07/07-08/17 — N-S Streets
= (07/07/17 — Set up phase 2 construction barriers and positions
equipment and materials
» 07/10-11/17 — N-S Street pavement removal if necessary.
v" CBD Phase 2 — Hinsdale Avenue & First Street
= 07/10/17 — begin street base patching and crosswalk construction
e Project Schedule
01/27/117 Construction bid opening
02/07/17 Contract approval First Read at Board of Trustees meeting
02/21117 Contract approval consent agenda
03/02/17 Pre-construction meeting
04/03/17 Resurfacing of areas outside the CBD from south to north
07/05/17 Earliest date resurfacing is anticipated to begin in CBD
08/18/17 Project completion date

MEAENANANAYR

2017 Reconstruction Project

e Objectives:
o Reconstruct roads within the Village
o Provide public storm sewers in the right of way that private storm sewers
can improve drainage in Localized Drainage Area #17 in the backyards of
the 500-blocks of N. Grant/N. Vine Streets.

Engineering Monthly Report Page 3
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o Line or replace identified sanitary sewers and storm sewers.
e Areas to be improved:

o Ayres Street from Vine to Lincoln

o Center Street from Vine to Washington

o Chicago Avenue from Garfield to Park
e Project Status: Complete except for laying sod and punch list items.

2017 Resurfacing Project (Phase 2)

The Board of Trustees approved the construction contract with ALamp for the 2017
Resurfacing Project (Phase 2) on 06/13/17.

o Street resurfacing will include the following activities:
= Pavement saw cutting where necessary
= Select curb & gutter removal and replacement
» Removal of the asphalt surface course
» Patch pavement base as necessary
= Pave the pavement leveling course as necessary
= Addressing nuisance sump pump discharges into the public ROW
* Adjust manholes as necessary
= Final surface paving

o The streets designated for improvement are shown below. ALamp has indicated
they will start on the south side of Hinsdale around 06/16/17 and work by areas.
The duration of the resurfacing on each street depends upon which activities above
are required. ALamp generally anticipates the improvements will take 3 — 4 weeks
per street on average. (Multiple streets will be under construction at any particular
time).

Street Limits Status
= 57t Street Grant to County Line
= Adams Street Maple to Chicago
» Blaine Street Chicago to First
* Bodin Street Fourth to Sixth
= Bruner Street North to Hickory
= Bruner Street Walnut to Chicago
" Bruner Street Hinsdale to Fourth
» Camberley Court West end to East end
» Chestnut Street West End to Quincy

. hilds Aen

Park to 57t
Engineering Monthly Report
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Clay Street
Eighth Street
Elm Street
Flagg Court
Fuller Road
Garfield Street
Garfield Street
Giddings Avenue
Grant Street
Grant Street
Grant Street
Grant Street
Grant Street
Hickory Street
Hickory Street
Highland Road
Hillcrest Avenue
Justina Street
Lincoln Street
Madison Street
Maple Street
Maple Street
Mills Street
Minneola Street
Monroe Street
Ninth Street
Ninth Street
North Street
Oak Street
Oak Street
Oak Street
Oak Street
Orchard Place
Park Avenue
Park Avenue
Park Avenue
Park Avenue

VILLAGE OF

Fourth to Sixth
intersection with Quincy
55t to Meadowbrook
West end to Oak

West end to County Line
The Lane to Chicago
First to 55" (patching)
North end to 58t
Hickory to Maple

First to Fifth

Seventh to Eighth
Ninth to 55t

57t to 59t

Madison to EIm

Oak(E) to Mills

County Line to east end
Third to Woodside
Minneola to Walnut
Second to Third

Maple to Chicago
Grant to Lincoln
Washington to Garfield
The Lane to Ravine
Garfield to York

Walnut to Hinsdale
Monroe to Madison
Washington to Park
Madison to Washington
Fuller to Minneola
Ravine to Walnut

Third to Woodside

55t to 57t

Chicago to First
Hickory to Walnut

Third to Fourth

Fifth to Sixth

Park Circle to 57t

MEMORANDUM
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Park Circle
Phillippa Street
Quincy Street
Ravine Road
Seventh Street
Seventh Street
Seventh Street
Seventh Street
Seventh Street
Sixth Street

Sixth Street
Stough Street

The Lane

Town Place
Thurlow Street
Vine Street

Vine Street
Walnut Street
Walnut Street
Washington Street
Washington Street
Washington Street

VILLAGE OF

North end to Childs
Minneola to Walnut
Hickory to Stough
Phillippa to Mills
Jackson to Stough
Quincy to Adams
Bodin to Monroe
Grant to Garfield
Elm to Oak
Jackson to Bodin
Monroe to Clay

Hinsdale to Eighth

Phillippa to Mills
Stough to Bruner
Sixth to Ninth
North to Walnut
Ninth to South end
Bruner to Monroe
Oak to Mills

Maple Street to Hinsdale

Fourth to Seventh
North end to 57t

MEMORANDUM

The project has been divided into eight zones for construction purposes working from
south to north.

e Zone1.
o Pavement saw cutting is complete.
o Concrete work is complete.
o 06/30/17 — Pavement removal will begin
e Zone 2.
o Concrete work (replacement of curb & gutter, sidewalks, & handicapped
ramps) is in process.
e Zone 3.
o Contractor is locating underground utilities using JULIE system. ALamp
will start saw cutting next week.

Engineering Monthly Report Page 6
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Graue Mill Flood Control Project

e Phases 1 & 2A are complete.

e Copenhaver, the general contractor for phase 2B, is currently constructing the
flood proofing features for the two multi-family buildings on S. Indian Trail.

e Phase 3A, the compensatory storage on the DuPage Forest Preserve area, has
been constructed.

e On May 30, 2017, DuPage County opened the bids for the final phase of the project
— Phase 3B, flood proofing the remaining structures. The lowest, qualified bids
was approximately $160,000 below the budget. Their contract allows DuPage
County to withhold approval of the contract for 120-days until the State funding
issues for the project are resolved.

2018 Resurfacing Project

¢ Objective
v" Resurface Village streets by removing & replacing 2-inches of asphalt
v' Separate the combined sewer on Eighth Place
e Areas to be improved
v' Jackson Street from Sixth Street to the south end
v" Bruner Street from Eighth to the south end
v' Eighth Place from Madison to the east end
v’ 57t Street from Madison to Grant
e Project Schedule
v 02/21/17 — The Board of Trustees is approving the engineering consultant,
GSG Consultants, for the design phase.
05/16/17 - Staff is working with GSG Consultants for a change order to
accelerate infrastructure improvements in 2018.
December 2017 — Design and permitting complete
January 2018 — Construction bidding
February 2018 — Board of Trustees approval
March 2018 — Construction preparation
April 2018 — Construction begins
October 2018 — Construction complete

<

DN N N NN

2018 Reconstruction Project

e Objective

v Reconstruct Village streets

v" Improve water main on portions of Lincoln and Hickory Streets

v Improve sanitary sewers on portions of Lincoln and Hickory Streets
e Areas to be improved

Engineering Monthly Report Page 7
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v" Lincoln Street from Ogden to Ayres
v' Hinsdale Avenue from Monroe to Madison
v" Hickory Street from Stough to Monroe
¢ Project Schedule
v' 02/21/17 — The Board of Trustees is approving the engineering consultant,
GSG Consultants, for the design phase.
05/16/17 — Staff is working with GSG Consultants for a change order to
accelerate infrastructure improvements in 2018.
December 2017 — Design and permitting complete
January 2018 — Construction bidding
February 2018 — Board of Trustees approval
March 2018 — Construction preparation
April 2018 — Construction begins
October 2018 — Construction complete

O

AN N NI NI N

State and Federal Funding Opportunities
A summary of the Grant Funds awarded or applied for by the Village of Hinsdale is
attached.

Other Engineering Activities in the Area

NICOR “Investing in lllinois” Gas Main/Service Replacement

Nicor next gas main/service replacement project under their “Investing in lllinois”
program is in area north of Ogden Avenue. Nicor’'s sub-contractor, NPL, is currently
identifying existing utilities and potential underground conflicts. Installation of new gas
main and services is expected to be completed this year. The streets involved are
shown on the attached Nicor plan and are listed below:

Glendale Road Madison to the east end
“Madison Street Glendale to Bonnie Brae

Birchwood Road  Madison to east end

Briargate Terrace Madison to east end

Canterbury Court Madison to east end

Bonnie Brea Madison to east of The Pines

Washington Street Spring Road (in Oak Brook) to Birchwood Avenue
Birchwood Avenue west end to east end

Nicor is responsible for informing and updating residents on their project(s). Staff will
continue to assist with the flow of information. Staff has considered the impact of this
Nicor project on the preliminary accelerated infrastructure program. Village

Engineering Monthly Report Page
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improvements in this area are scheduled in 2018 at the earliest (after the Nicor work is
completed).

Central Tri-State Tollway Improvement Planning. The lllinois Tollway is in the initial
planning stage for improvements to the Central Tri-State Tollway (I-294) from 95! Street
to Balmoral Avenue (22.3 miles) in 2016.
e In April 2017, the Tollway Board approved a recommendation to improve 1-294 up
to six lanes (two additional lanes) in each direction and a widened inner median.
o Staff continues to work with the Tollway to minimize the impact to Hinsdale and
Hinsdale residents.
e The anticipated time table is listed below:

o Corridor Planning Council Report 2016 (behind schedule)
o Master Plan 2017

o Final Design Contracts 2017-19

o 1-294 Mainline Construction 2020-2022

Engineering Monthly Report Page 9



2017 Reconstruction Project

Hinsdale, IL
Change Order Field Record
Change Estimated Cost Submitted Cost Change Board
Request Date Pay ltem Description and Reason for Change Order ﬁo Approval
No. Status Addition Deduction Addition Deduction : Date
. " Storm sewer material change from concrete to ductile iron for better, fong
1 5/23/2017 |Storm Sewer pipe, DIP 8 term operations due to shallow installation. Complete $ 2,190.00
Subtotal $ 2,190.00 $ - $ - $ -
Total $ 2,190.00 Addition
Construction Observation Construction
Budget: $ 44,239.00 Project Budget 1,150,655.00
Bid: $ 38,800.00 Contractor Bid 710,580.00
Change Order Construction Contingency 440,075.00
Contingency: $ 5,439.00 Contingency balance Less Net Change Orders 437,885.00 Total Project Contingency: $ 443,324.00

05/24/17

Page 1

2017 Reconstruction Change Order Update 20170524




2017 Resurfacing Project

Hinsdale, IL
Change Order Field Record
Change Estimated Cost Submitted Cost Change Board
Request Date Pay ltem Description and Reason for Change Order No Approval
No. Status Addition Deduction Addition Deduction : Date
1 3/31/2017 (r:\l:ri;e;g;nsump Pump Connect additional nuisance sump pumps to local sewer system Complete $ 3,000.00
2 04 /0'3 /17 | Driveway Restoration Restore brick and PCC driveway aprons that were disturbed for curb & Complete $ 3,600.00
gutter removal and replacement.
3 04/04/17 Nuisancg Sump Pump annect additional nuisance sump pumps at 331 N. Adams and 638 W. Complete $ 6.265.00
connection Hickory
. Substitute Leveling Binder for Poly Leveling Binder due to cool weather
4 04/06/17  Poly Level! Binder during applcation, Complete $ 12,200.00
Subtotal $ 12,865.00 $ 12,200.00 $ - -
Total $ 665.00 Addition
Construction Observation Construction
Budget: $ 154,720.00 Project Budget 2,200,000.00
Bid: $ 147,187.00 Contractor Bid 2,093,814.00
Change Order Construction Contingency 106,186.00
Contingency: $ 7,533.00 Contingency balance Less Net Change Orders 105,521.00 Total Project Contingency: $ 113,054.00
120716
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2017 Resurfacing Change Order Update 20170510




2017 Watermain Project

Hinsdale, IL
Change Order Field Record
Change Estimated Cost Submitted Cost Change Board
Request Date Pay Item Description and Reason for Change Order No Approval
No. Status Addition Deduction Addition Deduction : Date

Underground utility conflict with abandoned 30-inch storm sewer not

1 4/27/2017 |Time & Material identified on Village utility atiases. Route 12" WM around storm sewer. Complete $ 5,786.55
Remove portion of storm sewer, brick & motar ends.
Underground utility conflict not identified in Village utility atlas. Remove

2 05/02/17 |Time & Material existing 5-foot concrete culvert, brick and mortar both ends, and offset Complete $ 2,989.11
proposed 12" water main.

3 05/04/17 | Time & Material Filling of abandoned culvert to prevent future pavement impacts. Complete $ 3,848.04

4 05/17/17  |Fire Hydrant Credit for using fire hydrant supplied by the Village Complete $ 2,850.00
Time & Materials to work around abandoned foundation when installing

5 06/05/17 |Time & Material new fire and service fines to public services. Repair leaking public Complete $ 2,500.00
services service fine.

6 06/06/17 | Time & Material Remove and replace storm sewer that conflicts with 16" water main. Complete $ 1,000.00

Subtotal $ 3,500.00 $ - $ 12,623.70 $ 2,850.00
Total $ 13,273.70 Addition
Construction Observation
Included in 2017 Resurfacing Construction
Budget: Project Budget 337,051.00
Bid: Contractor Bid 345,679.00
Change Order Construction Contingency (8,628.00)
Contingency: Contingency balance Less Net Change Orders (21,901.70) Total Project Contingency: $ (21,901.70)

06/13/17

Page 1
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Village of Hinsdale

[Source |Program |Purpose |Funds Available |  Amount |
Illinois Commerce Commission Crossing Safety Improvement Program Oak Street Bridge - 60% Funding 2015 Capital Budget $ 4,240,000
Senator Dillard State Capital Bill Oak Street Bridge Effective January 1, 2011 $ 825,000
West Suburban Mass Transit Car Sale Proceeds Oak Street Bridge Eng/Construction 50/50 Reimbursement $ 395,000
Illinois Dept of Transportation Federal Highway Bridge Program Oak Street Bridge Phase I July 2010 - 80/20 $ 680,000
DuPage Mayors & Managers Federal Stimulus S. Garfield Reconstruction Paid Through IDOT $ 1,632,000
Senator Dillard & Rep Bellock Emergency Repair Program Street resurfacing Upon Project Completion 3 300,000
Representative Bellock State Capital Bill N. Washington Reconstruction Upon issuance of bonds $ 340,000
New Local Transportation Projects State Capital Bill Road Improvements 20% released October, 2010 § 389,540
Lyons Township Bond Proceeds KILM Park Pavilion Upon Project Completion $ 150,000
DuPage Mayors & Managers STP Program Oak Street Bridge 2015 Capital Budget $ 3,830,000
IDNR OSLAD Improvements to KLM Awarded $ 150,000
IEPA ARRA/State Revolving Loan Garfield Sewer Separation Loan docs received 7/05/11 3 444,160
IEPA ARRA/State Revolving Loan Chestnut Sewer Separation Loan docs received 8/16/11 $ 3,728,196
West Suburban Mass Transit Car Sale Proceeds Highland Parking Lot 2/3 reimbursement 3 100,000
IDOT Federal Highway Bridge Program Oak Street Bridge Phases IT & III IDOT local agency agreem't $ 5,904,514
Illinois Dept of Transportation Surface Transportation Program (STP) Garfield Street (Chicago Ave. - 70% SPT match $ 807,000

55th) resurfacing (letting Jan 2019) 30% local match
Illinois Dept of Transportation Surface Transportation Program (STP) Chicago Ave (IL Rte 83 - Garfield) 70% SPT match $ 760,000
resurfacing (letting Jan 2020) 30% local match
Total $ 24,675,409
Village of Hinsdale
Grant Applications Under Consideration

fSource [Program {Purpose [Status |  Amount |

Total $ -

G:\Grants\grants awarded

Rev: 07/11/17



Veeck Park Wet Weather Facility
Hinsdale, Hllinois
Bar Screen Overflow Storage
Channel Ht. Above Tank Precipitation
Downstream  Weir  Elevation (inches of

Date (feet) (feet) (feet) water)
05/01/16 2.09 20.03 0.33
05/02/16 0.24 5.06 0.10
05/03/16 0.23 5.26 0.00
05/04/16 0.23 6.87 0.00
05/05/16 0.19 ' 4.97 0.00
05/06/16 0.20 6.59 0.07
05/07/16 0.19 4.84 0.00
05/08/16 0.21 6.11 0.01
05/09/16 0.22 443 0.32
05/10/16 7.92 0.75 2511 0.82
05/11/16 0.37 15.02 0.00
05/12/16 0.18 0.72 0.00
05/13/16 0.18 0.72 0.00
05/14/16 0.18 ‘ 0.72 0.00
05/15/16 0.18 0.72 0.00
05/16/16 0.18 0.72 0.00
05/1716 0.20 6.75 047
05/18/16 0.22 5.98 0.01
05/19/16 0.23 5.86 0.25
05/20/16 0.23 3.99 0.33
05/21/16 0.22 5.45 0.07
05/22/16 0.19 4.65 0.01
05/23/16 0.22 4.26 0.36
05/24/16 0.22 4.39 0.35
05/25/16 0.23 4.02 0.00
05/26/16 0.73 7.68 0.26
05/27/16 0.21 4.41 0.00
05/28/16 0.24 4.26 0.01
05/29/16 0.22 4.30 0.00
05/30/16 0.25 3.96 0.00
05/31/16 0.23 4.21 0.00

Total Precipiation in May: 3.77

Departure from Normal: 0.10

103% of normal r:
Notes:
1. Minimum tank elevation is 2.0 feet to avoid running the pumps dry and
2. Rain data from Midway Airport weather station via WeatherUndergrou



Veeck Park Wet Weather Facility
Hinsdale, Hllinois
Bar Screen Overflow Storage

Date

06/01/15
06/02/15
06/03/15
06/04/15
06/05/15
06/06/15
06/07/15
06/08/15
06/09/15
06/10/15
06/11/15
06/12/15
06/13/15
06/14/15
06/15/15
06/16/15
06/17/15
06/18/15
06/19/15
06/20/15
06/21/15
06/22/15
06/23/15
06/24/15
06/25/15
06/26/15
06/27/115
06/28/15
06/29/15
06/30/15

Total Precipiation in June:

Channel
Downstream
(feet)

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00 -
0.00

Departure from Normal:

Notes:

1. Minimum tank elevation is 2.0 feet to avoid running the pumps dry and damaging them.

Ht. Above
Weir
(feet)

Tank

Elevation

(feet)

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Precipitation
(inches of
water)

0.05
0.02

0.05
1.056

0.08
0.03

0.23
0.01

0.02
0.60

0.24
0.21
0.01

2.60
-0.85
75%

2. Rain data from Midway Airport, Weather Underground.

inches above normal
of normal rainfall
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